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WILLIAM A. MUNDELL 
CHAIRMAN 

JIM R V I N  
COMMISSIONER 

MARC SPITZER 
COMMISSIONER 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION 
OF THE MORENCI WATER & ELECTRIC 
COMPANY FOR A PARTIAL WAIVER OF 
PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDING COMPANIES 
AND AFFILIATED INTERESTS RULES 
(A.A.C. R14-2-801 et seq.) 

E-01 049A-01-11692 

Docket No. 

APPLICATION OF THE MORENCI WATER & ELECTRIC COMPANY 
FOR A PARTIAL WAIVER OF PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDING 

COMPANIES AND AFFILIATED INTERESTS RULES 
(A.A.C. R14-2-801 et seq.) 

-and- 

REQUEST FOR EXTENSION TO COMPLY WITH PUBLIC 
UTILITY HOLDING COMPANIES AND AFFILIATED INTERESTS RULES 

Pursuant to A.A.C. R14-2-806, The Morenci Water & Electric Company (“MWE”), 

an Arizona public service company, hereby applies for a partial waiver of the Commission’s 

Public Utility Holding Company and Affiliated Interests Rules, A.A.C. R14-2-801 to R14- 

2-806 (the “Rules”), that is consistent with MWE’s operations in Arizona.’ 

INTRODUCTION 

Based on its operational revenues, MWE is now a Class A utility and, therefore, 

subject to the Rules. The Rules regulate the formation of public utility holding companies 

and certain transactions and activities between public service corporations and their 

By seeking this waiver, MWE does not waive any federal constitutional arguments 
concerning the applicability of the Rules to particular transactions or operations. 
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zffiliatec interests. According to the Commission in promulgating the Rules, the Rules are 

intended to: (i) prevent the commingling of utility and non-utility funds; (ii) prohibit cross- 

jubsidization of non-utility activities by utility ratepayers; (iii) prevent negative impact of 

ion-utility activities on a utility’s financial credit; and (iv) ensure that the utility and its 

zffiliates provide the Commission with the information necessary to “carry out its regulatory 

-esponsibilities.” See Decision No. 566 18. 

MWE respectfully submits that in light of the stated purposes, MWE should be 

3artially exempt from requirements of the Rules. MWE is a wholly-owned subsidiary of 

Phelps Dodge Corporation (“Phelps Dodge”), a New York corporation headquartered in 

Phoenix, Arizona. MWE serves approximately 2,000 customers in portions of GreenLee 

Zounty, Arizona. Most of MWE’s customers are residential and small business customers.2 

MWE’s operations represent a small percentage of the total revenue and investment of 

Phelps Dodge and its subsidiaries. Full application of the Rules to MWE would be 

inreasonably costly and burdensome, particularly with respect to Rule 805’s reporting 

eegarding transactions by Phelps Dodge and its affiliates and subsidiaries. Therefore, MWE 

-equests a partial waiver of the Rules that is appropriate for its operations in Arizona. 

BACKGROUND 

Phelps Dodge is one of the world’s largest mining companies and has numerous 

subsidiaries that operate in a variety of areas. Attached as Exhibit A is a list of Phelps 

Dodge’s subsidiaries - all of which would be considered affiliates of MWE under the Rules. 

Phelps Dodge and its subsidiaries generated over $4.5 billion in revenues during 2000. A 

;opy of Phelps Dodge’s annual report for 2000 is attached as Exhibit B. 

MWE has been providing retail electric service in Arizona for decades. Until 

recently, MWE was not a Class A utility because the Phelps Dodge Mining Company’s 

One of MWE’s customers is Phelps Dodge Mining Company, which accounts for most of 
LIWE’s demand and, therefore, most of its revenues. 

- 2 -  
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main load was served through power contracts with other entities. However, MWE 

Zenerated approximately $60 million in revenues in 2000, which were approximately 1.3% 

)f the overall revenues of Phelps Dodge and its subsidiaries. 

BASES FOR WAIVER 

On their face, the Rules require prior Commission review, evaluation and approval of 

mblic utility non-regulated business activities. These measures are imposed, presumably, to 

leter any potentially negative impact on Arizona ratepayers resulting from such activities. 

WWE acknowledges that such regulations are quite appropriate in the context of utilities 

whose revenues result in large part from the provision of intrastate monopoly utility 

;ervices. Monopoly service revenues might improperly capitalize the non-regulated affiliate 

msiness activities of such utilities, with utility ratepayers both potentially bearing the risk of 

‘ailure and paying higher rates than necessary for monopoly service. Such activities would 

nnjustly burden consumers of these utility services. Under such circumstances, Commission 

ictions taken to monitor non-regulated utility activities are prudent and clearly serve to 

krther the public interest. 

However, in instances where a public utility’s revenues from and investment in 

4rizona comprise only a small portion of its total corporate family revenues and investment, 

hll application of the Rules is unnecessary and burdensome and does not assist the 

2ommission in its duties. Here, MWE’s revenues and capital investment comprise a very 

;mall percentage of Phelps Dodge’s total corporate revenues and capital investment. The 

fast majority of MWE affiliate transactions- as defined by the Rules- are national or 

3ertain exclusively to interests in other states, and, therefore, have little, if any, impact on 

4rizona. Without a partial waiver, Phelps Dodge and its numerous subsidiaries all would 

:ome under the purview of Rule 803, requiring notice to the Commission every time one of 

;hose entities undertook an activity that fell within Rule 801(5)’s broad definition of 

‘reorganize.” That requirement would create an enormous burden on MWE and its parent 

- 3 -  
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;ompanies and related subsidiaries. Moreover, under Rule 805, MWE would have to submit 

-earns of information to the Commission on an annual basis that is wholly irrelevant to 

4rizona. 

The risk to Arizona consumers from the vast majority of MWE’s affiliate interests or 

:ransactions - as defined by the Rules - is remote at best and absolute compliance with the 

Rules would be unduly burdensome. No public purpose would be served by having MWE 

:and its parents and affiliates) provide documentation concerning every affiliate transaction 

mcompassed by the Rules when those transactions have no bearing on Arizona. Such a 

acquirement would simply constitute over-regulation and would cause needless expense and 

innecessary administrative burdens for MWE and the Commission. 

RELIEF REQUESTED 

A. Partial Waiver 

MWE requests a partial waiver of the Rules as follows: 

1. MWE and its parent and affiliates be required to file a notice of intent to 

irganize or reorganize a public utility holding company under A.A.C. R14-2-803 only for 

hose organizations or reorganizations that are likely to have a material adverse impact on 

MWE. 

2. With respect to A.A.C. R14-2-804(B)(l), which requires a utility to 

ibtain Commission approval before obtaining a financial interest, or guaranteeing or 

issuming the liabilities of an unregulated affiliate, MWE and its parent and affiliates be 

mequired to seek prior approval under R14-2-804(B)( 1) only for transactions which are likely 

.o have a material adverse effect on MWE. 

3. Waiver of all other requirements of A.A.C. R14-2-804, including that 

MWE need not report on loans, evidences of indebtedness, and all other transactions that 

iccur between and among MWE and its parent and affiliates in the ordinary course of 

iusiness, and which would otherwise fall under R14-2-804. 

- 4 -  
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4. 7 Taiver of the annual reporting requirements in A.A.C. R14-2-805, 

2ecause the above modifications to A.A.C. R14-2-803 and -804 should be sufficient to 

:apture and expose affiliated transactions which are likely to have a material adverse effect 

3n MWE. 

B. 

MWE requests expedited consideration of this Application so that MWE need not 

ilevote resources to preparing a filing that may be unnecessary. MWE also requests that the 

Rules be stayed during the period that is necessary for the Commission to rule on this 

ipplication and that the Commission’s order on this application be issued nuncpro tunc, if 

iecessary, retroactive to the date on which the Rules became applicable to MWE. 

Expedited Treatment of Application and Stay of the Rules 

CONCLUSION 

For the foregoing reasons, MWE respectfully requests that the Commission grant a 

Jartial waiver of the Rules as set forth above; stay application of the Rules to MWE until 

;his application is decided; and make any decision on this application retroactive to when 

:he Rules became applicable to MWE. 

DATED August 29,2001. 

Respectfully submitted, 

THE MORENCI WATER & ELECTRIC 
COMPANY 

Bv U&&L 
-.’ 

Michael W. Patten 
ROSHKA HEYMAN & DEWULF, PLC 
One Anzona Center 
400 East Van Buren Street, Suite 800 
Phoenix, Arizona 85004 
(602) 256-6100 
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ORIGINAL and 10 COPIES filed 
August 29,2001, with: 

Docket Control 
ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 
1200 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

COPIES hand-delivered August 29,2001, to: 

Lyn A. Farmer, Esq. 
Chief Administrative Law Judge 
ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 
1200 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

Christopher Kempley, Esq. 
Chief Counsel, Legal Division 
ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 
1200 West Washington 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

Steve Olea 
Acting Director, Utilities Division 
ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 
1200 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

Patrick Williams 
Utilities Division - Compliance Section 
ARIZONA CORPORATION COMMISSION 
1200 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

- 6 -  
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Phelps Dodge Corporation 
Wholly Owned Subsidiaries 

Date August, 2001 
Owner Interest 

AAV Corporation 
Ajo Improvement Company 
Alambres y Cables Venezolanos, C.A. (ALCAVE) 
Alcave Trading 
Amax Arizona, Inc. 
Amax Canada Development Limited 
Amax de Chile, Inc. 
Amax Energy Inc. 
Amax Exploration (Ireland), Inc. 
Amax Exploration, Inc. 
Amax Investment (France), Inc. 
Amax Metals Recovery, Inc. 
Amax Nickel Overseas Ventures, Inc. 
Amax Realty Development, Inc. 
Amax Research & Development, Inc. 
Amax Specialty Coppers Corporation 
Amax Specialty Metals (Canada) Limited 
Amax Specialty Metals (Driver), Inc. 
Amax Zinc (Newfoundland) Limited 
American Metal Climax, Inc. 
Ametalco (Toronto) Limited 
Ametalco (Vancouver) Limited 
Ametalco Limited 
Ametalco, Inc. 
Arizona Community Investment Corporation 
Ashfork Mines Limited 
Aurex International (Barbados) Ltd. 
Blackwell Zinc Company, Inc. 
Busa Mining Co., Inc. 
Byner Cattle Company 
CAM Receivables Corporation 
Canapian Mining Co., Inc. 
Capital Gestao de Negocios Ltda. 
Cates Douglas Corporation 
CIS Venture Kazakstan, L.L.C. 
CIS Venture Kyrgystan, L.L.C. 
Climax Canada Ltd. 
Climax Molybdenum Asia Corporation 
Climax Molybdenum B.V. 
Climax Molybdenum Company 
Climax Molybdenum GmbH 

corpsedsu bslreportslappendixB 

PDC 
PDC 
PDC 
Alcave 
CAMC 
CAMC 
CAMC 
CAMC 
CAMC 
CAMC 
CAMC 
CCMC 
CAMC 
CAMC 
CAMC 
CAMC 
CAMC 
CAMC 
Amax Energy Inc. 
CAMC 
Amax Specialty Metals (Canada) 
Amax Specialty Metals (Canada) 
Ametalco, Inc. 
CAMC 
PDC 
PDC 
PD Cobre 
CAMC 
PDEX 
CCMC 
CAMC 
PDEX 
ccc 
PDC 
PDEX 
PDEX 
CAMC 
Cyprus Mines Corporation 
Climax Molybdenum Company 
CCMC 
CCMC 

I 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
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Climax Molybdenum Marketing Corporation 
Climax Molybdenum S.R.L. 
Climax Molybdenum U.K. Limited 
Cobre Cerrillos S.A. (COCESA) 
Cobre Mining Company 
Cocesa lngenieria y Construccion, S.A. (COCETEL) 
Cocetel El Salvador 
Cocetel lngenieria y Construccion, C.A. (Venezuela) 
Columbian Carbon Europa S.R.L. 
Columbian Carbon International (France) S.A. 
Columbian Carbon Spain, S.A. 
Columbian Chemicals Brasil, S.A. 
Columbian Chemicals Canada, Ltd. 
Columbian Chemicals Company (CCC) 
Columbian Chemicals Europa, GMBH 
Columbian Chemicals (Hungary) Holding LLC 
Columbian Chemicals Philippines Distribution Co., Inc. 
Columbian Holding Company 
Columbian International Chemicals Corporation (CICC) 
Columbian International Trading Company 
Columbian Technology Company 
Columbian Tiszai Carbon Ltd. 
Columbian (U.K.) Limited (CUKL) 
Compania Contractual Minera Ojos del Salado 
Compania Mexicana de Exploracion Cyprus S.A. de C.V. 
Copper Market, Inc. 
Corobong Mining Co., Inc. 
Cyprus Amax Australia Corporation 
Cyprus Amax Chile Holdings, Inc. 
Cyprus Amax China Corporation 
Cyprus Amax del Peru Corporation 
Cyprus Amax Finance Chile Corporation 
Cyprus Amax Finance Corporation 
Cyprus Amax Indonesia Corporation 
Cyprus Amax Kansanshi Holdings Limited 
Cyprus Amax Leasing Corporation 
Cyprus Amax Minerals Company (CAMC) 
Cyprus Amax Philippines Corporation 
Cyprus Amax PNG Holdings, Inc. 
Cyprus Amax Zimbabwe Corporation 
Cyprus Canada Inc. 
Cyprus Climax Metals Company (CCMC) 
Cyprus Copper Marketing Corporation 
Cyprus Copperstone Gold Corporation 
Cyprus El Abra Corporation 
Cyprus Exploration and Development Corporation 
Cyprus Gold Company 

~ 

~ 

I 

I 

~ 

Climax Molybdenum Company 
CCMC 
Ametalco Limited 
PDC/Habirshaw 
PD Cobre 
Cocesa 
Cocetel 
Cocetel 
CHC 
ClCC 
ClCC 
ClCC 
ClCC 
PDC 
ClCC 
ccc 
ClCC 
ClCC 
ccc 
ccc 
ccc 
ClCC 
ClCC 
PD Ojos 
Cyprus Metals Company 
CCMC 
PDEX 
Cyprus Gold Company 
CAMC 
Cyprus Expl. & Dev. Corp 
CCMC 
CCMC 
CAMC 
Cyprus Expl. & Dev. Corp 
CAMC 
Cyprus Mines Corporation 
PDC 
Cyprus Expl. & Dev. Corp. 
CCMC 
Cyprus Expl. & Dev. Corp. 
Cyprus Expl. & Dev. Corp. 
Cyprus Metals Company 
CCMC 
Cyprus Gold Company 
CCMC 
Cyprus Metals Company 
Cyprus Metals Company 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
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Cyprus Gold Exploration Corporation 
Cyprus Metals Company 
Cyprus Metals Exploration Corporation 
Cyprus Mexico Corporation 
Cyprus Minera de Chile, Inc. 
Cyprus Minera de Panama, S.A. 
Cyprus Mines Corporation 
Cyprus Pinos Altos Corporation 
Cyprus Speciality Metals Company 
Cyprus Tohono Corporation 
Cyprus Tonopah Mining Corporation 
Cyprus Zinc Corporation 
Daguma Mining Co., Inc. 
Dodge & James Insurance Company, Ltd. 
Dulugan Mining Co., Inc. 
Dumulag Mining Co., Inc. 
Geomining L.L.C. 
Habirshaw Cable and Wire Corporation 
lnversiones de Cobre Chile Co., S.A. 
lponan Mining Co., Inc. 
lsulan Mining Co., Inc. 
James Douglas Insurance Company, Ltd. 
Kidapawan Mining Co., Inc. 
Kumakata Mining Co., Inc. 
Kyruso Mining Co., Inc. 
Lambunao Mining Co., Inc. 
Lumintao Mining Co., Inc. 
Macote Mining Co., Inc. 
Makilala Mining Co., Inc. 
Malampay Mining Co., Inc. 
Malibato Mining Co., Inc. 
Mambalili Mining Co., Inc. 
Mambusao Mining Co., Inc. 
Metallic Ventures, Inc. 
Minera Aurex (Chile) Limitada 
Minera Cobre Chile Co., S.A. 
Minera Cobre Chile Limitada 
Minera Cuicuilco S.A. de C.V. 
Minera Cyprus Amax Chile Limitada 
Minera Cyprus Antacori Corporation 
Minera Cyprus Chile Limitada 
Minera La Mesa, S.A. de C.V. 
Minera Las Trancas, S.A. de C.V. 
Minera Papago, S.A. de C.V. 
Minera Phelps Dodge del Peru S.A. 
Minera Phelps Dodge Mexico, S de RL de 
Missouri Lead Smelting Company 

cv 

Cyprus Expl. & Dev. Corp 
CAMC 
Cyprus Expl& Dev Corp 
Cyprus Metals Company 
Cyprus Metals Company 
Cyprus Exp & Dev Corp 
CAMC 
CCMC 
Cyprus Metals Company 
CCMC 
CCMC 
Cyprus Metals Company 
PDEX 
PDC 
PDEX 
PDEX 
CIS Kazakstan 
PDC 
Cobre Mining Company 
PDEX 
PD Expl. 
PDC 
PDEX 
PDEX 
PDEX 
PDEX 
PDEX 
PDEX 
PDEX 
PDEX 
PDEX 
PDEX 
PDEX 
PD Cobre 
Aurex (Barbados) 
Cobre Mining Company 
Minera Cobre Chile 
Cyprus Metals Company 
Cyprus Specialty Metals Co. 
Cyprus Expl& Dev Corp 
Cyprus Amax Chile Holdings Inc 
PD Holdings Mexico 
PD Holdings Mexico 
Minera PD Mexico 
PD Peru 
PDC 
CAMC 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
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Mt. Emmons Mining Company 
Norala Mining Co., Inc. 
North-West Minerals (Zambia) Ltd. 
Oclaves Limited 
Pacific Western Land Company 
Palimbang Mining Co., Inc. 
PD Candelaria, Inc. 
PD Cobre del Mayo, Inc. 
PD Cobre, Inc. 
PDEP Inc. 
PD Explorations, Inc. 
PD Indonesia Corporation 
PD Las Bambas Corporation 
PDM Energy, L.L.C. 
PD Ojos del Salado, Inc. 
PD Peru, Inc. 
PD Rus, LLC 
PD Russia, Inc. 
PD Wire & Cable Sales Corporation 
Phelps Dodge Africa Cable Corporation (PDACC) 
Phelps Dodge Ajo, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge Australasia, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge Bagdad, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge Brasil Ltda. 
Phelps Dodge Chicago Rod, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge Chino, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge Corporation of Canada, Limited 
Phelps Dodge Development Corporation 
Phelps Dodge do Brasil Mineracao Ltda 
Phelps Dodge Dublin 
Phelps Dodge Energy Services, LLC 
Phelps Dodge Enfield Corporation 
Phelps Dodge Espanola Co. 
Phelps Dodge Exploracion Mexico, S.A. de C.V. 
Phelps Dodge Exploration Corporation (PDEX) 
Phelps Dodge Exploration East, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge Exploration India Private Limited 
Phelps Dodge Exploration Sweden AB 
Phelps Dodge Hidalgo, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge High Performance Conductors Japan Co., Ltd. 
Phelps Dodge High Performance Conductors of NJ, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge High Performance Conductors of SC & GA, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge Holdings Mexico, S.A. de C.V. 
Phelps Dodge Industries, Inc. (PDI) 
Phelps Dodge International Corporation 
Phelps Dodge Madagascar S.A.R.L. 
Phelps Dodge Magnet Wire (Austria) GmbH 
Phelps Dodge Magnet Wire de Mexico, SA de CV 

CCMC 
PDEX 
PD Zambia 
Sevalco 
PDC 
PDEX 
PDC 
PDC 
PDC 
PDEX 
PDC 
PDC 
PDC 
Morenci Water & Electric 
PDC 
PDC 
PD Russia 
PDEX 
PDlC 
PDC 
PDC 
PDC 
CCMC 
PDC 
CCMC 
PDC 
PDC 
PDC 
PDEX 
PDC 
PDC 
PDC 
PDC 
PD Holdings Mexico 
PDC 
PDC 
PDEX 
PDEX 
PDC 
PDHPC of SC & GA 
Soner 
PDC 
PDEX 
PDC 
PDI 
PD Africa 
PDI 
PD Wire & Cable Holdings Mexico 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
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Phelps Dodge Mercantile Company 
Phelps Dodge Miami, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge Mining (Zambia) Limited 
Phelps Dodge Mining Services, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge Molybdenum Corporation 
Phelps Dodge Morenci, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge of Africa, Ltd. 
Phelps Dodge Overseas Capital Corporation 
Phelps Dodge Refining Corporation 
Phelps Dodge Safford, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge Sales Company, Incorporated 
Phelps Dodge Sierrita, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge Tyrone, Inc. 
Phelps Dodge Wire & Cable Trading Company de Mexico, SA de CV 
Phelps Dodge Wire and Cable Holding de Mexico SA de CV 
Pollac Mining Co., Inc. 
Pt Cyprus Amax Indonesia 
Representaciones de lndustrias Venezolanas, C.A. (REDIVENCA) 
Sabang Mining Co., Inc. 
Savanna Development Co., Ltd. 
Servicios Cyprus, S.A. de C.V. 
Servicios Phelps Dodge Mexico, S.A. de C.V. 
Sevalco (Trustee) Ltd. 
Sevalco Limited 
Silver Springs Ranch, Inc. 
Soner, Inc. 
Tambali Mining Co., Inc. 
The Morenci Water & Electric Company 
Tucson, Cornelia and Gila Bend Railroad Co. 
United States Metals Refining Company 
Warren Company 
Western Nuclear Australia Limited 
Western Nuclear, Inc. 

PDC 
CCMC 
PD Africa 
PDC 
PDC 
PDC 
PDC 
PDC 
PDC 
PDC 
PDC 
CCMC 
PDC 
PD Wire & Cable Holdings Mexico 
PDC 
PDEX 
Cyprus Amax Indonesia Corp 
Alcave 
PDEX 
PDC 
Cyprus Metals Company 
PD Holdings Mexico 
Sevalco 
CUKL 
Mt. Emmons Mining Company 
PDC 
PDEX 
PDC 
PDC 
CAMC 
PDC 
PDC 
PDC 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
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Phelps Dodge Corporation 
50%+ Subsidiaries 

Date August, 2001 
Owner Interest 

Alambres y Cables de Panama, S.A. (ALCAP) 
ALCAP Commercial, S.A. (ALCOMER) 
Bisbee Queen Mining Company 
Cables Electricos Ecuatorianos, C.A. (CABLEC) 
Cahosa, S.A. (Panama) 
Chino Mines Company 
Cobre del Mayo, S.A. de C.V. 
Columbian Carbon Japan Ltd. 
Columbian Carbon Philippines, Inc. 
Columbian Chemicals Korea Co., Ltd. 
Compania Contractual Minera Candelaria 
CONDUCEN, S.A. 
Conducen Phelps Dodge Centro America El Salvador, S.A. de C.V. 
CONDUCOMER, S.A. (formely INDELEC) 
Conductores Electricos de Centro America, S.A. (CONELCA) 
Cyprus Pima Mining Company 
Electroconductores de Honduras, S.A. de C.V. (ECOHSA) 
Fabrica de Conductores Electricos, S.A. (FACELEC) 
Ferragudo Mining of Portugal, L.L.C. 
Las Quintas Serenas Water Co. 
Metal Fabricators of Zambia Limited (ZAMEFA) 
Metallic Ventures, Inc. 
Minera Las Clauditas, S.A. 
Mineracao Serra do Sossego S.A. 
PD Colombia S.A. 

Phelps Dodge Centro America Honduras, SA. de C.V. 
Phelps Dodge Centro America, S.A. Nicaragua 
Phelps Dodge-Metdist Mining India Pvt. Ltd. 
Phelps Dodge Thailand Limited 
Phelps Dodge Yanti Cable Company 

Phelps Dodge Yantai China Holdings Inc. 
Pietersburg Iron Company (Proprietary) Limited 
Proper Equipment Co. 
Proveedora de Cables y Alambres PDCA Guatemala, S.A. 
PT Kutaraja Tembaga Raya 
Rio Blanco Exploration, LLC 
Sociedad Contractual Minera El Abra 
Sociedad Minera Cerro Verde S.A. 
Somin Ltd. (partnership) 

PDC 
Conducen 
PDC 
PDC 
PDC 
PD Chino 
PD Cobre del Mayo 
Sevalco 
ClCC 
ClCC 
PD Candelaria 
PDC 
Conducen 
Conducen 
PDC 
CCMC 
PDC 
Conducen 
PDEX 
Cyprus Sierrita Corporation 
PDACC 
PD Cobre 
Minera PD Peru 
PD Brasil 
Conducen 
Alcomer 
Conducen 
Conducen 
PDEX 
PDC 
Phelps Dodge Yanti China 

PDC 
Africa 
PD Candelaria 
Conducen 
PD Australasia 
Minera Cyprus Antacori Corp 
Cyprus El Abra Corporation 
CCMC 
PDEX 

78.08% 
100% 

65.9% 
67.1 % 

78.08% 
66.67% 

70% 
68% 

88.2% 
85% 
80% 

73.42% 
100% 
100% 

72.39% 
75.01% 
59.39% 

100% 
70% 
59% 
51 % 

100% 
85% 
50% 

94.8% 
5.2% 
100% 
100% 
50% 

75.47% 
60 

66.67% 
50% 
80% 

100% 
55% 
50% 
51 % 

82.49% 
50% 
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Phelps Dodge Corporation Overview 

Phelps Dodge Corporation i s  the world's second 

largest producer of copper, the worldf largest 

producer of molybdenum and continuous-cast 

copper rod, and among the leading producers 

of magnet wire and carbon black. The company 

consists of two divisions, Phelps Dodge Mining 

Company and Phelps Dodge Industries, and employs 

nnnmuimntpIv 1-5 500 neonIe in 27 countries. 



Results in Brief 
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(a) Zoo0 operating income wos $294.4 million before non-recurring provisions of $51.8 million for 1999 and Zoo0 restructuring plans and $5.6 million for 
working capital write-downs. Zoo0 after-tax income w a s  $72.3 million, or 92 cents per share, before non-recurring provisions thot totaled $43.3 million, 
or 55 cents per common share, on an after-tax basis. Return on overage shareholders‘ equity was 2.3 percent before nan-recurring provisions, 

(b) 1999 operating inccine was $139.8 million before non-recurring provisions of $332.3 million for asset impairments primarily at Fhelps Dodge Mining Company, 
$28.2 million for environmental charges at Phelps Dodge Mining Company and $94.9 million for a restructuring plan announced on June 30, 1999. 1999 
aher-tax income was $21.7 million, or 35 cents per common share, before non-recurring provisions that totaled $279.5 million, or $4.54 per common share, 
on an after-tax basis. Return on overage shareholders’ equity w o s  0.8 percent before non-recurring provisions, 

(c) 1998 operating income was $231.8 million before o non-recurring gain of $190.9 million, primarily due to the disposition of Accuride Corporation. 1998 
after-tax income wos $91.8 million, or $1.57 per camman share, before the nan-recurring gain which totaled $99.1 million, or $1.69 per common share, 
an an after-tax basis. Return an shareholders’ equity was 3.5 percent before the non-recurring gain. 

(d) Zoo0 operating income for M p s  Dodge Mining Company was $249.1 million before pre-tax, non-recurring charges of $5.8 million for the Zoo0 restructuring 
plans. 1999 operating income was $84.2 million before non-recurring provisions of $320.4 million for asset impairments, $28.2 million for environmental 
chorges and $36.6 million for the 1999 restructuring plans. 1998 operating income for Phelps Dodge Mining Company was $115.8 million before non- 
recurring provisions of $5.5 million for casts associated with indefinite closures and curtailments at mining operations. 

(e) Zoo0 operating income for Phelps Dodge Industries was $1 21.9 million before pre-tax, non-recurring charges of $51.6 million for wire and cable restructuring 
activities. 1999 operating income for Phelps Dodge Industries w a s  $119.7 million before non-recurring provisions of $11.9 million for asset impairments, 
$40.4 million for the 1999 restructuring plans in the wire and cable segment and $1 7.7 million at the specialty chemicals segment. 1998 operating income 
for helps Dodge Industries included a pre-tax gain of $198.7 million from the disposition of Accuride Corporation and a nan-recurring provision of $2.3 million 
primorily for costs associated with an early retirement prqrom in the wire and cable segment. 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Forward-looking Statemenis Except for historical informahon, the matters discussed in this Annual Report and Form 10 K are forward-lookmg statements regardmg 
future events or the future financial performance of Phelps Dodge Carporohon Actual results may dilfer materially from those prqected These forward-lookmg 
statements represent the company’s Iudgment as of March 6,2001 Furher explanation of these statements and a rewew of the factors whlch may affect them are 
included in Management‘s Doxussion and Analysis within Form 10-K on page 32 

Sales and other operating revenues 
Operating income (loss) 
Net income (loss) 

Earnings (loss) per common share - diluted 
Return on average shareholders’ equity 
Net cash provided by operating activities 
Capital expenditures and investments 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 
Average number of shares outstanding - diluted (lhousands) 

At Year End 
Total assets 
Total debt 
Long-term debt 
Shareholders’ equity 
Shares outstanding (ThousondsJ 

Number of employees 

Division Results 
Phelps Dodge Mining Company operating income (loss) (d] 

Phelps Dodge Industries operating income (e] 

Copper production (Own prductlon - tons/ 

Copper deliveries (Own production - fonsJ 

Copper Price 
COMEX annual average spot price per pound - cathodes 

$4,525,100 i 
$ 237,000 i 
$ 29,000 
$ 0.37 

$ 511,200 I 
$ 422,300 I 
$ 464,200 i 

78,800 : 

0.9% i 

I 
I 
I 
I 

$7,830,800 I 
$2,687,700 i 
$1,963,000 I 
$3,105,000 i 

78,700 
15,500 I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

$ 243,300 
$ 70,300 i 

1,200,300 I 
1,200,600 

I 
I 
I 

$ 0.84 

3,114,400 i 
(315,600) 
(257,800) I 

(4.19) I 

204,500 I 
240,400 I 
329,100 ; 

(9.9)% i 

61,600 
I 
I 
I 
I 

8,229,000 I 
2,755,000 i 
2,172,500 I 
3,276,800 : 

78,700 : 
16,400 : I 

I 
I 
I 

(301,000) 
49,700 i 

890,100 I 
884,200 

I 
I 
I 

0.72 i 

3,063,400 
422,700 I 
190,900 

3.26 : 
378,400 I 
668,300 
293,300 I 
58,500 : 

7.3% i 

1 
I 
I 
I 

5,036,500 I 
1,021,000 

836,400 I 
2,587,400 i 

57,900 I 
13,900 I 

I 
I 
I 

110,300 I 
353,600 
874,000 
876,300 

I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

0.75 



Dear Fellow Shareholders ---- 
I 

The year 2000 presented significant opportunities and challenges for 

Phelps Dodge Corporation. We succeeded on a number of critically 

important fronts: I 

--;---- ----  .................... 
I 

I Financial Performance 

i Earnings before non-recurring items (in millions) 

rn Twenty-four of our worldwide operations completed the year with $72 3 

zero recordable safety incidents - clear evidence that exceptional 

safety performances can be attained and sustained in an industrial 

work environment. 2000 was among the safest years in the history 

of our company. The deaths last year of h o  contractors’ employees, 

however, are tragic reminders no one can waiver if everyone is to 

return home safely each day. 

Earn,ngs per share before 
; non-recurring items 

i 
i 
I 

I 
I $204.5 
I I 

i Operating cash flow per share 

$0 92 

Operating cash flow (in miIIions) 
$511.2 

m We tripled our year 2000 earnings and doubled our operating 

rn We successfully completed the integration of our $3.4 billion 

acquisition of Cyprus Amax Minerals Company, capturing the 
$135 million annual run-rate in synergy savings in a 14-month I stock Price 

period - one full year ahead of the schedule originally outlined ; 
I High 
I $73.00 to shareholders. 

PD Wire & Cable’s operating earnings (before non-recurring charges) i I tow 
tripled over 1999 despite continued regional economic weaknesses. 

We decided to shift the focus of  our capital and management ; 
I Year-end close 

I $67 3 1 
metals industry. I I 

I 
I 
I cash flow as compared with our 1999 financial performance. $6.49 --‘---------------------------- 
1 

70.63 

-I $36.06 
I P $41.88 

resources to the growth o f  our company in the mining and I 81 

rn We began the search for new, strategic ownership alternatives for our 

specialty chemicals and wire and cable manufacturing businesses. 
i 
I 

Simultaneously, we battled low commodity prices; skyrocketing costs of market electric power, diesel fuel 

and natural gas; power supply interruptions; and extraordinary fourth quarter rainfall that reduced copper 

production at Morenci by 20 million pounds. 

In this letter to you a year ago, we talked about aggressive, internal stretch goals we set for ourselves in 2000. 
In the last 12 months, the convergence of these outside forces caused us to do more than just stretch beyond 

our comfort zones. The Phelps Dodge team stepped up and delivered a very solid operating performance. 

In my 25 years at Phelps Dodge, I have never been more proud of our employees or our ability to successfully 

handle adversity. Nor have I been more confident in our ability to create and sustain long-term value for 
our shareholders. 

Phelps Dodge Corporation 2 _...._____.________........... 



Many of the year’s signill;ant positive developments were masked by a series 

of paradoxical events that ultimately affected our financial performance: 

Solid copper market fundamentals were present throughout the year. 

Combined physical inventories on the London Metal Exchange (LMEJ and 

New York Commodity Exchange (COMEXJ decreased more than 52 percent, 

or 457;OOO metric tonnes, but concern about a slowing U.S. economy 

resulted in a copper price that did not reflect the commodity exchange 

inventories and the global demand outlook. 

While the 2000 annual average COMEX copper price increased approx- 

imately 12 cents from 1999 to 84 cents per pound, other external factors - 
primarily escalating energy-related costs - increased our total copper 

unit production costs, limiting gains from the copper price improvement. 

m Although our share of 2000 copper production reached a record 2.4 billion 

pounds, our production was negatively impacted by power interruptions 

in Arizona and New Mexico, ore delineation and delivery challenges at  

El Abra, and extraordinary rainfall at Morenci. 

We reduced planned molybdenum production by 4 million pounds at 

Henderson and lowered associated mine development costs, and shifted 

the emphasis of our molybdenum production from metallurgicalgrade to 

chemicalgrade product. Unfortunately, molybdenum prices tumbled in the 

last half of the year reflecting reduced demand for metallurgical-grade 

product by the U.S. steel industry and supply increases from by-product 

producers and Chinese exporters. 

Chemicals Company fell 20 percent as high energy-related feedstock 

costs negatively impacted margins. 

Our reduced margins were insufficient to generate the excess cash 

flow required to significantly reduce our acquisition-related debt. 

The operating earnings (before non-recurring charges) of  Columbian 1. Steven Whisler ---- 
Chairman, President and CEO 

As we entered 2001, our battle continued with high energy-related costs and the economic ripple effect of the 

California power crisis on the western United States. While we can and will do a number of things to mitigate the 

power and energy situation, long-term energy solutions on a regional and national level must be aggressively sought. 

, Internally, we have multiple initiatives under way that will extract from our cost structure amounts necessary to help 

~ offset increased energy costs. In early 2001 , for example, we began construction of a 50-megawait, self-generation 

power plant in New Mexico. Energy costs and other market factors also caused us to consider other actions. 

In January 2001, we announced the potential production curtailment and layoff of 2,350 employees at our Chino, 

Tyrone and Sierrita operations. 



, I  

I 

Despite these challenges, we remain committed to growing aggressively, Phelps Dodge remains 

committed to growing 

aggressively. 

and we took important positioning steps in 2000 to narrow our strategic 

focus and to ready ourselves for future action. 

A major step was taken in December when we decided to focus our 

strategic capital and management resources on the mining and metals 

sector where we are positioned to succeed based on our leadership 

and technical competencies. Growth and further success in the mining 

and metals industry will require us to strengthen our balance sheet by 
reducing debt, and to generate additional sources of cash that will 

enable us to seize quickly the best opportunities. 

In 2000, we took important 

positioning steps to ready our 

company for future action. 

We announced at year end that we would evaluate new, strategic 

ownership alternatives for PD Wire & Cable and Columbian Chemicals 

Company. Since the mid- 1980s, these businesses were expected to 

generate earnings and cash flow that would smooth the cycles inherent 

in our copper mining business. The ability of these companies to now 

fulfill their original strategic objectives has been diminished as a result of 
Phelps Dodge Mining Company’s acquisition-related growth. Although 

our significant capital investments in PD Wire & Cable and Columbian 

Chemicals have created mature businesses with strong franchises, they 

each must now generate proportionately greater earnings. We believe 

the capital required to grow these companies will create greater value to 

our Shareholders if applied to mining and metats opportunities. This led 

to our decision to pursue strategic ownership alternatives. In seeking 

new ownership for these businesses, we are committed to negotiating 

only those transactions that represent good value for our shareholders. 

Phelps DcdQe Corporation 4 



Our growth in the mining and metals sector already i s  occurring. 

We have several greenfield copper projects moving through the devei- 

opment pipeline that will increase our worldwide production and 

reserves. We remain optimistic about our Safford, Arizona, copper 

leaching project. The land exchange and environmental permitting 

processes, which previously had been slowed, now have an opportunity 

for more expeditious regulatory review and a favorable outcome. The 

Sossego project, located in the Carajds region of Brazil, is a potentially 

significant copper-gold mineral resource. A feasibility study to evaluate 

a potential mine and concentrator faciliiy is nearly complete. The results 

of this study will determine the economic viability of the project and 

will lead to a decision on development. Further success in mineral 

exploration will remain key to growth and adding shareholder value 

for our company. 

Grow our Reserves 

Size, coupled with quality, remains critical in the mining and metals 

industry. Currently, Phelps Dodge is the world’s second largest producer 

of copper and the worlds largest producer of molybdenum. Our success 

in executing the 1999 acquisition of Cyprus Amax, and our ability to 

quickly realize the $135 million in annual run-rate synergy savings and to 

integrate the companies, have grown our confidence and organizational 

capability to succeed in future acquisitions. Our leadership and technical 

competencies in extraction and hydrometallurgical technologies, project 

development and management, safety, and environmental stewardship 

ideally position us to replicate our operating success. Some of the most 

exciting growth opportunities for Phelps Dodge will emerge as we 

broaden our mining and metals portfolio. 
Broaden our Portfolio 



Within our current reserve base, we continue tu combinesophisticated 
technotoqies with innovation, One example is the recent conversion of - 
our Morenci operation to I00 percent solution extradion[eledrawinning 
(SX/W) productiorr. The $220 million proiecte which was compreted 
in early 2OQT, ftlrther positions Phetps Dodge as the largest SX/W 
producer in the world. 

4 
Our company also continues its development and adoption of best 
practices that served us well during the Cyprus integration We have 
blended the Cyprus Quest 21 process, the Phefps Dodge Zercr and 
Beyond safety value, and other strategic initiatives into one system. 
Call& Quesf for Zero, it is designed to produce specific, measurable 
and replicable results: zero safety and enviranmenfak incidents, zero 
variability in production process and costs, zero waste, and zero 

c 

Succeed through Strategic Sameness 

product defects. This is an  ambitious undertaking, but atready in 

safety we have evidence that Zera is possible. 

Venture Out for Future Value 

Finally, we expect to create new, out-of-the-box ventures with the potential 
to flourish over time. Our involvement in the creation of Quadrem is one 
example. This new Internet-based procurement marketplace is open, 
neutrai and independent and- wilt enable all mining, metals and minerals 
companies worldwide to purchase goods and services from suppliers 
in more than io0 countries. The benefits to both buyers and suppliers 
include access to common electronic cataloguing, administrative and 
cost efficiencies, and the streamlining of the transaction process. 

Currently, we have myriad other ventures in progress. Some are related 
to the development of proprietary process technologies, while others 
capitalize on our unique knowledge base that can be applied to products 
that support consumer safety and energy efficiency. While growth in 
mining and metals will remain our core focus, we will not overlook the 
potential to break into strategically significant adjacencies that may 
generate future streams of value for Phelps Dodge shareholders. 



The achievements of our people in 2000 were significant. We fought the concurrer.. challenges of low commodity 

prices and high. energy costs. We expedited the integration of Cyprus Amax one year earlier than projected, 

and as ct result have created a larger and leaner Phelps Dodge prepared for the next phase of growth. 

We currently are engaged in completing the steps that wilt enable us to reduce our debt and focus our growth 

on the mining and metals sector. 

The signs of our growth will become apparent as we: 

Gain critical size in the mining and metals industry, 

Enhance and further institutionalize best practices through Quest for Zero, 

Broaden our portfolio by applying our operating strengths, and 

B Venture out into business adjacencies that will grow over time. 

Phelps Dodge is a great company with enormous opportunities ahead. Time and again, the Phelps Dodge 

team has combined its talent, resilience and innovation to achieve impressive results. In the upcoming years, 

you can expect to see us step out to be bigger, better, bolder and broader. 

Sincerely, 

J. Steven Whisler ---- 
Chairman, President and CEO 

April 1, 2001 



, I  ’ Smelters: I ’  ’ .  
Arizona - Miami 
New Mexico - Chino 

2.4 billion pounds 

I ~ . 
* 9,300 

Refineries: 
Arizona - Miami 
Texas - El Paso 

Rod mills: 
Arizona - Miami 

= Connecticut - 

Illinois - Chicago 
= Texas - El Paso 

Norwich 

Processing plants: 
m Arizona - Sierrita 

Iowa - Fort Madison 
Netherlands - 
United Kingdom - 
Rotterdam 

Stowmarket 

* ,’ , <  , . 
Primary molybdenum: 
19.9 million pounds 
By-product 
molybdenum: 
31.6 million pounds 
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Copper 
Copper market fundamentals improved substantially in 2000 from the previaus 
year. Globally, growth in consumption of refined copper exceeded 5 percent as 
demand in the United States, Europe, Canada and Asia proved to be stronger 
than expeded. Refined production grew a modest 2 percent.. As a result, copper 
inventories for western metals exchanges dropped steadily throughout 2000. 

White the New York Commodity Exchange (COMEXi copper price averaged 
8& cents per pound OC cathode in 2000, compared ta the 1999 average OF 
72 cents per pound, the price did not fully reflect the strong market fundamentals. 

In the shod tern, the outfook for copper likely wilt remain demand driven, espe- 
cially as signs of an economic slowdown in the United States, which could carry 
over to other regionat economies, became apparent in late 2000. Analysts expect 
copper inventories to further dwindle in the coming years and have forecast 
deficits ti& to tower levels of growth in copper production, The copper market is 
expected to be roughly in balance in 2007, followed by a modest deficit in 2002 

Molybdenum 
During the past decade, western world consumption of molybdenum grew at an 
average annual rate of 3 percent while production increases outpaced market 
demand. The market remains strong for new high-Qrowth ap lications of motyb- 
denum, including superalloys, desulfurization catalysts, lu ricants, chemicals 
anct electronics. However, the US. steet and cast irom sectors which comprise the 
largef market segment have slowed, and a high volume of molybdenum exparts 
from China continue fa move into the marketplace These dynamics have created 
a substantiat inventory surplus, reducing the molybdenum oxide price in 2OOO 
by 5 percent from 1999, and by a totat of 4t percent over the past four yean. 

Wire anct Cable 
Market conditions for wire and cable products improved gradually in 2000 
driven by increased activity in the aerospace and geaphysicak markets, positive 
economic activity in Africct, and reactivation of energy infrastrudure projeds 
in Brazil Central America and Southeast Asia. Improved metals prices also 
favorably impacted revenues in the wire and cable industry. However, lower 
sales to the automotive and appliance segments in the fourth quarter partially 
offset these market improvements. 

Demand growth is projected in the emerging wire and cable markets of Southeast 
Asia, South America and the Middle East, while US. consumption of wire and 
cable products is expected to remain relatively flat. 

Carbon Black 
The demand for carbon black is driven primarily by tire production, and is divided 
into approximately equal shares among Europe, Asia and N o h  America. Worldwide 
tire sales have shown consistent growth from 1998 to 2000 and are projected to 
continue to grow from 2007 to 2 W .  The manufacture of low-technology, standard 
passenger tires is shifting to low-cospprcdudion countries. More sophisticated tires, 
such as high-performance passenger tires and large truck tires, will continue ta 
be produced in the major industrialized markets. 

Recent macroeconomic conditions, including growth in global grass domestic 
product, led to higher vehicle sales and strona original equipment tire sales in 
2000. Records for these sedon were set in North America and western Europe 
in 1999 and then again in 2000. However, slower growth in carbon black demand 
in the United States is anticipated Over the next four years as automobile manu- 
facturing and tire production slaw. Truck tire demand in the emerging markets is 
expected to increase as. truck transport is essential to the continuing growth of 
commerce in these regions. 
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phdps Dodge 

Leadership Changes 

We welcomed two executives 

fo our Senior Management 

Teorn: Arthur R. Miele, senior 

vice president, marketing, and 

president oE Phefps Dodge 

Sales Company; and Kalidas V, 

Madhavpeddi, senior vice 

president, business develop- 

ment. Both Art and Kalidas 

have been with our company 

for many years and bring with 

them o deep understanding of 

our business and our customers 

In Memoriai 

Sadly, our dear friend and 

respected colleague, A, t 
"John" Lawrence, who served 

as president of Phelps Dodge 

Exploration Corporation, lost 
his battle against cancer in 

December. John made many 

significant contributions during 

his 28-year career with our 

company. His passion for 

geology, the discovery process, 

and the people in our company 

will be long remembered. 
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PHELPS DODGE CORPORATION 

2000 Annual Report on Form 10-K 

Part I 

Items 1. and 2. Business and Properties 

Phelps Dodge Corporation (the Company, 
which also may be referred to as Phelps Dodge, PD, 
we, us or ours) is the world’s second largest producer 
of copper, among the world’s largest carbon black 
and magnet wire producers, and is the world’s largest 
producer of continuous-cast copper rod. On  Octo- 
ber 16, 1999, we acquired Cyprus Amax Minerals 
Company (Cyprus Amax or Cyprus) thereby en- 
hancing our copper assets with significant operations 
in the United States and South America. As a result 
of the acquisition, we also became the world’s largest 
producer of molybdenum and molybdenum products. 

The Company consists of two divisions: 
(i) Phelps Dodge Mining Company and (ii) Phelps 
Dodge Industries. 

(i) Phelps Dodge Mining Company is 
a business segment that includes 
our worldwide copper operations 
from mining through rod produc- 
tion, niarketing and sales; molybde- 
num operations from mining 
through manufacturing, marketing 
and sales; other mining operations 
and inve7tments; and worldwide 
mineral exploration and develop- 
men t programs. 

(ii) Phelps Dodge Industries includes 
our specialty chemicals segment, 
our wire and cable segment, and, 
until they were sold in 1998, our 
wheel and rim operations. 

In 2000, Phelps Dodge Mining Company 
produced 1,200,300 tons of copper for our account 
from worldwide mining operations, and an additional 
258,700 tons of copper for the accounts of our 
minority interest joint-venture partners. Gold, silver, 
molybdenum. copper sulfate, rhenium and sulfuric 
acid are by-products of our copper operations. Pro- 
duction of copper for our own account from our U.S. 
operations constituted approximately 60 percent of 
the copper mined in  the United States in 2000. 
Much of our U.S. cathode copper production, to- 
gether with additional copper purchased from others, 
is used to produce continuous-cast copper rod, the 
basic feed Tor the electrical uire and c:tble industry. 

We also explore for metals and minerals throughout 
the world. 

Our international mining operations include 
Candelaria and El Abra, major copper mines in 
Chile, the Cerro Verde copper mine in Peru, and 
other operations and investments in Chile and Peru. 
These operations produce a variety of metals and 
minerals including copper, gold and silver. 

Molybdenum concentrate is produced at our 
Henderson mine in Colorado, and as a by-product at 
several of our U S .  copper operations. The concen- 
trate is roasted to produce molybdenum oxide at one 
of our three roasting operations, and various molyb- 
denum metallurgical and chemical products are 
produced at our four conversion facilities. 

In addition to our mining interests, we 
produce engineered products principally for the 
global energy, telecommunications, transportation and 
specialty chemicals sectors through Phelps Dodge 
Industries. 

We produce specialty chemicals at opera- 
tions in North America, Europe, Latin America and 
Asia through Columbian Chemicals Company, one 
of the world’s largest producers of carbon black. 
Carbon black is a reinforcing agent in natural and 
synthetic rubber that increases the service life of 
tires, hoses, belting and other products for the rubber 
industry. We also produce Fpecialty carbon black for 
other industrial applications such ;IS pigments for 
printing, coatings, plastics and other non-rubber 
applications. 

Our wire and cable segmcnt has oper’ ‘1 t’ ions 
in the United States, Latin America, Asia, Europe 
and Africa. This segment produces magnet wire and 
other copper products for sale principally to original 
equipment manufacturers for use in electrical motors, 
generators, transformers and other products, and 
manufactures copper and aluminum energy cables, 
telecommunications cables and specialty conductors. 

On December 8, 2000, we announced our 
intention to explore strategic alternatives for, includ- 
ing potential sale of, our specialty chemicals and wire 
and cable segments. 

Our uorld headquarters is located in Phoe- 
nix, Arizona, with a temporary satellite facility in 
Tempe. Arizona. The Phoenix and Tempe oflices are 
leased properties. 

Throughout this document. unless otherwise 
stated. all references to tons ,ire to short tons, and 
references to ounces are to tro! ounces. 



We employed 15.500 people on Deceni- 
her 3 1, 2000. 

PHELPS DODGE MINING COMPANY 

Phelps Dodge Mining Company (PD blin- 
ing) is our international business segment that 
comprises a group of companies involved in vertically 
integrated copper operations including mining, con- 
centrating, electrowinning. smelting and refining, rod 
production, marketing and sales, and related activi- 
ties. PD Mining sells copper to others primarily as 
rod, cathode or concentrate, and as rod to our mire 
and cable segment. In  addition, PD Mining at times 
smelts and refines copper and produces copper rod 
for customers on a toll basis. It is also an  integrated 
producer of molybdenum, with mining, roasting and 
processing facilities producing molybdenum concen- 
trate as well as metallurgical and chemical products. 
I n  addition, i t  produces gold, silver, molybdenum, 
copper sulfate, rhenium and copper chemicals as by- 
products, and sulfuric acid from its air qu l i ty  control 
facilities. This business segment also includes world- 
wide mineral exploration and development pro__ 0 ram ?. 

Properties, Facilities and Production 

Mining Operations 

We produce copper concentrate from open- 
pit mines and concentrators located in  Morcnci, 
Bugdad and Green Valley, /\rizona; Santa Rita, New 
Mexico; and near CopiLipO. Chile. We produce 
electrowon copper cathode at solution c x t r x -  
tion/clectrowinning ( S X / E W )  opcr:itions in Tyrone 
and Santa Rita, New Mexico; Morcnci, Miami, 
Bagdad and Green Valley. Rrimna; near ilrcquipa. 
Pcru; and near Calama, Chile. 

The Morenci complcx i n  southeastern Ari- 
zona comprises a n  open-pit mine, a concentrator, 
four solution extraction fiicilitics and two electrowin- 
ning tankhouses. A second concentrator. the Metcalf 
concentrator, was shut down in 1999. We operate 
Morenci and own a n  85  percent undivided interest; 
the remaining 15 percent interest is owned by 
Sumitomo Metal Mining Arizona. Inc. (Sumitomo), 
a jointly owned subsidiary of Sumitorno Metal 
Mining Co., Ltd., and Sumitomo Corporation. 
Sumitorno takes in kind its share of Morcnci 
prod u c t i  on. M ore nc i is t h e I :i rges t cop pe r p rod uci ng 
operation in  North i\merica. 

i 
l 

In  Scpteniber ol' 1909. the Cotnixin!, a n -  
nounced plans to reduce production costs of' copper 
;it  its Morcrici. ~ \ i - i / ~ i r i ; i .  mine hy cori\,crtirig ;ill 
production to ;I niine-l;)r-lcach proccss through C Y -  

pinsion of S S / E X  facilities. The SZZO million 
conxrsion. completed in early 2001, should a11o\\ the 
klorznci mine to sustain copper production rates 
consistent \vith its current total annual rate of 
approximately 4 10,000 tons. Cost reductions are 
expected to be achieved by eliminating the process 
steps of concentrating, smelting and refining in 
producing copper. The  conversion included expansion 
of the mine's current crushing and conveb-ing system, 
installation of mobile stackers that disperse crushed 
ore on leach stockpiles, expansion of existing solution 
extraction facilities and construction of a new elec- 
troLvinning tankhouse. 

On June 30, 1999, we announced the place- 
ment of the Metcalf concentrator on standby result- 
ing in a reduction of approximately 70,000 tons of 
annual copper production. In the fourth quarter of 
1999. as a result of the acquisition of Cyprus Amax 
together with the conversion of Morenci to mine-for- 
leach. i t  \vas determined that the Metcalf concentra- 
tor uould be permanently closed. At that time, we 
recognized an impairment of $88 million pre-tax for 
its closure. Sce Note 3 to the consolidated financial 
statements for more information. 

Litigation concerning the allocation of availu- 
ble [rater supplies could adversely arect the water 
supplies for the Morenci operution and our other 
properties in i\rizona. See Itcm 3, "Legal Proceed- 
ings" for information concerning the statu.; of these 
proceedings. 

Our wholly owned Bagdad mine in north- 
nestern /\rizona primarily niincs copper sullidc ore 
a n d  produces copper concentrate with signilicant 
mol\ hdcnum and minor silver by-products. The 
operation consists of a n  open-pit mine, sulfide ore 
concentrator producing copper and molybdenum con- 
centratcs. and an  oxide leaching system iv i th  an 
S X /  ECV plant producing copper cathode. 

We also own the Sierrita mine near Green 
Valley. Arizona. The facility consists of an open-pit 
mine. sulfide ore concentrator, a molybdenum recov- 
ery plant and two molybdenum roasters. Copper ore 
mined at Sierrita is processed into copper and 
molybdenum concentrates. Sierrita also uses a n  oxide 
and IoLv-grade sulfide ore dump leaching system with 
a n  SXIEW plant to produce copper cathode. Sier- 
rita's on-site roasters process molybdenum concen- 
trates produced ;it Sierrita. Bagdad and Chino. iind 
on ;i toll basis [or third parties. The resulting 
mol~.hdcnutn oxide and related products ;ire either 
p;~ck:ycd for  shipment to customers worldnide or 
iraii.;por~eci to other I'helps Dodge facilities fur 
i'urriicr pruceising. 
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Our wholly owned Miami operLitions consist 
of an open-pit copper mine. a n  SXiE\\ .  plant 
producing copper cathode. ;I smelter. an  acid plant, 
an electrolytic refinery and a copper rod plant. The 
facilities are located near Miami* Arizona. 

On June 27, 2000, we announced a mine 
plan incorporating a reduction in mining activities at 
the Miami mine. The new mine plan temporarily 
suspended stripping in a higher cost portion of the 
mine and will allow for the redistribution of a variety 
of mining equipment to other Phelps Dodge mining 
operations to reduce overall capital expenditures. The 
new mine plan had no impact on 2000 production 
but is expected to result in reductions in annual 
copper production of 17,500 tons and 42.500 tons, 
respectively, in 2001 and 2002. 

We operate a n  open-pit copper mine. con- 
centrator and S X / E W  facility in Santa Rita. New 
Mexico. and a smelter in Hurley, New Mexico, that 
are owned by Chino Mines Company (Chino),  a 
general partnership in  which we hold a two-thirds 
interest. Heisei Minerals Corporation (Heisei). a 
subsidiary of Mitsubishi Muterials Corporation and 
klitsubishi Corporation, owns the remaining one- 
third interest in  Chino. Each partner purchases its 
proportionate share of Chino's copper production 
each month. On October 11, 1908, \\e announced 
that we \vould curtail production a i  Chino. The 
production curtailment occurrcd i n  phases between 
October 3 I ,  I908, and thc first ha l f  of 1909. The 
curtailment resultcd in a rcduction of 35.000 tons of 
a n n u a l  copper production. 

Our Tyronc mine-for-leach, open-pit copper 
niinc and S X / E W  plant ncar Silvcr Cit),. hc\v 
Mcsico, itre wholly owned. 

We also operate the Candelaria mine located 
near Copiap6 i n  the Atacama Desert of northern 
Chile. We completed a n  expansion of the facility in  
1997. The operation presently consists of a n  open-pit 
copper niine, concentrator. port and associated f x i l i -  
ties. We own a n  80 percent intercst in Candelaria 
through Plielps Dodge Candelaria. Inc.. a 
owned subsidiary. Sumitomo M c t a l  Mining Co.. Ltd., 
and Su initonio Corporation o\\ n the remaining 
20 percent interest. 

holly 

Phclps Dodgc onns 51 perccnt of Sociedxl 
Contractu:il VIincra El ;\hr:i i El :\hr:i). \iliicli holds 
mining conccssions over more th:in 32.000 ;icrcs of' 
i ;I 11 d ii c;i r C ;I I ;I i i  1 ;I i n  t h c co ppc r- ri c 11 5 c co 11 d Keg i n 
01 '  nortlicrn Chilc. The rcinaining 40 pcrccni i \  
ou  ncd b! thc state-owiicci copper ciiicrpri<c C~irp~r : i -  
citiii h~a~~iori;il clcl (-'ohre i!c ('lii!c ( < ' O l ~ E l . ~ . O  ) .  

The El Abr:i operation. \\ hich began commercial 
production i n  December 19%. consists of a mine-for- 
leach, open-pit mining operation that uses three 
stages of crushing prior to leaching. an  on/olT leach 
pad, and an S.Y/EW plant to produce copper 
cathode. El A b m  also contains a copper sulfide 
deposit ivi th  currentl! identified mineralized material 
of about 650 niiilinn tons. 

We o\\-n appro.simate!j- 82 percent of the 
common stock of Sociedad hlinera Cerro Verde S.A. 
(Cerro Verde) . Compniiia de Minas Buenaventura 
S.A., a long-established Peruvian mining concern, 
owns approximately 9 percent and the employees of 
Cerro Verde own approximatziy 9 percent. The 
operation, located approximarely 30 kilometers south- 
west of Arequipa, Peru. consists of two open pits, 
Cerro Verde and Santa Rosa. a heap-leach operation 
and an  SX/EW plant to produce copper cathode. 
The ore is processed through primary, secondary and 
tertiary crushers and p lxed  on leach pads after 
aggl o in e ra t i on. 

Until the fourth quarter of 1998, we pro- 
duced coppcr concentrate from two underground 
mines and  ;I concentrator 1oc;ited near Copiap6, 
Chile, through our cvholl! o\\ ned Chilean subsidiary, 
Compafiia Contractual \liners Ojos del Salado (Ojos 
del Salado). b ' e  suspended operations indefinitely Lit 

Ojos del Sal;ido on October 3 1 ,  1998, resulting in :I 

reduction of more than 20.000 tons of annual copper 
production. Ojos dcl Saludo remained on ciirc-and- 
maintenance status a t  .Itarch 6, 2001. 

On February 3. I!"). we acquired Cobre 
Mining Company Inc. ( Co'ure) located i n  southwest- 
ern Ne\\ Mcsico adj:icent to our Chino oper ;I t '  ions. 
The primary :isscts of Cobre include an open-pit 
copper mine, IW underground copper mines, two 
mills. and the surrounding I 1 .000 acres of land. 
including mineral rights. On October 21, 1998, we 
indefnitel! suspended underground mining at Cobre 
due to low copper prices. On March 17, 1999, the 
remaining operations \\.ere sujpended reducing copper 
production by 35.000 toils per year. The entire 
ope ration re in ai n ed o n  c ;i re - :in d - mui n te nance status 
at March 6. 2001. 

We arc the t\orld', le:iding producer of 
copper using the SX/E \ \ .  process. I n  2000. we 
produced LI tu,tiil of 8Oh.300 tcns of cathode copper at 
our SS! E\\' facilities. coiiipiircd with 5 I i ,500 tons in 
1099 and 430.SOO tor15 i n  i995. S X / E W  is ;I cost- 
clt;.cti\ c proccbs of c\Lr:ictiilg a p p e r  from certain 
t!pch of ores SXiE\\ is :i i i iLi jor  frictor i n  our 
coritiiiuiny ciTort\ io 1ii:iiii 

i t i\c c o \ t \ .  O u r  i t ) t ; \ I  .(i\:iLiL\! L,~:p;icit! 01 '  elcctro\\on 

. .  
i i i  te rn  ;I t i  on al I !, coni pe t - 
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copper cathode production is currently 410.000 tons 
at Morenci, 248,000 tons at El Abra, 75,000 tons at 
the Santa Rita plant, 75,000 tons at Tyrone, 105,000 
tons at Miami, and 75,000 tons at Cerro Verde, 
16.000 tons at Bagdad and 35,000 tons at Sierrita. 

We own and operate a copper smelter in 
Miami, Arizona, and, through Chino Mines Com- 
pany, a two-thirds interest in the Chino smelter in 
Hurley, New Mexico. W e  smelt virtually all of our 
share of our U S .  copper concentrate production and 
occasionally some concentrate production from 
Candelaria. In addition, we purchase concentrate to 
keep our smelters operating at efficient levels. On 
June 30, 1999, we announced a restructuring plan 
that included temporarily shutting down our Hidalgo 
smelter in Hidalgo County, New Mexico. On Sep- 
tember 3 ,  1999, we suspended operations at the 
Hidalgo smelter. As a result of the successful 
acquisition of Cyprus Amax and the conversion at 
Morenci to a mine-for-leach operation, the Hidalgo 
smelter is expected to be reconfigured to allow it to 
be a reliable source of acid. This reconfiguration 
resulted in a pre-tax write down of the Hidalgo assets 
of $201.5 million. 

We refine our share of mode  copper produc- 
tion from our smelters at our refineries in El Paso, 
Texas, and Miami, Arimna. During 2000 and 1999, 
the El Paso relinery operated significantly below 
capacity due to thc late I999 third quarter closing of 
the Hidalgo smelter. The closure of the Hidalgo 
smelter resulted not only in  a curtailment of opera- 
tions at the El Paso refinery, but also a reduction of 
approximatcly 200 relinery jobs. Our Miami refinery 
has an annual production capacity of about 200,000 
tons of copper cathode, and the El Paso retinery has 
an annual production capacity of about 450,000 tons 
of copper cathode. The total combined capacity of 
about 650,000 tons of electrolytic copper per year is 
sullicient to refine all the anode copper we produce 
for our account at our operating smelters as well as 
anodes from other customers that we refine on a toll 
basis. Our refineries also produce varying quantities 
of gold, silver and copper sulfate and recover small 
amounts of selenium, rhenium, platinum and palla- 
dium as by-products of the copper refining process. 

We are the world's largest producer of 
continuous-cast copper rod, the basic feed for the 
electrical wire and cable industry. Most of our 
refined copper, and additional purchased copper, is 
converted into rod ;it our continuous-cast copper rod 
facilities in El Paso. Texas; Norwich, Connecticut; 
Miami. Xri,wna; and Chicago, Illinois. Our four 
plants have 3 collective annual capacity to convert 

more than I .  1 million tons of refined copper into rod 
and other refined copper products. 

Phelps Dodge owns the underground Hen- 
derson molybdenum mine near Empire, Colorado. 
The operation consists of an underground block- 
caving mine where molybdenite ore is mined and 
transported to a conventional sulfide mill. The 
concentrator is capable of operating at a rate of 
32,000 tons of ore per day, producing molybdenum 
disulfide concentrate containing up to 58 percent 
molybdenum. Most of the concentrate is shipped to 
our Fort iMadison roasting and chemical processing 
facility in Iowa where a number of different products 
are made for final sale to customers. A portion of 
Henderson's production is sold to customers as 
molybdenum disulfide. In 1998, the Henderson 2000 
project \\as initiated. The Henderson 2000 project 
consisted of the replacement of a 20-year old 
underground and surface rail transportation system 
with a modern conveyor. It also included initiation of 
the development of a new production level using 
more efficient high-lift caving methods. The new 
crushing and conveying system reached ful l  capacity 
in  early 2000. 

On May 8, 2000, as a result of an oversupply 
of molybdenum and continued low prices in the 
world market, Phelps Dodgc announced a plan to 
curtail molybdcnuin production by approximately 
20 percent and reduce i ts  workforce by approximately 
I30 workers at  Henderson. 

Phelps Dodgc also owns the Climax niolyb- 
denum mine near Leadville, Colorado. The operation 
consists of both :in underground and open-pit minc, 
and an 18,000 ton-per-day concentrator. The opera- 
tion is on standby. The property occupies more than 
14.000 acres. 

Phelps Dodge processes molybdenum con- 
centrates at its conversion plants in the United States 
and Europe into such products as technical grade 
molybdic oxide, ferromolybdenum, pure molybdic 
oxide. ammonium molybdates and molysullide pow- 
der. The Company operates molybdenum roasters at 
Green Valley, Arizona; Fort Madison, Iowa; and 
Rotterdam. The Netherlands. 

The Fort Madison conversion plant is located 
in Fort Madison, Iowa. The facilities consist of two 
molybdenum roasters, a sulfuric acid plant, a metal- 
lurgical (technical oxide) packaging facility, and a 
chemical conversion plant, which includes a wet 
chemicals plant and sublimation equipment. I n  the 
cheniicul plant, technical grade oxide is further 
refined into various high purity molybdenum chemi- 
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cals for ;I witlc rmge of uses by chemical and 
catalyst 11i ; in i J  I'xlurers. The Fort Madison facility 
produces ;I 111 I l i t  mi um dimolybdate, pure molybdic 
oxide, aniliiotiiiiln heptamolybdate, ammonium 
octamoly1xl;iIc. sodium molybdate, sublimed pure 
oxide a n d  Illolyldenum disulfide. 

Thc I<o(krdam conversion plant consists of a 
molybdcnurii r'o;ister, sulfuric acid plant, a metallur- 
gical pacliagiiig hcility and a chemical conversion 
plant. Thc p1;1111 produces metallurgical products 
primarily li)r third parties. Ammonium dirnolybdate 
and pure d y l d i c  oxide are produced in a wet 
chemical p1:111l. 

WC ; i lso produce ferromolybdenum and mo- 
lybdenum clisiillide at our conversion plant located in 
Stowmarkct, United Kingdom, for both European 
and worldwick customers. The plant is operated as 
both an intcrii;il and external customer tolling 
facility. 

copper prdiic'tion by source for the years 1996 
through 7000; aggregate production and sales data for 
copper, gold. silver, molybdenum and sulfuric acid 
from these S ~ I I I ' L Y S  for the same years; annual 
average cappcr :\lid molybdenum prices; and produc- 
tion from our sinelters and refineries. Major changes 
in operations tl[rring the five-year period included: 

miversion of the Morenci operations to 
minc-for-leach during 1999 and 2000 
(\\.it11 completion in  early 2001); 

cumilment of Henderson operations be- 
ginning in the 2000 second quarter; 

xquisition of Cyprus Amax on Octo- 
Iwr 16. 1999 (the primary assets ac- 
qiiirsd included the Bagdad, Sierrita, 
Rli:imi. El Abra and Cerro Verde cop- 

Tllc I'ollowing tables show our worldwide 

0 

0 

0 

per mines; the Henderson and Climax 
molybdenum mines; a copper smelter, 
refinery and two rod plants; three mo- 
lybdenum roasting operations and three 
molybdenum conversion facilities); 

permanent closure of the Metcalf con- 
centrator at the end of 1999 which 
reduced Morenci's production during 
2000; 

temporary closure of Hidalgo smelter 
facilities on September 3, 1999, (Hi- 
dalgo smelter is expected to be recon- 
figured to an acid conversion facility); 

sale of Phelps Dodge Mining (Pty.) 
Limited (fluorspar operation) at the end 
of the 1999 second quarter; 

curtailment of Chino operations begin- 
ning in the 1998 fourth quarter; 

acquisition of Cobre in February 1998 
followed by indefinite suspension of un- 
derground mining in October 1998 and 
the remaining facilities on March 17, 
1999; 

indefinite suspension of operations at 
Ojos del Sulado in  October 1998; 

completion of the Southwest solution 
extraction project at klorenci in the 
1998 third quarter; 

expansion of concentrator operations at 
Candelaria in  the 1997 fourth quarter; 
and 

0 

expansion of Chino's S X / E W  plant at 
Santa Rita in 1997. 
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Phelps Dodge Copper  Production Data, by Source (a) 
(thousand tons) 

Material mined ( b )  
Morenci . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . .  . . . . .  
Candelaria . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Sierrita . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  
Bagdad . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Miami . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cobre . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Ojos del Salado . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2000 

274.87 I 
116,541 
11 3.937 
84.734 
75.319 
69,101 
61.519 
6 1 .400 
46.446 

Total material mined. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  903.868 
Less minority participants' shares (c) . . . . . . . . . . . .  126.565 

Net Phelps Dodge share . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  777,303 

O r e  mined ( h )  
Morenci . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Candc I ;I ri ;I 
Tyrone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . .  

El AbrLi.. . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Bagdad . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Chino . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

M ia m i . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. .  

27.329 
24.5 3 0 
5 1.430 
43.71 I 
57.249 
2 s . -3 x7 
14.37 1 
17.x-i-3 
I I .032 

C o I? rc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
OJos dcl Salado . - 

Total ore mined . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  275.X72 
Less minority parricipaiirs' shnrcs ( e )  . . . . . . . . .  35.214 

Ncr I'hclps Ihdgc  sliarc . . . . . . . . . . . . .  240.05s 

Morcnci . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.80 
C andelari ;I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.93 
Tyronc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  0.26 
El / \b ra . .  . . . . . . . .  0.6s 
Sicrrita . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.26 
B @:id . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.49 
Chino . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.83 
Ccrro Verdc . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.7 I 
Miami . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  0.7 1 
Cobre . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Ojos del S:ilxh 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Grade of ore niii ied - percent copper 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

- . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
- . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1999 1998 1997 1996 

297.372 
126.903 
1 13.422 
10.029 
15.375 
16.233 
44.562 
11.459 
13.787 
4.558 

- 

654.700 
89.830 

2 8 8,200 
13 1,155 
108,359 

- 
- 
- 

1 11,432 

15,763 
1,336 

662,245 
108.605 

564.870 55  3.640 

40.447 
20.45 1 
55.693 

8.706 
1 3 s 3  
6.1 26 

16.362 
2.642 
2,50 I 
4 70 

- 

49,392 
24,433 
5 5,08 6 

- 

- 

17,306 

I 66 .  I s I 
19,s77 

146.304 

0.6s 
1.21 
0.28 
0.78 
0.24 
0 42 
0.50 
0.7h 
0.57 
1 00 

29 1.698 
90,045 

107,896 
- 

- 

12 1,639 

297,688 
83.962 

102.936 
- 

- 

122,939 

- 

1,713 

6 12,99 1 
102,305 

5 10,686 

50,95 I 
13,055 
50,528 

- 

- 

18,413 

- 
- 

1.551 

152,294 
IX.064 

134.230 

I34,4OX 
16.30 I 

118.107 

0.68 
I .07 
0.26 

- 

0.68 
- 
- 

0.93 
I .o I 

0.72 
I .45 
0.29 

- 

0.69 

- 

I .54 

1,628 

609,153 
102.42 1 

506,732 

47,136 
11,603 
53,687 

- 

- 

20,06 I 

1 .506 
133,993 

16,078 

117,915 

0.70 
I .40 
0.30 

- 

0.63 
- 

- 

I .57 



Phelps Dodge Copper Production Data, by Source (a) 
(thousand tons) 

Recoverable copper ( d )  
Morenci: 

. . . . .  . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Candelaria: 

Tyrone: 
Concentrate . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  

Precipitate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  
Electrowon . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Electrowon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Concentrate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Electrowon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

El Abra: 

Sierrita: 

Bagdad: 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Electrowon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Chino: 

Concentrate and precipitate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Elect rowon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Cerro Verde: 
Elect rowon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

M i am i : 
Elcctroivon . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . .  

Cobre: 
Con ce n t r;i tc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Ojos del Salado: 
C o ncc n t ra t c 

Total recovcrable copper. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net Phelps Dodge share . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Less minority participants' shares ( c )  . . 

2000 

132.3 
284.7 

224.7 

- 

79.3 

217.4 

95.9 
26.5 

1 1  1.5 
11.8 

87.0 
48.6 

78.7 

59.3 

- 

- 

1.3 

1999 

195.2 
284.7 

250.1 

- 
80.1 

52.5 

19.7 
5.8 

22.3 
2.9 

74.3 
55.8 

16.2 

13.2 

6.6 

- 

I .6 

I.459.0 
258.7 

1.200.3 

I .08 I .3 
191.2 

890.1 

1395 I997 

269.9 
272.3 

171.7 

2.6 
76.6 

- 

- 

- 

- 
- 

99.9 
69. I 

- 

- 

- 

21.1 
0.9 

1996 

247.1 
262.5 

150.8 

3.7 
76.0 

- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

99.0 
69.5 

21.3 
3.4 

9x3. I 
172.0 

812.1 

933.3 
162.9 

770.4 



Phelps Dodge Metal Production and Sales (a) (d) 

2000 

Copper (thousand tons) 
Total production . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,459.0 
Less minority participants’ shares (c) . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  258.7 

Net Phelps Dodge share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,200.3 

Sales (e) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,200.6 

Gold (thousand ounces) 
Total production . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  148 

31 Less minority participants’ shares (c) . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net Phelps Dodge share . . . . . . .  

Sales (e) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total production . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Less minority parti share (c) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net Phelps Dodge share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Sales (e) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Silver (thousand ounces) 

Molybdenum (thousand pounds) 
Total production . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Less minority participants’ shar 

Net Phelps Dodge share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Sales. . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Sulfuric acid (thousand tons) (f) 
Total production . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Less minority participants’ share ( e )  . 
Net Phelps Dodge share 

Sales. . . . . . . . . .  . . . .  

117 

120 

4,877 
549 

4,328 

4,578 

5 1,478 
419 

5 1,059 

57.988 

I ,23 I .8 
186.3 

1,045.5 

4.2 

1999 

1,081.3 
191.2 

890.1 

884.2 

174 
35 

139 

136 

4,532 
842 

3,690 

3,375 

8,303 
24 I 

8,062 

11,417 

1,172.1 
2 12.5 

959.6 

625.5 

1998 

1,052.7 
178.7 

874.0 

876.3 

185 
36 

149 

145 

3,566 
713 

2,853 

3,09 5 

1,369 
355 

1,014 

1,050 

1,222.1 
200.9 

1,02 1.2 

196.1 

1997 

984.1 
172.0 

812.1 

812.8 

139 
30 

109 

113 

3,254 
677 

2,577 

2,637 

2,121 
47 2 

1,649 

1,272 

1,263.4 
210.5 

1996 

933.3 
162.9 

770.4 

771.6 

129 
26 

103 

125 

2,636 
564 

2,072 

2,359 

2,421 
50 1 

1,926 

2,141 

1,235.3 
191.8 

1,052.9 

383.5 

1,043.5 

464.0 
~~ ~~ ~ 

COMEX copper price (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.84 0.72 0.75 1.04 I .06 
Metals Week - molybdenum dealer oxide price (h) . . . . . .  $ 2.56 2.66 3.42 4.3 1 3.79 
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PhelDs Dodge Smelter. Refinerv and Rod Production (a) 

2000 

Smelters ( i )  
Total copper (thousand tons) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Less minority participants’ share (c) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net Phelps Dodge share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Refineries (j) 
Copper (thousand tons) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Gold (thousand ounces) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Silver (thousand ounces) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Rod (thousand tons) (k)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

494.9 
58.3 

436.6 

471.2 
52.6 

3,838.9 
1,153.9 

1999 

379.2 
64.2 

3 15.0 

422.6 
72.9 

3,68 1.5 
805.1 

1998 1997 1996 

405.8 419.1 428.8 
60.1 64.5 62.9 

345.7 354.6 365.9 

429.3 455.3 450.1 
74.6 107.9 114.4 

2,523.8 2,843.0 3,142.5 
764.4 747.0 711.4 

Footnotes to tables on pages 6 through 9: 
(a )  Includes Cyprus Amax production and sales from the time it was acquired on October 16, 1999. 
(b)  Includes material mined for leaching operations. 

(c)  Interests in mining joint ventures in which we own more than 50 percent are reported using the 
proportional consolidation method. At  Cerro Verde, in which we own common stock totaling 82 percent 
of the outstanding shares, the full consolidation method is used. 

(d)  Includes smelter production from custom receipts and fluxes as well as tolling gains or losses. 
(e) Excludes sales of purchased copper, silver and gold. 
(f)  Sulfuric acid production results from smelter air quality control operations; sales do not include internal 

usage. 
(g)  New York Commodity Exchange annual average spot price per pound - cathodes. 
( h )  Annual molybdenum dealer oxide average price per pound - as quoted in Platt’s Metuls Week. 

(i) Includes production from purchased concentrates and copper smelted for others on a toll basis. 
(j) Includcs production from purchased material and copper refined for others on a toll basis. 
( k )  Includes rod, wire and other shapes. 
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Other hI in in. 0oer:itians :i nd 1 nvcst nit: ti t s  

In  the I999 second qiiartcr. we sold Pliclps 
Dodge Mining (Pty.)  Limited, o u r  \\holly o\\ned 
subsidiary that operated the Witkop open-pit fluor- 
spar mine and mill i n  the wcslcrn Transvanl. South 
Africa. Witkop produced ac id-grde  fluorspar con- 
centrates for customers in South .\fric;i. the United 
States, Europe, Austrnlia and Asia. The mine \has 
sold to The South African Land :ind Esploration 
Company Limited for $12.5 inillion in  cash. 

We own a 14.0 percent interest i n  Southern 
Peru Copper Corporation (SPCC) .  which operates 
two open-pit copper niines. two concentrators, a n  
SX/EW plant, a smelter and ;I refinery in Peru. 
SPCC's other principal shareholders are a subsidiary 
of Grupo Mexico, S.A. de C.V.. with :I 54.2 percent 
interest, and Cerro Trading Compmy, Inc.. with a 
14.2 percent interest. The cominon stock me hold ;is 
well as that held by Grupo Mexico and Ccrro 
Trading Compnny is n o t  registered for  trxling. A 
total of 17.6 percent interest is ptiblicly held. SPCC's 
results arc not included in our cxnings bccausc 
account for o u r  investment in  S1Y.C on the cost 
basis. During 2000, cbc rcccivcd dividend paymenth 01' 
$3.8 million from SI'CC. comp;ircd wi th  $1.7 iiiillion 

i n  1900 a n d  $1.7 million i i i  I O O X .  

On M:iy 0. 1907. wc accluir-cd ; in  indirect 
40 percent voting intcrcht. rcprcscnliiig ; i n  indirect 
20.07 percent cconoi i i ic  interest, i n  :I Icxling I'crii- 
v i m  zinc mining conipr iy .  C'oi i i lxi i i ia  SLiii Ign:icio de 
Morococh;i S.A. (SI MSi\) : ind  its S:in VicciiIc 
mine. S I  ILIS/\'s other sliarclioldcr \v i t l i  voting sliiircs 
is the .lcsus ni-ias liimilq. O v c r  the  last Ilircc jcai-.;. 
t he  underground mine I i x  avcr:igcd ~ii~i~i-o\iiii;itcl~ 
I30 million p o u n d s  01'  line piudtictioii annually. b ' c  
account ['or our invcstiiicnl i n  SlbISi\ on tlic eqiiit! 
basis. 

Othci- operations inclutic the l'ohono copper 
operation i n  south central Ar i /on ; i .  \\ hich consists of 
a test open pit. heap-leach pids and a n  S X I E W  
plant capahlc of producing copper cathode. The 
facility is locatcci on reservation I:inds Ic:iscd from 
the Tohono O'Odhaiii Nuation. ;\lthoiigh mining of 
ore ccascd in . I ~ i l y  1997. production of copper 
continued from cxihtiiig leach p:ids u n t i l  Fehru- 
ary I999 \ \hen  the facili tk  w:ti placed on cxrc-and- 
main tcnancc status. 

nickel-cotxiit. I n  1998, a n  ;igrcenient \\:is reached 
\\it11 the Shell Oil alliliate to shut dowi  the 
operation. The operation ceased processing in early 
J m u q  7000. 

On March 30, 2000, \\e sold C!.prus Austra- 
liii Co~il Company. ;I wholly owned subsidiary which 
\\e acquired as part of the Cyprus transaction, to 3 

subsidi:iry or Glencore International for Lipproxi- 
matel! S 150 million. Cyprus Australia C o d  Com- 
pany ou ned 48 percent of Odtbridge Pt!. Ltd. and 
50 percent of the Springvale Mine in  Australia. 
Cl-prus hiid sold its principal U.S. coal properties in 
June  1W9. 

E uplorat ion 

Our exploration group's primarq objectives 
are to increase copper reserves through discoveries, 
:icquisitions and joint veniurcs :md. where appropri- 
ate. to diversify into other metals. minerals and 
geographic ;ireas. This group operates i n  o x r  25 
countries and maintains olliccs in AustrLiIia. Austria, 
B r u i l .  Canada. Chile, India, 1ndoncsi;i. Mexico, 
I'ci-LI and t l ic I'hilippincs. 

.l'lic 7000 c . ~  p1 o ra  t i 0  n p rogra rii con t i  n iicd to 
pl;icc emphiisis on the search l'or and  clcline:ition ol' 
large-scale copper clcposits and lcsscr ciiipli;i>is o n  
gold and other I):isc iiict:il dcposi ts.  I'hclps Dodge 
c u pc ndcd S 3 0.7 i i i  i I I ion on 
diiririp 2000. comparcd wi th  $41 .O ! i i i l l ion  i n  I900 
and $42.0 iiiillion i n  I O 9 X .  ;\pprouiiii:itcl> 23 pci-ccnt 
01' the 2000 csl~cnditurc occurred i n  ~ l i c  I -nitcd 
St:itcs n i t 1 1  I 7  percent hcing spent at  o u r  L.S.  iiiiiic 
hitcs. This wn ip i r c s  \\it11 75 percent i n  I OW 
( I O  pcrcci i t  :it U.S. iiiiiic siics) a n d  36 percent in 
19OS ( I!, percent at U.S. mine s i t e s ) .  The halaricc of 
c u p  lo r;i t i on c s pc i i  di L t i  re \\':is s pen t pri ric i pal 1y i n 
i\ i i  s t  ra l  asi ;I, 13 r u i  I .  C 11 i  I e. hi1 csi co. C ;I n xi:i a n d  I'c ru . 

o rl du i de cs p1 o r;i t io ii 

During 2000, csplor;itioii elforts continued at 
o u r  existing copper opcr;itions. ,\ iii:i-jur drill program 
to del i n c :i tc m i  n c ral i ~ e c l  m i  t cria I f o r  t lie li r y  t ph asc 
of mining i i a s  i n  progress in  the Gx-licld ;irc;i at 
h1 orciic i . E s pl or:\ t i o n  programs \b c re in i I i  ;t t ed a t 
Candclarin. El ,\bra. Ccrro Vcrdc. SicrritLi and 
h I i ani i . E K pl ora t i  on for add i t ion :il leiic ii m ;I ie ri XI 
continuccl a t  T> ronc. 
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deposit contains 330 million tons of primur! sulfide 
material m i t h  a grade of 0.65 percent copper. 

Internationally, Mineragiio Serra do Sossego 
SA., a 50/50 joint venture with Compmhin Vale do 
Rio Doce (CVRD) located in Brazil. completed a 
prefeiisibility study early in 2000. A final feiisibility 
study to further define the quantity of mineralized 
material and economics of a potential copper/gold 
project is scheduled for completion in the second 
quarter of 200 1. 

Work continues on resource development 
and metallurgical review to support a feasibility study 
on the Piedras Verdes property in Sonora. Mexico, in 
which \ye own a 70 percent interest. Strategic options 
for this project are being evaluated. The results of 
the prefeasibility study indicate leachable mineralized 
material of 290 million tons at 0.33 percent copper. 

I n  1000, economic t\-alu;ition and environ- 
mental studies continued on our Ambatovy nickel/ 
cobalt deposit i n  central \I:idagascx. Mineralized 
material of 210 inillion ions ;it an estimated grade of 
1 .1  percent nickel and 0.1 percent cobalt was 
previously identified in a ftiisibilit) study. The project 
is on hold pending resolution of certain regulatory 
and permitting issues. 

Work continued on the Kansanshi project in 
Zambia and ;I prefeasibilir? study \vas completed. 
Results are being evaluated to determine how to 
proceed with the project. The prefexibility results 
indicate mineralized iiiattri;i! of 298 million tons at  a 
grade of 1.28 perccnt copptr. 



‘ e  
Ore Reserves 

Ore reserves at each of our  active operations and at Safford. .4jo. Ojos del Salado, Cobre and Climax have 
been estimated as follows: 

Estimated at December 31, 2000 Estimated at December 31, 1999 
Milling Leaching phelps Milling 

Reserves Reserves Dodge Reserves 

Tons Copper Moly Tons Copper (5) Tons Copper 
Million $6 % Million YO Interest Xlillion % 
------- - 

Morenci , .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  362.7 
Sierrita . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I ,09 I .6 
Safford (I)(2j . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  330.0 

El Abra . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Chino . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  310.0 
Cerro Verde . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  464.0 
Tyrone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Candelaria (3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  403.1 

Ajo (I) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  150.0 
Miami . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Ojos del Salado ( 3 ) ( 4 ) .  . . . . . . .  18.7 
Henderson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  I 8 I .5 
Climax (4) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  145.2 

- 

- 

Cobre (4) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  132.4 

- 

0.64 - 
0.27 0.03 
0.65 - 
0.36 0.02 

- - 

0.60 - 
0.61 0.02 

- - 
0.84 - 

0.73 - 
0.56 - 

- - 

I .32 - 

- 0.21 
- 0.23 

1,680.9 
48.5 
630.0 
17.7 
852. I 
476.2 
194.0 
460.7 

97.9 
- 

- 

127.9 
- 
- 

- 

0.23 
0.19 
0.32 
0.29 
0.45 
0.30 
0.61 
0.30 

0.35 

0.38 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

85.0 
100.0 
100.0 
100.0 
51.0 
66.7 
82.0 
I00.0 
80.0 
100.0 
IO0.0 
100.0 
100.0 
IOO.O 
100.0 

-116.0 
1.063.1 
330.0 
775.4 

332.2 
464.0 

- 

- 

460.2 
132.4 
150.0 

- 
18.7 
187. I 
145 2 

0.64 
0.27 
0.65 
0.37 

- 
0.62 
0.6 1 

- 

0.82 
0.73 
0.56 

- 

I .32 
- 

- 

?h 
Moly - 

- 
0.03 

- 
0.02 

- 

- 
0.02 

- 
- 
- 

- 

- 
- 

0.21 
0.23 

Leaching 
Reserves 

Million “0 -- Tons Copper 

1,863.8 0.22 
64.1 0.18 
630.0 0.32 
16.5 0.29 
917.0 0.46 
471.4 0.30 
21 1.7 0.61 
498.6 0.30 

- - 

97.9 0.35 
- - 

188.7 0.38 
- - 

- - 
- - 

Phelps 
Dodge 
Interest 

85.0 
100.0 
100.0 
100.0 

5 1 .O 
66.7 
82.0 
100.0 
80.0 
100.0 
I00.0 
I00.0 
100.0 
100.0 
I00.0 

( 1 ) 

( 2 )  

(3 j 

The Sall’ord :ind !l,io I”.opcrtics arc at v; ino i is  stages in t l l c  permitting process. 

The SiITord depohit iiicludcs I h s  I’ohrcs and Sail .lu;in rcscrvcs. 
The  C‘aiidclari;i ; i n d  Ole.; de l  S;ilatlo dcpo<ith d \ o  contained. respectively. 0.006 o ~ ~ ~ i c c s  and 0.008 ounccs ol‘ gold per ton in  2000 and 
I909, 

Cuhrc. Ojos dcI Sal;itlo and C:liiiiau arc stantlhy propertics where no current iiiining i\ tiihing p1:icc I x i i c l i n ~  :in iiiiprovciiicnt in the price 
01‘ copper and i i iol j IxIcnuiii. 

( 4 )  

O u r  estimated share of aggregate ore reserves at  the above n:imed propcrtics at December 3 I is ;IS follows: 

2000 I999 199s 1997 1996 

Milling rcscrvcs (b i l l ion  tons) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4.3 4.2 1.6 1.6 1.3 
Leaching reserves (hillion tons) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3.8 4.1 3.2 2.5 2.2 
Commercially recoverable copper (million tons) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  24.1 24.4 14.5 13.7 12.1 

- - - _ _ -  
. .  

. .  

- - Commercially recovcmble molyhdcnum (billion pounds) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2.2 2.2 - 

Ore reserves are those estimated quantities of ore that may be profitably mined and processed for 
extraction of their constituent values. Estimates of our reserves are based upon our engineering evaluations of assay 
values derived from samplings of drill holes and other openings. I n  our opinion, the sites for such samplings are 
spaced sulficiently close and the geologic characteristics of the deposits are sufficiently well defined to render the 
estimates reliable. Leaching reserves include copper estimated to be recoverable from leach reserves remaining to 
be mined at Morenci, Chino, Tyrone, Cobre, Suf’ord, Bagdad, Sierrita. Cerro Verde, El Abra and Miami. 
Commercially recoverable copper includes our share of the amount of copper estimated to be recoverable from 
milling and leaching reserves :IS well as  the copper that will be recovered from existing stockpiles of leach material 
at Morenci, Chino. Tyrone and Cobre. 

Ore reserves projected :IS of December 31, 2000, for Southern Peru Copper Corporation ( i n  which we hold 
a 14.0 percent intcrcst). lxiscd on av:iilable information. were 2. I billion tons of millable reserves :it :I g d e  of 0.68 
percent copper Lind 2.0 billion tons ol’ lcachuble reserves ;it a n  average gr;ide 01‘ 0.20 pcrccnt copper. These 
tonnages ;ire thc to ld  coinbincd mincablc reserves for both CuLijonc :ind Toquepal;i properties. and the tonnages 
include i;ignilic;int rcwrvc incrc;iscs :it thc Toquepala mine announced during 191Fl. 

F 

j 



i .  

-13- 

We hold various other properties containing mineralized material that we believe could be brought into 
production should market conditions warrant. Permitting and significant capital expenditures would likeiy be 
required before operations could commence at these properties. The deposits are estimated to contain the following 
mineralized material as of December 31, 2000: 

Phelps 
Dodge 
Interest 

Location @) 
Ambatovy * . . . . . . . . . . . .  100.0 
American Mountain (More 85.0 

. . . . . . . .  Arizona 100.0 
El Abra . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Chile 51.0 
Garfield (Morenci) . . .  . . Arizona 85.0 
Kansanshi . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Zambia 80.0 
Lone Star (Safford) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Arizona 100.0 
Lumwana . . . . . . . . . .  100.0 
Niagara (Tyrone) . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  New Mexico 100.0 

70.0 
Sanchez (Safford) . . . . . . . . . . .  100.0 
Sossego ** . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  50.0 

100.0 
Western Copper (Morenci) . . . . . . . . . . . .  A r i ~ o n a  85.0 

* Ambatovy deposit also contains 0.10 percent cobalt. 

Milling Material 
Million 
Tons 

- 
- 
- 

650 

298 

220 

- 

- 

- 

- 
- 

240 
216 
530 

% 
Copper 

- 
- 
- 

0.55 

1.28 

0.83 

- 

- 

- 
- 
- 

1.14 
0.70 
0.55 

Leaching 
Material 

Mi 1 lion 
Tons 

210 
140 
210 
79 

1,000 

1,600 

500 
290 
230 

404 
500 

- 

- 

- 

% 
Copper 

0.25 
0.40 
0.3 1 
0.27 

0.38 

0.29 
0.33 
0.29 

0.63 
0.3 1 

- 

- 

- 

- 

** 

Note: 

According to a prefeasibility study, the Sossego deposit also contains 0.01 ounces or gold per ton. 

MincraliLcd matcrial is ;I rninerali& body that has been dclineated by appropriately spaced drilling and/or 
underground sampling to support the reported tonnagc and average grnde of metal ( s ) .  Such a deposit does 
not qualify as a reserve unt i l  comprehensive evaluation based upon u n i t  cwt ,  grade, recoveries, and other 
material Factors conclude legal and economic feasibility. 



Sales and Competition 

The majority of our copper, produced or 
purchased, is cast into rod. Rod sales to outside wire 
and cable manufacturers constituted approximately 
57 percent of P D  Mining’s sales in 2000. We also 
sell copper as concentrate and cathode. Sales of rod 
and cathode are made directly to wire and cable 
fabricators and brass mills under contracts principally 
of a one-year duration. Our rod also is used by our 
wire and cable segment. 

We sell our copper rod and cathode at a 
premium over New York Commodity Exchange 
(COMEX) or London Metal Exchange 
(LME)  prices. W e  also sell copper concentrate 
based on COMEX or L M E  prices. From time to 
time, we engage in hedging ProgI‘dmS designed to 
enable us to realize current average prices for metal 
delivered or committed to be delivered. We also 
enter into price protection arrangements from time to 
time, depending on market circumstances, to ensure 
a minimum price for a portion of expected future 
mine production (see Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis and Notes I and I9 to the consolidated 
financial statements for it further discussion of such 
arrangements). 

Most of the d i n e d  copper wc scll is 
incorporated into clcctrical wirc and cable products 
worldwide for use in the construction, electric utility, 
communications and transportation industries. I t  is 
also used in industrial machinery and cquipmcnt, 
consumer products and ;I varicty of other electrical 
and electronic applications. 

When we scll copper ;IS rod, cathode and 
concentrate, we compete, directly or indirectly, with 
many other sellers including at least two other U S .  
primary producers as well as numerous foreign 
producers, metal merchants, custom refiners and 
scrap dealers. Some major producers outside the 
United States have cost advantages resulting from 
richer ore grades, lower labor costs and in some cases 
a lack of strict regulatory requirements. We believe 
that our ongoing programs to contain costs, improve 
productivity and employ new technologies have sig- 
nificantly narrowed these cost advantages and have 
placed us in a competitive position with respect to a 
number of our international competitors. For a 
discussion of the effects of recent, abnormally high 
energy prices in the western United St* ‘I t es, see 
“Costs” beginning on page 15. 

Other materials that compete with copper 
include aluminum, plastics, stainless steel and fiber 
optics. Our principal method\ of competing include 
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pricing, product properties, product quality, customer 
service and dependability of supply. 

Molybdenum oxide is used primarily in the 
steel industry for corrosion resistance, strengthening 
and heat resistance. Molybdenum chemicals are used 
in a number of diverse applications such as catalysts 
for petroleum refining, lubricants and feedstock for 
pure molybdenum metal used in electronics. A 
substantial portion of Phelps Dodge’s expected 2001 
molybdenum production is committed for sale 
throughout the world pursuant to annual agreements 
based on prevailing market prices at the time of sale. 

ized by cyclical and volatile prices, little product 
differentiation and strong competition. Prices are 
influenced by production costs of domestic and 
foreign competitors, worldwide economic conditions, 
world supply/demand balances, inventory levels, the 
U.S. dollar exchange rate and other factors. Molyb- 
denum prices also are affected by the demand for 
end-use products in, for example, the construction, 
transportation and durable goods markets. A substan- 
tial portion of world molybdenum is produced as a 
by-product of copper mining, which is relatively 
inscnaitive to molybdenum price levels. Exports from 
China can also influence competitive conditions. 

Molybdenum sales generally are character- 

Prices, Supply and Consumption 

Copper is an internationally traded commod- 
ity, and its prices ;ire elfectivcly determined by the 
two mijor metals exchanges - COMEX and LME. 
The prices on these exchanges generally reflect the 
worldwide balance of copper supply and demand, but 
arc also influenced signilicantly from time to time by 
speculative actions and by currency exchange values. 

In 1998, the COMEX copper price averaged 
75 cents per pound of copper cathode, 29 cents less 
than the 1997 average price. Concern over excess 
future supply, present in the market at the end of 
1997, continued into 1998. Asian economies contin- 
ued to Lveaken and the financial turmoil spread to 
other developing economies, depressing the price of 
copper as well as other base metals and commodities. 
The price also was pressured by announcements of 
increases in production by some existing mines and 
the completion of new mines during the year. 
Although Asian copper consumption remained weak. 
demand in  both Europe and North America was 
strong, especially in the first half of the year. After 
falling in  the second quarter of the year. copper 
inventories increased throughout the third and fourth 
quarters with LME warehouse inventories ending the 
year at their highest levels since early 1994. Spot 
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copper ended 1998 at 66 cents per pound, the lowest 
price seen since 1987. 

In  1999, the COMEX copper price averaged 
72 cents per pound, 3 cents lower than the 1998 
average. The decrease in price from the previous year 
primarily was due to a market surplus brought on by 
production increases and low consumption growth. 
As a result of the surplus, exchange inventories grew 
to record levels and the price dropped to 61 cents per 
pound during March, the lowest price of the century 
when adjusted for inflation. Western World exchange 
inventories increased by 217,760 tons in 1999 follow- 
ing the 1998 increase of 283,291 tons. Positive 
factors affecting the market included substantial 
closures and curtailments and consumption growth in 
1999 that surpassed earlier anticipation. The better 
than expected consumption growth was primarily due 
to steady demand in the United States, a recovery in 
some of the Asian economies and improving eco- 
nomic conditions in Europe. 

The COMEX copper price averaged 84 
cents per pound for the year 2000, a 12-cent 
improvement over the previous year. The increase in 
price was triggered by deficit market conditions 
created by robust demand for the metal coupled with 
lower world copper production growth following the 
closure of nearly 780,000 tons of capacity during 
I998 and 1999. After having added nearly 480,000 
tons during the previous two years, combined West- 
ern exchmgc inventories topped 930,000 tons in early 
March 2000. Over the remainder of the year, LME 
and COMEX inventories declined by approximately 
515,000 tons to end the year at 415,000 tons, a 
decline of 52  percent from the beginning of the year. 
Strong global consumption, particularly during the 
lirst half of the year, was lead by strong demand 
from China, steady demand in the United States and 
continued improvement in the European and Asian 
regions. 

Molybdenum demand depends heavily on 
worldwide steel industry consumption and, to a lesser 
extent, on chemical applications. During the first half 
of 2000, there were significant gains made in 
consumption with the recovery in stainless steel and 
chemical products, particularly in the Asian region, 
that negatively impacted demand in 1999. However, 
overproduction of stainless and alloy steels and the 
resulting destocking of inventories lead to lower 
consumption levels during the second half of 2000. 
Overall. steel production capacity in  the United 
States fell from 90 percent during the first half of 
2000 to belo\\ 70 percent by the end of the year. 
Despite L~ 5 percent increase in  global molybdenum 

demand in 2000 after the sharp decline in 1999, 
prices could not muster support as world production 
and existing inventories continued to apply downward 
pressure. While production curtailments announced 
at North America's three primary mines remained in 
effect, increased output from Chinese primary mines 
and global byproduct material from copper mines 
kept the world molybdenum market oversupplied. 
Following a brief period of rising prices in the first 
half of the year, prices reversed direction and 
weakened throughout the second half of 2000. Metals 
Week dealer oxide prices averaged $2.56 per pound 
for the year against 1999 and 1998 average prices of 
$2.66 per pound and $3.42 per pound, respectively. 
Phelps Dodge received an average realized price of 
$3.99 per pound for molybdenum products in 2000, 
reflecting the broad mix of upgraded molybdenum 
products as well as molybdic oxide. 

costs  - 
In 2000, copper unit production costs were 

adversely impacted by the effects of abnormally high 
energy prices. In  total, higher energy costs increased 
our 2000 copper u n i t  production costs by approxi- 
mately 4 cents per pound relative to those exper- 
ienced in 1999. 

Energy, including electricity, diesel fuel and 
natural gas, represents a signilicant portion of the 
production costs for Phelps Dodge operations. During 
2000, the Company's Arimna and New Mexico 
operations were adversely affected by significantly 
higher costs for electricity, diesel fuel and natural 
gas. I n  2000. approximately I O  percent of the 
Company's Arizona and New Mexico power require- 
ments were satisfied by internal generation. Approxi- 
mately 63 percent of' the Company's 2000 power 
requirement in Arizona and New Mexico was sup- 
plied under fixed price contracts. The remaining 
power requirement (27 percent) was satisfied by spot 
markets purchases. 

Beginning in the spring of 2000, the combi- 
nation of a power supply/demand imbalance in 
California, higher natural gas prices, a drought in the 
Pacific Northwest (a  region that has provided a 
significant amount of hydroelectric power to Califor- 
nia and the Southwest) and service interruptions at 
several California power plants due to both scheduled 
and unscheduled maintenance. caused a shortage of 
electricity in the western United States that resulted 
in extremely high spot electricity prices. There was 
little respite in  spot electricity prices for the remain- 
der of the year ;IS unseasonally cold winter temper:i- 
tures in the western United States and the continuing 



drought in the Pacilic Northwest continued to cause 
high spot electricity prices. On several occasions 
during the third and fourth quarters of 2000, spot 
electricity w:is quoted at such high prices that a 
number of the Company’s mines in the Southwest 
that purchase electricity on the spot market were 
forced to curtail production to avoid the impact that 
high power costs would have had on production 

While peak spot electricity prices have moder- 
ately improved in the first quarter of 2001, prices 
remain high relative to historical levels and continue 
to adversely impact production costs. It is expected 
that spot electricity prices will continue to exceed 
historical levels for the foreseeable future and, 
accordingly, the cost structure of the Company’s 
Southwest mines will be adversely impacted. In 
2001, approximately 20 percent of the Company’s 
Arizona and New Mexico planned power consump- 
tion will be priced relative to the spot electricity 
market. The Company’s reduced exposure to the spot 
electricity niurkct is due to the planncd expansion of 
internal gencration cupacity. 

During 2000, diesel fuel prices were ad- 
versely impacted by rising global oil prices and the 
shortage of relining capacity in certain parts of the 
linitcd States. To  mitigate the Company’s exposure 
to increases i n  diesel fuel prices. I’hclps Dodge 
cntcrcd into ;I diesel fuel price protection program in 
Ikccmbcr  2000. Thc olijcclivc of the program is to 
pro t cc t aga i n s t ;I sign i li can t u pw :i rd move men t in  
clicscl I‘ucl prices while retaining thc llcxibility to 
piii-licipatc in any  favorable pricc movement. To  
implcnicnt these objectives, the Company purchxcd 
out-ol’-tIic-iiioiicy (OTM ) call options scttled at the 
;ivcr;igc pricc Ibr ~ h c  option pcriod representing 
:ippro.yimatcly 5 0  percent of planned lirst quarter 
2001 diesel fuel consumption for  the Arizona and 
New Mexico properties. Purchase of these call 
options allows for full participation in  downward 
pricc movements. 

Nnturnl gas prices i n  the United States also 
increased significantly during 2000 due to low levels 
of supply resulting from ;I decade of relatively low 
natural gas prices that depressed domestic explora- 
tion activities and failed to maintain domestic pro- 
duction Icvcls. To mitigate the Company’s exposure 

in the pricc of natural gas, 
I’hclps Dodge entered into ;I natural gas price 
protection propr‘iiii in Jmuary 2001. The objective ol’ 
the program is to protect against ;I signilicant upward 
niovcrncnt i n  natural gas prices Lvhile retaining the 
Ilcxibility to participate in m y  lavorablc price niovc- 
mcnt. To iniplcnicnt these ohjcctivcs, the Company 
purciiascd 0 PhI c ~ l l  options f o r  natiir:il pas covering 
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approsimatcly 40 percent or its budgeted n;itur:iI gas 
consumption for the Arizona, Ne\\- Mexico and 
Texas operations for the months of April through 
October 2001. Purchase of these call options allows 
for full participation in downward price movements. 

Our copper unit production costs in 1999 
xere lo\ver than in 1998, principally as  a result of 
curtailing higher cost copper production nith the 
closures of our Cobre mine operation and Hidalgo 
smelter in New Mexico, and the smaller of two 
concentrators at our Morenci mining operations in 
Arizona. as well as curtailing production by 50 per- 
cent at our copper refinery in El Paso. Texas. 

Energy Supplies 

mining operations are electricity purchased from 
public utilities, petroleum products, natural gas and 
waste heat generated in the smelting processes. Most 
of our mine power plants, roasters and smelters use 
natural gas or petroleum products ;is their primary 
fuel. For a discussion of the clfccts of recent, 
abnormally high energy prices in thc )vestern United 
States. see ”Costs” beginning on page 15. 

The principal sources of energy for our 

En vi run men tal and 0 t her Regti la t ory M ;L t t crs 

Our operations in the United States ;ire 
subject to stringent federal, state and local laws and 
reg u I ;I t i o n s re I ii t i n g to  i m prov i ng or i i i  ai n t ;t i n i ii g 
environmental quality. Our global operations arc also 
suhjcct to many environmental protection laws. Good 
progress hus hccn made to meet the challcngc of 
i ncrcasi ng 1 4’ coni pi ex cnvi ron me n t:il reg u la t ion s. M a- 
ior environmental prograins and dcvclopiiicnts 01‘ 
particular interest arc summarized i n  the paragraphs 
that rollow. 

The federal Clean Air Act, ;is amcndcd (thc 
Clean t\ ir  ;\ct). has had a significant impact. 
particularly on our smelters and p o w r  plants.  Costs 
associated with environmental conipliance have in- 
creased over time, and we expect these costs to 
continue to rise in  the future. The 1990 Amendments 
to the Clean Air Act require the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency (EPA)  to develop and implement 
many ne\\ requirements, and they allo\v states to 
establish new programs to implement some of the 
new rcquirements, such as the requirements for 
operating permits under Title V 01’ the I990 i\niciid- 
mcnts and haurdous a i r  pollutants under Title I l l  of’ 
the IO90 :\mcndnients. Because EL’.\ has not yet  
idopted or implemented :dl 01’ ~ h c  cliangcs required 
by Congres.   he air q id i ty  Ians \ \ i l l  wn[ i r i t i c  to 
cspxid xnci c1i:inge i n  coming !car\ . i i  El’ \ develops 
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new requirements and then implements them or 
allons the states to implement them. I n  response to 
these new laws, several of our subsidiaries have 
submitted applications for, and in some cases re- 
ceived, Title V operating permits. Our power plants 
have been evaluated for potential applicability to 
Prevention of Significant Deterioration 
(PSD)  regulations. These programs will likely in- 
crease our regulatory obligations and compliance 
costs. These costs could include implementation of 
maximum achievable control technology (MACT) 
for any of our facilities i f  any are determined to be a 
major source of federal Hazardous Air Pollutants 
(HAPs) .  For example. i t  is possible that one of our 
smelters will be regulated as a major source of 
HAPs. Until more of the implementing regulations 
are adopted, more Title V permits are issued, and 
more experience with the new program is gained, it 
is not possible to determine the full impact of these 
requirements. 

The “solid wastes” of our domestic copper 
operations are subject to regulation under the federal 
Resource Conscrvution and Recovery Act 
(RCR,4)  and rclatcd state 1;iws. I-listorically, mining 
was t es h avc be e n csc in p t ed from t h e fe de ral “ h az- 
xdous  waste” regulations under RCIIA. As a result 
of decisions mack by the EPA,  all “extraction” and 
“bencficiation” wastes and 20 mincral “processing” 
wastes retain the cxcmption, and  arc to he regulated 
as “solid waste.” rather t h a n  ;IS “hamdous  w:iste,” 
under RCRA Subtitle C .  Only three of the 20 
exempt “processing” wastes arc copper “processing” 
wvastcs. Because ol‘ this EPA regulation, the genera- 
tion a n d  management of any other mineral. smelting 
or relining ~vastc cotiIc1 bc suhjcct to “Ixuardous 
waste’’ regulation i f  the waste exhibits ;I hazardous 
waste characteristic or i f  EPA specifically designates 
it as a “listed hazardous waste.” We have taken steps 
to address the potential regulation :is “hazardous 
waste” of any of our wastes which no longer meet 
the delinition of exempt mineral “processing” wastes. 

In  19%. EPA finalized its supplemental 
Land Disposal Restriction Phase IV  (LDR)  rules 
which impose “hazardous \vaste” regulation on 
“processing” waste or secondary material that is 
stored or treated before i t  is recycled. This final LDR 
rule also subjects mineral processing materials that 
exhibit ;I ha/ardous Ivaste characteristic to stringent 
treatment stLintlarcis i f  the materials arc disposed on 
land. ,\ portion (A’ the LDR rule recently \v;is 
vacated on appc~il. LVhilc EP;\’s f i n d  L D R  rule 
likely \ \ i l l  require II\ to continue to m:ikc cspeiidi- 
turcs. i t  i i  n o t  pwi~ihlc to cfcrcrniinc the f u l l  i m p x t  
on us 01’ [lie nc\\ I . I > K  rqiiircriicnts u n t i l  thc 

requirements are fully adopted and implemented by 
Arizona, Neiv Mexico. T e ~ x  m d  Colorado. 

The federal Emergency Planning and Com- 
munity Right-to-know Act \vas expanded in 1997 to 
cover mining operations. This Ian. which has applied 
to other Phelps Dodge businesses for more than a 
decade. requires companies to report to EPA the 
amount of certain materials managed in or released 
from their operations each year. Xnnual ly ,  we report 
the volume of naturall!. occurring metals and other 
substances that we managed during the previous year 
once the usable copper \vas extracted. These materi- 
als are very high in volume and how they are 
managed is covered by esisting regulations and 
permit requirements. 

Our domestic copper operations are also 
subject to federal and state laws and regulntions 
protecting both surface \\‘:iter and groundwater qual- 
ity. We possess, or have applied for. the necessary 
permits or governmental ;ipprovals presently required 
under these rules m d  regti1;itions. 

The federal National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System ( N P D E S )  progrxm requires ;I 

permit for the point source discharge OF pollutants to 
surface Lvkitcrs that qualif! ;is \\caters of thc United 
States. Although most statcs hxve rcceived authori-  
Lation to implcmcnt this program in lieu of EPA, 
AriLona and New Mexico have not received such 
authorization and therclorc the N P D E S  permit 
progr;im in Ari/on:i and K c u  Mexico continues to be 
implemented primarily by El’!\. The N PDES permit 
progrim recently w;is esp;inclcd to regulate the 
discharge 01‘ storm \\:iter runolf from active and 
inactive mincs. /\lthough EP/Z has issucd general 
permits that purport to cover discharges from active 
und inactive mines, there is the potential that such 
dischurges will have to be covered in the f u t u r e  by 
individual N PDES permits, Lvhich permits may 
impose more stringent discharge limits and other 
conditions on storm \\ ater disc1i:irges from such sites. 
We likely \vi11 continuc to have to m ~ k c  expenditures 
to comply with the NPDES permit program, espe- 
cially as  the program continues to esp:ind as applied 
to storm water dischurges. 

Arizona has adopted regulations for its q u i -  
fer protection permit ( ,APP)  program that replaced 
the p re v i c) us  :\ ri LO n :I ro  t~ n d \v;i t e r q 11 ;i I i ty pro te c t i  o n 
permit regulations. Scveral ol‘ our propertics continue 
to opcratc pur.;uant to the iran5ition provisions l’or 
e.\isting fxilitics tinc1c.r- thc \PI’ rcguiLttioris. The 
,\PI’ rcgulatiorir rcquiri  yerniiti I’Llr ne\\ i‘acilities. 
:ic t ivi t ics ~ i n c i  \triictii res ;‘\:$r in i ii ins. ;i:riccri t rxi i  i i ?  

: lnd <i11cl\Irig. I‘iic \I)!’ ills!, reL 
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discharge reduction or elimination of some dis- 
charges. APP applications for existing facilities oper- 
ating under the A P P  transition provisions are not 
required to modify operations until requested by the 
State, or unless a major modification at the facility 
alters the existing discharge characteristics. We have 
received an APP for our Morenci operations and for 
a closed tailing pile in Clarkdale, Arizona. We have 
also conducted groundwater studies and submitted 
APP applications for several of our other properties 
and facilities, including the Bagdad, Sierrita and 
Miami mines, our Safford development property and 
Ajo, Copper Queen and United Verde branches. W e  
will continue to submit all required APP applications 
for our remaining properties and facilities, as well as 
for any new properties or facilities. We do not know 
what the APP requirements are going to be for all 
existing and new Facilities and, therefore, it is not 
possible for us to estimate such costs. We are likely 
to continue to have to make expenditures to comply 
with the APP program and regulations. 

At the Hidalgo smelter in Playas, New 
Mcxico, in accordance with the groundwater dis- 
charge plan approved by the New Mexico Environ- 
ment Department (NMED)  under state water 
quality law, we continue to monitor and report to 
N M ED on our progrcss associated with groundwater 
quality near the sincltcr's compacted, clay-lincd 
evaporation pond. We havc implcmentcd appropriate 
tcchnologics and contingcncy plans to protcct 
groundwater beneath the cvaporation pond. We havc 
constructcd ;I cap over the cvaporation pond which 
was approved by NMED and have commenced a 
groundwatcr remedintion program for any existing 
contamination. To do this wc have installed ;I 

neutralimtion facility, a series of lined impound- 
ments, and ;I series of pump-back wells that are 
being operated to remediate groundwater and to 
prevent future contamination. 

On December 23, 1994. Chino, located near 
Silver City, New Mexico, entered into a n  Adminis- 
trative Order on Consent (AOC) with NMED. This 
AOC requires Chino to study the environmental 
impacts and potential health risks associated with 
portions of the Chino property affected by historical 
mining operations. We acquired Chino at the end of 
1986. The studies began in I995 and, while we 
currently are unaware of any additional liabilities that 
need to be accrued. u n t i l  the studies are completed, 
i t  is not possible to determine the nature. extent, 
co\t. and timing of remedial work t h a t  could be 
required under the AOC. Remedial work is evpected 
to be required under the AOC. 

Our mining operations are subject to laws 
and regulations establishing new requirements for 
mined land reclamation and financial assurance. 
Colorado passed a mined land reclamation law in the 
early 1970's establishing a Mined Land Reclamation 
Board that adopted regulations in 1977. Significant 
changes were made in 1993. Our Colorado mining 
operations have had approved mined land reclama- 
tion plans and financial assurance under these laws 
for several years. Arizona enacted its mined land 
reclamation law in 1994. Our Arizona mining opera- 
tions submitted proposed reclamation plans and 
financial assurance following the adoption of imple- 
menting rules in 1997, and most of our Arizona 
operations have approved plans and financial assur- 
ance. New Mexico passed a mined land reclamation 
law in 1993 authorizing regulations that were adopted 
in 1994. The permitting process for New Mexico 
mining operations commenced in December 1994 
and approved "closeout" plans and financial assur- 
ance for our operations in that state are due by 
December 31, 2001. I n  connection with the develop- 
ment of closeout plans for its largest New Mexico 
facilities, the Company has conducted a number of 
technical studies. Those studies indicate that the 
Company will need to increase the total financial 
assurance i t  provides for reclamation of its New 
Mcxico properties from approximately $ 100 million 
to approximately $200 million. Although the Com- 
pany  believes that its most recent estimates of 
rcclnmation costs at its Ncw Mexico properties are 
based on a sound understanding of the applicable 
science and rcgulations, i t  is likely that in  the public 
hearing and rcvicw process the State regulators may 
seck to impose a signilicantly larger financial assur- 
ance requirement. Actual rcclamation costs may 
difrer significantly from the required amount of 
financial assurunce based on a variety of factors 
including possible changes in legal standards over 
time and potential cost savings from use of the 
Company's oivn personnel and equipment at each 
site compared to third-party contractor costs (under 
New Mexico law financial assurance requirements 
are calculated based on estimated third-party costs), 
advances in technology and reclamation techniques, 
and opportunities to prepare each site for more 
eficient reclamation through careful development of 
the site over time. 

The federal Bureau of Land Management 
adopted amended regulations governing mined land 
reclamation for mining on federal lands in January 
100 I .  New financial assurance requirements for 
existing operations take cfrect in June 200 I. although 
the ne\\ reclamation requirements take e l l c t  only for 
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new mining and certain modifications to existing 
mining activities. Mined land reclamation is an 
ongoing activity and we recognize estimated reclama- 
tion costs using a units-of-production basis calcula- 
tion. These laws and regulations and the associated 
plan approval and permitting requirements will likely 
increase our regulatory obligations and compliance 
costs over time with respect to mine closure and 
reclamation. 

In 1995, legislation was introduced in both 
the U.S. House of Representatives and the U S .  
Senate to amend the Mining Law of 1572. None of 
the bills was enacted into law. Also, mining law 
amendments were added to the 1996 budget recon- 
ciliation bill, which was vetoed by the President. 
Among other things, the amendments contained in 
the 1996 bill would have imposed a 5 percent net 
proceeds royalty on minerals extracted from federal 
lands, required payment of fair market value for 
patenting federal lands, and required that patented 
lands used for non-mining purposes revert to the 
federal government. Several of these same concepts 
likely will continue to be pursued legislatively in the 
future. The Secretary of the Interior also ordered the 
Bureau of Land Management (BLM) to form a task 
force to review BLMs hardrock mining surface 
management regulations and propose revisions to 
expand environmental and reclamation requirements, 
among other things. BLM issued new regulations in 
late 2000. While thc elrect of the new regulations on 
our current operations and other currently owned 
mineral resources on private lands should be mini- 
mal, the new regulations and the passage of mining 
law amendments could result in  additional expenses 
in the development and operation of new mines on 
federal lands. 

We are also subject to federal and state laws 
and regulations pertaining to plant and mine safety 
and health conditions. These laws include the Occu- 
pational Safety and Health Act of 1970 and the 
Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977. Present and 
proposed regulations govern worker exposure to a 
number of substances and conditions present in work 
environments. These include dust, mist, fumes, heat 
and noise. We are making and will continue to make 
expenditures to comply with health and safety laws 
and regulations. 

We estimate that our share of capital ex- 
penditures for progr:inis to comply with applicable 
environmental laws and regulations that alfect our 
in i n i ng ope ra  t ion s Mi i I I total :i pp ruxi in ;i t c I y $19 i n  i I - 
lion in 2001 and ;ipprosimately $16 million in 1002; 

$13 million was spent on such programs in 2000. We 
also anticipate making significant capital and other 
expenditures beyond 2002. for continued compliance 
with such laws and regulations. In  light of the 
frequent changes in the laws and regulations and the 
uncertainty inherent in this area, we are unable to 
reasonably estimate the total amount of such expend- 
itures over the longer term, but it may be potentially 
material. (See the discussion of OTHER ENVI- 
R O N M  ENTAL MATTERS. ) 

W e  do not expect that the additional capital 
and operating costs associated with achieving compli- 
ance with the many environmental, health and safety 
laws and regulations \\ill have a material adverse 
affect on our competitive position relative to other 
U.S. copper producers. These domestic copper pro- 
ducers are subject to comparable requirements. How- 
ever, because copper is an internationally traded 
commodity, these costs could significantly affect us 
in our efforts to compete globally with those foreign 
producers not subject to such stringent requirements. 

Ownership of Property 

Generally, most of the land occupied by our 
copper and molybdenum mines, concentrators, S X /  
EW facilities, smelters. refineries, rod mills, and 
molybdenum roasters or processing facilities is owned 
by, or is located on unpatented mining claims owned 
by, thc Company. Our Chino partnership leases 
insignilicant amounts of real property under a variety 
of terms. This leased real property is not critical to 
the Chino operations. Small portions of our Miami, 
Bagdad and Sierrita operations are located on gov- 
ernment-owned land and are operated under a Mine 
Plan of Operations (MPO). We also lease space for 
small sales offices in various locations. 

PHELPS DODGE INDUSTRIES 

Phelps Dodge Industries (PD Industries) is 
our manufacturing division comprising two business 
segments that produce engineered products princi- 
pally for the global energy, telecommunications, 
transportation and specialty chemicals sectors. Its 
operations are characterized by products with signifi- 
cant market share. internationally competitive costs 
and quality, and specialized engineering capabilities. 
The t\vo segments are specialty chemicals and \\ire 
and cable. On December 8. 2000. we announced our 
intention to esplore strategic alternatives for. includ- 
ing the potential sale of. our specialty chemicals a n d  
wire and cable se, (7 men t s. 



Specialty Chemicals Segment 

Columbian Chemicals Company and its sub- 
sidiaries (Columbian Chemicals), our specialty 
chemicals segment headquartered in Marietta. Geor- 
gia, is a n  international producer and marketer of 
carbon blacks. At Columbian Chemicals, we produce 
a full range of rubber and industrial carbon blacks in 
12 plants worldwide, with approximately 40 percent 
of our production in North America and the remain- 
ing 60 percent at facilities in Europe, Asia and Latin 
America. Our rubber carbon blacks improve the 
tread near  and durability of tires, and extend the 
service life of many rubber products such as belts 
and hoses. Our industrial carbon blacks are used in 
such diverse applications as pigmentation of coatings, 
inks and plastics; ultraviolet stabilization of plastics; 
and as conductive insulation for wire and cable. 

. .  

I n  the second quarter of 2000, we acquired 
the remaining 40 percent share in  the carbon black 
manufacturing business of Columbian Tiszai Carbon 
Ltd. i n  Hungary for $19.0 million, bringing our total 
interest to 100 percent. 

I n  January 1999. we acquired a n  85 percent 
interest i n  tlic Korean carbon black manufxturing 
business of Korea K u m h o  Petrochemical Co., Ltd., 
I’or $70. I million. This business includes ;I I 10.000 
mctric-ton-pcr-yc~ir iiianufxturing plant. I n  Octo- 
bcr 1998. we acquired the Bra/.ilian carbon black 
ni ;I n u fuc t u ring bu s i ness of Co pc h r;is S . A . , a s u bs i d i - 
a ry  0 1 ’  Minorco. for  $220 million. This manufacturing 
I’acility has ;in :innu:il production capacity of 170,000 
mctric tons 01‘ carhon hlack. Both of these busincsscs 
;I rc I 11 ; i n  aged h y C o I u m h i ;I n C 11 c iii i cal s. We a1 so 
inaintain s d c s  ofliccs in I3  countries a n d  make use 
o I‘ d i s t r i h ti tors wo r I d w i de . 

On .lune 3 0 ,  1999, we announced the 
plunncd closure of our manufxturing Facility in  
B a t a a n .  Philippines. Production was discontinued at 
tli:it facility in Novcmher 1999. The Philippine plant, 
niiicli had ;I relatively smLiI1 production capncity of 
1 X . 0 0 0  mctric tons, did not have the economies of 
sculc to coinpetc prolitably w i t h  imports from larger 
reg i o n ;I I p rod ti cc rs . C o I u m hi :in C lie m icals has ope ne d 
:I distribution company. Philippine Carbon Black 
Distribution Company, Inc., which will ninrket and 
distribute carbon blacks principally from Columbian 
C he ni i c;il s Korea i n t tic Ph i I i p pi nes. 

E\tcnsivc research. development and cngi- 
iiccriris ;ire perl‘ormcd a t  I’our of our specialty 
c‘liciiiic:il\ location.;. Our iiiaiii speci;ilty chemicals 
\ ~ x l i i J o l ~ ) ; : >  c‘cntcr. \\ hich \\;is rclocatccl i’rom Snartl.. 
l . t ~ i i i \ i i ~ n L i .  \l:iricti;i. (;corsi:i. i n  I W X .  i s  rcspoii’ii- 

ble for studies specilic to both industrial and rubber 
applications of carbon black. Carbon black product 
rind process development at the technology center is 
supported by development work at the company’s 
North Bend. Louisiana, and Hamilton. Ontario, 
plants. The European Central Laboratory at 
Avonmouth. United Kingdom, provides technical 
support for our European specialty chemical 
operations. 

Comuetition and Mxrkets 

The principal competitive factors in the 
various markets in  which our specialty chemicals 
segment competes are price, product quality. cus- 
tomer service. dependability of supply, delivery lead 
time. breadth of product line, and research and 
development. 

Colunibim Chemicals is among the world’s 
largest producers of carbon black. Approximately 
90 percent of the carbon black i t  produces is used in 
rubber applications, ii substantial portion of which is 
used in the tire industry. Major tire m a n u f i - t  ‘L urcrs 
warlduide account for a subst:intial portion of our 
carbon b i x k  sales. I n  addition, we maintain ;I strong 
compctiti\.c position in mechanical rubber goods 
markets bascd on our commitment to quality and 
service. We arc not ;iw;irc 01’ any product t h a t  could 
be substituted for carbon black to ;I signilicant extent 
in a n y  of its principal qpliciitions. Including Colum- 
h i a n  Chcmicals. thcrc arc ;I total 01’ six carbon black 
producers in the United States. two in  Canada, three 
in uu tc rn  Europe and two ma-jor producers i n  South 
Amcrica. Thcrc ;ire also many producers in A s i a .  
The carbon black industry i s  highly competitivc, 
particulnrlq in the rubber black market. 

Raw Materials Lind Enerrrv Sunnlies 

Carbon black i s  produced primarily from 
heavy residurd oil. a by-product of the crude oil 
refining process. . \ t  Columbim Chemicals, lve 
purchase substantinlly all of our feedstock on a spot 

Our residunl oil feedstock and other raw materials for 
our specialty chemicals business arc purchased from 
various suppliers. Tlic cost of feedstock is a signiti- 
cant f x t o r  in  the cost OF carbon h l x k .  To  achieve 
satisfactor!. tin:incial results during periods of increas- 
ing oil prices. u c  must he ahlc to pxs  rlirougti to 
customers incrcLiscs in Icccistock costs. We do  not 
liclic\.e t h a t  the loss of any oiic supplicr nould 1i:ivc ;I 

tii;i\cria\ ad\ cr\c cjl’cct on o u r  1in:incial conciiiion or 
on tlic rc\tilt, 01’ i>i i r  i \pcr:it ioii<. 

b. ‘ISIS .’. at priccs that Iluctuate with world oil prices. 



Our specialty chemical operations generally 
use purchased electricity and natural gas LIS their 
priIicipal sources of energy. 

Ownershin of ProPertv 

Columbian Chemicals owns all property 
other than the leased land at its closed Philippine 
and Hamburg facilities and its Hannover facility. 

Wire and Cable Segment 

The wire and cable segment, headquartered 
in Coral Gables, Florida, consists of three worldwide 
product line businesses and a shared support services 
operation. The three product line businesses are 
magnet wire. energy and telecommunications cables, 
and specialty conductors. 

Magnet wire, the insulated conductor used in 
most electrical motors, is manufactured in the United 
States a t  plants in Fort Wayne, Indiana; Laurinburg, 
North Carolinx and El Paso, Texas. We also 
mmufacture magnet wire :it wholly owned subsidiar- 
ies i n  i\/lurccl<. Austria. m d  i\/lonterrcq: hlcxico. Our 
multi-product factory in  Zambia also produces mag- 
net wire. /is part of a mmufacturing rationalintion 
program i m c d  at signilicant cost reductions, the 
Hopkinsvillc. Kentucky, plunk \v;is closed in  2000. Its 
productive assets wcrc moved to other facilities in  
tlic United States and Mexico. A non-recurring, prc- 
tax ch;irgc of' $5.8 million [vas rccogni/cd in 7000 lor 
our wire and cablc opcr;itions i n  /\listria as  ;I result 
of the long-term iiiipict 01' continuing cxtrcmcly 
competitive pricing conditions in Europe. Tlic contin- 
uing coinpclitivc pricing cnvironmcnt Icd to ;i dctcr- 
niination t h a t  \\'c should :isscss the recoverability of 
our nustrian \\ irc and c:iblc assct values. I n  addition, 
we pcriii;iiicntl! cc~ iscd  the relatively small produc- 
tion of magnet \\ire at our company in Venezuela in 
1999. 

En c rgy ;in d t e lcco m in i i  n i cation ca bl cs for 
international markets ;ire mmufactured in  factories 
located i n  I 2  countries. Thcsc ;ire all joint venture 
oper';itions. We provide manugemcnt, marketing as- 
sistance, technical support. and engineering and 
purchasing services to thcsc companies. Three of our 
international \\ire and cable companies have continu- 
ous-cast copper rod fxilitics ( a  fourth facilit! \v:is 
closed in [ O W  1 .  xid tlirce of our international \\ire 
and ea b I e c o ni p ~ i n  i cs 11 ;I vc con t i n u o u s-c;is t a1 ti in i n 11 in 
md I':iciIitics. \\'e have nixjority intercsts in comp:i- 
nics \\ it11 production I'xcilitics in  scvcn countries - 
U r w i l .  Chile. Co4t;i Kicx I londurx, T1i:iiland. Ycnc- 
/ucI;i :iiict Laiiillia. \\'e ;\iw h~i\.c minori t !  inicrcits i n  
compinics  Itrc lied i n  I Ion: Kens. C.liiii:i. ~1'ii:iil:irid 

basis, and in companies 1oc:tted in  Greece and India. 
accounted for on the cost basis. 

During 3000, production ceased at two wire 
and cable plants in Venezuelii in the second quarter 
due to low forecast plant utilization levels as a result 
of significantly reduced infrastructure spending in the 
Latin America region. Production also ceased at our 
majority-owned telephone cable operation in El 
Salvador in the fourth quarter of 2000 due to low 
plant utilization levels as a result of heightened 
global competition for :slecornmunication cable. The 
plant closure resulted in a non-recurring, pre-tax 
charge of $4.6 million. A charge of $7.2 million to 
miscellaneous income and expense was recognized to 
reflect the impairment of our  I O  percent equity 
interest in a wire and cable operation in  the 
Philippines. The impairment n as based upon a n  
analysis of future cash tlons of the operation, 
continuing economic uncertainty in the Philippines 
and the erosion of our strategic and operating 
in Huence . 

During 1999, \ \ e  converted a small maniifx- 
turing facility in  Ecuador to II distribution ccntcr. 
Also in 1999, ~ v e  opened 11 distribution center in  
Colombia. In  all, wc operate distribution centers in 
eight countries in addition to the United States - 
G ti at e i i i  al a. E I Salvador. H on d u ras , Pan ;I ma, I'uc rt o 
Ilico, Colombia. Ecuador and South Africa. At the 
cnd of 10993 we rccogniLcd imp;iirmcn[s of our 
equity basis investment i n  ChinLi ;IS well ;IS a n  
i m pui rmc n t of t lie t clcco m m ii ii ic;i t ions busi ncss in 
the Philippines. (Sce  i iotc  j t o  the consolidated 
linancial statements for ;I further discussion ol' the 
I990 and 2000 restructurings and impairments.) 

Wc manuLicture and market specialty coii- 
ductors for the aerospace. automotive, biomedical, 
computer and consumer electronics markets. Those 
products arc manufucturrd in plants located in 
I n m a n ,  South Carolina: Trenton, Georgia: and West 
Caldwell :ind Elizabeth. Ye\\ Jerscy. i-\s part of the 
manufacturing rationa1iz:ition program initiated in  
1999, plants in Firtield and hlontvillc, New Jerscy. 
were closed in 2000. Their productive capacities \cere 
transferred to the remaining FLicilities. The principal 
products :ire highly engineered conductors of copper 
m d  copper alloy wire electroplated with silver. tin or 
nickel for sophisticated. special:! product niches. 



as magnet wire and bare conductors to original 
equipment manufacturers for use in electric motors. 
generators. transformers, televisions, automobiles and 
a variety of small electrical appliances. Magnet wire 
is also sold to electrical equipment repair shops and 
smaller original equipment manufacturers through a 
network of distributors. We principally compete with 
two international and two U.S. magnet wire produc- 
ers. Our international energy and telecommunication 
cable companies primarily sell products to contrac- 
tors, distributors, and public and private utilities. Our 
products are used in lighting, power distribution, 
telecommunications and other electrical applications. 
Our  competitors range from worldwide wire and 
cable manufacturers to small local producers. Our 
specialty conductors are sold primarily to in- 
termediaries (insulators, assemblers, subcontractors 
and distributors). Approximately 40 percent of these 
productc are ultimately sold to commercial and 
military aerospace companies for use in airframes, 
avionics, space electronics, radar systems and ground 
control electronics. Specialty conductors are also 
used in  appliances, instrumentation, computers, tele- 
comniunications, militury clcctronics, medical equip- 
ment  and other products. We havc two primary U S .  
competitors and compctc with three importers in the 
specialty conductor markct, however, in  those few 
mai-kcts whcrc we compctc for high volume products. 
we face competition from several U.S. t'abricators. 

Ii;iw Materials and Energy Supplics 

Thc principal raw materials used by our 
magnct wire nianu1';ictiiring operations arc copper, 
altiminum and various chemicals x id  resins used in 
t he man ti I'x t u  re of clcc t rical i nsu I at i ng materials. 
Most of the copper purchased I'or our  niagnct wire 
opcrations is from our mining segment. 

The principal raw materials used by our 
international energy and telccomniunication cable 
companies are copper, copper alloy, aluminum, a lu-  
minum dloy,  copper-clad steel and various electrical 
i n s u I a t i  ng mat c ri ;I I s. 

Thc specialty conductor product line is usu- 
ally plated with silver, nickel or tin. With the 
exception of copper needed in  specialty conductors, a 
majority of the materials used by these companies is 
purchased from others. We do not believe that the 
loss of a n y  one supplier ~vo~i ld  have a niaterial 
adverse cfrect on our IinanciLil condition or on the 
rcsults 01' our operations. 

Most of our nirc a n d  cable operations 
gcncrallL LISC purchuszci electricity kind natural gas ;is 
thcir principal sources of energ ' .  Our magnet wire 

company's principal manufacturing equipment uses 
naturiil gas: however. i t  is also equipped to burn 
a1 t e rn ;I t ive i'u e Is. 

Onnership of Property 

\\.e own most of the plants and land on 
nhich our nire and cable operations are located. The 
exceptions lire the leased land and buildings of our 
magnet 11 ire facilities in Austria and closed specialty 
conductor facilities in Fairfield and Montville, New 
Jerse!. This land is not material to our overall 
operations. 

Environmental Matters 

Federal and state environmental laws and 
regulations iiffect many aspects of our domestic 
industrial operations. We estimate that capital ex- 
penditures for programs to comply with applicable 
environmrntd laws a n d  regulations within our  Phelps 
Dodge Industries division will total approximately $9 
million in  7001 and from $8 million to $9 million in 
2002: $7 million was spent on these programs in  
2000. We anticipate making significant capital and 
other expenditures aftcr 2002 for continued compli- 
ance w i t h  cnvironmcntal I:iws and regulations. I n  the 
future. some 01' our carbon black plants probably will 
be regulated ;is m:i.jor sources of hazardous air 
pollutants and wil l  hc subject to ;I M:iximum 
Achicvablc Control Technology standard. I3ecause of 
the frequent changes i n  cnvironmcntal laws and 
regulations and the unccrtninty thcsc chnn, w s  create 
for us, n e  ;ire unablc to estimate rcasonahly the total 
:imoun t of such cxpcnditurcs over thc Iongcr tcrm, 
but it may bc material. (Szc the discussion of 
OTHER E N V  I RON M ENTAL MATTERS.) 

LABOR 4fATTERS 

Employees at PD Mining's Arizona opera- 
tions. El Paso relinery and rod mill, Tyrone, Hidalgo 
smelter, the Norwich and Chicago rod mills, the 
Henderson mine in Colorado, the Fort Madison, 
Iowa, molybdenum processing t'acility. and some 
employees at Chino are not represented by any 
unions. 

In  addition, we currently have labor agree- 
ments covering most of our US. and international 
manufacturing division plants. Our specialty chemi- 
cals plmt in  bIarshall, West Virginia. has a n  
agreement cwxring approximately 60 employees that 
expired on June 14, 2000. i\ new three-year agree- 
ment \ u s  ratitied with eKective dates 01' June 30, 
2000. through l u n e  13. 1003. Our specialty chcmi- 
cals plant i n  Nor th  I3end. Louisianx had a n  agrec- 
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ment covering I 10 employees that expired on 
February 28, 7000. A new three-year agreement was 
ratified at that plant with effective dates of Febru- 
ary 29, 2000, through February 28. 2003. Our wire 
plant in Bayway, New Jersey. has an agreement 
covering 65 employees that expired on July 31, 2000; 
negotiations are still ongoing in regard to this 
agreement. Our El Abra mine in Chile has a labor 
agreement that expires on October 30, 2001. Our 
plant in Zambia has an agreement that expires on 
March 31, 2001. Our magnet wire plant in Monter- 
rey, Mexico, has an agreement covering hourly 
employees that expired February 28, 2001, and is in 
negotiation. 

After a review of the near-term market 
outlook for energy prices and a thorough analysis of 
the molybdenum market, the Company announced 
on January 25, 2001, that it would notify all 2,350 
employees of its Chino and Tyrone, New Mexico, 
and Sierrita, ,4r i~ona,  operations of the possibility of 
production curtailments. The possible production 
curtailments Lire attributable primarily to high en- 
ergy-related costs at the New Mexico facilities, and ;I 

combination of low molybdenum prices and high 
energy costs a t  the Sierrita facility. All all'ected 
employees and the unions representing some of the 
employees a t  Chino have received Worker Adjust- 
ment and lietraining Notification (WARN)  Act 
letters advising thcm that production curtailments 
could beconic elfcctive following the Icgally required, 
6O-day notilication period. The Company will closely 
monitor the cncrgy and molyhdcnum niarkets 
throughout the 60-day period to determine whether 
curtailment actions m a y  hc necessary at any of the 
t hrce I'ici I i t ics. 

RES  E A RC E1 ;\ N D DE V E LOPM E NT 

We conduct research and development pro- 
grams relating to technology for explorLition for 
minerals. recovery of metals from ores. concentrates 
and solutions. smelting and relining of copper, metal 
processing a i d  product development. We also con- 
duct research and development programs related to 
our carbon black products through Columbian 
Chemicals, and our wire insulating processes iind 
ma IC ri al s ;in d co nd ti c ((1 r m ;I t c ri ;iI s ;in d p roce sses 
through our wirc x ic i  cable segment. Expenditures 
for aII 01' these rcwarch and ctevcIopmcnt pro, w i  m s. 
together wi th  contributions to  industry and govern- 
ment-supported progr:iiii$. totaled S'4.7 million in 
2OOO. coinp;ired \\ i t l i  5 I 0 .5  inillion i n  I %IO and  5 18.0 
million in 10')s. 

OTHER E N  V I RON 41 E NT.4 L MATTE RS 

Phelps Dodge or its subsidiaries have been 
advised by EPA, the United States Forest Service 
and several state agencies that they may be liable 
under the Comprehensive Eniironmental Response 
Compensation and Liabilit\- .4ct (CERCLA) or 
similar state laws and regulations for costs of 
responding to environmental conditions at a number 
of sites that have been or are being investigated by 
EPA, the Forest Service or states to establish 
whether releases of hazardous substances have oc- 
curred and, if so, to develop and implement remedial 
actions. 

Phelps Dodge has provided reserves for 
potential environmental obligations that management 
considers probable and for rvhich reasonable esti- 
mates of such obligations can be made. For closed 
facilities and closed portions of operating facilities 
with closure obligations, a n  environmental liability is 
considered probable and is accrued when a closure 
determination is made and approved by management. 
Environmental liabilities attributed to CERCLA or 
analogous state programs are considered probable 
when ;I claim is asserted, or is probable of assertion. 
and we have been associated n i t h  the site. Other 
environmental remediation liabilities are considered 
probable based upon specilic facts and circumstances. 
Liability estimates are based on a n  evaluation of, 
aniong other factors, current!? available facts, ex- 
isting technology, presently enacted 1au.s and regula- 
tions, Phelps Dodge's experience in remediation, 
other companies' remediation experiencc. Phclps 
Dodge's status as a potentially responsible party 
( P R P ) ,  and the ability of other PRPs to pay their 
a1 located portions. Accordinglh-. total en vi ron mcn tal 
reserves of $307. I million and S336. I million, respec- 
tively, were recorded as of December 3 1, 7000 and 
1999. The long-term portion of these reserves is 
included in  other liabilities and deferred credits on 
the consolidated balance sheet and amounted to 
$244.9 million and $254.4 million :I[ December 3 I, 
2000 and 1999. respectively. 

The sites for nhich Phelps Dodge has 
received a notice of potential liability or a n  informa- 
tion request that :ire currently considered to be the 
most signilicant ;ire the Piniil Creek site in  Miami, 
Arizona. and the former :lnierican Zinc and Chemi- 
cal site i n  Langcloth. Penns!.lvmia. 

/ \ t  the I'inal Creek sitc. rcmediation is being 
performed hq' the Pinal Creek Group. nhich includes 
Phclps Dodge hliami Inc. and other comp;inics that 
Iiiiix been dclermincd tu l i a i  i' <onii.ibutcd through 
historic mining :icti\.itic< t o  ti:< ~oniainin:itccl ground- 



water plume in the shallow alluvial aquifers of Pinal 
Creek. The remediation work is being conducted in 
accordance with the requirements of the Arizona 
Department of Environmental Quality’s Water Qual- 
ity Assurance Revolving Fund program. In addition, 
the remedial action is consistent with the National 
Contingency Plan prepared by EPA as required by 
CERCLA. Ongoing remediation efforts have resulted 
in continued improvement of the water quality in the 
area. In November 1997, the Pinal Creek Group 
joined with the State of Arizona in seeking approval 
of the District Court for the entry of a Consent 
Decree resolving all matters related to an enforce- 
ment action contemplated by the State of Arizona 
with respect to the groundwater matter. On Au- 
gust 13, 1998, the court approved the Decree that 
commits the Pinal Creek Group to complete the 
remediation work outlined in the remedial action 
plan that was submitted to the State in May 1997. 
Phelps Dodge Miami Inc. has commenced contribu- 
tion litigation against other parties involved in this 
matter and has asserted claims against certain of its 
past insurance carriers. While significnn t recoveries 
are expected, the Company cannot reasonably esti- 
mate the amount and, therefore, has not taken 
potential recoveries into consideration in the recorded 
rcserve. Phelps Dodge Miami Inc.’s share of the 
planned remediation work has a cost range for 
reasonably expected outcomes estimated to be from 
$ I29 million to $235 million, and, as no point within 
that range is more likely than any other, the lower 
end of the range has been reserved as required by 
gcnerally accepted accounting principles. 

I n  Junc 1999, Cyprus Amax received an 
information request from the Pennsylvania Depart- 
ment of Environmental Protection regarding the 
former American Zinc and Chemical site in Lan- 
geloth, Pennsylvania. The site is currently being 
investigated by the State of Pennsylvania. Studies 
initiated to determine the nature and extent of 
remediation work that may be required on the 
property indicated a cost range for reasonably ex- 
pected outcomes estimated to be from $18 million to 
$52 million. Phelps Dodge has reserved $20 million 
for the possible remediation work at the Langeloth 
site representing the most likely point within the 
range of estimates. 

reasonably possible outcomes for all reservable envi- 
ronmental remediation sites other than Pinal Creek 
and Langeloth was estimated to be from $146 million 
to $226 million, of which $ 1  58 million has been 
reserved. Work on these sites is expected to be 
substantially completed in the ncxt several years. 

At December 31, 2000, the cost range for 
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subject to inherent delays involved in the remediation 
process. 

Phelps Dodge believes certain insurance poli- 
ties partially cover the foregoing environmental 
liabilities; however, some of the insurance carriers 
have denied coverage. We are presently litigating 
these disputes. Further, Phelps Dodge believes that it 
has other potential claims for recovery from other 
third parties, including the U.S. Government and 
other PRPs, as well as liability offsets through lower 
cost remedial solutions. Neither insurance recoveries 
nor other claims or offsets have been recognized in 
the financial statements unless such offsets are 
considered probable of realization. 

Phelps Dodge has a number of sites that are 
not the subject of an environmental reserve because 
i t  is not probable that a successful claim will be 
made against the Company for those sites, but for 
which there is a reasonably possible likelihood of an 
environmental remediation liability. At December 31, 
2000. the cost range for reasonably possible outcomes 
for all such sites was estimated to be from $12 
million to $45 million. The liabilities arising from 
potential environmental obligations that have not 
been reserved at this time may be material to the 
results of any single quarter or year in the future. 
Management, however, believes the liability arising 
fro in pot e n t  i ai en vi ron me n t al ob I iga t io n s is not 1 i kely 
to have a material adversc effect on the Company’s 
liquidity or linancial position as such obligations 
could be satisfied over a period of many years. 

Our operations are subject to many environ- 
mental laws and regulations in  jurisdictions both in 
the United States and in other countries in which we 
do business. For further discussion of these laws and 
regulations, please see PD Mining - Environmental 
and Other Regulatory Matters and PD Industries - 
Environmental Matters. The estimates given in those 
discussions of the capital expenditures to comply 
with environmental laws and regulations in 2001 and 
2002. and the expenditures in 2000, are separate 
from the reserves and estimates described above. 

The Environmental, Health and Safety Com- 
mittee of the Board of Directors comprises four non- 
employee directors. The Committee met four times 
in 2000 to review. among other things, the Com- 
pany’s policies with respect to environmental, health 
and safety matters, and the adequacy of manage- 
ment’s programs for implementing those policies. 
The Committee reports on such reviews and makes 
recommendations with respect to those policies to 
the Board of Directors and to nianapemcnt. 

i 



Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

I. We are a member of several trade 
associations. As a participating member of these 
trade associations, we also are active in legal pro- 
ceedings challenging administrative regulations which 
are considered by the trade association to be poor 
policy. In some instances, the legal challenges 
brought by the trade associations request that the 
government consider the full impact and results of 
the proposed regulation on business operations. For 
example, the EPA is requiring air quality controls 
and air measurement obligations that industry con- 
siders too burdensome. 

11. Water rights adjudication proceedings. 

A. The following state water rights adju- 
dication proceedings are pending in Arizona 
Superior Court: 

I .  In  re the General Adjudication of 
All Rights to Use Water in the Little 
Colorado River System and Source, 
No. 6417 (Superior Court of Arizona, 
Apache County). 

I .  In  re the General Adjudication of 
All Rights to Use Water in the Little 
Colorado River Svstem and Source. 
No. 6417 (Superior Court of Arizona, 
Apache County). 

( a )  Petition was filed by us on 
or about February 17, 1978, and 
process has been served on all poten- 
tial claimants. Virtually a11 state- 
ments of claimant have been filed. 

( b )  The principal parties, in 
addition to us, arc the Slate of 
Arizona, the Navajo Nation, the 
Hopi Indian Tribe, the San J u a n  
Southern Paiute Tribe and the 
United States on its own behalf and 
on behalf of those Indian tribes. I n  
this adjudication and i n  the adjudi- 
cations reported in items 2 . ( a ) ,  
(b)  and (c )  below, the United 
States and the Indian tribes seek to 
have determined and quantified their 
rights to use water arising under 
federal law on the basis that, when 
the Indian reservations and other 
federal reservations were established 
by the United States, water was 
reserved from appropriation under 
state law for the use of those 
reserw tions. 

( c )  This proceeding could ;if- 

I'ect. among other things. our rights 
to impound water in Shou Low 
L ~ i k e  mid Blue liid!p Reservoir Lind 

to transport this water into the Salt 
River and Verde River watersheds 
for exchange with the Salt River 
Valley Water Users' Association. We 
have filed statements of claimant for 
these and other water claims. This 
litigation is stayed pending the out- 
come of current settlement negotia- 
tions. The Court has not set a final 
schedule of cases to go to trial, 
should the litigation resume. 

2. In re the General Adjudication of 
All Rights to Use Water in the Gila 
River System and Source, Nos. W-1 
(Salt River). W-2 (Verde River), W-3 
(Gila River) and W-4 (San Pedro 
River) (Superior Court of Arizona, Mar- 
icopa County). As a result of consolida- 
tion proceedings, this action now includes 
general adjudication proceedings with re- 
spect to the following three principal river 
systems and sources: 

(a )  The Gila River System and 
Source Adjudication: 

( i )  Petition was filed by us  
on February 17, 1978. Process 
has been served on water claim- 
ants in the upper and lower 
reaches of the watershed and 
virtually all statements of claim- 
ant have been filed. 

(ii) The principal parties, 
in addition to us, are the Gila 
Valley Irrigation District, the 
San Carlos Irrigation and 
Drainage District, the State of 
Arizona. &he San Carlos Apache 
Tribe. the Gila River Indian 
Community and the United 
States on its own behalf and on 
behalf of the tribe and the 
com m uni  ty. 

( i i i )  This proceeding could 
affect, among other things. our 
claim to the approximately 
3.000 acre-feet of water that i t  
diverts annually from Eagle 
Creek, Chase Creek or the San 
Francisco River and its claims 
to pe rco I ;i t i ng grou n dw a te r t h ;I t 
is pumped from \\ells lociited 
north of its Morcnci Brmch 



operations in the Mud Springs 
and Bee Canyon areas and in 
the vicinity of the New Cornelia 
Branch at Ajo. We have filed 
statements of claimant with re- 
spect to waters that it diverts 
from these sources. This pro- 
ceeding also could affect water 
right claims associated with re- 
cently acquired Cyprus opera- 
tions at Sierrita, Twin Buttes 
and the Christmas mine, and 
miscellaneous former Cyprus 
land holdings in the area en- 
compassed by the Gila River 
System and Source Adjudica- 
tion. Statements of claimant 
have been filed in connection 
with these claims, and are 
under review for possible 
amendment and 
supplement, ‘1 t’ ton. 

(iv) I n  1997, issues of dis- 
pute arose between Phelps 
Dodge and the San Carlos 
Apache Tribe regarding our use 
and occupancy of the Black 
River Pump Station which dc- 
livers water to the Morenci op- 
eration. On May 12, 1997, the 
Tribe filed suit against us i n  
S i n  Carlos Apache Court, seek- 
ing our eviction from the 
Tribe’s Reservation and claim- 
ing substantial compensatory 
nnd punitive damages, among 
other relief. I n  May 1997, bve 
reached a n  agreement with the 
Tribe, and subsequently federal 
legislation (Pub. L.  No. 105-18, 

was adopted which mandated 
dismissal of the tribal court suit. 
The legislation prescribes ;ir- 

rangements intended to ensure a 
future supply of water for the 
Morenci mining complex in ex- 
change for certain payments by 
us. The legislation does not ad- 
dress any potcntial claiim by 
the Tribe relating to our histori- 
cal occupancy and opcration of‘ 
our facilities on the Trilx’s Res- 
ervation. but docs rccluirc that 

5003, I 1  I stat. 158, 181-87) 
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any such claims be brought, if 
at all, exclusively in federal dis- 
trict court. By order dated Oc- 
tober 13, 1997, the tribal court 
dismissed the lawsuit with 
prejudice, as contemplated by 
the legislation. 

The 1997 legislation re- 
quired that the Company and 
the Tribe enter a lease for the 
delivery of Central Arizona Pro- 
ject water through the Black 
River Pump Station to Morenci 
on or before December 31, 
1998. In  the event a lease was 
not signed, the legislation ex- 
pressly provided that the legisla- 
tion would become the lease. 
The legislation included the 
principal terms for that eventu- 
ality. To  date, we have not 
entered into a lease with the 
Tribe, but are relying on our  
rights under the legislation and 
are prepared to enforce those 
rights i f  necessary. We are co- 
operating with the United 
States, which operate5 the 
pump station, to reach a n  
agreement with the Tribe on 
the lease issue. 

(v) On May 4. 1998, we 
executed a settlement agree- 
ment with the Gila River Indian 
Community (the Community) 
that resolves the issues between 
us and the Community perti- 
nent to this litigation. This set- 
tlement is subject to the 
approval of the Secretary of the 
Interior and the passage of fed- 
era1 legislqt’ ‘ ton. 

(b)  The Salt River System and 
Source Adjudic -a t ’  ion: 

(i) Petition was filed by 
the Salt River Valley Water 
Users’ Association on or about 
April 15, 1974. Process has 
been served. :ind statements of 
claimant have been filed by 
vi r t u a l ly  :iI I cl ;I i n u n  t 5. 
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(ii) Principal parties, in 
addition to us, include the peti- 
tioner, the State of Arizona and 
the United States, on its own 
behalf and on behalf of various 
Indian tribes and communities 
including the White Mountain 
Apache Tribe. the San Carlos 
Apache Tribe, the Fort Mc- 
Dowell Mohave-Apache Indian 
Community, the Salt River 
Pima-Maricopa Indian Commu- 
nity and the Gila River Indian 
Community. 

(iii) We have filed a state- 
ment of claimant to assert our 
interest in the water exchange 
agreement with the Salt River 
Valley Water Users’ Associ a t ’  ion 
by virtue of which i t  diverts 
from the Black River water 
claimed by the Association and 
repays the Association with 
water impounded in Show Low 
Lake and Blue Ridge Reservoir 
on thc Little Colorado River 
Watershed, and to assert our 
interest in  “water credits” to 
which we are entitled as a result 
of our construction of the 
Horseshoe Dam on the Verdc 
River. 

( i v )  The Salt River PimLi- 
Maricopa Indian Community, 
Salt River Valley Water Users‘ 
Association, the principal Salt 
River Valley Cities, the State of 
Arizona and others have negoti- 
ated a settlement as among 
themselves for the Verde and 
Salt River system. The settle- 
ment has been approved by 
Congress, the President and the 
Arizona Superior Court. Under 
the settlement, the Salt River 
Pima-Maricopa Indian Comniu- 
n i ty  waived all water claims i t  
has against dl other water 
claimants (including Lis) in 
Arizona. 

( v )  :\ciivc proceedings 
\\ i th  respeci io oilier cl;iim:ints 

have not yet commenced in this 
adjudication. 

(vi) This proceeding could 
affect. among other things, the 
water claims associated with the 
recently acquired Cyprus opera- 
tion at Miami, and miscellane- 
ous former Cyprus land 
holdings in the area encom- 
passed by the Salt River System 
and Source Adjudication. State- 
ments of claimant have been 
filed in connection with these 
claims, and are under review for 
possible amendment and 
supplementation. 

(c)  The Verde River System 

(i) Petition was filed by 
the Salt River Valley Water 
Users’ Association on or about 
February 24, 1976, and process 
has been served. Virtually all 
statements of claimant have 
been filed. 

and Source Adjudication: 

( i i )  The principal parties, 
in addition to us, are the peti- 
tioner, the Fort McDowell 
LVohave-Apache Indian Com- 
munity, the Payson Community 
of Yavapai Apache Indians, the 
Salt River Pima-Maricopa In-  
dian Community, the Gila 
River Indian Community, the 
United States on its own behalf 
and on behalf of those Indian 
communities, and the State of 
Arizona. 

(iii) This proceeding could 
affect, among other things, our 
Horseshoe Dam “water credits” 
\\-ith the Salt River Valley 
b’ater Users’ Association result- 
ing from its construction of the 
Horseshoe Dam on the Verde 
Rii.er. (See the Black River 
uatcr exchange referred to i n  
P:ir:igraph I1.X. ? . (b)  ( i i i )  
~ Ibove . )  \\’e have filed state- 
ments of cl:iimant uith respect 
10 Horseshoe Darn a n d  \rater 
cl:iims ;iwxi;ittd \\ i t t i  thc for- 
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mer operations of the United 
Verde Brunch. 

(iv) The Fort McDowell 
Mohave-Apache Indian Com- 
munity, Salt River Valley Water 
Users’ Association. the principal 
Salt River Valley Cities, the 
State of Arizona and others 
have negotiated a settlement as 
among themselves for the Verde 
River system. This settlement 
has been approved by Congress, 
the President and the Arizona 
Superior Court. Under this set- 
tlement, the Fort McDowell 
Mohave-Apache Indian Com- 
munity waived all water claims 
i t  has against all other water 
claimants (including us) in 
Arir.ona. 

B. The following proceedings involving 
water rights adjudication are pending in the 
U S .  District Court for the District of 
Arimna: 

1 .  On .lune 29, 1988. the Gila River 
I n d i a n Coni in tin i t y li I ed ;I co ni  p I ai n t - i n - 
intervention i n  United States v. Gila 
Valley Irrigation District, e t  01.. and 
Globc Equity No. 59 (D.  Aril.). The 
underlying action w a s  initiated by the 
Unitcd Stiitcs i n  October 1925 to dctcr- 
niinc conllicting claims to water rights in 
certain portions of the Gila River water- 
shed. Although we w r c  named and 
served as a dcfendant in  that action, we 
were dismissed without prejudice as a 
defendant in March 1935. I n  June 1935, 
the Court entered a decree setting forth 
the water rights of numerous parties, but 
not ours. The Court retained, and still 
has. jurisdiction of the case. The com- 
plaint-in-intervention does not name us 
as ;I defendant: however, i t  does name 
the Gila Valley Irrigation District as a 
defendant. Therefore, the complaint-in- 
intervention could atfect the approxi- 
mately 3,000 acre-feet oT bvater that we 
divert m n u a l l y  from Eagle Creek, Chase 
Creek or thc San Francisco River pursu- 
an t  to the agreement hetwcen us and the 
Gila Valley Irrigation District. 

During 199Y. we purchased furm- 
lands \\ itli associated water rights that 

are the subject of this litigation. As a 
result, we have been named and served 
as a party in this case. The lands and 
associated water rights are not currently 
used in connection with an>- mining 
operation of ours. 

The recently acquired Cyprus Miami 
Mining Corporation was named and 
served as a defendant in this action in 
1989. These proceedings may affect water 
rights associated with former Cyprus 
Miami lands in the Gila River 
Watershed. 

2 .  Prior to January 1, 1983, various 
Indian tribes filed several suits in the 
U.S. District Court for the District of 
Arizona claiming prior and paramount 
rights to use waters which are presently 
being used by many water users, includ- 
ing us, and claiming damages for prior 
use in derogation of their allegedly para- 
mount rights. These federal proceedings 
have been stayed pending state court 
adjudication. 

3. Cyprus Sierrita Corporation’s 
predecessor in  intcrcst w x i  a defendant in  
United States, ct al. v. City of Tucson. ct 
al., No. CIV 75-39 (D.  Aril .) .  This is ;I 

consolidation of scvcral actions sceking ;I 

declaration of the rights of the United 
States, the Papago Indiun Tribc (now 
known as thc Tohono O’Odharn Nation), 
and individual iillottccs of the Tohono 
O’Odham Nation, to surface water and 
groundwater in  the Santa Crur. River 
Watershed; dam ages from the de fc n d- 
ants’ use of surface water and ground- 
water from the Watershed in derogation 
of those rights; and injunctive relief. 
Congress in 1982 enacted the Southern 
Arizona Water Rights Settlement Act, 
which was intended to resolve the water 
right claims of the Tohono O’Odham 
Nation and its member allottees relating 
io the San Xavier Reservation and the 
Schuk Toak District of the Sells Papago 
Reservation. The allottees contested the 
validity of the Act and contended that 
the Court could not dismiss the litigation 
Lvithout their consent. This prompted 
additional litigation. and eventuully 
c u I n i  i n ;it ed in sc t t I e me n t n e so t i  ;it i o n s. 
The Court suspended most aspects ol‘ the 

- 



-29- 

litigation to enable the parties to negoti- 
ate a settlement with the allottees. The 
Court’s recent attention has been devoted 
to the composition of appropriate classes 
of allottees and identification of class 
representatives, so that any settlement 
that is reached would bind the allottees. 
It is anticipated that a settlement and 
authorizing legislation would conclude all 
litigation on behalf of the Tohono 
O’Odham Nation, its allottee members, 
and the United States as Trustee for the 
nation and its allottee members, relating 
to water rights. As of this writing, how- 
ever, a settlement has not been reached. 
The outcome of this dispute could impact 
water right claims associated with the 
recently acquired Cyprus operation5 at  
Sierrita and Twin Buttes, and mixellane- 
ous former Cyprus land holdings in the 
Santa Cruz River Watershed. 

111. The Company has entered into a Con- 
sent Decree with the Connecticut Department of 
Environmental Protection (CDEP) regarding pur- 
ported violations of state air emissions limitations 
associated with the Phelps Dodge Norwich r d  mill 
in Norwich, Connecticut. Under the terms of the 
Consent Decree. the Company will pay a penalty of 
$500,000, perform environmental studies on 
mental impacts near the rod mill, fund a SL! 
tal environmental project to be administerec! 5:. 
CDEP,  and will undergo further testing of t?.: rod 
mill’s newly installed state-of-the-art air PO?: ..::on 
con t rol eq u i p me n t . 

IV. On October 1 ,  1997, EPA issue? :1 

Notice of Violation (NOV) to Cyprus AIXL.:..; (now 
the Company’s) Sierrita operations in sout?t:::zrn 
Arizona. The NOV alleged certain emissioz i::n- 

dards and permitting violations associated .AI:!. -3e 
molybdenum roasting facility at Sierrita. Or 3s;tem- 
ber 6, 2000, EPA also issued a NOV to Ptt::i 
Dodge Sierrita for alleged violations of Pr2: 5:  

Significant Deterioration permitting requirsy:-.:;. 
and New Source Perforinance Standards 1i::r- 1.72 

federal Clem Air Act. No  action has beer! f -1 I t  

this time, and the Company has asserted c : i=- : .~s  to 
the NOV’s in its response to EPA. 

V. Cyprus Tohono Corporation (TI - . -  . 

has negotiated ;I Consent Decree with E P . I  - -  - -  

resolves outstanding issues relating to a Fr. - z . .  

break in 1992. The Conscnt Decree requir:: 
to pay :I penalty of $100.000 m d  perlcxn? : 
Supplement;il Environmental Projects u i i i -  . - : 

:.r‘ 

- .?o 
- 

- 

mated total cost of $225,000. The Company has now 
completed all requirements of the Consent Decree 
and has filed notice with EPA to begin the termina- 
tion process. 

VI. In 2000, the Pinal Creek Group, corn- 
prising Phelps Dodge Miami, Inc. ( a  wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Company) and other companies, 
continued remediation of groundwater quality in the 
shallow alluvial aquifers along Pinal Creek near 
Miami, Arizona. The remediation work is being 
conducted in accordance with the requirements of 
the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality’s 
Water Quality Assurance Revolving Fund program. 
In addition, the remedial action is consistent with the 
National Contingency Plan prepared by EPA as 
required by CERCLA. The ongoing remediation 
program has resulted in continued improvement of 
the water quality in the area. In  November 1997, 
Phelps Dodge Miami, Inc., as a member of the Pinal 
Creek Group, joined w i t h  the State of Arizona in 
seeking approval of the District Court for entry of a 
Consent Decree resolving all matters related to an 
enforcement action contemplated by the State of 
AriLona with respect to the groundwater matter. On 
August 13, 1998, the court approved the Decree that 
committed Phelps Dodge Miami, Inc. and the other 
Pinal Creek Group members to complete the 
remediation work outlined in the remedial action 
plan that was submitted to the State in  May 1997. 
Approximately $129 million remained in the Com- 
pany’s Pinal Creek remediation reserve at Decem- 
ber 31, 2000. Phelp5 Dodge Miami, Inc. has 
commenced contribution litigation against other par- 
ties involved in this matter and has asserted claims 
against certain of its past insurance carriers. While 
significant recoveries may be achieved, the Company 
cannot reasonably estimate the amount and, there- 
fore, has not taken potential recoveries into consider- 
ation in the recorded reserve. 

VII. On February 28. 2000, Cobre Mining 
Company (Cobre) received an Administrative Order 
(Docket No. CWA-6 1014-00, the “Order”) from 
EPA. The Order alleges violations of the Clean 
Water Act, requires Cobre to deliver a response 
stating the steps it has taken to address each of the 
incidents leading to the alleged violations, and 
requires Cobre to show cause why no further action 
is necessary. Cobre has submitted its response to 
EPA and is prepared to construct certain storm water 
control upgndes ;IS part of that response. 

V I  I I .  The Company‘s nholl!, owned sulxidi- 
ary, Cyprus -\mas Minerals Conipan). (C! prus). is 
the pluintiR‘ i n  a n  action entitled C>prus  .-\mau 



Minerals Company v. Asarco Incorporated, 99 
Civ. 1 I98 ( JSM),  which was tiled on November 9, 
1999, in the United States District Court for the 
Southern District of New York. The action arises out 
of the merger agreement between Cyprus and Asarco 
Incorporated (Asarco) dated as of July 15, 1999 
(the “merger agreement”). The complaint alleges, 
among other things, that Asarco breached the merger 
agreement and subsequent agreement by soliciting an 
alternative takeover proposal for Asarco from another 
company. Cyprus seeks compensatory damages of not 
less than $90 million. Asarco filed an answer to the 
complaint on November 30, 1999. On November 8, 
2000, Asarco filed a motion for judgment on the 
pleadings pursuant to federal rules. The motion has 
been briefed fully and remains pending. 

IX. In September 2000, RAG American 
Coal Company (RAG) filed a complaint against 
Cyprus Amax Minerals Company and Amax Energy 
Inc. (Cyprus) in the Supreme Court of New York, 
County of New York (RAG Anlrrictrn Coal C’otii- 

jx i f i j ’  I>.  C)pru.r Awiux Mirrcwr1.s C‘onrp(1t!j3 nnd Ani~rx 
Enrrgy I/ ir . ,  Index No. 00-604200). The complaint 
alleges claims relating to breach of contract, fraud, 
negligent misrepresentation, and negligence arising 
from alleged inaccuracies in financial statements 
relating to the sale by Cyprus of its coal subsidiary to 
IIAC; in June 1999. The complaint sccks damages in  
the a m o u n t  of $100 million under the fraud claim 
a n d  $ I  I5 million under each of the other claims. 
Cyprus has lilcd ;I motion to dismiss, which has bccn 
fu l ly  briefed and remains pending. 

I t e m  4. Submission of Matters to ;I Vote of Security 
tloldcrs 

No  niatters were submitted during the fourth 
quarter of 3000 to ;I vole of security holders. through 
solicitution of proxies or otherwise. 

Executive Olficers of Phelps Dodge Corporation 

The executive officers of Phelps Dodge 
Corporation arc elected to serve at the pleasure of its 
Board of Directors. As of March I ,  3001, the 
executive olJicers of Phelps Dodge Corporation were 
as follows: 

/\?e Olliccr of 
:It the C‘orpor:iti~iii 

h‘l l l lc i/I / i ) l  __ l’o\itioii Gncc - __ 
I .  Stcvcn LL Iiislcr 46 Chairinan ol’ t l ic 19x7 

I h i  rd. i’resi de 11 I 
and Chic1 
tixccutivc Olliccr 
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Manuel .I. 1raol;i 

Timoth! R. Snider 

S. David Colton 

Arthur R. LLIiele 

,\fC Otticcr <)i 
;It the Corpntxtion 

.i/ 1/01 Poaition since - - 
5 2  Senior Vice 

President: 
President. Phclps 
Dodge Industries 

President; 
President. Phelps 
Dodge Mining 
Company 

President and 
General Counsel 

President, 
Marketing 

50 Senior Vice 

45 Senior Vice 

59 Senior Vice 

Kalidas V. llsdhavpeddi 45 Senior Vice 
President. 
Business 
Development 

President and 
Chief Finiincial 
Otficer 

I’residcnt. F1 u i m n  
Resources 

Rainiro G .  Peru 45 Senior Vice 

David L. Pulaiie 59 Senior Vicc 

19% 

1997 

I998 

I987 

I999 

1995 

1999 

Except ;is st:ited below, all of the above have 
been oliicers of Phelps Dodge Corporation for the 
past live ycurs. 

blr. Snider was clcctcd Senior Vice Presi- 
dent in Scplcmbcr 1998. Prior to his election. 
Mr. Snider \\:is Vice Prcsidcnt of thc Corporation, ;I 

posiliori tic licld since 1997. Prior to t h a t  tinic, he 
was Vice President. Arizona Operations. of I’hclps 
Dodge Mining Company. 

XIr .  Colton was clcctcd Senior Vicc Presi- 
dent in November 1999. I-le was clcctcd Vice 
President and General Counsel in April 1908. Prior 
to that time. Mr. Colton was Vice President and 
Counsel for Phelps Dodge Exploration, :I position he 
held since 1995. 

blr, Pulatie was elected Senior Vice Prcai- 
dent. H u i i i m  Resources in  March 1999. Mr. Pulatie 
joined Plirlps Dodge in March I999 after :I 34-year 
c;ireer uith Motorolu Inc. 

bIr. Madhnvpeddi was elected Senior Vice 
President. Business Development in November 2000. 
He was elected Vice President, Business Develop- 
ment in  November 1999. Prior to tha t  time 
Mr. Mudhavpeddi \vas Vice President. Business 
Development of I’hclps Dodge Mining Company. a 
position he held since 1995. 
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Part I1 

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters 

The information called for in Item 5 appears on pages 52 and 53 of this report. 

I tem 6. Selected Financial Data 

(in millions except per share amounts) 

2000 

Sales and other operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net income (loss) (a)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Per common share - basic (b) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Per common share - diluted (b) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Dividends per common share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Long term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$4,525.1 
$ 29.0 
$ 0.37 
!$ 0.37 
$7,830.8 
$1,963.0 
$ 2.00 

1999 

3,114.4 
(257.8) 

(4.19) 
(4.19) 

8,229.0 
2,172.5 

2.00 

1998 

3,063.4 
190.9 
3.28 
3.26 

5,036.5 
836.4 

2.00 

1997 

3,914.3 
408.5 

6.68 
6.63 

4,965.2 
857.1 

2.00 

1996 

3,786.6 
46 1.8 

7.02 
6.98 

4,8 16.4 
554.6 

1.95 

(a )  

(b)  

For a further discussion of earnings. please see Management’s Discussion and Analysis. 

I n  1997, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) KO. 128, “Earnings per 
Share.” For comparative purposes, all prior period earnings per common share computations have been 
restated to reflect the elrect of SFAS No. 128. 

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis for a discussion of the effect on our results of material changes 
in the price we receive for copper or in unit production costs. 

Note: 

Item 7. Munagcment’s Discussion and Analysis 

The information called Tor in  Item 7 appears on pages 32 through 53 of this report 

I tcm 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

The information called for in Item 8 appears on pages 54 through 86 of this report 

Item 9. Disagreements on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

None. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION 
AND ANALYSIS 

The U.S. securities laws provide a “safe 
harbor” for certain forward-looking statements. This 
annual report contains forward-looking statements 
that involve risks and uncertainties that could cause 
actual results to differ materially from those pro- 
jected in such forward-looking statements. State- 
ments regarding the expected commencement dates 
of operations, projected quantities of future produc- 
tion, capital costs, production rates and other operat- 
ing and financial data are based on expectations that 
the Company believes are reasonable, but we can 
give no assurance that such expectations will prove to 
have been correct. 

Factors that could cause actual results to 
differ materially include, among others: risks and 
uncertainties relating to general U.S. and interna- 
tional economic and political conditions; the cyclical 
and volatile price of copper and other commodities; 
political and economic risks associated with foreign 
operations; unanticipated ground and water condi- 
tions; geological problems; metallurgical and other 
processing problems; availability of materials and 
equipment; delays in the receipt of or failure to 
receive necessary government permits; appeals of 
agency decisions or other litigation; volatility in  the 
price of oil (the main fccdstock for our carbon black 
operations) dicscl, electricity and natural gas; cur-  
rency fluctuations; changes in  laws or regulations or 
the interpretation and enforccmcnt thcreof (including 
changcs i n  treaties or laws governing international 
trade or tarilrs); the occurrence of unusual weather 
or operating conditions; force majeure events; lower 
than expected ore grades, the failure of equipment or 
processes to operate in accordance with specifications 
or expectations; unanticipated difficulties consolidat- 
ing acquired operations and obtaining expected syner- 
gies; labor relations; accidents; delays in anticipated 
start-up dates; environmental risks; and the results of 
financing efforts and financial market conditions. 

more detail herein. Many such factors are beyond 
our ability to control or predict. Readers are cau- 
tioned not to put undue reliance on forward-looking 
statements. We disclaim any intent or obligations to 
update these forward-looking statements, whether as 
a result of new information. future events or 
otherwise. 

These and other risk factors are discussed in 

Earnings 

I n  2000, consolidated earnings were $71.3 
million, or 92 cent4 per common share, before non- 

recurring items. (All references to per share earnings 
or charges are based on diluted earnings per share.) 
Non-recurring items and their impact on earnings per 
share are illustrated in the following table: 

$ i n  -- millions $/share 

2000 full-year earnings before non-recurring 

After-tax, non-recurring items: * 
items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  S 72.3 0.92 -- 

2000 and 1999 restructuring plans . . . . . . . . . . .  (56.4) (0.72) 
Income tax refund and related interest . . . . . . .  10.1 0.13 
Willow Creek insurance settlement . . . . . . . . . .  3.0 0.04 

Total non recurring items. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (43.3) (0.55) 

2000 full year net income after non recurring 
i tems. .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  S 29.0 0.37 

-- 
-- 

-- -- 
c Please see Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements 

for further discussion of these non-recurring items. 

In the first quarter of 2000, non-recurring, 
pre-tax charges of $2.1 million ($1.3 million, or 
1 cent per share after taxes) were recognized by 
PD Industries in conjunction with the June 30, 1999, 
restructuring plan. 

On June 27, 2000, we announced a plan to 
reduce operating costs and restructure operations at 
our mining and wire and cable segments. This plan 
comprised the following actions: 

( i )  Higher-cost production was curtailed at 
thc Miami copper mine in AriLona and production 
was reduced at the Henderson molybdenum mine in 
Colorado resulting in a total workforce reduction of 
I75 full-time employees beginning in  the second 
quarter (and substantially completed by year end).  
These actions resulted in a pre-tax charge of $5.2 
million. 

(ii) Production ceased at two wire and cable 
plants in Venezuela in the second quarter due to low 
forecast plant utilization levels as a result of signifi- 
cantly reduced infrastructure spending in the Latin 
America region. These plant closures resulted in a 
total non-recurring, pre-tax charge of $25.7 million, 
consisting of an impairment in the carrying value of 
property, plant and equipment and other assets of 
$19.2 million, plant dismantling costs of $2.6 million, 
employee severance of $2.2 million and impairment 
of goodwill of $1.7 million. In  addition, working 
capital writedowns of $4.2 million were recorded to 
cost of products sold ;IS :I result of the decision to 
close the plants. 

( i i i )  The closure of ;I telephone cable opera- 
tion in El Salvador in the fourth quarter of 1000 was 
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due to low plant utilization levels as a result of 
heightened global competition for telecommunication 
cable. The plant closure resulted in a non-recurring, 
pre-tax charge of $4.6 million, including $4.0 million 
relating to the impairment of the carrying value of 
property, plant and equipment and $0.6 million 
associated with various other costs. In addition, 
working capital writedowns of $2.2 million were 
recorded to cost of products sold as a result of the 
decision to close the plant. 

(iv) A non-recurring, pre-tax charge of $5.8 
million was recognized for our wire and cable 
operations in Austria as a result of the long-term 
impact of continuing extremely competitive pricing 
conditions in Europe. The continuing competitive 
pricing environment led to a determination that we 
should assess the recoverability of our Austrian wire 
and cable asset values. Our assessment of the 
carrying value of the property, plant and equipment 
of $4.2 million and the goodwill balance of $2.8 
million indicated impairments of $3.0 million and 
$2.8 million, respectively. 

(v) A charge of $7.2 million to miscellane- 
ous income and expense was recognized to reflect the 
impairment of our 40 percent equity interest in a 
wire and cable operation in the Philippines. The 
impairment was based upon an analysis of future 
cash flows of the operation, continuing economic 
uncertainty in  the Philippines and the erosion of our 
strategic and operating influence. These factors indi- 
cate that there is little likelihood of recovery on our 
investment and management is evaluating available 
al te rn ;i t i vcs. 

I n  total, these actions resulted in  second 
quarter non-recurring, pre-tax charges of $41.3 mil- 
lion ($36.9 million, or 47 cents per share, after 
taxes), a $6.4 million charge to cost of products sold 
representing the working capital component of the 
above actions ($6.4 million, or 8 cents per share, 
after taxes), and a $7.2 million charge to miscellane- 
ous income and expense ($7.2 million, or 9 cents per 
share, after taxes). 

In addition to the above items, during the 
2000 second quarter we recognized certain ongoing 
costs of $2.9 million ($1.9 million, or 2 cents per 
share. after taxes and minority interests) relating to 
the June 30, 1999, restructuring plan. 

I n  the third quarter of 2000, non-recurring, 
pre-tax charges of $2.6 million ($1.7 million. or 
2 cents per share, Lifter taxes) were recognired by 
PD Industries in  conjunction with the June 77. 2000. 
restructuring p l m .  I n  'iddition. ;I non-recurring. pre- 

tax charge of $0.7 million (50.4 million, or 1 cent 
per share, after taxes) was recognized by PD Mining 
in the third quarter of 2000 in relation to the 
curtailment of copper production at the Miami mine. 

I n  the fourth quarter of 2000, PD Industries 
recognized non-recurring, pre-tax charges of $2.2 
million ($1.3 million, or 2 cents per share, after 
taxes) and a positive working capital adjustment of 
$0.8 million ($0.8 million, or 1 cent per share, after 
taxes) in connection M ith previously announced 
restructuring plans. 

In addition to the above items, we received 
in the 2000 second quarter a tax refund of $6.5 
million and related interest income of $5.8 million 
($3.6 million, or 4 cents per share, after taxes) 
resulting from the settlement of the Company's 1990 
and 1991 income tax audits. In  the fourth quarter of 
2000, the Company recognized $4.5 million ($3.0 
million, or 4 cents per share, after taxes) of 
miscellaneous income relating to the settlement of a 
business interruption insurance claim by a former 
Cyprus Amax coal property. 

In  1999, consolidated earnings were $21.7 
million, or 35 cents per common share, before non- 
recurring items. Results for the year include those of 
Cyprus Amax Minerals Company (Cyprus Amax) 
for the two and one-half month period beginning on 
October 16, 1999 (the etrective acquisition date by 
Phelps Dodge). Non-recurring items and  their im- 
pact on earnings are illustrated in the following table: 

I999 full-year earnings before non-recurring 

'After-tax, non-recurring items: * 
items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Asset impairments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Environmental provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
June 30, 1999, restructuring plan . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cumulative etfect of accounting change . . . . . .  

Total non recurring i tems. .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1999 full year net income after non recurring 

Adjustment for prior years' t x e s  . . . . . . . . . . . .  

items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$ i n  
niillions $/share -- 

$ 21.7 0.35 -- 

(222.5) (3.61) 
( 17.8) (0.29) 
(65.7) (1.07) 

(3.5) (0.06) 
30.0 0.49 

(279.5) (4.54) 
-- 
-- 

$(257.8) (4.19) -- -- 

* Plense see Note 3 to the consolidated tinancinl statements 
for further discussion of these non-recurrin, ~7 items. . 

In the 1999 fourth quarter. the Company 
recognired non-recurring. pre-tax charges for asset 
impairments of $320.1 inillion at PD Mining and 
521.7 million at PD Indu\tries. The PD Mining 
impairments included the \\rite donn of the Hidalgo 
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smelter in New Mexico ($201.5 million) and the 
Metcalf concentrator at the Morenci operations in 
Arizona ($88.0 million). As a result of the successful 
acquisition of Cyprus Amax and the conversion of 
Morenci to a mine-for-leach operation, the Hidalgo 
smelter is expected to be reconfigured to allow it to 
continue to be a reliable source of acid. Also, as a 
result, the Metcalf concentrator, which was on 
standby, was permanently closed and the Morenci 
concentrator, which will be required through the 
mine-for-leach start-up, will be maintained thereafter 
on standby to provide alternative processing capabil- 
ity. In addition, as the Company began integrating 
the acquired Cyprus Amax mining properties, a 
review of copper resources was performed and a 
determination of the viability of each resource 
reviewed was made. Based on that review, PD 
Mining wrote off a mine development project at the 
Tyrone operation in New Mexico ($1 1.9 million) 
and wrote off a mine development project at the 
Copper Basin operation in AriLona ($6.8 million). 
Management further decided to write down a real 
estate development project in AriLona ($12.2 mil- 
lion). The PD Industries impairment charge com- 
prised $6.7 million for the write olf of a n  equity 
investment in China (charged to non-operating ex- 
pense) and $15.0 million for the impairment of value 
of the wire and cable segment's telccornmunications 
assets ($3.1 million of which was chargcd to non- 
operating expense). The minority intcrest add-bach 
against the impairment of value of thc wirc and cable 
segment's teleconimunicalions assets totaled $ I  .5 
million. 

I n  the 1999 fourth quarter, thc Company 
also recognked a non-recurring, prc-tax charge of 
$28.2 million for estimated future costs associated 
with environmental matters applicable to PD Mining. 
For further information, see Environmental Matters 
later in this discussion and Note 18 to the consoli- 
dated financial statements. 

On June 30, 1999, Phelps Dodge announced 
a wide-ranging plan to reduce costs and improve 
operating performance by further curtailing higher 
cost copper production, restructuring certain wire and 
cable assets to respond to changing market condi- 
tions, suspending operations a t  Colunibian Chemi- 
cals' carbon black plant in the Philippines, and 
selling a non-core South African tluorspiir mining 
unit. These actions resulted in non-recurring, prc-tax 
charges in 1999 of $36.6 million at PD Mining, $42.2 
million at the wire and cable segment ($1.9 million 
of which was charged to non-operating expense) 'ind 
$17.7 million at Colunibian Chemical\. The minorit). 
interest add-buck to the restructuring rexrvc totaled 

52.2 million a t  the wire and cable segment and $0.2 
million at Columbian Chemicals. 

During 1999, culminating uith Notices of 
Tax Due received in December, the Company 
reached a settlement with the Internd Revenue 
Service on several issues raised in its audits of the 
)ears 1990 through 1994. As a result. the Company 
recorded a $30 million reduction in its tax liabilities. 

I n  1998, consolidated earnings were $91.8 
million, or $1.57 per common share, before non- 
recurring items. Non-recurring items included an 
after-tax gain of $131.1 million, or $2.24 per com- 
mon share, from the disposition of Accuride Corpo- 
ration (Accuride), and an after-tax loss of $32.0 
million, or 55 cents per common share, in the fourth 
quarter. The fourth quarter non-recurring loss in- 
cluded $26.4 million, or 45 cents per common share, 
from the sale of our 44.6 percent interest in a South 
African mining company, and $5.6 million, or 
10 ccnts per common share, for costs associated with 
previously announced curtailments and indefinite 
closures primarily at PD Mining. Net income includ- 
ing non-recurring items was $190.9 million, or $3.26 
per common share. 

Consolidated financial results (in millions 
evccpt per common share amounts): 

2000 IO09 1998 --- 
S'iIch and other opcciring rcvciiucs . . . . .  S4.525.1 3.1 14.4 3,063.4 
0per:itinS inconic ( l o s s )  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 237.0 ( 3  15.6) 422.7 
S c t  inconic ( loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  S 20.0 (257.8)  190.9 
Set inconic (lash) pcr coninion sIi;irc 

basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  S 0.37 (4.10) 3.28 
S c t  inconic ( l o s s )  per coinillon share 

di i i i ted. .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.37 (4.19) 3.26 

Sales 

Consolidated 2000 revenues were $4,525.1 
million, compared with $3,1 14.4 million in 1999. The 
2000 increase principally resulted from a ful l  year of 
sales from the Cyprus Amax copper and molybde- 
num properties ($674 million and $191 million, 
respectively), higher copper prices ($394 million), 
increased wire and cable sales due'to :i higher level 
of infrastructure development worldwide ($69 mil- 
lion) and increased carbon black sales largely due to 
the pass through of higher feedstock costs to 
customers ($55 million). The $5 I .O million increase 
in rcvenues in I999 versus I998 principally resulted 
from the October 16, 1999, acquisition of Cyprus 
.,\mas ( $ 2 5 3  million) and higher sales of carbon 
black ( S S X  million). partially olfsct by lower average 
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copper prices ($70 million) and lower sales of wire 
and cable products ($146 million). 

Copper Prices 

Copper is an internationally traded commod- 
ity, and its price is effectively determined by the two 
major metals exchanges - the New York Commod- 
ity Exchange (COMEX) and the London Metal 
Exchange (LME).  The prices on these exchanges 
generally reflect the worldwide balance of copper 
supply and demand, but also are influenced signifi- 
cantly from time to time by speculative actions and 
by currency exchange rates. 

The price of copper, our principal product, 
was a significant factor influencing our results over 
the three-year period ended December 31, 2000. We 
principally base our selling price on the COMEX 
spot price per pound of copper cathode, which 
averaged 84 cents in 2000, 72 cents in 1999 and 
75 cents in 1998. The COMEX price averaged 
83 cents per pound for the first two months of 2001, 
and closed at 84 cents on March 6, 2001. Interna- 
tionally, our copper selling prices are based on LME 
spot price per tonne of cathode. 

Any material change in the price we receive 
for copper, or in our uni t  production costs, has a 
significant effect on our results. Our share of current 
annual production is approximately 2.4 billion pounds 
of copper. Accordingly, each lcent per pound change 
in the average annual copper price, or in average 
annual u n i t  production costs, causes a variation in 
annual operating income before taxes of approxi- 
mately $24 million. 

Due to the market risk arising from the 
volatility of copper prices, our objective is to sell 
copper cathode and rod at the COMEX average 
price in the month of shipment and copper concen- 
trate at the LME average price in the month of 
settlement with our customers. We initially record 
copper concentrate sales at a provisional price at the 
time of shipment, and adjust the pricing for all 
outstanding shipments to reflect the prevailing spot 
price per pound of copper cathode at the end of each 
period. A final adjustment is made to the price of the 
shipments upon settlement with our  customers. 

Molybdenum Prices 

Molybdenum oxide is used primarily in the 
steel industry for corrosion resistance, strengthening 
and heat resistance. Molybdenum chemicals are used 
in a number of diverse applications such as catalysts 
for petroleum relining and feedstock for pure molyb- 

denum metal used in electronics and lubricants. A 
substantial portion of Phelps Dodge’s expected 2001 
molybdenum production is committed for sale 
throughout the world pursuant to annual agreements 
based on prevailing market prices at the time of sale. 

Molybdenum sales generally are character- 
ized by cyclical and volatile prices, little product 
differentiation and strong competition. Prices for 
metallurgical products generally reference prior pe- 
riod Platt’s Metals Week, Ryans’ Notes, or Metal 
Bulletin for technical grade molybdenum or ferromo- 
lybdenum. The Platt’s Metals Week molybdenum 
technical grade (dealer oxide) price averaged $2.56 
per pound in 2000, compared with $2.66 per pound 
in 1999. Prices for chemical products are generally 
less directly based on the previously noted reference 
prices. Prices are influenced by production costs of 
domestic and foreign competitors, worldwide eco- 
nomic conditions, world supply/demand balances, 
inventory levels, the U.S. dollar exchange rate and 
other factors. Molybdenum prices also are affected 
by the demand for end-use products in, for example, 
the construction, transportation and durable goods 
markets. A substantial portion of world molybdenum 
production is a by-product of copper mining, which is 
relatively insensitive to molybdenum price levels. 
Exports from China can also influence competitive 
conditions. 

Copper Hedging 

Some of our wire, cathode and rod custom- 
ers request a fixed sales price instead of the 
COMEX or LME average price in the month of 
shipment or receipt. As a convenience to these 
customers, we enter into copper swap and futures 
contracts to hedge the sales in  a manner that will 
allow us to receive the COMEX or LME average 
price in the month of shipment or receipt while our 
customers receive the fixed price they requested. We 
accomplish this by liquidating the copper futures 
contracts and settling the copper swap contracts 
during the month of shipment or receipt, which 
generally results in  the realization of the COMEX or 
LME average price. 

Because of the nature of the hedge settle- 
ment process. the net hedge value. rather than the 
sum of the face values of our outstanding futures 
contncts, is ;I more accurate measure of our market 
risk from the use of such hedge contracts. The 
contracts that may result in  market risk to LIS are 
those related to the customer sales transactions under 
nhich copper products have nut  !et been shipped. 
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At December 3 I ,  2000, we had futures and 
swap contracts for approximately I 19 million pounds 
of copper with a net hedge value of $103 million and 
a total face value of approximately $106 million. At 
that date, \ve had $2 million in losses on these 
contracts not yet recorded in our financial statements 
because the copper products under the related 
customer transactions had not yet been shipped or 
received. At year-end 1999, we had futures and swap 
contracts in place for approximately I 1  1 million 
pounds of copper at a net hedge value of $87 million 
and a total face value of approximately $125 million. 
We had $7 million in deferred, unrealized gains at 
that time. At December 3 I ,  1998, we had futures 
and swap contracts in place for approximately 86 
million pounds of copper at a net hedge value of $65 
million and a total Face value of approximately $138 
million. We had $7 million in deferred. unrealized 
losses at that time. 

We do not acquire, hold or issue futures 
contracts [or speculative purposes. All of our copper 
futures and swap contracts have underlying customer 
agreements or other rclated transactions. We have 
prepared ;in analysis to determine how sensitive our 
net futures contrxts  ;ire to copper pricc changes. I n  
our market risk analysis, i f  copper prices had dropped 
;I hypothetical 10 perccnt :it the end of 2000, we 
would havc hnd ;I nct loss from our copper futures 
contracts of’ approximatcly $I0 million. That loss 
would have bccn virtually ollsct hy ;I similar amount 
of gain o n  thc rclatcd customcr contracts. 

From tiinc to timc. we may purchase or sell 
coppcr pricc protcclion contracts lo r  :I portion of our 
expected future minc production. We do this to limit 
thc cilccts of potential decreases in  copper sclling 
prices. For 2000 production. we had a total of 1 10 
million pounds of copper cathode production pro- 
tccted through contracts that el’f’ectively ensured 
ni i n i i n  u ni ( a p  proxi ma tc I y 7 2 cents ) and maxi in u m 
(approximately 95 cents) prices per pound. The 
minimum a n d  niaximum prices arc based upon 
average L M  E prices for the protection pcriod. These 
contracts expired without payment on December 31, 
2000. For I999 production, we had fourth quarter 
protection contracts that gave us :I minimum 
monthly average L M E  price of 69 cents per pound 
for approximately 200 million pounds of copper 
cathode that expired without payment on Decem- 
ber 3 1. 1999. We did n o t  have a n y  outstanding 
copper pricc protcction contracts :it the end of 1998, 
I999 and 2000. 

Copper Scrap Purchase Hedging 

From time to time, Phelps Dodge may 
purcIi,ise copper scrap as a raw material to be 
processed eventually into rod for sale to customers. 
The copper scrap is purchased from third parties at a 
copper content price different from the price con- 
tracted with eventual rod customers. To mitigate the 
copper price risk resulting from the difference be- 
tween the purchase and sales price of the purchased 
copper. Phelps Dodge enters into a hedge program. 
The hedge program involves the sale of an over-the- 
counter swap priced at the COMEX average price in 
the month of scrap delivery. In  the month that the 
copper rod associated with the scrap purchase is sold, 
the m a p  is liquidated at the COMEX average price 
in the month of the copper rod sale. At Decem- 
ber 3 1 ,  2000, we had swap contracts for approxi- 
mately 3 million pounds of scrap copper with a net 
hedge and total face value of approximately $2.5 
million. At  the end of the year, these contracts did 
not have any significant gains or losses that were not 
recorded in our  financial statements. We did not 
have an> outstanding copper scrap purchase hedge 
contracts at the end of 1998 und 1999. 

Aluminum Hedging 

During 2000, our BraAliun wire and cable 
operation entcrcd into duniinum swap contracts with 
a linanciiil institution to lock in the cost of aluminum 
ingot needed i n  manufacturing aluminum cable 
contracted bl, custonicrs. At Dcccmhcr 3 1 ,  2000, we 
had swap contracts for approximately 9 million 
pounds of aluminuiii wi th  ;I net hedge vduc of 
approximutely $6 million and :I total I ’ xc  viiluc of 
approximately $8 million. At the end of the year, 
these contracts did not have a n y  matcrial gains or 
losses that were not recorded in our  linnncial 
statements. A sensitivity analysis of our aluminum 
futures contracts indicates that a hypothetical I O  per- 
cent unfavorable change in aluminum prices at the 
end of 2000 Lvould have resulted i n  a loss of 
approximately $0.5 million. That loss would have 
been virtually offset by a similar amount of g i n  on 
the related customer contracts. At December 3 I ,  
1999, ~ v e  had futures contracts for approximately 1 
million pounds of aluminum with ;I net hedge and 
total fuce value of approximately $ I million. 

Foreirrn Currency t-ledcinc 

We :ire ;I global company and we transact 
business in many countries and i n  inan ) ’  currencies. 
Foreign currency transactions incrcxe our risks 
because euchangc rates can change bctnccn the time 



agreements are made and the time foreign currencies 
are actually exchanged. One of the ways we manage 
these exposures is by entering into forward exchange 
and currency option contracts in the same currency 
as the transaction to lock in or minimize the effects 
of changes in exchange rates. With regard to foreign 
currency transactions, we may hedge or protect 
transactions for which we have a firm legal obligation 
or when anticipated transactions are likely to occur. 
W e  do not enter into foreign exchange contracts for 
speculative purposes. In the process of protecting our 
transactions, we may use a number of offsetting 
currency contracts. Because of the nature of the 
hedge settlement process, the net hedge value, rather 
than the sum of the face value of our outstanding 
contracts, is a more accurate measure of our market 
risk from the use of such contracts. 

' 

At December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, we 
had net hedge and total face values of approximately 
$16 million, $34 million and $44 million, respec- 
tively, in forward exchange contracts to hedge in- 
tercompany loans between our international 
subsidiaries or foreign currency exposures with our 
trading partners. We did not have any signifcant 
gains or losses at year-end that had not been 
recorded in our financial statements for each of the 
three years in  the period ended December 31, 2000. 

At year-end 2000, our foreign currcncy 
protcction contracts included the British pound, euro, 
Japanese yen and Thai baht. A sensitivity analysis of 
our exposure to market risk with respect to our 
forward foreign exchange contracts indicates that i f  
exchange rates had moved against the rates in our 
protection agreements by a hypothetical I O  percent, 
we would have incurred a potential loss of approxi- 
mately $2 million. This loss would have been 
virtually offset by a gain on the related underlying 
transactions. 

Interest Rate Hedging 

In some situations, we may enter into 
structured transactions using currency swaps that 
result in lower overall interest rates on borrowings. 
We do not enter into currency swap contracts for 

, speculative purposes. At December 31, 2000. me had 
no currency swap contracts in place. At year-end 
1999, we had currency swap contracts in place wi th  
m approximate net hedged and total f x c  value of 
$21 million. At December 31, 1998, \\e had currencq 
bwap contracts in place with :in npprouiniate net 
hedged value of $3 I million and total face value ol' 
536 nillion. Thew currencq 4uLip\ involbed \\\ ~ p p i n g  

fixed-rate Brazilian real loans into fixed-rate U.S. 
dollar loans, and swapping floating-rate U.S. dollar 
loans into fixed-rate Thai baht loans. 

In addition, u s  are exposed to increasing 
costs from interest rates associated with floating-rate 
debt. We may enter into interest rate swap contracts 
to manage or limit such interest expense costs. W e  
do not enter into interest rate 4wap contracts for 
speculative purposes. At the end of  2000 and 1999, 
we had interest rate swap contracts in place with an 
approximate net hedged and total face value of $396 
million and $485 million. respectively. At Decem- 
ber 31, 2000, we had $7 million in unrealized losses 
on these contracts. At the end of 2000, we prepared 
an analysis to determine the sensitivity of our interest 
rate swap contracts to changes in interest rates. A 
hypothetical interest rate move against our interest 
rate swaps of 1 percent (or 100 basis points) would 
have resulted in a potential loss of approximately $10 
million over the life of the swap. 

Diesel Fuel Price Protection Program 

Phelps Dodge purchases large quantities of 
diesel fuel to operate its mine sites as an input to the 
manulacturing process. Price volatility of diesel fuel 
impacts the cost of producing copper cathode and 
other copper products for our customers. The objec- 
tive of the diesel fuel price protection program is to 
protect against a significant upcard movement in 
diesel fuel prices while retaining the flexibility to 
participate in any downward price movement. 

To implement these objectives, we may 
purchase out-of-the-money (OTM) call options, set- 
tled at the average price, for diesel fuel. Purchase of 
these calls protects us against significant upward 
movement in diesel fuel prices nhi le  allowing us full 
participation in downward movements. The physical 
purchases and the options are both priced based on 
Platt's Gulf Coast, which eliminates pricing basis risk 
between the hedge and the hedged item. We do not 
purchase diesel fuel options for speculative purposes. 

At December 3 I .  7000, we had option 
contracts to protect first quarter 2001 diesel fuel 
consumption of approximately 8 million gallons with 
a net hedged and total Face value of $7 million, for 
which we paid a premium of approximately $0.2 
million. We did not have :in>- significant gains or 
losses at year-end that had not been recorded in  our 
linancial statements. h ' c  did not h;ive a n y  diesel fuel 
price protection option contr;icts ;it the end of 1998 
or 1999. 
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Natural Gas Price Protection Program 

Phelps Dodge purchases substantial quanti- 
ties of natural gas to supply its operations primarily 
as an input to generate electricity. Price volatility of 
natural gas impacts the cost of producing copper 
cathode and other copper products for our customers. 
The objective of the natural gas price protection 
program is to protect against a significant upward 
movement in natural gas prices while retaining the 
flexibility to participate in downward price 
movements. 

To implement these objectives, we may 
purchase OTM call options or O T M  collars (simul- 
taneous call option purchase and put option sale), 
settled at the average price, for natural gas. Purchase 
of these call options protects us against significant 
upward movement in natural gas prices while al- 
lowing us full participation in downward movements 
in natural gas prices. Purchase of collars provides us 
greater protection against significant upward move- 
ment in natural gas prices, but limits participation in 
downward movements in prices. The physical 
purchases and the options are both priced based on 
San Juan Basin, which eliminates pricing basis risk 
between the hedge and the hedged item. We do not 
purchase or sell natural gas options for speculative 
purposes. 

In  January 2001 we purchased both OTM 
call options and collars for natural gas, covering 
approximately I O  percent and 5 percent respectively, 
of our planned natural gas consumption for the 
AriLona, New Mcxico and Texas operations for the 
months of April through October 2001. We did not 
have any natural gas price protection programs in 
placc at the end of 1998, 1999 or 2000. 

Business Segments 

Results for 2000, 1999 and 1998 can be 
meaningfully compared by separate reference to our 
reporting divisions, PD Mining and PD Industries. 
PD Mining is a business segment that includes our 
worldwide copper operations from mining through 
rod production, marketing and sales; molybdenum 
operations from mining through manufacturing, mar- 
keting and sales; other mining operations and invest- 
ments, and worldwide mineral exploration and 
development programs. PD Industries includes our 
specialty chemicals segment and our wire and cable 
segment. Eft'ective January I ,  1998, 90 percent of 
Accuride Corporation and its subsidiaries, our wheel 
and rim buuiness, was sold to an affiliate of Kohlberg 
Kravis Roberts and Co. (KKR) ,  and the existing 
management of Accuride. The remaining 10 percent 

interest was sold to RSTW Partners 111, L.P., on 
September 30, 1998. Significant events and transac- 
tions have occurred within each segment which, as 
indicated in the separate discussions presented below, 
are material to an understanding of the particular 
year's results and to a comparison with results of the 
other periods. (See Note 20 to the consolidated 
financial statements for further segment 
information.) 

RESULTS OF PHELPS DODGE MINING 
COMPANY 

P D  Mining is our international business 
segment that comprises a group of companies in- 
volved in vertically integrated copper operations 
including mining, concentrating, electrowinning, 
smelting, refining, rod production, marketing and 
sales, and related activities. PD Mining sells copper 
to others primarily as rod, cathode or concentrate, 
and as rod to our wire and cable segment. In 
addition, PD Mining at times smelts and refines 
copper and produces copper rod for customers on a 
toll basis. It is also an integrated producer of 
molybdenum, with mining, roasting and processing 
facilities producing molybdenum concentrate as well 
as metallurgical and chemical products. In  addition, 
i t  produces gold, silver, molybdenum, copper sulfate, 
rhenium and copper chemicals as by-products, and 
sulfuric acid from its air quality control facilities. 
This business segment also includes worldwide min- 
eral exploration and dcvelopnient programs. 

2000 * 1999 * 1998 --- 
Copper (From own mines - thousand 

tons) * *  
Production . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,200.3 890.1 874.0 
Sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1.200.6 884.2 876.3 

COMEX averige spot copper price per 

Molybdenum production 

Merals W w k  - average technical grade 

pound-cathodes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.84 0.72 0.75 

(million pounds) ** . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  51.1 8.1 1.0 

molybdenum oxide price per pound., , $ 2.56 2.66 3.42 

(millions of dollars) 
Sales and other operating revenues 

unaffilicited customers . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $3.073.7 1,786.6 1,667.7 
Operating income (loss) *** . . . . . . . . . .  $ 243.3 (301.0) 110.3 

* 2000 a n d  I999 includes the results of Cyprus Amax since 
the efective date of acquisition. October 16, 1999. 

Worldwide copper and molybdenum production and sales 
a c l u d e  the amounts attributable to ( i )  the 15 percent 
undivided interest in  the Murenci. Arituna. copper mining 
complex held by Sumitonio Metal Mining :\riiuna. Inc. 
(Suriiitomo). ( i i )  the one-third partnership interebt in 

* *  
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*** 

Chino Mines Companq in New Mexico held by Heisei 
Minerals Corporation (Heisei), (iii) the 20 percent 
interest in Candelaria in Chile held by SMMA Cande- 
laria. Inc., a jointly onned indirect subsidiary of 
Sumitomo Metal Mining Co., Ltd., and Sumitomo Corpo- 
ration (copper only), and (iv) the 49 percent interest in 
the El Abra copper mining operation in Chile held by 
Corporacion Nacional del Cobre de Chile (CODELCO). 
(copper only). 

2000 1999 1998 --- 
Excluded production (thousand tons): 

Morenci -for Sumitomo . . . . . . . . . .  62.6 72.0 78.4 
Chino - for Heisei. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  44.7 43.3 52.9 
Candelaria - for Sumitomo . . . . . . . .  44.9 50.0 47.4 
El Abra- for CODELCO . . . . . . . . .  25.9 - 106.5 

258.7 191.2 178.7 --- --- 

Operating income for 2000 includes non-recurring, pre-tax 
charges of $5.8 million for costs associated with curtail- 
ments and indefinite closures. Operating loss for 1999 
includes non-recurring, pre-tax charges of $385.2 million 
comprising the following: asset impairments of $320.4 
million, environmental provisions of $28.2 million, and 
restructuring costs of $36.6 million. 1998 includes a non- 
recurring, pre-tax charge of $5.5 million for costs associ- 
ated with curtailments and indefinite closures. (See 
Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.) 

PD Mining - Operating Income 

2000 I999 1998 --- ( $  in millions) 

Operating income before non-recurring 
items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $249.1 84.2 115.8 

Pre-tax, non-recurring items . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (5.8) (385.2) (5.5) 

Operating income (loss) after non-recurring 
items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $243.3 (301.0) 110.3 

--- 

--- 

In  2000, our PD Mining segment reported 
operating income of $249.1 million before $5.8 
million of pre-tax, non-recurring charges. The pre- 
tax, non-recurring charges of $5.8 million comprised 
restructuring charges associated with the curtailment 
of production at the Miami copper mine in Arizona 
($1.5 million) and the Henderson molybdenum mine 

I in Colorado ($4.3 million). 

The 2000 increase in operating income 
before non-recurring items of $164.9 million was 
principally a result of higher average copper prices 
($288 million) and increased sales volumes ($66 
million) resulting from the acquisition of Cyprus 
Amax, partially offset by higher copper production 
costs ($139 million) lurgely as a result of higher 
energy-related costs. 

On May 8, 2000, as a result of an oversupply 
of molybdenum and continued low prices in the 
world market, Phelps Dodge announced a plan to 
curtail molybdenum production by approximately 
20 percent and reduce its workforce by approximately 
130 workers at its Henderson mine in Colorado. The 
curtailment of production resulted in a non-recurring, 
pre-tax charge of $4.3 million for severance-related 
costs. 

On June 27, 2000, the Company announced 
a mine plan incorporating a reduction in mining 
activities at its Miami, Arizona, copper mine. The 
new mine plan temporarily suspended stripping in a 
higher - cost portion of the mine and will allow the 
redistribution of a variety of mining equipment, 
including shovels and haul trucks, to other Phelps 
Dodge mining operations to reduce overall capital 
expenditures. The reduction of mining activities 
resulted in a non-recurring, pre-tax charge of $1.5 
million for equipment relocation and severance- 
related costs. 

In 2000, copper unit production costs were 
adversely impacted by the effects of abnormally high 
spot prices for energy. In total, higher energy costs 
increased our 2000 copper unit production costs by 
approximately 4 cents per pound relative to those 
experienced in 1999. 

natural gas, represents a significant portion of the 
production costs for Phelps Dodge operations. During 
2000, the Company’s Arizona and New Mexico 
operations were adversely affected by significantly 
higher costs for electricity, diesel fuel and natural 
gas. In 2000, approximately 10 percent of the 
Company’s Arizona and New Mexico power require- 
ments were satisfied by internal generation. Approxi- 
mately 63 percent of the Company’s 2000 power 
requirement in Arizona and New Mexico was sup- 
plied under fixed price contracts. The remaining 
power requirement (27 percent) was satisfied by spot 
markets purchases. 

nation of a power supply/demand imbalance in 
California, higher natural gas prices, a drought in the 
Pacific Northwest (a region that has provided a 
significant amount of hydroelectric power to Califor- 
nia and the Southwest) and service interruptions at 
several California power plants due to both scheduled 
and unscheduled maintenance, caused a shortage of 
electricity in the western United States that resulted 
in extremely high spot electricity prices. There was 
little respite in spot electricity prices for the remain- 
der of the year as unseasonall) cold winter tempera- 

Energy, including electricity, diesel fuel and 

Beginning in the spring of 2000, the combi- 
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tures in the western United States and the continuing 
drought in the Pacific Northwest continued to cause 
high spot electricity prices. On several occasions 
during the third and fourth quarters of 2000, spot 
electricity was quoted at such high prices that a 
number of the Company’s mines in the Southwest 
that purchase electricity on the spot market were 
forced to curtail production to avoid the impact that 
high power costs would have had on production 
costs. While peak spot electricity prices have moder- 
ately improved in the first quarter of 2001, prices 
remain high relative to historical levels and continue 
to adversely impact production costs. It is expected 
that spot electricity prices will continue to exceed 
historical levels for the foreseeable future and, 
accordingly, the cost structure of the Company’s 
Southwest mines will be adversely impacted. In 
200 I ,  approximately 20 percent of the Company’s 
Arizona and New Mexico planned power consump- 
tion will be priced relative to the spot electricity 
market. The Company’s reduced exposure to the spot 
electricity market is due to the planned expansion of 
internal generation capacity. 

versely impacted by rising global oil prices and the 
shortage of refining capacity in certain parts of the 
United States. To mitigate the Company’s exposure 
to increases in  diesel fuel prices, Phelps Dodge 
cntered into a diescl fuel price protection program in  
December 2000. The objective of the progrLim is to 
protect against a signilicant upward movement in 
diesel fuel prices while retaining the flexibility to 
participate in any favorable price movement. To 
implement these objectives, the Company purchased 
OTM call options settled at the average price for the 
option period representing approximately 50 percent 
of planned first quarter 2001 diesel fuel consumption 
for the Arizona and New Mexico properties. 
Purchase of these call options allows for full partici- 
pation in downward price movements. 

Natural gas prices in the United States also 
increased significantly during 2000 due to low levels 
of supply resulting from a decade of relatively low 
natural gas prices that depressed domestic explora- 
tion activities and failed to maintain domestic pro- 
duction levels. To mitigate the Company’s exposure 
to further increases in the price of natural gas, 
Phelps Dodge entered into a natural gas price 
protection program in January 2001. The objective of 
the program is to protect against a significant upward 
movement in natural gas prices while retaining the 
flexibility to participate in any favorable price move- 
ment. To implement these objectives, the Company 
purchased OTM call options for natural gas covering 

During 2000, diesel fuel prices were ad- 

approximately 40 percent of its budgeted natural gas 
consumption for the Arizona, New Mexico and 
Texas operations for the months of April through 
October 2001. Purchase of these call options allows 
for full participation in downward price movements. 

Copper production costs generally were sta- 
ble for the two-year period ended December 31, 
1999, primarily as a result of ongoing cost-contain- 
ment programs and high levels of production of low- 
cost cathode copper at our S X / E W  plants in 
Arizona, New Mexico, Peru and Chile. In 2000, we 
produced a total of 806,300 tons of cathode copper at 
our SX/EW facilities, (including 165,400 tons for 
minority participants) compared with 51 1,500 tons in 
1999 (including 87,200 tons for minority partici- 
pants). The S X / E W  method is a cost-effective 
process of extracting copper from certain types of 
ores. 

Our international operations primarily sell 
copper production in concentrate or cathode form. 
On the other hand, much of our U.S. copper 
product ion, together with additional copper pur- 
chased from others, is converted and sold as 
continuous-cast copper rod. In  addition, U.S. opera- 
tions sell most of our  molybdenum production in a 
variety of metallurgical and chemical products. In  
2000, operations outside the United States provided 
I O  percent of PD Mining’s sales, compared with 14 
percent in 1999 and I I percent in 1998. During the 
year, operations outside the United States contrib- 
uted 29 percent of the segment’s operatin, 0 income, . 
compared with a contribution of 67 percent and a 
reduction of operating income of 9 percent before 
non-recurring charges and provisions in I999 and 
1998. respectively. 

Operating income in 1999 was $84.2 million, 
before $385.2 million of non-recurring, pre-tax 
charges. The pre-tax, non-recurring items were as 
follows: $320.4 million of asset impairments including 
the writedown of the Hidalgo smelter in New 
Mexico ($201.5 million), the Metcalf concentrator at 
the Morenci operations in Arizona ($88.0 million), a 
real estate development project in Arizona ($12.2 
million), a mine development project at the Tyrone 
operations in New Mexico ($1 1.9 million), mine 
development at the Copper Basin project in Arizona 
($6.8 million), $28.2 million for environmental provi- 
sions, and $36.6 million for the restructuring plan 
announced in the 1999 second quarter. 

The $3 1.6 million decrease in I999 operating 
income before non-recurring items reflected lower 
average copper prices ($53 million), partially offset 



by lower copper production costs (approximately $30 
million). 

Operating income in 1998 was $1 15.8 million 
before $5.5 million of non-recurring, pre-tax charges 
associated with a production curtailment at Chino 
Mines Company in New Mexico and the indefinite 
closures of operations at our Ojos del Salado 
operation in Chile and Cobre Mining Company in 
New Mexico. 

PD Mining - Operations Update 

After a review of the near-term market 
outlook for energy prices and a thorough analysis of 
the molybdenum market, the Company announced 
on January 25, 2001, that it would notify all 2,350 
employees of its Chino and Tyrone, New Mexico, 
and Sierrita, Arizona, operations of the possibility of 
production curtailments. The possible production 
curtailments are attributable primarily to high en- 
ergy-related costs at the New Mexico facilities, and a 
combination of low molybdenum prices and high 
energy costs at the Sierrita facility. All affected 
employees and the unions representing some of the 
employees at Chino have received Worker Adjust- 
ment and Retraining Notification (WARN) Act 
letters advising them that production curtailments 
could become elt’ective following the legally required, 
60-day notification period. The Company will closely 
monitor the energy and molybdenum markets 
throughout the 60-day period to determine whether 
curtailment actions may be necessary at any of the 
three facilities. 

On October 16, 1999, Phelps Dodge ac- 
quired Cyprus Amax Minerals company. This in- 
cluded (i)  the Bagdad mine in northwestern Arizona 
consisting of a n  open-pit mine, an approximate 
85,000 ton-per-day sulfide ore concentrator producing 
copper and molybdenum concentrates, and an oxide 
leaching system with a n  S X / E W  plant producing 
copper cathode; (ii) the Sierrita mine in south 
central Arizona consisting of a n  open-pit mine, an 
approximate I 15,000 ton-per-day sulfide ore concen- 
trator producing copper and molybdenum concen- 
trate, a molybdenum recovery plant, two 
molybdenum roasters, and a n  oxide and low-grade 
sulfide ore dump leaching system with an S X / E W  
plant producing copper cathodes; (iii) the Miami 
mine near Miami, Arizona, consisting of an open-pit 
mine producing acid soluble copper ore for heap 
leaching operations. a n  SX/  EW plant producing 
copper cathode. ii smelter. a n  electrolytic refinery, 
and ;I copper rod plant; ( i v )  :I copper rod plant in 
Chicago, Illinois: ( v )  :in 87 percent interest in the 

-41- 

Cerro Verde mine in Peru consisting of two open 
pits, an oxide leach system with an SXIEW plant 
producing copper cathodes; (vi) a 51 percent interest 
in the El Abra mine in northern Chile consisting of 
an open-pit mine, crushing facility, on/off leach pads 
and an SXIEW plant producing copper cathodes; 
(vii) the Henderson mine near Empire, Colorado, 
consisting of an underground block caving mine, a 
conveying system and a concentrator that produces 
molybdenum disulfide concentrates; (viii) the Climax 
molybdenum mine in Colorado consisting of under- 
ground and open-pit mine and concentrator which 
are on standby; (ix) conversion facilities in the 
United States and Europe that use molybdenum 
roasters and chemical conversion plants to convert 
molybdenum concentrates into such products and 
technical grade molybdic oxide, ferromolybdenum, 
pure molybdic oxide, ammonium molybdates, and 
molysulfide powder; and ( Y )  other mining-related 
facilities. 

In September of 1999, the Company an- 
nounced plans to reduce production costs of copper 
at its Morenci, AriLona mine by converting all 
production to a mine-for-leach process through ex- 
pansion of SX/EW facilities. Thc $220 million 
conversion was completed in early 2001 and will 
allow the Morenci mine to sus t in  copper production 
rates consistent with its current annual rate. Cost 
reductions are achieved bq eliminating the process 
steps of concentrating. smelting and refining in 
producing copper. The conversion included expansion 
of the mine’s current crushing and conveying system, 
installation of mobile stackers that disperse crushed 
ore on leach stockpiles. expansion of existing solution 
extraction facilities and construction of a new elec- 
trowinning tankhouse. 

On June 30, 1999. Phelps Dodge announced 
a plan to reduce costs and improve operating 
performance by curtailing higher cost copper produc- 
tion by temporarily closing our Hidalgo smelter in 
New Mexico and the smaller of two concentrators at 
our Morenci mining operations in Arizona, as well as 
curtailing production bq 50 percent at our copper 
refinery in El Paso. Texas. I n  the fourth quarter of 
1999, as a result of the successful acquisition of 
Cyprus Amax and the conversion of Morenci to a 
mine-for-leach operation. the Hidalgo smelter and 
the Metcalf concentrator at Morenci were written 
down. The Hidalgo smelter is expected to be 
reconfigured to allow i t  to continue to be a reliable 
source of culfuric acid. 

The Henderson mol! bdenum mine com- 
pleted :I major project i n  wrI! October 1999 to 
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replace a 20-year old underground and surface rail 
transportation system with a modern conveyor and 
underground primary crusher. In addition, it began 
development of a new production level using more 
efficient high-lift caving methods. As a result, P D  
Mining’s 1999 operating results included the impact 
of the start-up costs at Henderson. The new crushing 
and conveying system was operating at full capacity 
in early 2000. 

On October 21, 1998, we announced that we 
would curtail production at Chino. The production 
curtailment occurred in phases between October 3 1, 
1998, and the first quarter of 1999. The curtailment 
reduced copper production by 35,000 tons annually. 
In addition, we announced the immediate, indefinite 
suspension of operations at our Ojos del Salado mine. 
This shutdown reduced copper production by more 
than 20,000 tons annually. Ojos del Salado remains 
on care-and-maintenance status at March 6, 2001. 

On February 3, 1998, we acquired Cobre. 
The primary assets of Cobre include an open-pit 
copper mine, two underground copper mines, two 
mills, and the surrounding 11,000 acres of land, 
including mineral rights, located in southwestern 
New Mexico adjacent to our  Chino operations. On 
October 21, 1998, we indetinitely suspended under- 
ground mining at Cobre due to low copper prices. On 
March 17, 1999, the rcmaining operations were 
suspended, reducing coppcr production by 35,000 
tons per year. All Cobrc operations remained on 
care-and-maintenance status at March 6, 2001. 

We have additional sources of coppcr that 
could be placed in  production should market circum- 
stances warrant. However, permitting and significant 
capital expenditures would be required to develop 
such additional production capacity. 

The 2000 exploration program continued to 
place emphasis on the search for and delineation of 
large scale copper, gold and other base metal 
deposits. Phelps Dodge expended $39.7 million on 
worldwide exploration during 2000, compared with 
$41.0 million in 1999 and $42.0 million in 1998. 
Approximately 23 percent of the 2000 expenditures 
occurred in the United States with 17 percent being 
spent at our mine sites. This compares with 25 per- 
cent in 1999 (19 percent at mine sites) and 
26 percent in 1998 (19 percent at  mine sites). The 
balance of exploration expenditures was spent princi- 
pally in Australasia, B r a d  Chile, Mexico, Canada 
and Peru. 

During 2000. exploration efforts continued at 
our existing copper operations. A major drill program 

to delineate mineralized material for the first phase 
of mining \\as in progress in the Garfield area at 
Morenci. Exploration programs were initiated at 
Candelaria. El Abra, Cerro Verde, Sierrita and 
Miami. In addition, exploration for additional leach 
material also continued at Tyrone. 

Environmental permitting is in progress to 
advance development of the Dos Pobres and San 
Juan mineral deposits in the Safford District of 
eastern Arizona. The two deposits contain a total of 
630 million tons of leach material at an estimated 
grade of 0.32 percent copper. Additionally, the Dos 
Pobres deposit contains 330 million tons of primary 
sulfide material at an estimated grade of 0.65 percent 
copper. 

Internationally, Mineragso Serra do Sossego 
S.A., a 50/50 joint venture with Companhia Vale do 
Rio Doce (CVRD) located in Brazil, completed a 
prefeasibility study early in 2000. A final feasibility 
study to further define the quantity of mineralized 
material and economics of a potential copper/gold 
project is scheduled for completion in the second 
quarter of 200 I .  

Work continues on resource development 
and met:illurgical review to support a feasibility study 
on our 70 percent owned Piedras Verdes property in 
Sonora. Mexico. Strategic options for this project are 
being evaluated. The results of a prefeasibility study 
indicate leachable mineralized material of 290 mil- 
lion tons at 0.33 pcrcent copper. 

I n  2000, economic evaluation and environ- 
mental remediation continued on our Ambatovy 
nickel/cobalt deposit in central Madagascar. Miner- 
alized material of 210 million tons at an estimated 
grade of 1.1 percent nickel and 0.1 percent cobalt 
was previously identified in a feasibility study. The 
project is on hold pending resolution of certain 
regulatory and permitting issues. 

Work continued on the Kansanshi project in 
Zambia and a prefeasibility study was completed. 
Results were being evaluated at year-end to deter- 
mine how to proceed with the project. The 
prefeasibility results indicate 298 million tons of 
mineralized material at a grade of 1.28 percent 
copper. 

PD Mining - Other Matters 

In 1997, issues of dispute arose between 
Phelps Dodge and the San Carlos Apache Tribe 
regarding our use and occupancy of the Black River 
Pump Station which delivers water to the Morenci 
operation. On May 12, 1997. the Tribe tiled suit 
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against us in San Carlos Apache Court, seeking our 
eviction from the Tribe’s Reserv‘ition and claiming 
substantial compensatory and punitive damages, 
among other relief. In May 1997. we reached an 
agreement with the Tribe. and subsequently federal 
legislation (Pub. L. No. 105-18, 5003, 111 stat. 158, 
181-87) was adopted which mandated dismissal of 
the tribal court suit. The legislation prescribes 
arrangements intended to ensure a future supply of 
water for the Morenci mining complex in exchange 
for certain payments by us. The legislation does not 
address any potential claims by the Tribe relating to 
our historical occupancy and operation of our facili- 
ties on the Tribe’s Reservation, but does require that 
any such claims be brought, if at all, exclusively in 
federal district court. By order dated October 13, 
1997, the tribal court dismissed the lawsuit with 
prejudice, as contemplated by the legislation. 

pany and the Tribe enter a lease for the delivery of 
Central Arizona Project water through the Black 
River Pump Station to Morenci on or before 
December 3 I ,  1998. In  the event a lease was not 
signed, the legislation expressly provided that the 
legislation would become the lease. The legislation 
included the principal terms for tha t  eventuality. To  
date, we have not entered into a lease with the Tribe, 
but are relying on our rights under thc legi4ation and 
are prepared to enforce those rights i f  neccssary. We 
are cooperating with the United States, which 
opcratcs the pump st‘ition, to reach an Ligrceincnt 
with thc Tribe on the lease issue. 

The 1997 legislation required that the Com- 

RESULT‘S OF PHELPS DODGE INDIJSI’RIES 

P D I nd u 5 tries, ou r in a n  u fact u ring division , 
produces engineered products principally for the 
global energy, telecommunications, transportation and 
specialty chemicals sectors. Its operations are charac- 
teriLed by products with significant market share. 
internationally competitive cost and quality, and 
specialized engineering capabilities. The manufactur- 
ing division includes our specialty chemicals segment, 
our wire and cable segment and, until they were sold 
in 1998. our wheel and rim operations (Accuride 
Corporation). Our specialty chemicals segment in-  
cludes Colunibian Chemicals Company and its sub- 
sidiaries. Our wire and cable segment consists of 
three world\\ide product line businesses including 
magnet wire, energy and teleconiniiinicution cables. 
and specialty conductors. I n  December 2000, Phelps 

Dodge announced its intention to explore strategic 
alternatives for, including the potential sale of, PD 
Industries. 

(S  in millions) 

Sales and other operating revenues 

2000 1999 1998 --- 

(unaffiliated customers): 
Specialty chemicals..  . . . . . . . . . .  4 598.4 543.0 454.6 
Wire and cable.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  853.0 784.8 931.1 

S1,451.4 1,327.8 1,385.7 
--- 
--- --- 

Operating income (loss): 
Specialty chemicals . . . . . . . . . . . .  S 88.1 92.5 87.6 
Wire and cable * . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (17.8) (42.8) 67.3 

- 198.7 Other ** 
9 70.3 49.7 353.6 

- . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  --- 
--- --- 

* 2000 includes a pre-tax charge of S41 .O million related to 
the Company’s June 27. 2000, restructuring plan, $5.6 
million for related working capital writedowns; and $5.0 
million related to the Company’s June 30, 1999, restructur- 
ing plan (see discussion of 1999 and 1998 operating income 
on page 45). 

Other includes Accuride uhich was sold in 1998, resulting 
in ;I total pre-tax gain of S198.7 million. (See Note 3 to 
thc consolidated financial statements for a further discus- 
sion of this sale.) 

** 

PD Industries reported sales of $1,451.4 
million in 2000, compared with $1,327.8 million in 
1999. The increase principally reflected higher aver- 
age sales prices in  the carbon black segment as a 
result o f the  partial pass through to customers of 
higher feedstock costs. partially offset by lower sales 
volumes. The increase also reflected improved wire 
and cable segment sales as ;1 result of a higher level 
of infrastructure development worldwide. 

PD Industries - Operating Income 

( S  in millions) 
2000 1999 1998 --- 

Operating income before non-recurring 
items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $121.9 119.7 157.2 

Pre-tax. non-recurring items . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (51.6) (70.0) 196.4 --- 
Operating income after non-recurring 

items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 70.3 49.7 353.6 --- --- 

Our PD Industries division reported operat- 
ing income of $ I 2  I .9 million in 2000 before non- 



recurring, pre-tax charges of $5 I .6 million. The non- 
recurring charges in operating income are as follows: 

($  i n  millions) 

June 30, 1999, restructuring plan. .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Fixed asset and goodwill impairments. . . . . . .  30.7 
Plant dismantling . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2.6 
Employee severance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2.2 
Working capital write downs . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5.6 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5 .5  Other. 

$5  1.6 

$ 5.0 

June 27, 2000, restructuring plan 

- 
- - 

Our P D  Industries division reported operat- 
ing income of $1 19.7 million in 1999 before non- 
recurring, pre-tax charges of $70.0 million. The non- 
recurring charges were as follows: $1 1.9 million of 
asset impairments to write down the value of our 
wire and cable segment’s telecommunications assets 
in the fourth quarter and $58.1 million for the 
June 30, 1999, restructuring plan at both the wire 
and cable and specialty chemicals segments. In 
addition to the non-recurring items in operating 
expense, asset impairment charges of $6.7 million 
and $3.1 million were recorded in non-operating 
expense for the impairment of an equity basis 
investment in China as well as the telecommunica- 
tions assets of an equity basis investment in the 
Philippines, respectively ( $ I  .9 million was recorded 
as non-operating expense reluted to June 30, 1999, 
restructuring plan). (See Note 3 to the consolidated 
financial statements for further discussion of these 
non-recurring items.) 

PD Industries reported operating income of 
$157.2 million in 1998, before the effect of a $198.7 
million pre-tax gain from the sale of Accuride and 
$2.3 million of non-recurring, pre-tax charges prima- 
rily for an early retirement program at PD Magnet 
Wire. 

In 2000, operations outside the United States 
provided 63 percent of PD Industries’ sales, com- 
pared with 55 percent in 1999 and 53 percent in 
1998. During the year, operations outside the United 
States contributed 48 percent of PD Industries’ 
operating income, compared with 59 percent in 1999 
and 54 percent in 1998. 

-44- 

Specialty Chemicals - Operating Income 

($  in nlillions) 
1000 1999 1998 - -- 

Operating income before non-recurring 
items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  s88.1 110.2 87.6 

Pre-tau. non-recurring items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - (17.7) - --- 
Operating income after non-recurring items . . SS8.1 92.5 87.6 ==- - 

Columbian Chemical’s 2000 operating in- 
come decreased primarily due to the effect of higher 
oil prices on feedstock costs with only limited success 
in passing along these higher costs to customers, and 
the unfavorable impact of weaker European 
currencies. 

Columbian Chemical’s 1999 operating in- 
come before non-recurring items was $22.6 million 
more than in 1998, principally as a result of 
increased carbon black sales volumes attributable to 
the October 1998 acquisition of Copebras S.A., a 
Brazilian carbon black manufacturing business, and 
the January 1999 acquisition of a n  85 percent 
interest in the Korean carbon black business of 
Korea Kumho Petrochemical Co.. Ltd. 

I n  the second quarter of 2000, we acquired 
the remaining 40 percent share in  the carbon black 
manufacturing business of Columbian Tismi Carbon 
Ltd. in Hungary for $19.0 million, bringing our  total 
interest to 100 percent. 

Production was discontinued at the Bataan, 
Philippines, facility in November 1999, resulting in a 
pre-tax, non-recurring charge to operating income of 
$17.7 million. The Philippine plant, which had a 
relatively small production capacity of 18,000 metric 
tons, did not have economies of scale necessary to 
compete profitably with imports from larger regional 
producers. Columbian Chemicals has opened a distri- 
bution company, Philippine Carbon Black Distribu- 
tion Company, Inc., that will market and distribute 
carbon blacks, principally from Columbian Chemi- 
cals Korea. in the Philippines. 

In January 1999, we acquired an 85 percent 
interest in the Korean carbon black manufacturing 
business of Korea Kumho Petrochemical Co.. Ltd., 
for $76.1 million. Columbian manages and operates 
the business, including the 1 10,000 metric-ton-per- 
year manufacturing plant located in Yosu, South 
Korea. 

I n  October 1998, we acquired Copebras 
S.A., :I subsidiary of Minorco, for $210 niillion. This 



manufacturing facility has an annual production 
capacity of 170,000 metric tons of carbon black. 

Wire and Cable - Operating Income 
~ ~ 

($ in millions) 

Operating income before non-recurring 
items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 33.8 9.5 69.6 

Pre-tax, non-recurring items . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (51.6) (52.3) (2.3) 

Operating income (loss) after non-recurring 

2000 1999 1998 --- 

--- 

items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $(17.8) (42.8) 67.3 --- --- 

Our wire and cable segment reported operat- 
ing income of $33.8 million in 2000 before non- 
recurring, pre-tax charges. The pre-tax, non-recurring 
charges were as follows: $36.1 million due to plant 
closures in Venezuela, Austria and El Salvador, $9.9 
million for the June 30, 1999, and June 27, 2000, 
restructuring plans, and $5.6 million for working 
capital writedowns. The increase in operating income 
was primarily due to economic improvement in Asia 
and South America and the realization of benefits 
from the previously announced restructuring plans. 

In  January 2001, Alcoa Aluminio, S.A. 
exercised a put option that required Phelps Dodge or 
a designee company to acquire the 40 percent 
minority intercst in  Phelps Dodge and Alcoa Fios e 
Cabos Electricos, SA. ,  a Phelps Dodge wire and 
cable facility in  Brazil. The transaction is scheduled 
to close in March 2001. The indicated option price is 
$48 million, however, the Company is in discussions 
with the optionor regarding a final settlement price. 

Our wire and cable segment reported operat- 
ing income of $9.5 million in 1999 before non- 
recurring, pre-tax charges. The pre-tax, non-recurring 
items were as follows: $11.9 million of asset impair- 
ments to write down our international telecommuni- 
cations assets and $40.4 million for the June 30, 
1999, restructuring plan. In addition to the non- 
recurring items in operating income, the wire and 
cable segment incurred the following charges in non- 
operating expense: asset impairment charges of $6.7 
million and $3.1 million for the impairment of an 
equity basis investment in China as well as the 
telecommunications assets of an equity basis invest- 
ment in the Philippines, respectively, and $1.9 
million related to the June 30, 1999, restructuring 
plan. (See Note 3 to the consolidated financial 
statements for further discussion of these non- 
recurring items.) 
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The wire and cable segment’s 1999 operating 
income was $60.1 million less than 1998 before the 
effect of non-recurring items, primarily as a result of 
economic difficulties that plagued most of Latin 
America and Asia. The downturn in Latin America 
began with the Brazilian currency crisis in early 
1999. This factor, along with political and economic 
instability in the Andean region, significantly im- 
pacted results at our Latin American operations 
where operating income decreased by $46 million. In 
Asia, economic problems continued to hamper the 
performance of our wire and cable operations where 
operating income decreased by $3 million from 
already depressed levels. 

Operating income in 1998 was $69.6 million 
before $2.3 million of non-recurring, pre-tax charges 
for an early retirement program. 

In the 1998 fourth quarter, we restructured 
our magnet wire facilities in Hopkinsville, Kentucky, 
and Fort Wayne, Indiana, reducing jobs to cut costs 
and improve our competitive position. This resulted 
in a non-recurring charge of $2.3 million principally 
reflecting provisions for early retirements. 

On July 15, 1998. we purchased Eldra 
Elektrodaht-Erzeugung GmbH’s 49 percent interest 
in Phelps Dodge Eldra GmbH resulting in the 
operation becoming our wholly owned subsidiary 
under the name of Phelps Dodge Magnet Wire 
(Austria) GmbtI.  The production capacity of the 
facility is 11,000 metric tons of magnet wire 
annually. 

and Sumitorno Electric Industries, Ltd., dissolved 
joint-venture partnerships at five wire and cable 
manufacturing and support companies. The dissolu- 
tion was achieved through the exchange of cash and 
ownership shares in the companies. The transaction 
resulted in a non-operating, pre-tax gain of $10.3 
million. 

In  June 1998, our wire and cable segment 

In March 1998. we began commercial pro- 
duction at Phelps Dodge Magnet Wire de Mexico, 
S A .  de C.V., a $42 million magnet wire manufactur- 
ing plant in Monterrey. Mexico. The new facility 
uses state-of-the-art technology and currently has 
installed capacity of 27,800 metric tons out of a 
planned capacity of 38.000 metric tons of magnet 
wire. 
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OTHER MATTERS RELATING TO THE 
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED 
OPERATIONS 

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization 
Expense 

Depreciation, depletion and amortization ex- 
pense was $464.2 million in 2000, compared with 
$329.1 million in 1999 and $293.3 million in 1998. 
The 2000 and 1999 increases primarily resulted from 
the October 1999 acquisition of Cyprus Amax 
($159.6 million and $52 million, respectively), par- 
tially offset by decreases in production at certain 
U.S. and international mines, as well as plant 
shutdowns and closures. (Please refer to Note 1 to 
the consolidated financial statements for a discussion 
of depreciation methods.) 

Selling and General Administrative Expense 

Selling and general administrative expense 
was $135.1 million in 2000, compared with $115.5 
million in 1999 and $102.0 million in 1998. The 2000 
increase primarily resulted from higher costs to 
support acquired entities and an increase in molybde- 
num selling expenses, partially ofTset by the elimina- 
tion of duplicate Cyprus sales company expenses. 
The 1999 increase primarily resulted from the 
acquisition of Cyprus Amax, which had $14.6 million 
in selling and general administrative expenses from 
October 16 through December 31. The results for the 
three-year period reflects the reclassification of $26. I 
million and $20.9 million for I999 and 1998, 
respectively, of operation support costs from selling 
and general administrative expenses to cost of prod- 
ucts sold to conform to the current year presentation. 

Exploration and Research Expense 

Exploration and research and development 
expense was $56.8 million in 2000, compared with 
$52.2 million in 1999 and $55.0 million in 1998. The 
2000 increase resulted from a more fully staffed 
research and development department and higher 
spending at Phelps Dodge's U.S. and international 
sites ($7.4 million), partially offset by decreased 
spending on former Cyprus projects. The 1999 
decrease resulted from continuing cutbacks in explo- 
ration programs in view of current market conditions, 
partially oKset by the addition of Cyprus Amax's 
exploration spending of $4.9 million from October 16 
through December 3 1. 

Interest Expense 

We reported net interest expense in 2000 of 
$213.3 million, compared with $120.2 million in 1999 
and $94.5 million in 1998. Net  interest expense 
increased in 2000 primarily due to a full year of 
interest expense on acquired Cyprus Amax debt. Net 
interest expense increased in 1999 primarily due to 
the inclusion of $24.5 million of interest expense on 
Cyprus Amax acquired debt. The debt acquired with 
the purchase of Cyprus Amax totaled $1.6 billion, 
which was reduced by $15.2 million to reflect the fair 
value of the obligations at the acquisition date. 
Interest paid by the Company in 2000 was $200.6 
million, compared with $121.0 million in 1999. 

Miscellaneous Income and Expense, Net 

Miscellaneous income and expense, net for 
the years ended December 31 comprised the 
following: 

(S in millions) 
- -  2000 1999 

Interest income. ,  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $19.5 17.9 
Wire and cable segnient asset 

impairments*. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (7.2) ( 1  1.6) 
Asiirco merger termination (net of related 

expenses), . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 14.0 
Loss on sale of Black Mountain . 
Dissolution of Sumitomo joint venture**. . - - 
Southern Peru Coppcr Corporation 

dividend (14.0% minority interest) . . . . .  3.8 1.7 
lntcrcst on IKS refund.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5.X - 
Gain on sale of Australian iron ore 

Willow Creek insurance scttlcmcnt . . . . . .  4.5 - 

O t h e r . ,  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.4 0.1 

$30.0 Y.1 

. .  

- - . .  

royalties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4.7 - 

Foreign currency exchange loss. . . . . . . . . .  (1.5) ( 13.0) 

- _ _  

- -  - -  

1998 

23.5 
- 

- 

- 
(27.0) 

10.3 

5.7 
- 

- 
- 

(5.7) 
2.0 

8.8 
- 
- - 

* Asset impairment of equity basis investment in PD 
Philippines ($7.2 million) during 2000. and Cobre 
Colada ($1.8 million), PD Philippines ($3.1 million) and 
PD Yantai ($6.7 million) during 1999. 

Dissolution of joint ventures between Phelps Dodge and 
Sumi-tomo Electric Industries, Ltd., at five wire and 
cable manufacturing and support companies. 

** 

Provision for Taxes on Income 

The etyective tax rate changed from 
40.0 percent in 1998 to 39.0 percent in 1999 to 
35.8 percent in 2000. The decrease in 2000 was 
primarily due to a signifcant increase in the U.S. tax 
benefit from percentage depletion which was substan- 



tially oKset by valuation allowances against U S .  and 
foreign net operating losses. 

In  December of 1999, we received and 
accepted Notices of Tax Due for the years 1992 and 
1993. The Internal Revenue Service audit of the year 
1994 (also settled in 1999) resulted in a refund. 
Issues settled in the years 1992 through 1994 also 
impacted the years 1990 and 1991 and enabled us to 
enter a closing agreement with the Internal Revenue 
Service for the years 1990 and 1991. As a result of 
these settlements, we have recorded a $30 million 
reduction in our tax provision in 1999 and a 
$6 million reduction in 2000. 

During the year 2000, we reached agreement 
with the Internal Revenue Service for the Cyprus 
Amax tax years 1994 through 1996 and paid the final 
assessments applicable to those years. We have also 
reached agreement with the Internal Revenue Ser- 
vice for the Phelps Dodge Corporation tax years 
1995 through 1997 and received an assessment 
during February 2001. Our management believes that 
it has made adequate provision so that the subse- 
quent application of the issues involved will not have 
a n  adverse effect on our consolidated tinancial 
condition or results of operations. 

The Internal Revenue Service has recently 
commenced its audit or Phelps Dodge Corporation 
for the years 1998 and 1999 as well as Cyprus Amax 
for the years I997 through 199'9. No issues have 
been raised with respect to the current audit. 

Discount Rate - Pensions and Other 
Postretirement Benelits 

Under current financial accounting standards, 
any significant year-to-year movement in the rate of 
interest on long-term, high-quality corporate bonds 
necessitates a change in the discount rate used to 
calculate the actuarial present value of our accumu- 
lated pension and other postretirement benefit obliga- 
tions. The discount rate was 7.75 percent at 
December 3 I ,  2000 and 1999, compared with 
6.75 percent at December 31, 1998. (For a further 
discussion of pension and other postretirement bene- 
fits, see Notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial 
statements.) 

CHANGES IN FINANCIAL CONDITION; 
CAPITALIZATION 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 
2000 were $250.0 million. compared w i t h  $234.2 
million at the beginning of the year. Operliting 

activities provided $51 1.2 million of cash during the 
year. Cash provided by operating activities together 
with proceeds from asset dispositions of $152.6 
million were used to fund capital outlays ($397.2 
million), investments in subsidiaries ($25.1 million), 
net payments on debt ($63.7 million) and dividend 
payments on common shares ($157.5 million). 

($ in millions) 

Cash provided by (used in): 
Operating activities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investing activities: 
Cyprus Amax acquisition. . . . . . . . .  
Capital expenditures and 

investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accuride divestiture . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from Kinross sale . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from Cyprus Australia 

Coal sale . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other investing activities . . . . . . . . .  

Financing '1.t' c ivlties ' ' . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net increase in cash and cash 
equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2000 1999 1998 --- 

S 511.2 204.5 378.4 

- 35.7 - 

(422.3) (240.4) (668.3) 
- - 449.5 
- 233.3 - 

150.0 - - 
(1.9) (22.6) 34.8 

(221.2) (198.0) (130.6) --- 

$ 15.8 12.5 63.8 --- --- 

Working Capital 

During 2000, net working capital (excluding 
cash and cash equivalents and debt) decreased by 
$59.0 million. This net decrease resulted principally 
from: 

a $46.8 million decrease in  inventories 
primarily due to the planned reduction 
of molybdenum inventories throughout 
2000 and a $7.4 million lower-of-cost- 
or-market adjustment to molybdenum 
inventories at December 3 I ,  2000; 
a $135.7 million decrease in other cur- 
rent assets and prepaid expenses prima- 
rily due to the sale in March 2000 of 
Cyprus Australia Coal Company (in 
which our investment was classified as a 
current asset at December 31, 1999, due 
to its planned sale); and 
a decrease in accounts payable and 
other accrued expenses of $ I  16.7 mil- 
lion, due to a reduction of the current 
portion of environmental reserves, ac- 
crued interest and smelting and refining 
accruals. 

0 

Investing Activities 

The $1,858 million purchase price for the 
I999 acquisition of Cyprus Amax comprised $ I .  I25 
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million for the issuance of 20.6 million shares of 
Phelps Dodge common stock, $10 million for the 
conversion of Cyprus Amax stock options, cash of 
$693 million and acquisition costs of $30 million 
(financial advisory, legal, accounting and printing 
costs). In addition, $1.6 billion of Cyprus Amax debt 
was assumed by the Company. 

Capital expenditures and investments in 1999 
were $120.5 million for PD Mining and $149.5 
million for PD Industries (including $76.1 million for 
the acquisition of an 85 percent interest in a Korean 
carbon black manufacturing business). 

Capital expenditures and investments were 
$31 1.6 million in 2000 for PD Mining and $90.6 
million for PD Industries (including $19.0 million for 

the company’s carbon black manufacturing facility in 
Hungary) and $20.1 million for other corporate- 
related activities. 

P n f  

Capital expenditures and investments for 
2001 are expected to be approximately $275 million 
for PD Mining, approximately $1 10 million for 
PD Industries and approximately $35 million for 
Corporate and other. These capital expenditures and 
investments are expected to be funded primarily from 
operating cash flow and cash reserves. 

Financing Activities and Liquidity 

The Company’s total debt at December 3 I ,  
2000, was $2,687.7 million, compared with $2,755.0 
million at year-end 1999. Debt decreases associated 
with principal payments primarily at our international 
mining projects were mostly offset by increases in the 
Company’s commercial paper program. The Com- 
pany’s ratio of debt to total capitalization was 
45.7 percent at December 31, 2000, compared with 
45.0 percent at December 31, 1999. 

A new revolving credit agreement between 
the Company and several lenders became effective 
on May 10, 2000. The facility is to be used for 
general corporate purposes, primarily as a commer- 
cial paper backstop. The agreement permits borrow- 
ings of up to $1 billion from time to time until its 
scheduled maturity on May 10, 2005. The agreement 
allows for one-year extensions of the maturity date 
under certain conditions subject to the approval of 
lenders holding at least a majority of the commit- 
ments. In the event of such approval, total commit- 
ments under the agreement may total less than $ I  
billion depending upon the willingness of the approv- 
ing and other lenders to assume the commitments of 
those lenders electing not to participate in the 

renewal. Under the agreement, interest is payable at 
a variable rate based on the agent bank’s prime rate 
or at a fixed rate, based on the LIBOR or at fixed 
rates offered independently by the several lenders, for 
maturities of up to 360 days. This agreement 
provides for a facility fee (currently 17.5 basis points 
(0.175 percent)) ranging from 9 basis points to 
35 basis points (depending on our public debt rating) 
on total commitments. The agreement requires us to 
maintain a minimum consolidated tangible net worth 
of $1.5 billion and limits indebtedness to 60 percent 
of total consolidated capitalization. This agreement 
replaced an earlier $1 billion revolving credit agree- 
ment, which was amended and restated on June 25, 
1997 and which was scheduled to mature on 
June 25, 2002. There were no borrowings under the 
new agreement at December 31. 2000. or the earlier 
agreement at December 3 1, 1999. 

On January 18, 2001, the Company’s univer- 
sal shelf registration statement filed with the SEC in 
August 2000 became effective. Under the registration 
statement, up to $750 million of debt and equity 
securities may be sold from time to time in one or 
more offerings on terms and conditions to be 
determined in light of the circumstances. Authorized 
securities include common and preferred equity, 
senior debt and junior subordinated debt, share 
purchase contracts, share purchase units, and war- 
rants. The registration statement also provides for the 
issuance of trust preferred securities guaranteed by 
the Company. This new shelf registration will replace 
the Company’s existing $500 million senior-debt-only 
shelf registration, which was filed in 1997. Under the 
1997 shelf registration, $250 million in senior debt 
securities was issued in 1997. Upon effectiveness of 
the new shelf filing, the unused debt capacity of the 
1997 shelf registration was eliminated by deregistra- 
tion. The Company expects, at appropriate times and 
as circumstances warrant, to use proceeds from any 
new shelf offerings to reduce and/or restructure its 
existing debt portfolio and to better coordinate debt 
maturities with potential growth opportunities. 

We established a commercial paper program 
on August 15, 1997, under a private placement 
agency agreement with two placement agents. The 
agreement permits us to issue up to $1 billion of 
short-term promissory notes (generally known as 
commercial paper) at any time. Commercial paper 
may bear interest or be sold at a discount, as 
mutually agreed by the placement agents and us at 
the time of each issuance. Our commercial paper 
program requires that issuances of commercial paper 
be supported bq an undrawn line of credit; the 
revolving credit agreement described above provides 
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such support. Borrowings under this commercial 
paper program were $467.9 million at December 31, 
2000, and $349.4 million at December 31, 1999. 

Short-term borrowings, excluding borrowings 
under our Corporate commercial paper program, 
were $50.3 million, all by our international opera- 
tions, at December 31, 2000, compared with $101.8 
million at December 3 1, 1999. The decrease was 
primarily due to repayments of outstanding debt by 
our wholly owned subsidiaries, PD Venezuela, Co- 
lumbian Chemicals Brazil, Canada and Philippines 
($72.0) million, partially offset by acquired short- 
term debt of $18.9 million. 

The current portion of our long-term debt, 
scheduled for payment in 2001, is $206.5 million 
inciuding $8.5 m ~ i o n  Lor P 
turing operations, $97.7 million primarily for our 
international mining operations and $100.3 million 
for Corporate debt repayments. 

Dividend payments on our common shares 
increased from $124.3 million in 1999 to $157.5 
million in 2000, reflecting the increased number of 
common shares outstanding due to our fourth quarter 
1999 issuance of 20.6 million shares as part of the 
Cyprus Amax acquisition. The dividend was $2.00 
per common share in 2000 and 1999. 

of Cyprus Amax, Cyprus Amax called for redeeming 
all  4,664,302 of its Series A Convertible Preferred 
shares. Prior to the redemption date, a total of 
3,968,801 shares were redeemed for cash and the 
remainder was converted to Cyprus Amax common 
shares, which were subsequently exchanged for 0.5 
million shares of Phelps Dodge common stock as 
part of the acquisition. The cash required for the 
redemption totaled $208.3 million including accumu- 
lated dividends. 

During 1998, we purchased a total of 

. .  

I n  1999, in  connection with the acquisition 

731,500 shares at a total cost of $35.4 million under 
a 1997 share purchase authorization. There were no 
shares purchased during 1999 and 2000 with respect 
to this program. There were 78.7 million common 
shares outstanding on December 31, 2000. (We may 
make purchases in the open market as circumstances 
warrant, and may also consider purchasing shares in 
privately negotiated transactions.) 

E nvi ron men t a1 Mat t e rs 

Phelps Dodge is subject to various federal, 
state and local environmental laws and regulations 
that govern emissions of air pollutants: discharges of 
wit te r pol 111 [;in t s: ;i nd the ni ;I n 11 flic t u re. storage, h an - 

dling and disposal of hazardous substances, hazard- 
ous wastes and other toxic materials. The Company 
is also subject to potential liabilities arising under the 
CERCLA and similar state laws that impose respon- 
sibility on persons who arranged for the disposal of 
hazardous substances. and on current and previous 
owners and operators of a facility for the cleanup of 
hazardous substances released from the facility into 
the environment. In  addition, the Company is subject 
to potential liabilities under the RCRA and analo- 
gous state laws that require responsible parties 
remediate releases of hazardous or solid waste 
constituents into the environment associated with 
past or present activities. 

Phelps Dodge or its subsidiaries have been 
PA, t A c-'&y Cn,,Q cp,,,L.P 

and several state agencies that they may be liable 
under the Comprehensive Environmental Response 
Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) or 
similar state laws and regulations for costs of 
responding to environmental conditions at a number 
of sites that have been or are being investigated by 
EPA, the Forest Service or states to establish 
whether releases of hatardou:, substances have oc- 
curred and, if so, to develop and implement remedial 
actions. 

Phelps Dodge has provided reserves for 
potential environmental obligations that management 
considers probable and for n hich reasonable esti- 
mates of such obligations can be made. For closed 
facilities and closed portions of operating facilities 
with closure obligations, an environmental liability is 
considered probable and is accrued when a closure 
determination is made and approved by management. 
Environmental liabilities attributed to CERCLA or 
analogous state programs are considered probable 
when a claim is asserted, or is probable of assertion, 
and we have been associated with the site. Other 
environmental remediation liabilities are considered 
probable based upon specific facts and circumstances. 
Liability estimates are based on an evaluation of, 
among other factors, currently available facts, ex- 
isting technology, presently enacted laws and regula- 
tions, Phelps Dodge's experience in remediation, 
other companies' remediation experience, Phelps 
Dodge's status as a potentially responsible party 
(PRP) ,  and the ability of other PRPs to pay their 
allocated portions. Accordingly, total environmental 
reserves of $307.1 million and $336. I million, respec- 
tively, were recorded as of December 3 I ,  2000 and 
1999. The long-term portion of thew reserves is 
included in  other liabilities m d  deferred credih on 
the consolidated balance \beet m d  Limounlcd to 
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$244.9 million and $254.4 million at  December 3 1, 
2000 and 1999, respectively. 

The sites for which Phelps Dodge has 
received a notice of potential liability or an informa- 
tion request that are currently considered to be the 
most significant are the Pinal Creek site in Miami, 
Arizona, and the former American Zinc and Chemi- 
cal site in Langeloth, Pennsylvania. 

At the Pinal Creek site, remediation is being 
performed by the Pinal Creek Group, which includes 
Phelps Dodge Miami Inc. and other companies that 
have been determined to have contributed through 
historic mining activities to the contaminated ground- 
water plume in the shallow alluvial aquifers of Pinal 
Creek. The remediation work is being conducted in 
accora lance with the requirements of the Ari zona 
Department of Environmental Quality’s Water Qual- 
ity Assurance Revolving Fund program. In addition, 
the remedial action is consistent with the National 
Contingency Plan prepared by EPA as required by 
CERCLA. Ongoing remediation efforts have resulted 
in continued improvement of the water quality in the 
area. I n  November 1997, the Pinal Creek Group 
joined with the State of Arizona in seeking approval 
of the District Court for the entry of a Consent 
Decree resolving all matters related to a n  enforce- 
ment action contemplated by the Statc of Arizona 
with respect to the groundwater matter. On Au- 
gust 13, 1998, the court approved the Decree that 
commits the Pinal Crcck Group to coinplctc the 
remedintion work outlincd in the remedial action 
plan that was submitted to the State in  May 1997. 
I’hclps Dodge Miami Inc. has commenced contribu- 
tion litigation against other parties involved in  this 
m:itter m d  has asserted clnims against certain of its 
past insurance carriers. While significnn t recoverics 
arc expected, the Company cannot reasonably esti- 
mate the amount and, therefore, has not taken 
potential recoveries into consideration in the recorded 
reserve. Phelps Dodge Miami Inc.’s share of the 
planned remediation work has a cost range for 
reasonably expected outcomes estimated to be from 
$ I29 million to $235 million, and, as  no point within 
the range is more likely than any other, the lower 
end of the range has been reserved as required by 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

In  June 1999, Cyprus Amax received an 
information request from the Pennsylvania Depart- 
ment of Environmental Protection regarding the 
former American Zinc and Chemical site in  Lan- 
geloth. Pennsylvania. The site is currently being 
investigated by the state of Pennsylvania. Studies 
initiated to determine the nature and e.\tent of 

remediation nork that may be required on the 
property indicated a cost range for reasonably ex- 
pected outcomes estimated to be from $18 million to 
$52 million. Phelps Dodge has reserved $20 million 
for the possible remediation work at the Langeloth 
site representing the most likely point nithin the 
range of estimates. 

reasonably possible outcomes for all reservable envi- 
ronmental remediation sites other than Pinal Creek 
and Langeloth was estimated to be from $146 million 
to $226 million, of which $158 million has been 
reserved. Work on these sites is expected to be 
substantially completed in the next several years, 
subject to potential delays involved in the remedia- 
tion process. 

At December 31, 2000, the cost range for 

Phelps Dodge believes certain insurance poii- 
cies partially cover the foregoing environmental 
liabilities; however, some of the insurance carriers 
have denied coverage. We are presently litigating 
these disputes. Further, Phelps Dodge believes that it 
has other potential claims for recovery from other 
third parties, including the U.S. Government and 
other PRPs, as well as liability offsets through lower 
cost reniedial solutions. Neither insurance recoveries 
nor other claims or otl’sets have been recognizcd in  
the financial statcrnents unless such offsets ;ire 
considered probable of realization. 

Phelps Dodge has a number of sites that are 
not the subject or a n  environinental reserve because 
it is not probable that a successful claim will be 
made against the Company for those sites. but for 
which there is a reasonably possible likelihood of a n  
environmental remediation liability. At December 3 1, 
2000. the cost range for reasonably possible outcomes 
for all such sites was estimated to be from $12 
million to $45 million. The liabilities arising from 
potential environmental obligations that have not 
been reserved for at this time may be material to the 
results of any single quarter or year in the future. 
Management, however, believes the liability arising 
from potential environmental obligations is not likely 
to have a material adverse elTect on the Company’s 
liquidity or financial position as such obligations 
could be satisfied over a period of many years. 

As of December 31, 1998, Phelps Dodge had 
an environmental reserve balance of $106.0 million 
for estimated future costs associated w i t h  environ- 
mental mutters at  shutdown operations or closed 
facilities nithin active operations. During 1999. net 
spending against that reserve totaled $20.0 million 
including $2.5 million ;it Cyprus AniLix brlween 
October I 6  and December 3 I .  During the second 



quarter of 1999, Phelps Dodge recorded an additional 
$8.3 million provision for estimated future costs 
associated with environmental matters directly re- 
lated to our restructuring plan announced on 
June 30, 1999. Additionally. we recorded a $28.2 
million provision in the fourth quarter of 1999 for 
estimated future costs associated with environmental 
matters. The acquisition of Cyprus Amax increased 
our reserve by $213.6 million. As of December 31, 
1999, the reserve balance was $336.1 million. 

mental reserves totaled $31.8 million and an addi- 
tional $2.8 million was assigned to the value of 
environmental liabilities assumed with the acquisition 
of Cyprus Amax. As of December 3 1, 2000, the 
environmental reserve balance associated with envi- 
ronmental matters at shutdown operations or closed 
facilities within active operations was $307.1 million. 

Our mining operations are subject to laws 
and regulations establishing new requirements for 
mined land reclamation and financial assurance. 
Colorado passed a mined land reclamation law in the 
early 1970’s establishing a Mined Land Reclamation 
Board that adopted regulations in 1977. Significant 
changes were made in 1993. Our Colorado mining 
operations have had approved mined land reclama- 
tion plans and financial assurance under these laws 
for several years. Arizona enacted its mined land 
reclamation law in 1994. Our Arizona mining opera- 
tions submitted proposed reclamation plans and 
financial assurance following the adoption of imple- 
menting rules in 1997, and most of our Arizona 
operations have approved plans and financial assur- 
ance. New Mexico passed ;I mined Innd reclamation 
law in 1993 authorizing regulations that were adopted 
in 1994. The permitting process for New Mexico 
mining operations commenced in December 1994 
and approved “closeout” plans and financial assur- 
ance for our operations in that state are due by 
December 31, 2001. In connection with the develop- 
ment of closeout plans for its largest New Mexico 
facilities, the Company has conducted a number of 
technical studies. Those studies indicate that the 
Company will need to increase the total financial 
assurance i t  provides for reclamation of its New 
Mexico properties from approximately $100 million 
to approximately $200 million. Although the Com- 
pany believes that its most recent estimates of 
reclamation costs at its New Mexico properties are 
based on a sound understanding of the applicable 
science and regulations. i t  is likely that in the public 
hearing and review process the State regulators may 
seek to impose ;I signilicantly larger financial assur- 
ance requirement. i\ctual reclamation costs may 

During 2000, net spending against environ- 
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differ significantly from the required amount of 
financial assurance based on a variety of factors 
including possible changes in legal standards over 
time and potential cost savings from use of the 
Company’s own personnel and equipment at each 
site compared to third-party contractor costs (under 
New Mexico law financial assurance requirements 
are calculated based on estimated third-party costs), 
advances in technology and reclamation techniques, 
and opportunities to prepare each site for more 
efficient reclamation through careful development of 
the site over time. 

The federal Bureau of Land Management 
adopted amended regulations governing mined land 
reclamation for mining on federal lands in January 
2001. New financial assurance requirements for 
existing operations take eEect in June 2001, dthmglr 
the new reclamation requirements take effect only for 
new mining and certain modifications to existing 
mining activities. Mined land reclamation is an 
ongoing activity and we recognize estimated reclama- 
tion costs using a units-of-production basis calcula- 
tion. These laws and regulations and the associated 
plan approval and permitting requirements will likely 
increase our regulator) obligations and compliance 
costs over time with respect to mine closure and 
reclamation. 

Other Matters 

I n  1995, legislation was introduced in both 
the U.S. House of Representatives and the 
U.S. Senate to amend the Mining Law of 1572. 
None of the bills was enacted into law. Also, mining 
law amendments were added to the 1996 budget 
reconciliation bill, which was vetoed by the Presi- 
dent. Among other things. the amcndments con- 
tained in the 1996 bill would have imposed a 5 
percent net proceeds royalty on minerals extracted 
from federal lands, required payment of fair market 
value for patenting federal lands, and required that 
patented lands used for non-mining purposes revert 
to the federal government. Several of these same 
concepts likely will continue to be pursued legisla- 
tively in the future. The Secretary of the Interior also 
ordered the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) to 
form a task force to review BLMs hardrock mining 
surface management regulations and propose revi- 
sions to expand environmental and reclamation re- 
quirements, among other things. While the effect of 
such changes on our current operations and other 
currently owned mineral resources on private lands 
would be minimal, passage of mining lau Lirnend- 
ments or revisions to the hardrock mining s u r f x e  
m:inagernent regulations could result in  additional 
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expenses in the development and operation of new 
mines on federal lands. 

FASB has issued SFAS No. 133, “Account- 
ing for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activi- 
ties,” (as amended by SFAS No. 137) and SFAS 
No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instru- 
ments and Certain Hedging Activities.” These state- 
ments require recognition of all derivatives as either 
assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and mea- 
surement of those instruments at fair value. Changes 
in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each 
period in current earnings or other comprehensive 
income (loss). Appropriate accounting for changes in 
fair value of derivatives held is dependent on whether 
the derivative transaction qualifies as an accounting 
hedge and on the classification of the hedge transac- 
tion. The statement was adopted by the Company on 
January 1,  2001 and did not materially impact our 
consolidated financial statements. 

In  the 1999 first quarter, we adopted 
S O P  98-5, “Reporting on the Costs of Start-up 
Activities.” The iniplementation resulted in a $3.5 
million after-tax charge, or 6 cents per common 
$hare, representing the write off of previously unam- 
orti/cd atart-up costs at our Candelaria mining 
operation in  Chile and our  magnet wire operation in 
Monterrey, Mexico. 

I n  December 1999, the S E C  issued Staff 
Accounting Bulletin (SAB) 101, “Revenue Recogni- 
tion in  Financial Statcments” (as amended by 
SAB IOlA and IOIB) that provides guidance on the 
recognition, presentation and disclosure of revenue in 
financial statements filed with the SEC. SAB 101 
outlincs the basic criteria tha t  must be met to 
recognire revenue and provides guidance for disclo- 
sures related to revenue recognition policies and was 
adopted by the Conipany effective with the fourth 
quarter or 2000. There was not a material impact on 
our  consolidated financial statements upon 
implement, ‘I t’ ion. 

During 2000, the Emerging Issues Task 
Force (EITF) issued EITF 00-10, “Accounting for 
Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs” that pro- 
vides guidance with respect to reporting shipping and 
handling costs within the financial statements. 
E lTF 00-10 concludes that all amounts billed to a 
customer in  a sale transaction related to shipping and 
handling, if any. represent revenues earned for the 
goods and should be classilied as revenue. In 
‘iddition, the EITF reached consensus that the 

classification of shipping and handling costs should 
be disclosed if significant and are not included in 
costs of sales. There was not a material impact on 
our consolidated financial statements upon 
implementation. 

CAPITAL OUTLAYS 

Capital outlays in the following table exclude 
capitalized interest and the minority joint-venture 
interest portions of the expenditures at Morenci, 
Chino, El Abra and Candelaria. 

(S in millions) 
2000 1999 1998 - - -  

Phelps Dodge Xlining Company: 
United States . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $272.0 95.9 188.3 
Molybdenum.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8.9 20.4 - 
International . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  29.9 4.3 12.6 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.8 0.8 0.4 

31 1.6 121.4 201.3 
- - -  

- - -  

Phclps Dodgz Industries: 
Specialt) chemicals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  55.7 45.0 41.7 
Wire and cable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  16.9 28.4 70.1 

72.6 73.4 111.8 

CorporLite and  othrr 13.0 6. I 5.0 
- - -  $397.2 200.9 318.1 

- - -  
- - -  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - - -  
- - -  

INFLATION 

The principal impact of gcncral inflation 
upon our  financial results has been on u n i t  produc- 
tion costs, especially supply costs, at our mining and 
industrial operations. I t  is important to note, how- 
ever, that the sclling price of our  principal product, 
copper, does not necessarily parallel the rate of 
infiation or defl, ‘I t ’  ion. 

DIVIDENDS AND MARKET PRICE RANGES 

The principal market for our common stock 
is the New York Stock Exchange. At March 6, 
2001, there were 29,609 holders of record of our  
common shares. Throughout 1998, I999 and 2000 
the quarterly dividend rate was maintained at 
50 cents on each common share. On February 7, 
2001, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of 
50 cents per share for the 2001 first quarter. payable 
on March 9. 2001, to common shareholders of record 
at the close of business on February 16. 200 I .  
Additional information required for this item is 
provided in  the Quarterly Financial Datu table. 
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QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA 
($ in millions except per common share amounts) 

2000 - 
Sales and other operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Net income (loss). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , .  

Net income (loss) per common share - basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Net income (loss) per common share - diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Stock prices A 

High . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Low . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Close . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1999 

Sales and other operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

- 

Operating income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change . . . . . 
Net income (loss) . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net income (loss) per common share - basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Net income (loss) per common share - diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Stock prices * 
High . . . . . . . 
Low 
Close . . . . . . . . . . . 

. . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

* As reported in the Wall Street Journal. 

First 
Quart e r 

$1,119.7 

79.8 

19.4 

0.25 

0.25 

Second 
Quarter 

1,112.9 

5.2 

(37.8) 

(0.48) 

(0.48) 

73.00 
44.25 
47.38 

$ 663.1 

27.6 

0.5 

(3.0) 

(0.05) 

(0.05) 

61.31 
41.88 
49.25 

53.00 
36.06 
37.19 

691.1 

(54.8) 

(57.5) 

(57.5) 

(0.99) 

(0.99) 

70.63 
48.85 
6 I .94 

Third 
Quarter 

1,193.4 

101.3 

39.3 

0.50 

0.50 

46.75 
36.50 
41.75 

742.7 

51.5 

15.4 

15.4 

0.27 

0.27 

66.94 
54.00 
55.06 

Fourth 
Quarter 

1,099.1 

50.7 

8.1 

0.10 

0.10 

57.00 
40.00 
55.81 

1,017.5 

(339.9) 

(212.7) 

(212.7) 

(2.91) 

(2.91) 

67.31 
50.56 
67.3 I 
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PHELPS DODGE CORPORATION AND CON- 
SOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES INDEX TO CON- 
SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The consolidated balance sheet at Decem- 
ber 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related consolidated 
statements of operations, of cash flows and of 
common shareholders’ equity for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 2000, and 
notes thereto, together with the report thereon of 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP  dated January 24, 
2001, appear on pages 55 to 86 of this report. The 
financial statement schedule which appears on 
page 91 should be read in conjunction with these 
financial statements. Schedules not included have 
been omitted because they are not applicable or the 
required information is shown in the financial state- 
ments or notes thereto. The individual financial 
statements of the Company have been omitted 
because the Company is primarily an operating 
company and all subsidiaries included in the consoli- 
dated financial statements, in the aggregate, do not 
have minority equity interests andl or indebtedness to 
any person other than the Company or its consoli- 
dated subsidiaries in amounts which together exceed 
5 percent of total consolidated assets at Decem- 
ber 3 I ,  2000. Separate financial statements of subsid- 
iaries not consolidated and investments accounted for 
by the equity method, other than those for which 
summarized financial information is provided in 
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, have 
been omitted because, if considered in the aggregate, 
such subsidiaries and investments would not consti- 
tute a significant subsidiary. 

ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL DATA 

Financial statement schedule for the years 

I1 - Valuation and qualifying accounts 

ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998. 

and reserves on page 91. 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 
ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
Phelps Dodge Corporation 

Our audits of the consolidated financial 
statements referred to in our report dated January 24, 
2001, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K 
of Phelps Dodge Corporation also included an audit 
of the financial statement schedule listed in 
Item 14(a) ( 2 )  of this Form 10-K. In our opinion, 
this financial statement schedule presents fairly, in all 
material respects, the information set forth therein 
when read in conjunction with the related consoli- 
dated financial statements. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

Phoenix, Arizona 
January 24, 2001 

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT 

Our management is responsible for the prep- 
aration, integrity and objectivity of the consolidated 
financial statements presented in this annual report. 
The statements have been prepared in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States and include amounts that are based on 
management’s best estimates and judgments. Man- 
agement also accepts responsibility for the prepara- 
tion of other financial information included in this 
document. 

Management maintains a system of internal 
controls to provide reasonable assurance that assets 
are safe guarded and that transactions are properly 
recorded and executed in accordance with manage- 
ment’s authorization. The system includes formal 
policies and procedures that are communicated to 
employees with significant roles in the financial 
reporting process and updated as necessary. The 
system also includes the careful selection and train- 
ing of qualified personnel, an organization that 
provides a segregation of responsibilities and a 
program of internal audits that independently evalu- 
ates the effectiveness of internal controls and recom- 
mends possible improvements. 

The Audit Committee, currently consisting 
of five non-employee directors, meets at least three 
times a year to review, among other matters, internal 
control conditions and internal and external audit 
plans and results. I t  meets periodically with senior 



. 

officers, internal auditors and independent account- 
ants to review the adequacy and reliability of our 
accounting, financial reporting and internal controls. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our indepen- 
dent accountants, have audited the annual financial 
statements in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States. The inde- 
pendent accountants’ report expresses an informed 
judgment as to the fair presentation of our reported 
operating results, financial position and cash fI ows. 
This judgment is based on the results of auditing 
procedures performed and such other tests that they 
deemed necessary, including consideration of our 
internal control structure. 

Our management also recognizes its respon- 
s ibzty for fostering a strong ethicai ciimate so that 
our affairs are conducted according to the highest 
standards of personal and corporate conduct. This 
responsibility is characterized and reflected in our 
code of business ethics and policies, which is 
distributed throughout the Company. The code of 
conduct addresses: 

the necessity of ensuring open commu- 
nication within the Company; 
potential conflicts of interest; 
compliance with all applicable laws (in- 
cluding financial disclosure); and 

information. 
the confidentiality of proprietary 

We maintain a systematic program to assess 
compliance with these policies. 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of 
Phelps Dodge Corporation 

dated balance sheet and the related consolidated 
statements of operations, of cash flows and of 
common shareholders’ equity present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of Phelps 
Dodge Corporation and its subsidiaries at Decem- 
ber 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in 
conformity with accounting principles generally ac- 
cepted in the United States of America. These 

In our opinion, the accompanying consoli- 

Ill 

these statements in accordance with auditing stan- 
dards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material misstate- 
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements, assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, and evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

financial statements, the Corporation changed its 
method of accounting for start-up costs effective 
January I ,  1999. 

As described in Note 1 to the consolidated 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

Phoenix, Arizona 
January 24, 2001 
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STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS 
(in millions except per share data) 

For the years ended December 31, 

Sales and other operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Cost of products so ld . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Depreciation, depletion and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Selling and general administrative expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Exploration and research expense. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Non-recurring charges and provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Operating costs and expenses 

A ,. . uPem-3) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Capitalized interest. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Miscellaneous income and expense, net .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Income (loss) before taxes, minority interests and equity in net earnings 
(1osses)of affiliated companies and cumulative effect of accounting change . . .  

Provision for taxes on income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Minority interests in  consolidated subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Equity in net earnings (losses) of affiliated companies . . . . . .  

Cumulative effect of accounting change . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . .  
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change 

Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Average number of shares outstanding - basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Basic earnings (loss) per share before cumulative effect of accounting change. . . . .  

Cumulative elT'ect of accounting change . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Basic earnings (loss) per share  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2000 

$4.525.1 

3,580.2 
464.2 
135.1 
56.8 
51.8 

4.288.1 

53.7 
(19.2) 

(7.0) 
1.5 

29.0 
- 

$ 29.0 

78.4 
$ 0.37 

- 

$ 0.37 

78.8 
0.37 

Average number of shares outstanding - diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Cumulative effect of accounting change . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Diluted earnings (loss) per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 0.37 

Diluted earnings (loss) per share before cumulative effect of accounting change. . .  $ 
- 

1999 

3,114.4 

2,477. a 
329.1 
115.5 
52.2 

455.4 
3,430.0 

(315.6) 
( 120.4) 

0.2 
9.1 

(426.7) 
165.2 

2.1 
5.1 

(254.3) 

(257.8) 

61.6 
(4.1 3 )  
(0.06) 

(4.19) 

61.6 
(4.13) 
(0.06) 

(4.19) 

(3.5) 

1998 

3,063.4 

2,381.3 
293.3 
102.0 
55.0 

(1 90.9) 

2.640.7 

- 
- 

422.7 
(96.4) 

1.9 
8.8 

337.0 
( 134.0) 

(7.9) 
(4.2) 

190.9 
- 

190.9 

58.2 
3.28 

- 

3.28 

58.5 
3.26 

- 

- - 
3.26 - - 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
(in millions except per share values) 

December 3 1, 
2000 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts (2000 - $17.6; 

1999 - $17.5) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  528.7 
Inventories . . . . . .  . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  451.5 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  151.2 
Other current assets and prepaid expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  36.7 
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  89.5 

Property, plant and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  5.894.6 
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  45.1 
Other assets and deferred charges. .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  273.4 

$7,830.8 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 

Short-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 518.2 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  206.5 

669.8 
Income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  23.4 

Current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,417.9 
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1.963.0 
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  439.0 

814.2 

4,634.1 

Commitments and contingencies (see Notes 6, 17 and 18) 
Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries. . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  91.7 

Common shareholders’ equity 
Common shares, par value $6.25; 200.0 shares authorized; 78.7 outstanding 

491.9 
Capital in excess of par value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1.017.7 
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,831.7 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  (226.4) 

(1999 - 78.7) after deducting 17.1 shares (17.1) held in treasury . . . . . .  

Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (9.9) 
3,105.0 

$7.830.8 

December 31, 
1999 

234.2 

541.5 
498.3 
149.0 
172.4 
98.0 

1.693.4 
136.1 

6,037.7 
16.9 

344.9 

8,229.0 

45 I .2 
131.3 
786.5 

49.3 

1,418.3 
2,172.5 

385.7 
879.4 

4,855.9 

96.3 

491.6 
1 ,O 16.4 
1,959.8 
(180.3) 

(10.7) 

3,276.8 

8,229.0 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
(in millions) 

For the years ended 
December 3 1. 

Operating activities 
Net income (loss). . .  . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 

Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Changes in current assets and liabilities: 

Depreciation, depletion and amortization . . 

Equity earnings (losses) net of divid s received . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . .  

Accounts receivable.. . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
11- . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Supplies . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  
Prepaid expenses . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest payable . . . . . . . . . .  
Other accounts payable. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Other accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  
Non-recurring charges and provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other adjustments, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . .  

Accrued income taxe 

Net cash provided by ope 

Investing activities 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

CapitaliLed interest . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Investment in subsidiaries, net of cash received . . .  . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from asset dispositions and other . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net cash provided by (used in )  investing activities . . . . . . . . .  

Financing activities 
Proceeds from issuance of debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Payment of debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . .  
Common dividends . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Purchase of common shares . . . . . . . . .  
Other, net . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net cash used in financing activities. . .  
Increase in cash and cash equivalents . . . . .  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities: 
In 1999, as partial consideration for the acquisition of Cyprus Amax. 
the Company issued 20.6 million common shares valued at $1,125 
million. (See Note 2.) 

2000 

$ 29.0 

464.2 
12.8 
0.9 

9.7 

(5.3) 

(0.3) 
2.3 

(16.3) 
(12.4) 
(24.9) 
(68.8) 
54.3 
26.7 

51 1.2 

(397.2) 

(25.1) 
152.6 

(4.5) 

(274.2) 

1 14.6 
(178.3) 
(157.5) 

- 
- 

(221.2) 

15.8 
234.2 

$ 250.0 

1999 

(257.8) 

1998 - 
190.9 

329.1 
191.7) 

(4.4) 

144.5) 
31.2 

1.7 
9.8 

(5.3) 
2.2 

(2.2) 
7.2 

(27.4) 
47 1.9 
(15.3) 

204.5 

(200.9) 
(0.2) 

(39.5) 
246.6 

6.0 

348.8 
(209.1) 
( 124.3) 

(21 3.4) 

(198.0) 

12.5 
221.7 

234.2 * 

293.3 
43.9 

5.8 

53.3 
6.4 
2.5 

8.3 
2.2 

(42.1) 
13.8 

(23.6) 
(171.7) 

4.8 

378.4 

(9.4) 

(318.1) 

(350.2) 
486.2 

( 184.0) 

( 1.9) 

108.0 
(85.6) 

( 1  17.3) 
(35.4) 

(0.3) 
(1 30.6) 

63.8 
157.9 

22 1.7 
- - 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMMON SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
(in millions) 

Capital in Accumulated 
Common Shares E~~~~~ of Other 

Number 
of Shares 

58.6 Balance at December 31, 1997.. . . , . . , . . . . , . . . 
Stock options exercised - 

Common shares purch (0.7) 
Tax benefit from stock 

Restricted shares issued, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Other investment adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Dividends on common shares . . . . . . . . 
Comprehensive income 

Net income.. . . . . 

. . . . . . . . . 
- 

Reclassification adjustment* 

Comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . .  0.1 

0. I Restricted shares issued, net . . . . . . . . , . . , . . . . 
Other investment adjustments . . . . . . . . . . 
Dividends on common shares.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
20.6 

net of tax.. . . . 

Translation adjustment . . . . . 
Translation, net of reclass adjustments . . . 
Unrealized losses on securities . . . 
Additional pension liability . . . . . . 
Other comprchensive loss . . . . . . 

- 
. . . . . . 78.7 

- 

- . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . .  
nt . . . . . . . . . . 
securities . . . . . . . . . . 

Other comprehensive loss 
Comprehensive loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - 

78.7 Balance at December 31, 2000.. . . . . . . . . - - 

At Par Par Retained Comprehensive 
Value Value Earnings Income (Loss) --- 

$366.5 $ - $2.301.0 
0.3 I .9 

190.9 

--- 
362.1 1.8 2,345.0 

0.4 2.4 - 
0.4 

0.6 4.6 - 
I .o 

( 127.8) 
128.5 1,006.6 - 

(257.8) 

--- 
491.6 I ,O 16.4 I ,959.8 

0.2 I .4 - 
0.4 

0.1 0.5 - 

29.0 

--- $491.9 $1.017.7 $1,831.7 
- _ _ _ -  

$ ( 146.9) 

37.7 
(1.7) 
36.0 
\'."I 
33.0 

( 1  13.9) 

n \  

11.8 

(69.2) 

3.0 
(66.4) 

( I  80.3) 

(81.0) 

(0 .2)  

(45.9) 
0.8 

( I .O) 
(46.1) 

$(226.4) 

Common 
Shareholders' 

Other Equity 

S(10.2) $2,510.4 
2.2 
0.3 

(35.4) 
2.6 1.5' 

1.8 
( 1  17.3) 

190.9 

37.7 

36.0 
\'.") 
33.0 

(1.7) 

n\ 

223.9 
(7.6) 2,587.4 

2.8 
0.4 

I .O 
( 127.8) 

1.1 35.1 

-~ 

(3.1) 2. I 

(257.8) 

11.8 
(81.0) 
(69.2) 

(0 .2)  
3.0 

(66.4) 
(324.2) -~ 

(10.7) 3,276.8 
1.6 
0.4 

0.8 I .4 
(0.6) 

( I  57.5) 

29.0 

(45.9) 
0.8 

( I .O)  
(46.1) 
(17.1) -~ 

9 (9.9) $3.105.0 

Disclosure of reclassification amount: 
* 

** 
The 1998 reclassification adjustment resulted from the sale of Black Mountain. 

The 1999 reclassification adjustment represents the write-off of cumulative trunslation adjustments as ~1 

result of the sale ot  PD Mining Ltd. 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 



-60- 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 
(Dollar amounts in tables stated in millions 
except as noted) 

1. 

monetary assets and liabilities are translated at 
historical rates. Gains and losses resulting from 
translation of such financial statements are included 
in operating results, as are gains and losses incurred 
on foreign currency transactions. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include 
the accounts of Phelps Dodge Corporation (the 
Company, which may be referred to as Phelps 
Dodge, PD, we, us or ours), and its majority-owned 
subsidiaries. Interests in mining joint ventures in 
which we own more than 50 percent are reported 
using the proportional consolidation method. Interests 
in other majority-owned subsidiaries are reported 
using the full  consolidation method; the consolidated 
financial statements include 100 percent of the assets 
and liabilities of these subsidiaries and the ownership 
interests of minority participants are recorded as 
“Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries.” All 
material intercompany balances and transactions are 
el i m i n ;I ted. 

Investments in unconsolidated companies 
owned 20 percent or more are recorded on an equity 
basis. Investments in companies less than 20 percent 
owned, and for which we do not exercise significant 
control. are carricd at cost. 

Management’s Estimates and Assumptions 

The prcparation of financial statements in 
conformity with generally ncccpted accounting princi- 
ples requires our managcrncnt to make estimates and 
assumptions that alfect the reportcd amounts of 
asscts and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

Foreign Currency Translation 

Except as noted below, the assets and 
liabilities of foreign subsidiaries are translated at 
current exchange rates, while revenues and expenses 
are translatcd at average rates in effect for the 
period. The related translation gains and losses are 
included in  accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss) within common shareholders’ equity. For the 
translation of the financial statements of certain 
foreign subsidiaries dealing predominantly in U.S. 
dollars and for those alliliutes operating in  highly 
inllationary economies, assets and liabilities receiva- 
ble or payable in  cash are translated at current 
exchangc rates. and inventories and other non- 

For the purpose of preparing the Consoli- 
dated Statement of Cash Flows, we consider all 
highly liquid investments with a maturity of three 
months or less when purchased to be cash 
equivalents. 

Inventories and Supplies 

Inventories and supplies are stated at the 
lower of cost or market. Cost for metal inventories is 
determined by the last-in, first-out method (LIFO), 
and cost for substantially all other inventories is 
determined by the first-in, first-out method 
(FIFO) or a moving average method. Cost for 
substantially all supplies is determined by a moving 
average method. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are carried at 
coqt. Cost of significant assets includes capitalized 
interest incurred during the construction and develop- 
ment period. Expenditures for replacements and 
betterments are capitaliLed; maintenance and repair 
expenditures are charged to operations as incurred. 

The principal depreciation method used for 
mining, smelting and refining operations is the units 
of production method applied on a group basis. 
Buildings, machinery and equipment for other opera- 
tions are depreciated using the straight-line method 
over estimated lives of five to 40 years, or the 
estimated life of the operation if shorter. Upon 
disposal of assets depreciated on a group basis, cost 
less salvage is charged to accumulated depreciation. 

Values for mining properties represent 
mainly acquisition costs or pre- 1932 engineering 
valuations. Depletion of mines is computed on the 
basis of an overall unit rate applied to the pounds of 
principal products sold from mine production. 

costs to maintain production of operating mines are 
charged to operations as incurred. Mine development 
expenditures at new mines and major development 
expenditures at operating mines that are expected to 
benefit future production ;ire capitalired and amor- 
tired on the units of production method over the 
estimated commercially recoverable minerals. 

Mine exploration costs and development 
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Our policy for repair and maintenance costs 
incurred in connection with planned major mainte- 
nance activities is to charge to operations such costs 
equally over the period (generally 12 months) in 
which the major maintenance activities are incurred. 

economic circumstances indicate the carrying amount 
of such assets may not be recoverable. We use an 
estimate of the future undiscounted net cash flows of 
the related asset or asset grouping over the remaining 
life to measure whether the assets are recoverable 
and measure any impairment by reference to fair 
value. Fair value is generally estimated using the 
Cnmnnnv's exnertstion of discounted net cash flows. 

Environmental Expenditures 

he rlirnnrprl nf are Pqrriprl at the 

ISK ansing rrom the 
:I1 . .  . . 

----- =--~, I -"r --_I- 

Environmental expenditures are expensed or Long-term assets to "- -._ y""-.. " I  UI., \ I L L I I I Y U  U L  c11- 

capitalized depending upon their future economic 
benefits. Liabilities for such expenditures are re- 
corded when it is probable that obligations have been 
incurred and the costs reasonably can be estimated. 
For closed facilities and closed portions of operating 
facilities with closure obligations, an environmental 
liability is considered probable and is accrued when a 
closure determination is made and approved by 
management. Environmental liabilities attributed to 
CERCLA or analogous state programs are consid- 
ered probable when a claim is asserted, or is 
probable of assertion, and we have been associated 
with the site. Other environmental remediation liabil- 
ities are considered probable based on the specific 
facts and circumstances. Our estimates of these costs 
are based upon available facts, existing technology 
and current laws and regulations, and are recorded 
on an undiscounted basis. Where the available 
information is sufficient to estimate the amount of 
liability, that estimate has been used. Where the 
information is only sufficient to establish a range of 
probable liability and no point within the range is 
more likely than any other, the lower end of the 
range has been used. The possibility of recovery of 
some of these costs from insurance companies or 

these recoveries in our financial statements until they 
become probable. ^---^&:-- ..-.._-.. ." 

lower of cost or fair value less the costs of disposal. 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recorded when title passes to the 
customer. The passing of title is based on terms of 
the contract which is generally upon shipment. 
Copper revenue is recognized based on the monthly 
average of prevailing commodity prices according to 
the terms of the contracts. 

Due to the market n * 
' ' 

volatility of copper prices, our objective is to sc 
copper cathode and rod at the COMEX average 
price in the month 
trate at the LME average price in the month ot 
settlement with our customers. We initially record 
certain copper sales 
of sale, and adjust the pricing tor all outstanding 
shipments to reflect spot prices at the end of each 
month until a final adjustment is made to the price 
of the shipments upon settlement with our customers 
pursuant to the terms of the contract. 

Shipping and Hand1 
other parties exists; however, we do not recognize Amounts billed to clac'tnmr-rr fnr rhinninn 

and handling are cl 'r ' 

3f delivery and copper concen- . . .  .~ 

at a provisional price at the time 
. . .. 

inp Fees and Costs 

Mine Closure Costs 

U O & W t l J " L . 3  ' V I  O,clyy"16 

assinea as sales and other 
U p C l d L l l l g  IGVGIIUCL Amounts incurred for shipping 
and handling are included in costs of products sold, 
except for Columbian Chemicals amounts which are . .  . .  -1 

.ial for reclassification. 
netted against relatea revenues. 1 nese amounts are 
considered immater 

Reclamation is an ongoing activity and we 
recognize estimated reclamation costs on a units of 
production basis. I 

Hedging Programs 
Goodwill 117- 2- --' _.._^ L--- L - I A  -- - - I 1  Am..:-.-,:..- 

V V C  UU IlUL p U l L l l a S C ,  IIUIU U1 SCII U C l l V d L I V G  . .  
unless we have an existing asset, 

. . . . . . . . 
hnancial contracts I 

obligation or anticipate a future activity that is likely 
to occur that will result in exposing us to market 
risk. Derivative fina 

Included in "Other assets and deferred 
charges" are costs in excess of the net assets of 
businesses acquired. These amounts are amortized on II I 
a straight-line basis over periods of 15 to 30 years. 

' I  I r 

Impairments 

incial instruments are used to 
manage well-aenned commodity price, foreign ex- 
change and interest rate risks from our primary 
business activities. For a discussion on why we use 

We evaluate our long-term assets to be held derivative financial contracts. our year-end derivative 
position and related financial results. please refer to 
Note 19. 

and used, our identifiable intangible assets, and 
goodwill for impairment when events or changes in 
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Coniiiiodity fiitirres corrrr(lrct.s - We recog- 
nize gains and losses on commodity futures contracts 
in income when the underlying customer sale is 
recognized. We also recognize gains and losses 
whenever a previous customer contract is no longer 
expected to occur. 

Copper and energy option contincts - W e  
initially record net premiums paid on copper and 
energy option contracts as prepaid assets and then 
amortize the premium on a straight-line basis over 
the hedge protection period. We recognize hedging 
gains and losses in income at the maturity of the 
option contract. We record any premiums received 
on the sale of option contracts as accrued expenses 
until the maturity of the option contract when the 
premium received is recorded as income. 

Foreign exchange contrcrc'ts - We initially 
record premiums paid on currency option contracts 
and unrecognized gains and losses on forward ex- 
change contracts as prepaid assets. Hedge premiums 
on forward exchange contracts are amortized on a 
straight-line basis over the hedge protection period. 
Gains and losses on forward exchange contriicts arc 
crcditcd or charged to miscellaneous income or 
expense. Changes in market value of forward ex- 
change contracts protecting actual transactions ;ire 
recognized i n  the pcriod incurred. For currency 
option contracts. we recognize unaiiiortiLcd premium 
and hedging gains and losses i n  income whcn the 
underlying hedged transaction is rccogn i d  or whcn 
;I previously hcdgcd transaction is no longer cxpccted 
to occur. 

C'iirrc)iic:i. srvcip c~orrtrtrc[.s - For certain of 
our currency swap contracts. which arc in substance 
forward exchange contracts, we amortiLc hcdgc 
premiums on ;I straight-line basis over the hcdgc 
protection period while gains and losscs are recog- 
nized in income in the period incurred. For othcr 
types of currency swap contracts, w e  recognize costs 
associated with such agreements to intcrcst expcnse 
over the term of the agreement. 

Ititcrest rute .swcrps - The costs associated 
wi th  interest rate swap agreements Lire aniortized to 
interest expense over the term of the agreement. 

Stock Coin pensa t ion 

I n  axordance w i t h  the provisions of SFAS 
No. 123. "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa- 
tion." we ;ipply Accounting Principles Board 
( / \ P B )  Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock 
Issued to Employes." and related intcrprct:itions to 
xcount  !'or our .;tack option pluns. Notc  I4 to the 

consoiid'ited tinuncial statements contains a summary 
of the pro forma ekrects on reported net income 
(loss) m d  exnings (losses) per share for 2000, 1999 
dnd 1398 'is i f  we had elected to recognize cornpen- 
sition cost b'ised on the Fair value of the options 
p n t e d  as prescribed by SFAS No. 123. 

EfTective July 1, 2000, we adopted the 
provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 44 "Account- 
ing for Cert'iin Transactions Involving Stock Com- 
pensation: A n  Interpretation of APB Opinion 
No. 25." The adoption of this pronouncement did not 
have a significant impact on our financial position or 
results of operations. 

Income Taxes 

In  addition to charging income for taxes 
actuall? paid or payable, the provision for taxes 
reflects deferred income taxes resulting from changes 
in  temporurl differences between the tax bases of 
assets m d  liabilities and their reported amounts in 
the finmcial statements. The effect on deferred 
income tries of a change in tax rates is recognized in 
income in the period that includes the en'i 'L 't ment 
date. 

Pension Plans 

1L.e have trusteed, non-contributory pension 
plans co\.cring substantially dl of our U.S. employees 
and some cmployccs of intcrnational subsidiaries. 
The bcnctits arc based on, in the case of certain 
plans. f inal  :i\cr;igc salxy a n d  years of service and, in 
the c;isc of othcr plans, ;I lixcd :imount for each year 
of service. Our funding policy providcs t h a t  payments 
10 the pension trusts shall bc at least equal to the 
ni i n i mu ni funding rcqui re men ts of t he E in ployee 
Kctircmcnt Income Security Act of 1974 for U S .  
plans or. in t h e  case of international subsidiaries, the 
minimum l e p l  requirenicnts in  that particular coun- 
try. Additional payments may also be provided from 
time to time. 

Postretirement Benelits Other Than Pensions 

\\.e 1iat.c several postretirement health care 
and life insurunce bcnelit plans covcring niost of our 
L.S. emplo!-ecs a n d ,  in some c;iscs, employees of 
internarionul .;ubsidi:irics. Postretirement bcnelits vary 
among plans and many plans rccluirc contributions 
froin cmpIo!ees. Wc account (or thcsc benefits on an  
accrual h a s i h .  Our funding policy procitfcs that 
pa! mcnrs .;hall he :it least cc~u;il to our cash basis 
ohligati~~n. plu.; xiditiond amounts that ma! be 
appro\c.ci h! 11, I'rum tiinc to time. 



-63- 

Postemolovment Benefits 

We have certain postemployment benefit 
plans covering most of our U S .  employees and, in 
some cases, employees of international subsidiaries. 
The benefit plans may provide severance, disability, 
supplemental health care, life insurance or other 
welfare benefits. W e  account for these benefits on an 
accrual basis. Our funding policy provides that 
payments shall be at least equal to our cash basis 
obligation. Additional amounts may also be provided 
from time to time. 

Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by 
dividing income available to common shareholders by 
the weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share 
is similar to basic earnings per share except that the 
denominator is increased to include the number of 
additional common shares that would have been 
outstanding if the potentially dilutive common shares 
had been issued. 

2000 I909 1998 _ _ - -  

Ihsic f<arnings ( ~ , O S )  I’cr Sliarc 
Coml) u t :I t inn 
Nu iicrator: 

N c t  incoiiic (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $29.0 (257.8) 190.0 - _ _ -  
1)cnoiiiin;itor: 

Avcrxgc coninion sIi:ircs outstanding 78.4 h l  .6 58.2 

h s i c  ciirnings (loss) per sharc .  . . . . . . .  50.27 (4.19) 3.28 
_ _ - -  

~ - -  _ _ - -  

I )  i lo tcd E:trning\ I’cr SI1:i tc (’om pu ta t ion 
Nunicrator: 

Net  inconic (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  S29.0 ( 2 5 7 . 8 )  190.0 --- 
I>cnoininator: 

,\verage coniiiion shares outstanding 78.4 6 I .6 58.2 
0.1 

Average restricted stock issued to 

Total ~iverage coniinon shares 

Average cmploycc stock options . . . . .  0.1 - 

employces . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.3 - 0.2 --- 

outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  78.8 61.6 5 8 3  

Diluted curnings (loss) per sharc . . . . . .  $0.37 (4.19) 3.26 
--- 
_ _ - -  --- 

Stock options excluded from the computation of diluted earnings 
per share because option prices exceeded fair market value were 3s 
follo\\s: 

2000 199Y 1908 

Outstaliding options . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4.4 3.1 2.0 

--- 

Option price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $50.34 65.8s 58.84 

New Accounting Standards 

In 1999. we adopted SOP 98-5, “Reporting 
on the Costs of Start-up Activities.” The implemen- 
tation resulted in a $3.5 million after-tax charge, or 6 
cents per common share, representing the write off of 
previously unamortized start-up costs at our Cande- 
laria mining operation in Chile and our magnet wire 
operation in Monterrey, Mexico. 

FASB has issued SFAS No. 133, “Account- 
ing for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activi- 
ties,” (as amended by SFAS No. 137) and SFAS 
No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instru- 
ments and Certain Hedging Activities.” These state- 
ments require recognition of all derivatives as either 
assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and mea- 
surement of those instruments at fair value. Changes 
in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each 
period in current earnings or other comprehensive 
income (loss). Appropriate accounting for changes in 
fair value of derivatives held is dependent on whether 
the derivative transaction qualifies as an accounting 
hedge and on the classification of the hedge transac- 
tion. The statement was adopted by the Company on 
January I ,  2001, and did not materially impact our 
consolidated financial statements. 

I n  December 1999. the SEC issued StalT 
Accounting Bulletin (SXB) 101, “Revenue Recogni- 
tion i n  Financial Statements“ (as amended by SAB 
IOlA and 101B) that provides guidance on the 
recognition, presentation and disclosure of revenue in  
financial statements liled with the SEC. SAB 101 
outlines the basic criteria that must be met to 
recognize revenue and provides guidance for disclo- 
surcs relrited to revenue recognition policies and was 
adopted by the Company effective with the fourth 
quarter of 2000. There \vas not a material impact on 
our consolidated financial statements upon 
implement. ‘I t’ ion. 

Reclassification 

For comparative purposes, certain prior year 
amounts have been reclassified to conform with the 
current year presentation. 

2. Acquisitions and Divestitures 

Columbian Hungary Acquisition 

I n  the second quarter of 2000. we acquired 
the remilining 40 percent share in the carbon black 
m a n  LI /‘;IC I 11 ring business of C o I u m h i ;i n Tis %;I i C ;I rbo n 
Ltd. in  H~ingary for S19.0 million. bringing our total 
iriteresl l o  100 percent. 
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Cyprus Amax Acquisition 

In the 1999 fourth quarter, Phelps Dodge 
acquired all the issued and outstanding shares of 
Cyprus Amax Minerals Company (Cyprus Amax). 
Prior to the acquisition, Cyprus Amax was a world- 
wide producer of copper and molybdenum. The 
acquisition of Cyprus Amax was accounted for using 
the purchase method and accordingly, the results of 
Cyprus Amax operations have been included in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements from 
the date of the acquisition, October 16, 1999. 

The total purchase price for Cyprus Amax 
was $1,858 million including $1,125 million for the 
issuance of 20.6 million shares of Phelps Dodge 
common stock, $10 million for the conversion of 
Cyprus Amax stock options, cash of $693 million and 
acquisition costs of $30 million (financial, advisory, 
legal, accounting and printing costs). In addition, 
certain acquisition-related stock compensation and 
the resulting tax obligations of Cyprus Amax of $29 
million were recorded in purchase accounting and 
paid by Phelps Dodge. 

In connection with the acquisition of Cyprus 
Amax, Cyprus Amax called for redeeming all 
4,664,302 of its Series A Convertible Preferred 
shares. Prior to the redemption date, a total of 
3,968,801 shares were redeemed for cash, and the 
remainder converted to Cyprus Amax common 
shares, which were subsequently exchanged for 0.5 
million shares of Phelps Dodge common stock as 
part of the acquisition. The cash required for the 
redemption totaled $208.3 million, including accumu- 
lated dividends. 

Allocation of the purchase price has been 
based on an estimate of the fair value for the assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed at October 16, 1999. 
Assets acquired were $4.6 billion, including cash of 
$785 million. Liabilities assumed totaled $2.8 billion 
including debt of $1.6 billion which was reduced by 
$15.2 million to reflect the fair value of the 
obligations at the acquisition date. Liabilities re- 
corded at acquisition included costs of $22 million 
associated with merging Cyprus Amax’s operations 
into the Company’s operations, such as lease and 
other contract cancellation costs and employee termi- 
nation costs, primarily for duplicate administrative 
and management functions. Costs for these liabilities 
incurred in connection with the integration plan were 
substantially paid out by the end of 2000. 

On March 30, 2000, we sold Cyprus Austra- 
lia Coal Company, a wholly owned subsidiary, to 

Glencore Coal Australia Pty. Ltd., a subsidiary of 
Switzerland-based Glencore International AG, for 
approximately $150 million in cash with no gain or 
loss being realized. We acquired Cyprus Australia 
Coal Company as part of our acquisition of Cyprus 
Amax Minerals Company on October 16, 1999. 
Cyprus Australia Coal Company owned 48 percent of 
Oakbridge Pty. Ltd. and 50 percent of the Springvale 
Mine in Australia. 

The unaudited pro forma information set 
forth below is presented to show the estimated effect 
of the acquisition on the consolidated operations of 
Phelps Dodge had it been consummated at the 
beginning of each period, after giving effect to certain 
adjustments, including additional depreciation and 
amortization of assets acquired. The pro forma 
financial information gives effect to Cyprus Amax’s 
disposition of its coal (1999) and lithium (1998) 
segments. Accordingly, the operating results and 
resulting gain (loss) of these segment’s have been 
excluded from income (loss) from continuing opera- 
tions and included in net income (loss). 

Pro Forma 
Year ended 

December 31, 
Unaudited) - -  1499 1998 

Revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $4.018 4,661 
Income (loss) from continuing operations . . . . .  $ (419) 11 
Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ (449) 207 

Income (loss) from continuing opcrations . . . .  $(5.32) 0.14 
Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $(5.71) 2.63 

Earnings (loss) per share 

The unaudited pro forma financial informa- 
tion is provided for illustrative purposes only and 
does not purport to represent what the actual 
consolidated results of operations of Phelps Dodge 
would have been had the acquisition of Cyprus 
Amax occurred on the dates presented, nor is it 
necessarily indicative of future consolidated operating 
results. The pro forma adjustments do not include 
operating efficiencies and cost savings. 

KKPC Acquisition 

In January 1999, we acquired an 85 percent 
interest in the Korean carbon black manufacturing 
business of Korea Kumho Petrochemical Co., Ltd., 
for $76.1 million. Our Columbian Chemicals Com- 
pany subsidiary manages and operates the business, 
including the 1 10,000 metric-ton-per-year manufac- 
turing plant located in Yosu, South Korea. 
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Copebras Acquisition 

In October 1998, we acquired the Brazilian 
carbon black manufacturing business of Copebras 
S.A., a subsidiary of Minorco, for $220.0 million. 
This manufacturing facility has an annual production 
capacity of 170,000 metric tons of carbon black. 

Cobre Acquisition 

On February 3, 1998, we acquired the stock 
of Cobre Mining Company Inc. (Cobre) for $108.7 
million including acquisition costs. The acquisition 
was at a price of $3.85 per common share for 
Cobre’s 27 million common shares, including shares 
issuable upon the exercise of outstanding warrants 
and options. The primary assets of Cobre include the 
Continental Mine, which comprises an open-pit 
copper mine, two underground copper mines, two 
mills, and the surrounding land, including mineral 
rights, located in southwestern New Mexico adjacent 
to the Company’s Chino Mines Company (Chino) 
operations. On October 21, 1998, we indefinitely 
suspended underground mining at Cobre due to low 
copper prices. On March 17, 1999, the remaining 
operations were suspended. Cobre remains on care- 
and-maintenance status. 

3. Restructuring Charges and Non-Recurring Items 
2000 Restructuring Charges 

In the first quarter of 2000, non-recurring 
pre-tax charges of $2.1 million ($1.3 million, or 
I cent per share, after taxes) were recognized by 
PD Industries in  conjunction with the June 30, 1999, 
restructuring plan (for details see below under the 
heading “ I  999 Restructuring Charges”). 

On June 27, 2000, we announced a plan to 
reduce operating costs and restructure operations at 
our mining and wire and cable segments. This plan 
comprised the following actions: 

(i) Higher-cost production was curtailed 
at the Miami copper mine in Arizona and 
production was reduced at the Henderson 
molybdenum mine in Colorado resulting in a 
total workforce reduction of 175 full-time 
employees beginning in the second quarter of 
2000 (substantially completed by year end). 
These actions resulted in a pre-tax charge of 
$5.2 million. 

( i i )  Production ceased at two wire and 
cable plants in Venezuela in the second 
quarter of 2000 due to low forecast plant 
utilization levels as a result of significantly 

reduced infrastructure spending in the Latin 
America region. These plant closures re- 
sulted in a total non-recurring, pre-tax 
charge of $25.7 million, consisting of an 
impairment in the carrying value of property, 
plant and equipment and other assets of 
$19.2 million, plant dismantling costs of $2.6 
million, employee severance of $2.2 million 
and impairment of goodwill of $1.7 million. 
In addition, working capital writedowns of 
$4.2 million were recorded to cost of prod- 
ucts sold as a result of the decision to close 
the plants. 

(iii) The closure of a telephone cable 
operation in El Salvador in the fourth 
quarter of 2000 was due to low plant 
utilization levels as a result of heightened 
global competition for telecommunication 
cable. The plant closure resulted in a non- 
recurring, pre-tax charge of $4.6 million, 
including $4.0 million relating to the impair- 
ment of the carrying value of property, plant 
and equipment and $0.6 million associated 
with various other costs. In addition, working 
capital writedowns of $2.2 million were 
recorded to cost of products sold as a result 
of the decision to close the plant. 

(iv) A non-recurring, pre-tax charge of 
$5.8 million was recognized for our wire and 
cable operations in Austria as a result of the 
long-term impact of continuing extremely 
competitive pricing conditions in Europe. 
The continuing competitive pricing environ- 
ment led to a determination that we should 
assess the recoverability of our Austrian wire 
and cable asset values. Our assessment of 
the carrying value of the property, plant and 
equipment of $4.2 million and the goodwill 
balance of $2.8 million indicated impair- 
ments of $3.0 million and $2.8 million, 
respectively. 

(v)  A charge of $7.2 million to miscella- 
neous income and expense was recognized to 
reflect the impairment of our 40 percent 
equity interest in a wire and cable operation 
in the Philippines. The impairment was 
based upon an analysis of future cash flows 
of the operation, continuing economic uncer- 
tainty in the Philippines and the erosion of 
our strategic and operating influence. These 
factors indicate that there is little likelihood 
of recovery of our investment and manage- 
ment is evaluating available alternatives. 
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In total, these actions resulted in second 
quarter non-recurring, pre-tax charges of $41.3 mil- 
lion ($36.9 million, or 47 cents per share, after 
taxes), a $6.4 million charge to cost of products sold 
representing the working capital component of the 
above actions ($6.4 million, or 8 cents per share, 
after taxes), and a $7.2 million charge to miscellane- 
ous income and expense ($7.2 million, or 9 cents per 
share, after taxes). The following table presents a 
roll-forward of the liabilities incurred in connection 
with the June 2000 Restructuring Plan, which were 
all reflected as current liabilities in our consolidated 
balance sheet: 

Beginning 
Accrual Additions Payments 12/31 /00 ---- 

PD Mining: 

Equipment 
relocation (A)  . . . , 

PD Mining . . . . . . . . , 

Employee severance.. $ 5.2 - (3.6) 1.6 

- (0.7) - - 0.7 - 
(4.3) “6 - - 0.7 - 5.2 

PD Industries: 
Wire and Cable 
Employee severance. . 2.2 (2.2) 
Plant removal and 

- - 

(0.7) 3.0 
(2.9) 3” 
(7.2) j.6 

- - dismantling ( A )  . . . 2.8 0.9 
0.9 
I .6 

- PD Industries . . . . . . . 
Total . . . . . . . . . . . , . , . 

2 
$10.2 

- 
- - - - - - - 

~~ ~ 

( A )  Relocation costs :ire chiirgcd to expense :is incurred. 

In  addition to the above items, during the 
2000 second quarter we recognized certain ongoing 
costs of $2.9 million ($1.9 million, 2 cents per share, 
after taxes and minority interests) relating to the 
June 30, 1999, restructuring plan. 

In  the third quarter of 2000, non-recurring, 
pre-tax charges of $2.6 million ($1.7 million, or 
2 cents per share, after taxes) were recognized by 
PD Industries in conjunction with the June 27, 2000 
restructuring plan. In addition, a non-recurring, pre- 
tax charge of $0.7 million ($0.4 million, or 1 cent 
per share, after taxes) was recognized by PD Mining 
in the third quarter of 2000 in relation to the 
curtailment of copper production at the Miami mine. 

I n  the fourth quarter of 2000, PD Industries 
recognized non-recurring, pre-tax charges of $2.2 
million ($1.3 million, or 2 cents per share, after 
taxes) and a positive working capital adjustment of 
$0.8 million ($0.8 million, or 1 cent per share, after 
taxes) in connection with previously announced 
restructuring plans. 

2000 Other Non-Recurring Items 

In addition to the above items, we received 
in the 2000 second quarter a tax refund of $6.5 
million and related interest income of $5.8 million 
($3.6 million, or 4 cents per share, after taxes) 
resulting from the settlement of the Company’s 1990 
and 1991 income tax audits. In the fourth quarter of 
2000 we recognized $4.5 million ($3.0 million, or 
4 cents per share, after taxes) of miscellaneous 
income relating to the settlement of a business 
interruption insurance claim by a former Cyprus 
Amax coal property. 

1999 Asset ImDairments and Provisions 

During the 1999 fourth quarter, we recorded 
non-recurring, pre-tax charges for asset impairments 
of $320.4 million at PD Mining and $21.7 million at 
PD Industries. The PD Mining impairments included 
the writedown of the Hidalgo smelter in New 
Mexico ($201.5 million) and the Metcalf concentra- 
tor at the Morenci operations in Arizona ($88.0 
million). As a result of the successful acquisition of 
Cyprus Amax and the conversion of Morenci to a 
mine-for-leach operation, the Hidalgo smelter is 
expected to be reconfigured to allow i t  to continue to 
be a reliable source of acid. The amount of the 
impairment of the Hidalgo smelter was determined 
through an assessment of the projected cash flows of 
the existing smelting Facilities and the related infra- 
structure as an acid generating facility supplying low- 
cost acid to the Company’s domestic heap leach 
operations. We believe that the assessment of pro- 
jected cash flows represents the best measure of fair 
value for the facility in its proposed future use. This 
projection indicated that the sum of the expected 
future cash flows from the reconfigured facility was 
less than the carrying value. Management also 
determined that the Metcalf concentrator, which was 
on standby, would thereafter be permanently closed 
and the Morenci concentrator, which will be required 
through the mine-for-leach start-up, subsequently 
will be maintained on standby to provide alternative 
processing capability. 

a review of the combined Company’s resources, 
particularly those in the southwestern United States 
where the acquisition added 2.1 billion tons of proven 
and probable copper ore reserves to the existing 4.8 
billion tons. This review of the combined Company’s 
mineral resources included an assessment of the 
capital requirements to develop individual resources, 
the investment returns associated with the exploita- 
tion of individual resources and the optimal utiliLa- 

The acquisition of Cyprus Amax necessitated 
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tion of smelting and refining facilities. The resulting 
analysis indicated that the mineral resources at 
Tyrone and Copper Basin had been marginalized by 
the acquisition of the Cyprus Amax mineral re- 
sources. Management’s assessment of the combined 
mineral resources in the southwestern United States 
indicated that it would be unlikely that the Tyrone 
and Copper Basin mine projects would ever be 
exploited given the low investment returns available 
at these projects relative to the other mineral 
resources controlled by the Company. As a result of 
this decision, management considered the Tyrone and 
Copper Basin mine development projects to be 
impaired and recorded impairment charges of $1 1.9 
million and $6.8 million, respectively. Concurrent 
with the acquisition of Cyprus Amax in the fourth 
quarter of 1999, the Company’s review of its com- 
bined assets and strategic focus resulted in an in- 
depth review of all significant assets and the related 
business plans. In conjunction with this review, senior 
management decided that the development of real 
estate venues on Company owned land was not 
considered to be a core business. A cash flow 
analysis of this course of action determined that the 
future cash flows from the remediation and sale of 
the Verde Valley project would not be sufficient to 
recover the costs capitalized to date and those 
projected to be incurred in the future. Future 
development cost requirements closely approximate 
the estimated net realized value of the project. 
Accordingly, in the fourth quarter of 1999 the entire 
carrying value of $12.2 million was considered to be 
impaired. The PD Industries’ impairment charge 
comprised $6.7 million for the write off of an equity 
investment in China (charged to non-operating ex- 
pense) and $15.0 million for the impairment of value 
of the wire and cable segment’s telecommunications 
assets ($3.1 million of which was charged to non- 
operating expense). The minority interest add-back 
against the impairment of value of the telecommuni- 
cations assets totaled $1.5 million. 

I 

During the 1999 fourth quarter, the Com- 
pany also recognized a non-recurring, pre-tax charge 
of $28.2 million for estimated future costs associated 
with environmental matters applicable to PD Mining. 
See Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements 
for further discussion of environmental matters. 

I999 Restructuring Charges 

On June 30, 1999. we announced a plan to 
reduce costs and improve operating performance at 
all three of our business segments by (i) curtailing 
higher cost copper production by temporarily closing 
our Hidalgo smelter in New Mexico and the Metcalf 

concentrator, as well as curtailing production by 
50 percent at our copper refinery in El Paso, Texas; 
(ii) selling a non-core South African fluorspar 
mining unit; (iii) restructuring certain wire and cable 
assets to respond to changing market conditions; and 
(iv) suspending operations at Columbian Chemicals 
Company’s carbon black plant in the Philippines. 
These actions resulted in a total non-recurring, pre- 
tax charge of $84.7 million ($58.7 million, or $1.01 
per share, after taxes and minority interests) in the 
1999 second quarter, a pre-tax charge of $1.1 million 
($0.7 million, or 1 cent per share, after taxes) in the 
1999 third quarter and a pre-tax charge of $10.9 
million ($6.3 million, or 9 cents per share, after taxes 
and minority interests) in the 1999 fourth quarter. 
Total 1999 non-recurring charges for the June 30, 
1999, restructuring plan were $96.7 million ($65.7 
million, or $1.07 per share, after taxes and minority 
interests). 

PD Mining’s $36.6 million in non-recurring, 
pre-tax charges from the June 30, 1999, restructuring 
plan included $7.0 million from a loss on the sale of 
our fluorspar mining operation in South Africa. Also 
included in the restructuring plan were charges 
associated with employee severance ($6.9 million), 
pension and other postretirement obligations ($9.0 
million), environmental cleanup ($7.3 million) and 
mothballing and take or pay contracts ($6.4 million). 
Approximately 900 positions, including temporary 
and contract employees, have been or are in the 
process of being eliminated as part of the plan. 

Our specialty chemicals segment had non- 
recurring, pre-tax charges of $19.9 million in the 
1999 second quarter from the June 30, 1999, 
restructuring plan. Included in that amount were 
costs associated with asset and investment write-offs 
($14.9 million), environmental and disposal and 
dismantling ($3.0 million), and employee severance 
($2.0 million). That non-recurring charge was de- 
creased by $2.2 million in the 1999 fourth quarter to 
$17.7 million, primarily due to a reassessment of 
expected obligations. Approximately 80 positions 
have been or are in the process of being eliminated 
as part of the plan. 

Our wire and cable segment had non- 
recurring, pre-tax charges of $42.2 million in 1999 
from the June 30, 1999, restructuring plan. Included 
in the 1999 restructuring plan charges were fixed and 
other asset write-offs ($23.8 million), lease payments 
($1.7 million), employee severance and relocation 
($6.4 million), equipment disposal. dismantling and 
relocation ($4.6 million), pension and postretirement 
obligations ($3.8 million) and the write off of a n  
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equity basis investment ($1.9 million). Nearly 200 
full-time, permanent positions have been eliminated 
as part of the plan. 

The following schedule table presents a roll- 
forward from December 31, 1999 of the liabilities 
incurred in connection with the June 30, 1999 
restructuring plan, which were all reflected as current 
liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet. 

PD Mining: 
Employee 

Mothballing/take or 
pay contracts . . . .  

Environmental 
clean-up . . . . . . . .  

PD Mining.. . . . . . .  

Wire and Cable 
Employee 

severance and 
relocation (A)  . . .  

contracts . . . . . . . .  

dismantling ( A )  . . 

severance . . . . . . .  

PD Industries: 

Take or pay 

Plant removal and 

Specialty Chemicdk 
Employee 

Disposal & 

Environmental . . . . .  

severance . . . . . . .  

dismantling. . . . . .  

PD Industries. . . . . .  
Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

12/31 199 Additions (Payments) 12/31 100 -- 

$ 1.4 

3.5 

5.9 
10.8 - 

3.2 

2.0 

1 .o 
6.2 
- 
- 

0.3 

I .8 
0.8 

2.9 

9.1 

$19.9 

- 
- 
- 
- - 

10.5 

10.5 
- 
- - 

0.4 

2.5 

- - 
2.9 - 

0.4 

2.0 

0.8 
3.2 
- 
- 

- 

I .3 
0.7 
2.0 

5.2 

8. I 

- 
- 
- 
- - 

( A )  Relocation costs are charged to expense as incurred. 

Sale of Accuride 

Effective January I ,  1998, we sold a 90 per- 
cent interest in our wheel and rim manufacturing 
business, Accuride Corporation and related subsidiar- 
ies (Accuride), to an affiliate of Kohlberg Kravis 
Roberts and Co. (KKR) and the existing manage- 
ment of Accuride. That sale resulted in a pre-tax 
gain of $186.1 million ($122.8 million, or $2.10 per 
common share, after taxes). The remaining 10 per- 
cent interest in Accuride was sold to RSTW Partners 
111, L.P., on September 30, 1998, resulting in a pre- 
tax gain of $12.6 million ($8.3 million, or 14 cents 
per common share, after taxes). Under the terms of 
the sales agreements, we received total proceeds of 
$465.9 million from the two transactions, less $16.4 

million in working capital adjustments and transac- 
tion costs. 

Sale of Black Mountain 

Effective October 1, 1998, we sold our 
44.6 percent interest in Black Mountain Mineral 
Development Company to Amcoal Colliery and 
Industrial Operations Limited, a public company 
incorporated in South Africa. The sale resulted in a 
pre-tax loss of $27.0 million ($26.4 million, or 
45 cents per common share, after taxes) including 
the write off of cumulative translation adjustments. 
Under the terms of the sales agreement, we received 
total proceeds of $18.5 million from the transaction. 

1998 Charges 

During 1998, we recorded non-recurring, pre- 
tax charges of $5.5 million at PD Mining for costs 
associated with indefinite closures and curtailments 
of certain mining operations and $2.3 million at the 
wire and cable segment for an early retirement 
program. These charges reduced net income by $5.6 
million, or I O  cents per common share, after taxes. 

4. Investments and Long-Term Receivables 

Investments and long-term receivables were 
as follows: 

2000 1999 -- 
Equity basis: 

International wire and cablc manufacturers . . . . . . .  $ 4.8 10.8 
SIMSA 26.67% (Peruvian zinc mining company) . . .  11.3 14.0 
Port Carteret (50%) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  21.7 16.2 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7.7 13.0 

Southern Peru Copper Corporation (14.0%) . . . . . .  13.2 13.2 
RAG American Coal Company.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2.5 18.7 
Other . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  48.9 50.2 

$ I  10.1 136.1 

Cost basis and notes receivable: 

-- 
-- -- 

Equity earnings (losses) were as follows (in 

Dividends from equity basis investments 

millions): 2000 - $1.5; 1999 - $5.1; 1998 - ($4.2). 

were received as follows (in millions) : 2000 - $2.5; 
1999 - $0.7; 1998 - $1.6. 

Our retained earnings include undistributed 
earnings of equity basis investments of (in millions): 

Condensed financial information for our eq- 

2000 - $66.9; 1999 - $67.9; 1998 - $63.5. 

uity basis investments as of December 31, for the 
years noted. was as follows: 
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~- 

2000 1999 1998 --- 
Sales.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $119.2 162.8 161.9 
Net income (loss) ..................... $ (7.8) 1.1 (12.5) 

2000 1999 1998 

Net current assets.. .................... $ 3.2 49.7 7.3 

--- 

Fixed assets, net ....................... 90.5 152.2 101.2 
Long term debt . .  ...................... (11.6) (37.9) (2.7) 
Other assets and liabilities, n e t . .  . . . . . . . . .  21.8 (4.3) (8.9) 

Net assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $103.9 159.7 96.9 --- 

(losses) of affiliated companies for the years ended 
December 31 were as follows: 

2000 1999 1998 --- 
United States . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $42.4 (408.4) 344.2 
Foreign . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  11.3 (18.3) (7.2) --- 

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for 
the years ended December 31 were as follows: 

5. Miscellaneous Income and Expense, Net 

Miscellaneous income and expense, net for 
the years ended December 31 were as follows: 

Current: 
Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Foreign . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2000 1999 1998 --- 
Interest income.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $19.5 17.9 23.5 
Wire and cable segment asset 

Asarco merger termination (net of related 
impairments * .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (7.2) (11.6) - 

Deferred: 
Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
State .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Foreign . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

expenses) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  - 
Loss on sale of Black Mountain . . . . . . . . . . .  - 
Dissolution of Sumitomo joint venture ** . . .  - 
Southern Peru Copper Corporation dividend 

(14.0% minority interest) . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3.8 
Interest on IRS refund.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5.8 
Gain on sale of Australian iron ore royalties. . 4.7 
Willow Creek insurance settlement . . . . . . . .  4.5 
Foreign currency exchange loss. . . . . . . . . . . .  (1.5) 
O t h e r . ,  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.4 

$30.0 
- 
- - 

14.0 - 
- (27.0) 
- 10.3 

1.7 5.7 
- - 
- - 
- - 

(13.0) (5.7) 
0.1 2.0 

9.1 8.8 
-- 
-- -- 

* Asset impairment of equity basis investment in PD 
Philippines ($7.2 million) during 2000, and Cobre 
Colada ($1.8 million), PD Philippines ($3.1 million) and 
PD Yantai ($6.7 million) during 1999. 

Dissolution of joint ventures between Phelps Dodge and 
Sumitomo Electric Industries, Ltd., at five wire and 
cable manufacturing and support companies. 

** 

$53.7 (426.7) 337.0 --- --- 

Deferred taxes on start up costs 

2000 1999 1998 --- 

$(12.8) 1.3 54.4 
2.3 0.2 9.1 

16.9 23.8 26.6 

6.4 25.3 90.1 
--- 
--- 

4.1 (187.3) 37.8 
(1.0) (8.0) 5.3 
9.7 3.6 0.8 

12.8 (191.7) 43.9 

- 1.2 - 

$ 19.2 (165.2) 134.0 

--- 
--- 
--- 
--- --- 

A reconciliation of the U.S. statutory tax 
rate to our effective tax rate was as follows: 

Statutory tax rate ....................... 
Depletion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
State and local income taxes.. . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Effective international tax rate . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Adjustments to prior years . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Valuation allowance ..................... 
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other items, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Effective tax rate ....................... 

2000 1999 1998 

35.0% (35.0) 35.0 
(48.4) (1.4) (2.5) 

2.3 (1.8) 2.9 
9.0 0.8 5.3 

42.8 4.6 2.4 
2.2 0.3 0.3 
4.9 0.3 (3.4) 

--- 

(12.0) (6.8) - 

--- 
35.8% (39.0) 40.0 --- --- 

6. Income Taxes 

We use the asset and liability approach for 
accounting and reporting income taxes. Changes in 
tax rates and laws are reflected in income from 
operations in the period such changes are enacted. 
Balance sheet classification of deferred income taxes 
is determined by the balance sheet classification of 
the related asset or liability. 

Geographic sources of income (loss) before 
taxes, minority interests and equity in net earnings 

We paid federal, state, local and foreign 
income taxes of approximately $75 million in 2000, 
compared with approximately $31 million in 1999 
and $77 million in 1998. 

We received refunds of federal, state, local 
and foreign income taxes of approximately $78 
million in 2000, compared with approximately $ 2  
million in each of the years 1999 and 1998. 

At December 3 I ,  2000, we had alternative 
minimum tax credits of approximately $289 million 
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available for carryforward for U.S. federal income tax 
purposes. These credits can be carried forward 
indefinitely, but may only be used to the extent the 
regular tax exceeds the alternative minimum tax in 
any given year. The Company has Venezuelan 
investment tax credits, which may be utilized to 
offset future income taxes, of $4 million expiring 
from 2001 to 2003. The Company also has Venezue- 
lan business assets tax credits of $2 million expiring 
from 2001 to 2003. The business assets tax is an 
alternative tax that is paid when it is greater than the 
income tax, but may be carried forward for three 
years and used as a credit against future income tax 
liabilities. 

The Company has alternative minimum tax 
foreign tax credit carryforwards for federal income 
tax purposes of approximately $24 million expiring 
from 2001 to 2004. 

The Company has U.S. net operating loss 
carryforwards for regular tax purposes of $662 million 
expiring from 2001 to 2020, Venezuelan net operat- 
ing loss carryforwards of $102 million expiring from 
2001 to 2003, and Chilean net operating loss 
carryforwards of $463 million that do not expire. The 
U.S. losses include $378 million of Cyprus Amax 
U.S. net operating loss carryforwards that are subject 
to annual limitations on their usage after the 
acquisition. The annual limitation on the utilization 
of these losses is approximately $98 million. The 
Company also has U S .  alternative minimum tax net 
operating loss carryforwards of approximately $343 
million expiring from 2018 to 2020. 

The Company has $212 million of 
U S .  capital loss carryforwards that expire in 2004 
and 2005. Capital loss carryforwards may only be 
used to offset net capital gains in the carryforward 
periods. These losses include $122 million of Cyprus 
Amax capital loss carryforwards that are subject to 
annual limitations on their usage after the 
acquisition. 

A valuation allowance of $280 million has 
been recorded against all of these benefits. 

We have reached agreement with the Inter- 
nal Revenue Service for the Cyprus Amax tax years 
1994 through 1996 and paid the final assessments 
applicable to those years. We have also reached 
agreement in principle with the Internal Revenue 
Service for the Phelps Dodge Corporation tax years 
1995 through 1997, but we have not yet received an 

assessment for those years. Our management believes 
that it has made adequate provision so that final 
resolution of the issues involved, including applica- 
tion of those determinations to subsequent open 
years, will not have an adverse effect on our 
consolidated financial condition or results of 
operations. 

The Internal Revenue Service has recently 
commenced its audit of Phelps Dodge Corporation 
for the years 1998 and 1999 as well as Cyprus Amax 
for the years 1997 through 1999. No issues have 
been raised with respect to the current audit. 

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) com- 
prised the following at December 3 1: 

Minimum tax credits. . . . . .  
Postretirement and postemploy 

benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Other. . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Valuation allowance. . . . . . . . . .  
Net deferred tax assets 

Exploration and mine d 
Depreciation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Mining properties. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Pensions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred tax liabilities. . . . .  

2000 I999 

$ 288.6 235.8 
-- 

114.5 113.1 
173.7 183.7 
81.0 86.0 

336.0 170.7 
74.1 118.5 
~- 22.6 22.6 

1,090.5 930.4 
(280.2) (165.3) 

-- 810.3 765.1 
-- 

(98.4) (100.9) 
(927.0) (847.9) 

(70.0) (70.0) 
(19.3) (17.1) 

-- ( 1 . 1  14.7) (1,035.9) 

$ (304.4) (270.8) -- -- 

Income taxes have not been provided on our 
share ($632 million) of undistributed earnings of 
international manufacturing and mining interests 
abroad over which we have sufficient influence to 
control the distribution of such earnings and have 
determined that such earnings have been reinvested 
indefinitely. These earnings could become subject to 
additional tax if they were remitted as dividends, if 
foreign earnings were lent to any of our U.S. entities, 
or if we sell our stock in the subsidiaries. It is 
estimated that repatriation of these foreign earnings 
would generate additional foreign tax withholdings 
and U.S. tax (before application of U.S. tax attrib- 
utes), net of foreign tax credits, in the amounts of 
$83 million and $7 1 million, respectively. 
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7. Inventories and Supplies 

Inventories at December 31 were as follows: 

2000 1999 

Metals and other raw materials . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $373.8 413.8 
Work in process.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10.6 15.2 
Finished manufactured goods. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  64.4 66.6 
Other. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2.7 2.7 

$451.5 498.3 

-- 

-- 
-- -- 

Inventories valued by the last-in, first-out 
method would have been greater if valued at current 
costs by approximately $109 million and $82 million 
at December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. 

Supplies in the amount of $151.2 million and 
$149.0 million at December 31, 2000 and 1999, 
respectively, are stated net of a reserve for obsoles- 
cence of $7.6 million and $8.4 million, respectively. 

8. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment at Decem- 
ber 31 comprised the following: 
~~ ~~ 

2oM) 1999 -- 
Buildings, machinery and equipment. . . . . . . . .  $6,629.5 6,343.8 
Mining properties. ........................ 1,613.7 1,660.9 
Capitalized mine development . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  322.6 3 12.0 
Land and water rights. .................... 361.1 377.8 

8,926.9 8,694.5 
Less accumulated depreciation, depletion and 

amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  3,032.3 2,656.8 

$5,894.6 6,037.7 
-- 
-- -- 

9. Other Assets and Deferred Charges 

Other assets and deferred charges at Decem- 
ber 31 were as follows: 

2000 

$154.6 
Employee benefit plans.. ..................... 79.1 
Debt issue costs..  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  18.5 
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  21.2 

$273.4 

- 
Goodwill, less accumulated amortization (2000 - 

$37.1; 1999 - $30.6) ...................... 

- 
- - 

I999 - 
171.6 
129.3 
22.7 
21.3 

344.9 
- 
- - 
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12. Debt and Other Financing 

Debt at December 31 is summarized below: 

IO. 125% Notes due 2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
9.875% Notes due 2001 . . . . . . . .  
8.375% Debentures due 2023. .  . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
7.96% Notes due 2000 . . .  
7.75% Notes due 2002 . . .  
7.375% Notes due 2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
7.125% Debentures due 2027 . . .  
6.625% Notes due 2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
6.375% Notes due 2004 . . . . . . . . . .  
Air Quality Control Obligations: 

5.45% Notes due 2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
6.50% Installment sale obligations due 2013 . . 

Candelaria Project Financing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Columbian Tiszai Carbon Ltd. (Hungary) . . .  
Columbian Carbon Spain, S.A. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Columbian Chemicals Canada. . . . . . . . . . .  
Plielps Dodge Wire and Cable Group. .  . . . . . .  
Phelps Dodge Dublin ..................... 
Capital lease obligations . . . . . . . .  
El Abra Project Financing 
Cerro Verde Project Financing . . . . .  
Various Pollution Control and Industrial 

Development Revenue Bonds. . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cerro Verde Bank Loan, due 2004 . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Debt and capital Icase obligations, including 

current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Lcss current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Debt. cxcluding currcnt portion . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2000 1999 

$ 154.6 158.0 
92.5 94.5 

151.2 151.2 
- 15.0 

100.0 100.0 
238.7 236.8 
150.0 150.0 
236.6 234.4 
100.0 100.0 

-- 

81.1 81.1 
90.0 90.0 

236.8 269.8 
15.2 2.0 

1.6 3.5 
4.4 6.8 

14.5 16.6 
5.0 5.0 

16.4 25.9 
348.9 402.6 
82.0 90.0 

41.7 46.5 
8.0 23.0 
0.3 1.1 -- 

2,169.5 2.303.8 
(206.5) (131.3) -- 

$1,963.0 2,172.5 -- -- 

The amounts included above are shown net 
of unamortized discounts and purchase price adjust- 
ments of $17.7 million. 

The following is a schedule of future maturi- 
ties of long-term debt as of December 31, 2000: 

2001 . . . . . . . .  

2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  361.2 

. . . . .  216.4 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$2,169.5 

A new revolving credit agreement between 
the Company and several lenders became effective 
on May IO,  2000. The facility is to be used for 
general Corporate purposes, primarily as a commer- 
cial paper backstop. The agreement permits borrow- 

ings of up to $1 billion from time to time until its 
scheduled maturity on May 10, 2005. The agreement 
allows for one-year extensions of the maturity date 
under certain conditions subject to the approval of 
lenders holding at least a majority of the commit- 
ments. In the event of such approval, total commit- 
ments under the agreement may total less than $1 
billion depending upon the willingness of the approv- 
ing and other lenders to assume the commitments of 
those lenders electing not to participate in the 
renewal. Under the agreement, interest is payable at 
a variable rate based on the agent bank's prime rate 
or at a fixed rate, based on the LIBOR or at fixed 
rates offered independently by the several lenders, for 
maturities of up to 360 days. This agreement 
provides for a facility fee (currently 17.5 basis points 
(0.175 percent)) ranging from 9 basis points to 35 
basis points (depending on our public debt rating) on 
total commitments. The agreement requires us to 
maintain a minimum consolidated tangible net worth 
of $1.5 billion and limits indebtedness to 60 percent 
of total consolidated capitalization. This agreement 
replaced an earlier $1 billion revolving credit agree- 
ment, which was amended and restated on June 25, 
1997, and which was scheduled to mature on 
June 25, 2002. There were no borrowings under the 
new agreement at December 31, 2000, or the earlier 
agreement at December 31, 1999. 

We established a commercial paper program 
on August 15, 1997, under a private placement 
agency agreement between two placement agents and 
us. The agreement permits us to issue up to $1 
billion of short-term promissory notes (generally 
known as commercial paper) at any time. Commer- 
cial paper may bear interest or be sold at a discount, 
as mutually agreed by the placement agents and us 
at the time of each issuance. Our commercial paper 
program requires that issuances of commercial paper 
be backed by an undrawn line of credit; the revolving 
credit agreement described above provides such 
support. Borrowings under this commercial paper 
program were $467.9 million at December 31, 2000, 
and $349.4 million at December 3 1, 1999. 

Short-term borrowings, excluding borrowings 
under our corporate commercial paper program, were 
$50.3 million, all by our international operations, at 
December 31, 2000, compared with $101.8 million at 
December 31, 1999. 

The weighted average interest rate on total 
short-term borrowings at December 3 I ,  2000, and 
December 31. 1999, was 6.5 percent and 7.8 percent, 
respectively. 



The 10.125 percent Notes, due in 2002, bear 
interest payable semi-annually on April 1 and Octo- 
ber 1. In the event of both a Designated Event and a 
Rating Decline (as defined in the agreement), each 
holder of a note may require the Company to redeem 
the holder’s notes, in whole or in part, at 100 percent 
of the principal amount plus accrued interest to the 
date of redemption. Otherwise, the notes are not 
redeemable by the Company prior to maturity. 

The 9.875 percent Notes, due June 13, 2001, 
are not redeemable prior to maturity and are secured 
by certain principal property of the Company. The 
interest is paid semi-annually on June 13 and 
December 13. 

The 8.375 percent Debentures, due in 2023, 
bear interest payable semi-annually on February 1 
and August 1. The debentures are not redeemable 
prior to February 1, 2003. On or after that date, at 
the option of the Company, the debentures may be 
redeemed in whole or in part at 103.73 percent of 
the principal amount, together with any accrued and 
unpaid interest, declining at the rate of 0.375 percent 
per year to February 1, 2013, and at 100 percent on 
February 1, 2013, and thereafter. 

interest payable semi-annually on January 1 and 
July 1. The 7.375 percent Notes, due May 15, 2007, 
bear interest payable semi-annually on May 15 and 
November 15. The 6.625 percent Notes, due Octo- 
ber 15, 2005, bear interest payable semi-annually on 
October 15 and April 15. The 6.375 percent Notes, 
due in 2004, bear interest payable semi-annually on 
May 1 and November 1. These notes are not 
redeemable by the Company prior to maturity and 
will not be entitled to any sinking fund. 

interest payable semi-annually on May 1 and No- 
vember 1. The notes are redeemable by the Com- 
pany at any time prior to maturity at par plus a yield 
maintenance premium. 

The 7.75 percent Notes, due in 2002, bear 

The 7.125 percent Notes, due in 2027, bear 

As of December 3 1, 2000, our 80 percent- 
owned joint venture interest in Candelaria mining 
operation in Chile had project debt outstanding of 
$236.8 million. The debt comprises $209.0 million of 
floating-rate, dollar-denominated debt and $27.8 mil- 
lion of fixed-rate, dollar-denominated debt. The debt 
and repayments are scheduled to vary from period to 
period with all debt maturing by the year 2008. 
Candelaria did not borrow funds in 2000. The 
floating rate debt is tied to six-month LIBOR, but 
has been converted to fixed-rate debt with the use of 
interest rate swap agreements. At December 3 1, 

2000, the overall weighted average interest rate 
including the interest rate swap was 7.77 percent. 
The debt obligations and the interest rate swaps are 
non-recourse to us. Under the proportional consolida- 
tion method, the debt amounts listed above represent 
our 80 percent share. 

At year-end 2000, our 51 percent-owned 
interest in El Abra mining joint venture had out- 
standing project-financing debt of $348.9 million. 
This debt has two components: (i) a syndicated loan 
facility with two tranches, totaling $296.6 million 
(Tranche A: $226.8 million; Tranche B: $69.8 
million); and (ii) a trade-related facility with a 
German institution totaling $52.3 million. The Com- 
pany currently has guarantees outstanding of $136.8 
million on this project debt (including its share of 
Tranche B debt, as well as Codelco’s share). The 
debt has a 9.5 year term, due May 15, 2007, and 
requires semi-annual principal payments that began 
on May 15, 1998. A portion of the floating-rate debt 
has been converted to fixed-rate debt with the use of 
interest rate swap agreements. The weighted average 
interest rate including the interest rate swaps on this 
debt at December 31, 2000, was 7.34 percent. The 
loan agreement specifies certain restrictions on addi- 
tional borrowings by El Abra and on dividend and 
subordinated debt payments. Under the proportional 
consolidation method, the debt amounts listed above 
represent our 51 percent share. 

On December 3 1, 2000, our Cerro Verde 
mine had a total of $82 million in project debt 
comprising two tranches, a $52.0 million facility that 
requires semi-annual installments of varying amounts 
through April 1, 2005 (Tranche A),  and a $30.0 
million revolving bullet loan due in the year 2003 
(Tranche B).  All of this facility is variable rate debt, 
with LIBOR as a base rate, but a portion has been 
converted to fixed-rate debt with the use of interest 
rate swap agreements. The weighted average interest 
rate including the interest rate swap on this debt at 
December 31, 2000, was 9.55 percent. The project 
debt is backed by proceeds from sales collections, 
plus a pledge of $45 million in assets on the bullet 
loan. In addition, Cerro Verde has a subordinated 
loan facility, for up to $34 million, that can be used 
and repaid whenever it has excess cash. The amount 
outstanding on the subordinated loan facility as of 
December 31, 2000, was $8 million, compared with a 
balance outstanding of $23 million as of Decem- 
ber 31. 1999. 

The various pollution control and industrial 
development revenue bonds are due from 2001 
through 2009. The interest on the bonds is paid 
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either quarterly or semi-annually at various times of 
the year. The interest rates on the bonds at Decem- 
ber 3 I ,  2000, ranged from 4.0 percent to 
13.9 percent. 

13. Shareholders’ Equity 

As of December 3 1, 2000, there were 
78,709,000 shares outstanding and 1.7 million shares 
authorized for purchase. During 1999, we issued 20.6 
million common shares along with a cash payment to 
acquire Cyprus Amax. During 1998, we purchased 
731,500 common shares at a total cost of $35.4 
million. 

We have 6,000,000 authorized preferred 
shares with a par value of $1.00 each; no shares were 
outstanding at either December 31, 2000, or Decem- 
ber 31, 1999. 

We have in place a Preferred Share 
Purchase Rights Plan that contains provisions to 
protect stockholders in the event of unsolicited offers 
or attempts to acquire Phelps Dodge, including 
acquisitions in the open market of shares constituting 
control without offering fair value to all stockholders 
and other coercive or unfair takeover tactics that 
could impair the board of directors’ ability to 
represent the stockholders’ interests fully. 

14. Stock Option Plans; Restricted Stock 

Executives and other key employees have 
been granted options to purchase common shares 
under stock option plans adopted in 1987, 1993 and 
1998. The option price equals the fair market value 
of the common shares on the day of the grant and an 
option’s maximum term is 10 years. Options granted 
vest ratably over a three-year period. 

If an optionee exercises an option under the 
1987, 1993 or 1998 plan with already owned shares 
of the Company, the optionee receives a “reload” 
option that restores the option opportunity on a 
number of common shares equal to the number of 
shares used to exercise the original option. A reload 
option has the same terms as the original option 
except that it has an exercise price per share equal to 
the fair market value of a common share on the date 

the reload option is granted and is exercisable six 
months after the date of grant. 

The 1998 plan provides (and the 1993 and 
1987 plan provided) for the issuance to executives 
and other key employees, without any payment by 
them, of common shares subject to certain restric- 
tions (Restricted Stock). There were 219,578 shares 
of Restricted Stock outstanding and 989,258 shares 
available for grant at December 3 1, 2000. 

Under the 1989 Directors Stock Option Plan 
(the 1989 plan), options to purchase common shares 
have been granted to directors who have not been 
employees of the Company or its subsidiaries for one 
year or are not eligible to participate in any plan of 
the Company or its subsidiaries entitling participants 
to acquire stock, stock options or stock appreciation 
rights. In 1996, we suspended the plan, thereby 
eliminating the annual grant of options to directors. 
The 1989 plan was replaced with the 1997 Directors 
Stock Unit Plan, which provides to each non- 
employee director an annual grant of stock units 
having a value equivalent to our common shares. 

At December 31, 2000, 2,044,631 shares 
were available for option grants (including 989,258 
shares as Restricted Stock awards) under the 1998 
plan. These amounts are subject to future adjustment 
as described in the plan agreement. No further 
options may be granted under the 1993, 1989 or 1987 
plans. 

During 2000, the Company awarded 69,000 
shares of Restricted Stock under the 1998 plan, with 
a weighted-average fair value at the date of grant of 
$54.44 per share. Compensation expense related to 
this award was $3.8 million for 2000. Restricted 
stock generally becomes fully vested in five years. 

In addition, former Cyprus Amax stock 
options were converted to 1,870,804 Phelps Dodge 
options. These options retain the terms by which 
they were originally granted under the Cyprus Amax 
Management Incentive Program. These options carry 
a maximum term of 10 years and became fully 
vested upon the acquisition of Cyprus Amax. Exer- 
cise periods ranged up to eight years at acquisition. 
No further options may be granted‘under this plan. 
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Changes during 1998, 1999 and 2000 in 
options outstanding for the combined plans were as 
follows: 

Average option 
Shares price per share 

$65.44 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,075,784 55.45 
. . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (64,332) 50.25 

Expired or terminated . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (174,423) 66.85 
63.10 

1,208,176 52.93 
1,870,804 68.30 

(80,517) 48.53 
Expired or terminated . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (65,190) 64.24 

62.89 
Granted . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,450,412 51.81 
Exercised. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (44,122) 42.86 
Expired or terminated . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (431,247) 64.65 

60.95 

Outstanding at December 31, 1997 . . . .  3,434,491 

Outstanding at December 31, 1998 . . . .  4,271,520 

Outstanding at December 31, 1999 . . . .  7,204.793 

Outstarding at December 31, 2000 . . . .  8,179,836 

Options outstanding based on a range of 
exercise prices were as follows: 

Range Options Average 
of  Exercise Outstnndin Remaining 

Prices at 12/31/08 Term 

$ 27-40 253,668 8 years 
40-60 4,150.683 8 years 
60-80 3,394.668 5 years 

80- 100 254,069 3 years 
100-102 126.748 2 years 

8,179,836 

Avera e 
Outstan%ing 

0 tion 
A c e  

$32.79 
52.81 
69.78 
83.37 

102.14 

60.95 

Exercisable options by plan and by range of 
exercise prices at December 3 1, 2000: 

Average 
option 

Shares price per share 

PD Plans 
1998 Plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,176,910 $54.72 
1993 Plan. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2,690,790 66.76 
1989 Plan. .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  49.364 50.10 
1987 Plan.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  59,631 46.19 

Cyprus Amax Plans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,804,724 68.67 
5,781,419 

Average 

of Exercise Exercisable 0 tion 
Range. Options Exercisable 

Prices at 12/31/00 A c e  

$ 27-40 252,768 $32.17 
40-60 1,769,667 53.65 
60-80 3.378,167 69.81 

80- 100 254,069 83.37 
100-102 126.748 102.14 

5.78 1,419 64.55 

Changes during 1998, 1999 and 2000 in 
Restricted Stock were as follows: 

Shares 

Outstanding at December 3 
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10,500 
Terminated . . . . . . . . . . .  
Released . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Outstanding at December 3 
Granted . . . .  ..................... 97,400 
Terminated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (4,100) 
Released . . . . . . . . . . .  

Outstanding at December 31, 1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  281,850 
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Terminated . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  ( 18,000) 
Released . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Outstanding at December 31, 2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  219,578 

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS 
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa- 
tion,” we apply APB Opinion 25 and related inter- 
pretations in accounting for our stock option plans 
and, accordingly, do not recognize compensation cost. 
If we had elected to recognize compensation cost 
based on the fair value of the options granted at 
grant date as prescribed by SFAS No. 123, net 
income and earnings per share would have been 
reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated in the 
table below: 

Net income (loss) - as reported . . . . . . . .  
Net income (loss) - pro forma . . . . . . . . .  
Earnings (loss) per share - as reported 

Earnings (loss) per share - pro forma 

Earnings (loss) per share - as reported 

Earnings (loss) per share - pro forma 

(basic) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

(basic) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

(diluted) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

(diluted) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2000 1999 1998 

$29.0 (257.8) 190.9 
21.3 (265.5) 184.7 

--- 

0.37 (4.19) 3.28 

0.27 (4.31) 3.17 

0.37 (4.19) 3.26 

$0.27 (4.31) 3.16 
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The fair value of each option grant is 
estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes 
option-pricing model with the following assumptions: 

2000 1999 1998 --- 
Expected dividend yield . . . . . . . . . . . .  3.30% 3.10% 2.98% 
Expected stock price volatility . . . . . . .  39.0% 32.0% 29.0% 
Risk-free interest rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5.4% 6.0% 4.4% 
Expected life of options.. . . . . . . . . . . .  3 years 3 years 3 years 

The weighted-average fair value of options 
granted during 2000 was $13.47 per share, compared 
with $12.18 in 1999 and $10.84 in 1998. 

15. Pension Plans 

Our pension plans cover substantially all of 
our U.S. employees and certain employees of our 
international subsidiaries. Benefits are based on years 
of service and depending on the plan either final 
average salary or a fixed amount for each year of 
service. Participants generally vest in their benefits 
after five years of service. In  a number of these 
plans, the plan assets exceed the accumulated benefit 
obligations (overfunded plans) and in the remainder 
of the plans, the accumulated benefit obligations 
exceed the plan assets (underfunded plans). For the 
underfunded plans, the aggregate benefit obligation is 
$54 million and the aggregate fair value of plan 
assets is $3 million. 

Our pension plans were valued between 
December I ,  1998, and January 1, 1999, and 
between December 1, 1999, and January I ,  2000. 
The obligations were projected to and the assets were 
valued as of the end of 1999 and 2000. The majority 
of plan assets are invested in a diversified portfolio of 
stocks, bonds and cash or cash equivalents. A small 
portion of the plan assets is invested in pooled real 
estate and other private corporate investment funds. 

The following table presents the benefit 
obligation, changes in plan assets, the funded status 
of the pension plans and the assumptions used: 

Assumptions: 
Discount rate . 

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 
Service cost - benefits earned during t 

Interest cost on benefit obligation ............ 
Plan amendments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Acquisitions . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  

Benefit obligation at end of year 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year . . 

Acquisitions . . . . . . . . .  

Change in plan assets: 

Actual return on plan assets..  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Employer contributions . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Currency translation adj . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Benefits paid. . . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  
Fair value of pian assets at end of year . . . . . . .  

Funded s ta tus . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .  
Unrecognized actuarial loss (gain) . . . . . . . . . . .  
Unrecognized prior service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net amount recognized. . . . .  . . . . . . . .  

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist 
Of: 

Deferred tax benefit. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accumulated other comprehensive income . , . . 

Net amount recognized. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
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The assumptions used and the annual cost 
related to these plans consist of the following: 

Assumptions: 
Discount rate. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Expected long-term rate of return . . . . . .  
Rate of increase in salary levels . . . . . . . .  

Components of net periodic benefit cost: 
Service cost - benefits earned during 

the period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest cost on benefit obligation. . . . . . .  
Expected return on plan assets . . . . . . . . .  

Amortization of prior service cost..  . . . . .  
Recognized actuarial loss (gain) . . . . . . .  
Net periodic benefit cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Amortization of transition obligation 
(asset) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2000 1999 1998 --- 

7.75% 6.75% 7.25% 
9.50% 9.50% 9.50% 
4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 

$ 22.3 19.6 16.6 
70.1 54.3 48.4 

(94.3) (70.5) (62.9) 

- (1.3) (1.8) 
4.2 4.4 4.2 

(3.1) 0.8 0.5 --- 
$ (0.8) 7.3 5.0 --- --- 

W e  recognize a minimum liability in our 
financial statements for our underfunded pension 
plans. The accrued pension benefit cost for the 
underfunded plans is $46 million while the minimum 
liability is $54 million, “Other Liabilities and De- 
ferred Credits” at December 3 l ,  2000, included $8 
million relating to this minimum liability, compared 
with $7 million at December 31, 1999. This amount 
was offset by a $ 2  million intangible asset, a $4 
million reduction in “Common Shareholders’ Equity” 
and a $ 2  million deferred tax benefit at Decem- 
ber 31, 2000, compared with a $ 2  million intangible 
asset, a $3 million reduction in “Common Share- 
holders’ Equity” and a $ 2  million deferred tax benelit 
at December 3 1,  1999. 

16. Postretirement and Other Employee Benefits 
Other Than Pensions 

We record obligations for postretirement 
medical and life insurance benefits on the accrual 
basis. One of the principal requirements of the 
method is that the expected cost of providing such 
postretirement benefits be accrued during the years 
employees render the necessary service. 

Our postretirement plans provide medical 
insurance benefits for many employees retiring from 
active service. The coverage is provided on a 
noncontributory basis for certain groups of employees 
and on a contributory basis €or other groups. The 
majority of these benefits are paid by the Company. 
We also provide life insurance benefits to our U.S. 
employees who retire from active service on or after 
normal retirement age of 65 and to some of our 
international employees. Life insurance benetits also 
are avilable under certain early retirement programs 

or pursuant to the terms of certain collective bargain- 
ing agreements. The majority of the costs of such 
benefits were paid out of a previously established 
fund maintained by an insurance company. 

The following table presents the change in 
benefit obligation, change in plan assets and the 
funded status of the other postretirement benefit 
plans and the assumptions used: 

Assumptions: 
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets . . 
Weighted average discount rate . . . . . . . . .  

Benefit obligation at beginning of year . . . . . . . . . .  
Service cost - benefits earned during the year . . .  
Interest cost on benefit obligation . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Amendments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Change in benefit obligation: 

Actuarial loss (gain) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Benefits paid. .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . .  

Benefit obligation at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year . . . .  
Actual return on plan assets..  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Fair value of plan assets at end of year . . . . . . . . .  

Funded (unfunded) status . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Unrecognixd actuarial gain . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Unrecognized prior service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net amount recognized - accrued liability . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2000 1999 -- 

8.00% 8.00% 
7.75% 7.75% 

$ 307 175 
4 5  

23 12 
16 - 
2 (25) 

(21) (9) 
- 2  
- 147 

$ 331 307 
- -  
- -  - -  

$ I O  I O  
I I  

$ I O  I O  

$(321) (297) 

15 ( I )  

(1) (I) 

- -  - -  

(13) (15) 

- $(319) (313) 
- -  
-- 

The assumptions used and components of 
net periodic postretirement benefit cost were as 
follows: 

2000 1999 1998 --- 
Assumptions: 

Expected long-term rate of return on 
plan assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Discount r a t e .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Rate of increase in salary levels.. . . . . . . . . .  

8.00% 8.00% 6.50% 
7.75% 6.75% 7.25% 
4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 

Components of net periodic benefit cost: 
Service cost -benefits earned during 

Interest cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  23 13 1 1  
the year . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 4 5 4 

Expected return on plan assets. . . . . . . . . . . .  (I) (I) (I) 
Net periodic benefit cos t . ,  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2 I4 - - - -  

For 2000 measurement purposes, the annual  
rate of increase in the cost of covered health care 
benefits was assumed to average 14.0 percent for 
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2001 and is projected to decrease to 5.5 percent by 
2008 and remain at that level. For 1999 measure- 
ment purposes, the annual rate of increase in the cost 
of covered health care benefits was assumed to 
average 11.0 percent for 2000 and was projected to 
decrease to 5.5 percent by 2008 and remain at that 
level. 

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a 
significant effect on the amounts reported for the 
health care plan. A 1 percentage-point change in 
assumed health care cost trend rates assumed for 
postretirement benefits would have the following 
effects: 

1 Percentage-Point 
Increase Decrease -- 

Effect on total of service and interest cost 
components.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1.4 (0.9) 

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation . . $21.6 (16.8) 

We also sponsor savings plans for the major- 
ity of our employees. The plans allow employees to 
contribute a portion of their pre-tax and/or after-tax 
income in accordance with specified guidelines. We 
match a percentage of the employee contributions up 
to certain limits. Our contributions amounted to $6.9 
million in 2000, $5.3 million in 1999, and $5.0 
million in 1998. 

17. Commitments 

Phelps Dodge leases mineral interests and 
various other types of properties, including shovels, 
offices, and miscellaneous equipment. Certain of the 
mineral leases require minimum annual royalty pay- 
ments, and others provide for royalties based on 
production. 

Summarized below as of December 3 1, 
2000. are future minimum rentals and royalties under 
non-cancelable leases: 

2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
After 2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total payments . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Present value of lease payments 
Less current portion . . . . . . . . . . .  

Present value of long-term 
payments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Operating Mineral Capital 
Leases Royalties Leases --- 
$ 17.0 1.4 4.0 

15.6 1.4 4.0 
14.6 1.4 4.0 
14.0 1.4 4.0 
12.1 I .4 4.0 
53.7 14.9 - 

20.0 

$16.4 

- - -  
- - - - $127.0 21.9 - - 

- (2.7) 

$13.7 - - 

Summarized below as of December 31, 
2000, is future sub-lease income: 

Sub-lease 
Income 

2001 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2002 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
2003 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

2005 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  2.4 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7.2 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $19.2 

- 
- - 

Rent and royalty charged to expense were: 

2000 1999 1998 --- 
Rental expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $29.1 17.5 13.7 

Mineral royalty . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.8 0.1 - 
Total charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $29.9 17.6 13.7 

- - -  
- - -  - - -  

In  January 2001, Alcoa Aluminio, S A .  
exercised a put option that required Phelps Dodge or 
a designee company to acquire the 40 percent 
minority interest in Alcoa Fios e Cabos Electricos, 
S.A., a Phelps Dodge wire and cable facility in 
Brazil. The transaction is scheduled to close in 
March 2001. The indicated option price is $48 
million, however, the Company is in discussions with 
the optionor regarding a final settlement price. 



79- 

18. Contingencies 

Phelps Dodge is subject to various federal, 
state and local environmental laws and regulations 
that govern emissions of air pollutants; discharges of 
water pollutants; and the manufacture, storage, han- 
dling and disposal of hazardous substances, hazard- 
ous wastes and other toxic materials. The Company 
is also subject to potential liabilities arising under the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensa- 
tion and Liability Act (CERCLA) and similar state 
laws that impose responsibility on persons who 
arranged for the disposal of hazardous substances, 
and on current and previous owners and operators of 
a facility for the cleanup of hazardous substances 
released from the facility into the environment. In 
addition, the Company is subject to potential liabili- 
ties under the Resource Conservation and Recovery 
Act (RCRA) and analogous state laws that require 
responsible parties remediate releases of hazardous or 
solid waste constituents into the environment associ- 
ated with past or present activities. 

Phelps Dodge or its subsidiaries have been 
advised by EPA, the United States Forest Service 
and several state agencies that they may be liable 
under CERCLA or similar state laws and regulations 
for costs of responding to environmental conditions at 
a number of sites that have been or are being 
investigated by EPA, the Forest Service or states to 
establish whether releases of harardous substances 
have occurred and, i f  so, to develop and implement 
remedial actions. 

Phelps Dodge has provided reserves for 
potential environmental obligations that management 
considers probable and for which reasonable esti- 
mates of such obligations can be made. For closed 
facilities and closed portions of operating facilities 
with closure obligations, an environmental liability is 
considered probable and is accrued when a closure 
determination is made and approved by management. 
Environmental liabilities attributed to CERCLA or 
analogous state programs are considered probable 
when a claim is asserted, or is probable of assertion, 
and we have been associated with the site. Other 
environmental remediation liabilities are considered 
probable based upon specific facts and circumstances. 
Liability estimates are based on an evaluation of, 
among other factors, currently available facts, ex- 
isting technology, presently enacted laws and regula- 
tions, Phelps Dodge’s experience in remediation, 
other companies’ remediation experience, Phelps 
Dodge’s status as a potentially responsible party 
(PRP) ,  and the ability of other PRPs to pay their 
allocated portions. Accordingly, total environmental 

reserves of $307.1 million and $336.1 million, respec- 
tively, were recorded as of December 31, 2000 and 
1999. The long-term portion of these reserves is 
included in other liabilities and deferred credits on 
the consolidated balance sheet and amounted to 
$244.9 million and $254.4 million at December 3 1, 
2000 and 1999, respectively. 

The sites for which Phelps Dodge has 
received a notice of potential liability or an informa- 
tion request that are currently considered to be the 
most significant are the Pinal Creek site in Miami, 
Arizona, and the former American Zinc and Chemi- 
cal site in Langeloth, Pennsylvania. 

At the Pinal Creek site, remediation is being 
performed by the Pinal Creek Group, which includes 
Phelps Dodge Miami Inc. and other companies that 
have been determined to have contributed through 
historic mining activities to the contaminated ground- 
water plume in the shallow alluvial aquifers of Pinal 
Creek. The remediation work is being conducted in 
accordance with the requirements of the Arizona 
Department of Environmental Quality’s Water Qual- 
ity Assurance Revolving Fund program. In addition, 
the remedial action is consistent with the National 
Contingency Plan prepared by EPA as required by 
CERCLA. Ongoing remediation efforts have resulted 
in  continued improvement of the water quality in the 
area. In  November 1997, the Pinal Creek Group 
joined with the State of Arizona in seeking approval 
of the District Court for the entry of a Consent 
Decree resolving all matters related to an enforce- 
ment action contemplated by the State of Arizona 
with respect to the groundwater matter. On Au- 

13, 1 9 W t h e  court approved the Decree that 
commits the Pinal Creek Group to complete the 
remediation work outlined in the remedial action 
plan that was submitted to the State in May 1997. 
Phelps Dodge Miami Inc. has commenced contribu- 
tion litigation against other parties involved in this 
matter and has asserted claims against certain of its 
past insurance carriers. While significant recoveries 
are expected, the Company cannot reasonably esti- 
mate the amount and, therefore, has not taken 
potential recoveries into consideration in the recorded 
reserve. Phelps Dodge Miami Inc.’s share of the 
planned remediation work has a cost range for 
reasonably expected outcomes estimated to be from 
$129 million to $235 million, and, as no point within 
that range is more likely than any other, the lower 
end of the range has been reserved as required by 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

In  June 1999, Cyprus A-max received an 
information request from the Pennsylvania Depart- 
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ment of Environmental Protection regarding the 
former American Zinc and Chemical site in Lan- 
geloth, Pennsylvania. The site is currently being 
investigated by the state of Pennsylvania. Studies 
initiated to determine the nature and extent of 
remediation work that may be required on the 
property indicated a cost range for reasonably ex- 
pected outcomes estimated to be from $18 million to 
$52 million. Phelps Dodge has reserved $20 million 
for the possible remediation work at the Langeloth 
site representing the most likely point within the 
range of estimates. 

reasonably possible outcomes for all reservable envi- 
ronmental remediation sites other than Pinal Creek 
and Langeloth was estimated to be from $146 million 
to $226 million of which $158 million has been 
reserved. Work on these sites is expected to be 
substantially completed in the next several years, 
subject to inherent delays involved in the remediation 
process. 

Phelps Dodge believes certain insurance poli- 
cies partially cover the foregoing environmental 
liabilities; however, some of the insurance carriers 
have denied coverage. We are presently litigating 
these disputes. Further, Phelps Dodge believes that i t  
has other potential claims for recovery from other 
third parties, including the U.S. Government and 
other PRPs, as well as liability otTsets through lower 
cost remedial solutions. Neither insurance recoveries 
nor other claims or olTsets have becn recogniLed in 
the financial statements unless such offsets are 
considered probable of realization. 

not the subject of an environmental reserve because 
it is not probable that a successful claim will be 
made against the Company for those sites, but for 
which there is a reasonably possible likelihood of an 
environmental remediation liability. At December 3 1,  
2000, the cost range for reasonably possible outcomes 
for all such sites was estimated to be from $12 
million to $45 million. The liabilities arising from 
potential environmental obligations that have not 
been reserved for at this time may be material to,the 
results of any single quarter or year in the future. 
Management, however, believes the liability arising 
from potential environmental obligations is not likely 
to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s 
liquidity or financial position as such obligations 
could be satisfied over :i period of many years. 

At December 3 1, 2000, the cost range for 

Phelps Dodge has a number of sites that are 

The following summarizes environmental re- 
serve activities for the years ended December 31: 

2000 1999 

Balance. beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $336.1 106.0 
-- 

..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  Additions to reserves. - 36.5 
Spending against reserves, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (31.8) (20.0) 
Liabilities assumed in Cyprus acquisition. . . . . .  2.8 213.6 

Balance, end of year . . . .  $307.1 336.1 -- -- 

As of December 31, 1998, Phelps Dodge had 
an environmental reserve balance of $106.0 million 
for estimated future costs associated with environ- 
mental matters at shutdown operations or closed 
facilities within active operations. During 1999, net 
spending against that reserve totaled $20.0 million 
including $2.8 million at Cyprus Amax between 
October 16 and December 3 1. During the second 
quarter of 1999, Phelps Dodge recorded an additional 
$8.3 million provision for estimated future costs 
associated with environmental matters directly re- 
lated to our restructuring plan announced on 
June 30, 1999. Additionally, we recorded a $28.2 
million provision in the fourth quarter of 1999 for 
estimated future costs associated with environmental 
matters. The acquisition of Cyprus Amax increased 
our reserve by $213.6 million. As of December 31, 
1999. the reserve balance was $336.1 million. 

During 2000, net spending against environ- 
mental reserves totaled $3 I .8 million and an addi- 
tional $2.8 million was assigned to the value of 
environmental liabilities assumed with the acquisition 
of Cyprus Amax. As of December 31, 2000, the 
environmental reserve balance associated with envi- 
ronmental niatters at shutdown operations or closed 
facilities within active operations was $307. I million. 

Our mining operations are subject to laws 
and regulations establishing new requirements for 
mined land reclamation and financial assurance. 
Colorado passed a mined land reclamation law in the 
early 1970’s establishing a Mined Land Reclamation 
Board that adopted regulations .in 1977. Significant 
changes were made in 1993. Our Colorado mining 
operations have had approved mined land reclama- 
tion plans and financial assurance under these laws 
for several years. Arizona enacted its mined land 
reclamation law in 1994. Our Arizona mining opera- 
tions submitted proposed reclamation plans and 
financial assurance following the adoption of imple- 
menting rules in  1997, and most of our AriLona 
operations have approved plans and financial assur- 
ance. New Mexico passcd a niined land reclamation 
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law in 1993 authorizing regulations that were adopted 
in 1994. The permitting process for New Mexico 
mining operations commenced in December 1994 
and approved “closeout” plans and financial assur- 
ance for our operations in that state are due by 
December 31, 2001. In connection with the develop- 
ment of closeout plans for its largest New Mexico 
facilities, the Company has conducted a number of 
technical studies. Those studies indicate that the 
Company will need to increase the total financial 
assurance it provides for reclamation of its New 
Mexico properties from approximately $100 million 
to approximately $200 million. Although the Com- 
pany believes that its most recent estimates of 
reclamation costs at its New Mexico properties are 
based on a sound understanding of the applicable 
science and regulations, it is likely that in the public 
hearing and review process the State regulators may 
seek to impose a significantly larger financial assur- 
ance requirement. Actual reclamation costs may 
differ significantly from the required amount of 
financial assurance based on a variety of factors 
including possible changes in legal standards over 
time and potential cost savings from use of the 
Company’s own personnel and equipment at each 
site compared to third-party contractor costs (under 
New Mexico law financial assurance requirements 
are calculated based on estimated third-party costs), 
advances in technology and reclamation techniques, 
and opportunities to prepare each site for more 
efficient reclamation through careful development of 
the site over time. 

The federal Bureau of Land Management 
adopted amended regulations governing mined land 
reclamation for mining on federal lands in January 
2001. New financial assurance requirements for 
existing operations take effect in June 2001, although 
the new reclamation requirements take effect only for 
new mining and certain modifications to existing 
mining activities. Mined land reclamation is an 
ongoing activity and we recognize estimated reclama- 
tion costs using a units-of-production basis calcula- 
tion. These laws and regulations and the associated 
plan approval and permitting requirements will likely 
increase our regulatory obligations and compliance 
costs over time with respect to mine closure and 
reclamation. 

In 1997, issues of dispute arose between 
Phelps Dodge and the San Carlos Apache Tribe 
regarding our use and occupancy of the Black River 
Pump Station which delivers water to the Morenci 
operation. On May 12, 1997, the Tribe filed suit 
against us in San Carlos Apache Court. seeking our 
eviction from the Tribe’s Reservation and claiming 

substantial compensatory and punitive damages, 
among other relief. In May 1997, we reached an 
agreement with the Tribe, and subsequently federal 
legislation (Pub. L. No. 105-18, 5003, 11 1 stat. 158, 
181-87) was adopted which mandated dismissal of 
the tribal court suit. The legislation prescribes 
arrangements intended to ensure a future supply of 
water for the Morenci mining complex in exchange 
for certain payments by us. The legislation does not 
address any potential claims by the Tribe relating to 
our historical occupancy and operation of our facili- 
ties on the Tribe’s Reservation, but does require that 
any such claims be brought, if at all, exclusively in 
federal district court. By order dated October 13, 
1997, the tribal court dismissed the lawsuit with 
prejudice, as contemplated by the legislation. 

pany and the Tribe enter a lease for the delivery of 
Central Arizona Project water through the Black 
River Pump Station to Morenci on or before 
December 31, 1998. In the event a lease was not 
signed, the legislation expressly provided that the 
legislation would become the lease. The legislation 
included the principal terms for that eventuality. To 
date, we have not entered into a lease with the Tribe, 
but are relying on our rights under the legislation and 
are prepared to enforce those rights if necessary. We 
are cooperating with the United States, which 
operates the pump station, to reach an agreement 
with the Tribe on the lease issue. 

In September 2000, RAG American Coal 
Company (RAG) filed a complaint against Cyprus 
Amax Minerals Company and Amax Energy Inc. 
The complaint alleges claims relating to breach of 
contract, fraud, negligent misrepresentation, and neg- 
ligence arising from alleged inaccuracies in financial 
statements relating to the sale by Cyprus of its coal 
subsidiary to RAG in June 1999. The complaint 
seeks damages in the amount of $100 million under 
the fraud claim and $115 million under each of the 
other claims. Cyprus has filed a motion to dismiss, 
which has been fully briefed and remains pending. 

The 1997 legislation required that the Com- 

19. Derivative Financial Instruments Held for Pur- 
poses Other Than Trading and Fair Value of 
Financial Instruments 

We do not purchase, hold or sell derivative 
contracts unless we have an existing asset, obligation 
or anticipate a future activity that is likely to occur 
and will result in exposing us to market risk. We will 
use various strategies to manage our market risk, 
including the use of derivative contracts to limit, 
offset or reduce our market exposure. Derivative 

A 



instruments are used to manage well-defined com- 
modity price, foreign exchange and interest rate risks 
from our primary business activities. The fair values 
of our derivative instruments, as summarized later in 
this note, are based on quoted market prices for 
similar instruments and on market closing prices at 
year end. A summary of the derivative instruments 
we hold is listed as follows: 

Copper Hedging 

Some of our wire, cathode and rod custom- 
ers request a fixed sales price instead of the 
COMEX or LME average price in the month of 
shipment or receipt. As a convenience to these 
customers, we enter into copper swap and futures 
contracts to hedge the sales in a manner that will 
allow us to receive the COMEX or LME average 
price in the month of shipment or receipt while our 
customers receive the fixed price they requested. We 
accomplish this by liquidating the copper futures 
contracts and settling the copper swap contracts 
during the month of shipment or receipt, which 
generally results in the realization of the COMEX or 
LME average price. 

Because of the nature of the hedge settle- 
ment process, the net hedge value, rather than the 
sum of the face values of our outstanding futures 
contracts, is a more accurate measure of our market 
risk from the use of such hedge contracts. The 
contracts that may result in market risk to us are 
those related to thc customer sales transactions under 
which copper products have not yet been shipped. 

swap contracts for approximately 119 million pounds 
of copper with a net hedge value of $103 million and 
a total face value of approximately $106 million. At 
that date, we had $2 million in losses on these 
contracts not yet recorded in our financial statements 
because the copper products under the related 
customer transactions had not yet been shipped or 
received. At year-end 1999, we had futures and swap 
contracts in place for approximately 1 1  1 million 
pounds of copper at a net hedge value of $87 million 
and a total face value of approximately $125 million. 
We had $7 million in deferred, unrealized gains at 
that time. At December 31, 1998, we had futures 
and swap contracts in place for approximately 86 
million pounds of copper at a net hedge value of $65 
million and a total face value of approximately $138 
million. We had $7 million in deferred, unrealized 
losses at that time. 

At DecemGer 3 I ,  2000, we had futures and 

We do not acquire, hold or issue futures 
contracts for speculative purposes. All of our copper 
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futures and swap contracts have underlying customer 
agreements or other related transactions. We have 
prepared an analysis to determine how sensitive our 
net futures contracts are to copper price changes. In 
our market risk analysis, if copper prices had droppet 
a hypothetical 10 percent at the end of 2000, we 
would have had a net loss from our copper futures 
contracts of approximately $10 million. That loss 
would have been virtually offset by a similar amount 
of gain on the related customer contracts. 

From time to time, we may purchase or sell 
copper price protection contracts for a portion of our 
expected future mine production. We do this to limit 
the effects of potential decreases in c6pper selling 
prices. For 2000 production, we had a total of 110 
million pounds of copper cathode production pro- 
tected through contracts that effectively ensured 
minimum (approximately 72 cents) and maximum 
(approximately 95 cents) prices per pound. The 
minimum and maximum prices are based upon 
average LME prices for the protection period. These 
contracts expired without payment on December 3 1, 
2000. For 1999 production, we had fourth quarter 
protection contracts that gave us a minimum 
monthly average LME price of 69 cents per pound 
for approximately 200 million pounds of copper 
cathode that expired without payment on Decem- 
ber 31, 1999. We did not have any outstanding 
copper price protection contracts at the end of 1998, 
1999 and 2000. 

Copper Scrap Purchase Hedging 

From time to time, Phelps Dodge may 
purchase copper scrap as a raw material to be 
processed eventually into rod for sale to customers. 
The copper scrap is purchased from third parties at I 

copper content price different from the price con- 
tracted with eventual rod customers. To mitigate the 
copper price risk resulting from the difference be- 
tween the purchase and sales price of the purchased 
copper, Phelps Dodge enters into a hedge program. 
The hedge program involves the sale of an over-the- 
counter swap priced at the COMEX average price ii 

the month of scrap delivery. In the month that the 
copper rod associated with the scrap purchase is soh 
the swap is liquidated at the COMEX average price 
in the month of the copper rod sale. At Decem- 
ber 31, 2000, we had swap contracts for approxi- 
mately 3 million pounds of scrap copper with a net 
hedge and total face value of approximately $2.5 
million. At the end of the year, these contracts did 
not have any significant gains or losses that were no 
recorded in our financial statements. We did not 
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have any outstanding copper scrap purchase hedge 
contracts at the end of 1998 and 1999. 

Aluminum Hedging 

During 2000, our Brazilian wire and cable 
operation entered into aluminum swap contracts with 
a financial institution to lock in the cost of aluminum 
ingot needed in manufacturing aluminum cable 
contracted by customers. At December 3 1, 2000, we 
had swap contracts for approximately 9 million 
pounds of aluminum with a net hedge value of 
approximately $6 million and a total face value of 
approximately $8 million. At the end of the year, 
these contracts did not have any material gains or 
losses that were not recorded in our financial 
statements. A sensitivity analysis of our aluminum 
futures contracts indicates that a hypothetical 10 per- 
cent unfavorable change in aluminum prices at the 
end of 2000 would have resulted in a loss of 
approximately $0.5 million. That loss would have 
been virtually offset by a similar amount of gain on 
the related customer contracts. At December 3 I ,  
1999, we had futures contracts for approximately 1 
million pounds of aluminum with a net hedge and 
total face value of approximately $1 million. 

Foreign Currency Hedging 

We are a global company and we transact 
business in many countries and in many currencies. 
Foreign currency transactions increase our risks 
because exchange rates can change between the time 
agreements are made and the time foreign currencies 
are actually exchanged. One of the ways we manage 
these exposures is by entering into forward exchange 
and currency option contracts in the same currency 
as the transaction to lock in or minimize the effects 
of changes in exchange rates. With regard to foreign 
currency transactions, we may hedge or protect 
transactions for which we have a firm legal obligation 
or when anticipated transactions are likely to occur. 
We do not enter into foreign exchange contracts for 
speculative purposes. In  the process of protecting our 
transactions, we may use a number of offsetting 
currency contracts. Because of the nature of the 
hedge settlement process, the net hedge value, rather 
than the sum of the face value of our outstanding 
contracts, is a more accurate measure of our market 
risk from the use of such contracts. 

At December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, we 
had net hedge and total face values of approximately 
$16 million, $34 million and $44 million, respec- 
tively, in  forward exchange contracts to hedge in- 

tercompany loans betneen our international 
subsidiaries or foreign currency exposures with our 
trading partners. We did not have any significant 
gains or losses at year-end that had not been 
recorded in our financial statements for each of the 
three years in the period ended December 31, 2000. 

At year-end 2000, our foreign currency 
protection contracts included the British pound, euro, 
Japanese yen and Thai baht. A sensitivity analysis of 
our exposure to market risk with respect to our 
forward foreign exchange contracts indicates that if 
exchange rates had moved against the rates in our 
protection agreements by a hypothetical 10 percent, 
we would have incurred a potential loss of approxi- 
mately $2 million. This loss would have been 
virtually offset by a gain on the related underlying 
transactions. 

Interest Rate Hedging 

In some situations, we may enter into 
structured transactions using currency swaps that 
result in lower overall interest rates on borrowings. 
We do not enter into currency swap contracts for 
speculative purposes. At December 3 1, 2000, we had 
no currency swap contracts in place. At year-end 
1999, we had currency swap contracts in place with 
an approximate net hedged and total face value of 
$21 million. At December 31, 1998, we had currency 
swap contracts in place with an approximate net 
hedged value of $31 million and total face value of 
$36 million. These currency swaps involved swapping 
fixed-rate Brazilian real loans into fixed-rate U.S. 
dollar loans, and swapping floating-rate U.S. dollar 
loans into fixed-rate Thai baht loans. 

In addition, we are exposed to increasing 
costs from interest rates associated with floating-rate 
debt. We may enter into interest rate swap contracts 
to manage or limit such interest expense costs. We 
do not enter into interest rate swap contracts for 
speculative purposes. At the end of 2000 and 1999, 
we had interest rate swap contracts in place with an 
approximate net hedged and total face value of $396 
million and $485 million, respectively. At Decem- 
ber 3 1, 2000 we had $7 million in unrealized losses 
on these contracts. At the end of 2000, we prepared 
an analysis to determine the sensitivity of our interest 
rate swap contracts to changes in interest rates. A 
hypothetical interest rate move against our interest 
rate swaps of 1 percent (or 100 basis points) would 
have resulted in a potential loss of approximately $10 
million over the life of the suap. 



Diesel Fuel Price Protection Program 

Phelps Dodge purchases large quantities of 
diesel fuel to operate its mine sites as an input to the 
manufacturing process. Price volatility of diesel fuel 
impacts the cost of producing copper cathode and 
other copper products for our customers. The objec- 
tive of the diesel fuel price protection program is to 
protect against a significant upward movement in 
diesel fuel prices while retaining the flexibility to 
participate in any downward price movement. 

purchase out-of-the-money (OTM) call options, set- 
tled at the average price, for diesel fuel. Purchase of 
these calls protects us against significant upward 
movement in diesel fuel prices while allowing us full 
participation in downward movements, The physical 
purchases and the options are both priced based on 
Platt's Gulf Coast, which eliminates pricing basis risk 
between the hedge and the hedged item. We do not 
purchase diesel fuel options for speculative purposes. 

contracts to protect first quarter 2001 diesel fuel 
consumption of approximately 8 million gallons with 
a net hedged and total face value of $7 million, for 
which we paid a premium of approximately $0.2 
million. We did not have any significant gains or 
losses at year-end that had not been recorded in our 
financial statements. We did not have any diesel fuel 
price protection option contracts at the end of 1998 
or 1999. 

To implement these objectives, we may 

At December 3 I ,  2000, we had option 

Credit Risk 

We are exposed to credit loss in cases when 
the financial institutions in which we have entered 
into derivative transactions (commodity, foreign ex- 
change and currency/interest rate swaps) are unable 
to pay us when they owe us funds as a result of our 
protection agreements with them. To minimize the 
risk of such losses, we only use highly rated financial 
institutions that meet certain requirements. We also 
periodically review the credit worthiness of these 
institutions to ensure that they are maintaining their 
ratings. We do not anticipate that any of the 
financial institutions that we have dealt with will 
default on their obligations. 

estimate the fair value of each group of financial 
instrument for which we can reasonably determine a 
value are as follows: 

statement amount is a reasonable estimate of the fair 
value because of the short maturity of those 
instruments. 

The methods and assumptions we used to 

Cash and cash equivalents - the financial 

-54- 

Investments and long-term receivables - the 
fair values of some investments are estimated based 
on quoted market prices for those or similar invest- 
ments. The fair values of other types of instruments 
are estimated by discounting the future cash flows 
using the current rates at which similar instruments 
would be made with similar credit ratings and 
maturities. 

Long-term debt - the fair value of substan- 
tially all of our long-term debt is estimated based on 
the quoted market prices for the same or similar 
issues or on the current notes offered to us for debt 
with similar remaining maturities. 

Derivative hedge instruments - the fair val- 
ues of some derivative instruments are estimated 
based on quoted market prices and on calculations 
using market closing prices for those or similar 
instruments. 

Financial guarantees and standby letters of 
credit - the fair value of guarantees and letters of 
credit are based on fees currently charged for similar 
agreements or on the estimated cost to terminate 
them or otherwise settle our obligations with the 
holders of the guarantees or letters of credit at year- 
end 2000. As a whole, we have various guarantees 
and letters of credit totaling $246 million. There is 
no market for our guarantees or standby letters of 
credit. Therefore, it is not practicable to establish 
their fair value. 

- 

The estimated fair values of our financial 
instruments as of December 31, 2000, were as 
follows: 

Carrying Fair 
Amount Value 

Cash and short-term investments . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 250.0 250.0 

Diesel fuel call option.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  0.2 - 
Investments and long-term receivables 

-- 

(including amounts due within one year) 
for which it is practicable to estimate 
fair value * .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  64.6 228.2 

2.1 69.5 2,112.4 

0.4 0.3 

Long-term debt (including amounts due within 

Foreign current exchange contracts - assets 

one year) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .-. . . . . . . . .  

(liabilities) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
~ ~ ~ ~~~ 

* Our largest cost basis investment is our minority interest in  
Southern Peru Copper Corporntion (SPCC),  which is 
carried at a book value of $13.2 million. Our ownership 
interest in SPCC is represented by our share of a class of 
SPCC common stock that is currently not registered for 
trading on any public exchange. 
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20. Business Segment Data 

Our business consists of two divisions, PD 
Mining and PD Industries. The principal activities of 
each division are described below, and the accompa- 
nying tables present results of operations and other 
financial information by significant geographic area 
and by segment. 

PD Mining is our international business 
segment that comprises a group of companies in- 
volved in vertically integrated copper operations 
including mining, concentrating, electrowinning, 
smelting, refining, rod production, marketing and 
sales, and related activities. PD Mining sells copper 
to others primarily as rod, cathode or concentrate, 
and as rod to our wire and cable segment. In 
addition, P D  Mining at times smelts and refines 
copper and produces copper rod for customers on a 
toll basis. It is also an integrated producer of 
molybdenum, with mining, roasting and processing 
facilities producing molybdenum concentrate as well 
as metallurgical and chemical products. In addition, 
it produces gold, silver, molybdenum, copper sulfate, 
rhenium and copper chemicals as by-products, and 
sulfuric acid from its air quality control facilities. 
This business segment also includes worldwide min- 
eral exploration and development programs. 

PD Industries is our manufacturing division 
comprising two business segments that produce engi- 
neered products principally for the global energy, 
telecommunications, transportation and specialty 
chemicals sectors. The two business segments are 
specialty chemicals, which comprises Columbian 
Chemicals Company and its subsidiaries, and wire 
and cable, which comprises three worldwide product 
line businesses and a shared support services opera- 
tion. The three product line businesses in the wire 
and cable segment are magnet wire, energy and 
telecommunications cables, and specialty conductors. 
P D  Industries also included Accuride Corporation 
and its subsidiaries, our wheel and rim operations, 
until Accuride was sold effective January 1, 1998. 

On December 8, 2000, we announced our 
intention to explore strategic alternatives for, includ- 
ing potential sale of, our specialty chemicals and wire 
and cable segments. 

Intersegment sales reflect the transfer of 
copper from PD Mining to PD Industries at the 
same prices charged to outside customers. 

The following tables give a summary of 
financial data by business segment and geographic 
area for the years 1998 through 2000. Major unusual 
items during the three-year period included (i) pre- 
tax charge of $51.6 million and $5.8 million for PD 
Industries and PD Mining. respectively, related to 
the June 30, 1999 and June 27, 2000 restructuring 
plans; (ii) the fourth quarter 1999 acquisition of 
Cyprus Amax; pre-tax asset impairments of $320.4 
million at PD Mining and $21.7 million at PD 
Industries; a pre-tax charge of $28.2 million for 
environmental provisions at PD Mining; a pre-tax 
charge of $36.6 million at PD Mining and $59.9 
million at PD Industries for a restructuring plan 
announced on June 30, 1999; (iii) a 1998 pre-tax 
provision of $5.5 million at PD Mining for costs 
associated with indefinite mine shutdowns and cur- 
tailments; a $2.3 million pre-tax provision in our wire 
and cable segment, primarily for an early retirement 
program; and a $198.7 million pre-tax gain in other 
segments from the disposition of Accuride (See 
Notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated financial state- 
ments for a further discussion of these issues.) 

FINANCIAL DATA BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA 

2000 1999 1998 --- 
Sales and other operating revenues: 

Unaffiliated customers 

Unitcd States . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $3,373.6 2,093.8 2,141.0 
Latin America . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  758.0 660.2 579.9 

Othe r . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  393.5 360.4 342.5 

$4,525.1 3.1 14.4 3.063.4 

--- 
--- --- 

Long-lived assets at December 31: 

United States . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $4,031.0 4,200.3 2,687.9 

Latin America * . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1,938.0 2,093.3 1,109.8 
Othe r . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  309.1 225.1 239.6 

$6,278.1 6.518.7 4,037.3 

--- 
--- --- 

* Long-lived assets in Chile . . . . . . .  $1,201.1 1,261.5 645.1 

- .  

I 

i 
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FINANCIAL DATA BY BUSINESS SEGMENT 

2000 
Sales & other operating revenues: 

Unaffiliated customers . . . . . . . .  
Intersegment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Depreciation, depletion and 
amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Non-recurring charges and 
provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Operating income (loss) . . . . . . . .  
Interest i ncome .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Equity earnings (losses) 
Income tax expense (hen 
Equity basis investments 
Assets at December 31 . 
Expenditures for segment assets . . .  

1999 
Sales & other operating revenues: 

. .  

Unatfiliated customers . . . . . . . .  
Intersc, v n e n t  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

amortimtion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Depreciation, depletion and 

Non-recurring charges and . .  

PD Mining 
Company 

$3,073.7 
242.6 

359.4 

5.8 
243.3 

12.1 
64.6 
(2.8) 
55.3 
18.4 

6,036.7 
31 1.6 

$1,786.6 
224.4 

222.6 

(385.2) 

Corporate. 
Unallocated 

Specialty Wire & Other * PD Industries Segment & Reconciling 
Chemicals Cable Segments Subtotal Subtotal Eliminations ** Totals ~ - _ _ _ _  - 

598.4 853.0 - 1,45 I .4 4,525.1 - 4,525.1 
- 1.5 - 1.5 244.1 (244.1) - 

45.9 53.9 - 99.8 459.2 5 .O 464.2 

- 46.0 - 46.0 
88.1 (17.8) - 70.3 
4.3 1.3 - 5.6 

38.2 11.1 - 49.3 
2.7 - 2.7 

12.4 8.4 - 20.8 
- 4.8 - 4.8 

768.6 683.5 - 1,452. I 
73.7 16.9 - 90.6 

- 

51.8 
3 13.6 

17.7 
113.9 

76.1 
23.2 

7,488.8 
402.2 

(0.1 

543.0 784.8 - 1,327.8 3,114.4 - 3,114.4 
0.9 - 0.9 225.3 (225.3) - - 

45.2 58.5 - 103.7 326.3 2.8 329.1 

.~ 
Assets ;it December 31 . . . . . . . . .  6.345.1 

148.7 Expenditurcs (or scgmcnt asscts . . .  

51.8 
(76.6) 237.0 

1.8 19.5 
103.9 217.8 

1.6 1.5 
(56.9) 19.2 
22.3 45.5 

342.0 7,830.8 
20.1 422.3 

Operating income (loss) . . . . . . . .  (301.0) 92.5 (42.8) - 49.1 
- 6.8 Interest i ncome .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6.9 4.4 2.4 
- 56.5 Interest expcnsc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  36. I 40.5 16.0 
- 4.3 Equity earnings (losscs) . . . . . . . .  (0.9) 0. I 4.2 

Income tax cxpcnsc (hcncl i t )  . . . .  ( I  26.9) 9.4 (13.5) - (4.1 
Equity basis invcstmcnts . . . . . . . .  20.8 0.3 l 0 . X  - 1 1 . 1  

( 17.7) (52.3) - (70.0) (455.2) (0.2) (455.4) 
(251.3) (64.3) (315.6) 

13.7 4.2 17.9 
92.6 27.8 120.4 
3.4 I .7 5.1 

(131.0) (34.2) ( 165.2) 
37.0 16.1 54.0 

773.6 748.3 - 1,520.9 7,806.0 363.0 8,229.0 
121.1 2 x 3  - 149.6 208.3 (57.9) 240.4 

1 yon 
Sales 8( other operating revenues: 

Unalliliatcd customers . . . . . . . .  $1,677.7 
I ntcrscgmcn t . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  248.7 

amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  191.5 

provisions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (5.5) 

Depreciation. depiction and 

Non-recurring charges and . .  

454.6 931.1 - 1,385.7 
1 .6 - I .6 - 

43.3 56.5 - 99.8 

Operating income (loss) . . . . . . . .  I 10.3 87.6 67.3 
lntcrcst incomc . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1.3 I .5 4.3 
Interest expcnse . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  21.0 8.5 21.0 
Equity earnings (losscs) . . . . . . . .  I .7 - (5.9 
Income tax expense (benefi t )  . . . .  38.8 26.5 26.7 
Equity basis investments . . . . . . . .  18.7 0. I 22.3 
Assets at Decembcr 31 . . . . . . . . .  3,218.2 720.5 879.2 
Expenditures for segment asscts . . .  309.3 261 .6 97.4 

- (2.3) 198.7 196.4 
198.7 353.6 

- 5.8 
- 29.5 
- (5.9) 

67.6 120.8 
- 22.4 
- 1,608.7 
- 359.0 

3,063.4 
250.3 

29 I .3 

190.9 
463.9 

13.1 
56.5 
(4.2 

159.6 
41.1 

4,826.9 
668.3 

- 
(250.3) 

2.0 

- 
(41.2) 
10.4 
39.9 

(25.6) 

209.6 

- 

- 

- 

3,063.4 
- 

293.3 

190.9 
422.7 
23.5 
96.4 

134.0 
41.1 

5,036.5 
668.3 

(4.2) 

* Other segnicnts include Accuridc Corporation which w;ts sold effrctive .Ianuuv I .  19%. (See Note 3 to thc consolidated financial 
st;ttcmcnts lor ;I furtlicr discushion of this sdc . )  
lispresents corporate. unallocatcd arid rcconciling climinarion activities and ;i>se[\. * *  
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Part I11 

Items 10, 11, 12 and 13. 

The information called for by Part I11 
(Items 10, 11, 12 and 13) is incorporated herein by 
reference from the material included under the 
captions “Election of Directors,” “Beneficial Owner- 
ship of Securities,” “Executive Compensation” and 
“Other Matters” in Phelps Dodge Corporation’s 
definitive proxy statement (to be filed pursuant to 
Regulation 14A) for its Annual Meeting of Share- 
holders to be held May 1, 2001 (the 2001 Proxy 
Statement), except that the information regarding 
executive officers called for by Item 401 of Regula- 
tion S-K is included in Part I of this report. The 
2001 Proxy Statement is being prepared and will be 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
and furnished to shareholders on or about April 1, 
2001. 

Part IV 

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule and 
ReDorts on Form 8-K 

(a)  I .  

2. 

3. 

3. I 

3.2 

4.1 

Financial Statements: Index on 
page 54. 

Financial Statement Schedule: Index on 
page 54. 

Exhibits: 

Complete composite copy of the Certif- 
icate of Incorporation of the Corpora- 
tion as amended to date (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the 
Corporation’s Form 10-Q for the quar- 
ter ended June 30. 1999. (SEC File 
NO. 1-82)). 

Amended and Restated By-Laws of the 
Corporation, effective as of Novem- 
ber I ,  2000 (except for Section 7, 
Article 11, which is efrective as of 
May 2, 2001) (incorporated by refer- 
ence to Exhibit 3.2 to the Corporation’s 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Sep- 
tember 30, 2000 (SEC File 
NO. 1-82)). 

Credit Agreement. ei‘fective M‘iy IO.  
2000, among the Corporation. the 
Lenders parties thereto, Salomon Smith 
Barney Inc., Bank of Tokyo-iLlitsubi\hi 
Trust Company. and Citibanh. ?J..A.. ‘is 
agent (incorporated bc reference to 

Exhibit 4 2 of the Corporation‘s 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
March 31. 2000 (SEC File No. 1-82)). 

Rights Agreement. dated as of Febru- 
ary 5, 1998 betneen the Corporation 
and The Chase Manhattan Bank 
(which replaces the Rights Agreement 
dated as of Jul! 29, 1988 as amended 
and restated as of December 6, 1989, 
the rights issued thereunder having 
been redeemed by the Corporation), 
which includes the form of Certificate 
of Amendment setting forth the terms 
of the Junior Participating Cumulative 
Preferred Shares. par value $1 .OO per 
share, as Exhibit A, the form of Right 
Certificate as Exhibit B and the Sum- 
mary of Rights to Purchase Preferred 
Shares as Exhibit C (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 1 to the Corpora- 
tion’s Current Report on Form 8-K and 
in the Corporation’s Form 8-A, both 
filed on February 6, 1998 (SEC File 

4.2 

No. 1-82)). 

Note: Certain instruments with respect 
to long-term debt of the Corporation 
have not been filed as  Exhibits to this 
Report since the total amount of securi- 
ties authorized under any such instru- 
ment does not exceed I O  percent of the 
total assets of the Corporation and its 
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. 
The Corporation ‘igrees to furnish a 
copy of each such instrument upon 
request of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. 

Form of Indenture. dated as of Septem- 
ber 22, 1997. beticeen the Corporation 
and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as 
Trustee (incorporated by reference to 
the Corporation‘s Registration State- 
ment and Post-Effective Amendment 
No. 1 on Form S-3 (Registration Nos. 
333-3641 5 and 33-44380)) filed with 
the Securities and Exchange Commis- 
sion on September 25. 1997 (incorpo- 
rated by reference to Exhibit -1.3 to the 
Corporation’s Form IO-Q for the quar-  
ter ended September 30. 1997 (SEC 
File No. 1-82)) 

Form of 6.375 percent Sote .  due No- 
vember I .  2004. ot the Corpor,ition 
i\\ued on Noo\erntier 5 .  1997, piir\u,int 

4.3 

4.4 
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I 

to the Indenture. dated as of Septem- 
ber 22, 1997, between the Corporation 
and The Chase Manhattan Bank. as 
Trustee (incorporated by reference to 
the Corporation's Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on November 3. 
1997 and Exhibit 4.4 of Form 10-Q for 
the quarter ended September 30, 1997 
(SEC File No. 1-82)). 

Form of 7.125 percent Debenture, due 
November 1, 2027, of the Corporation 
issued on November 5 ,  1997, pursuant 
to the Indenture, dated as of Septem- 
ber 22, 1997, between the Corporation 
and The Chase Manhattan Bank. as 
Trustee (incorporated by reference to 
the Corporation's Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on November 3, 
1997 and Exhibit 4.5 of the Corpora- 
tion's Form IO-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30, 1997 (SEC File 

4.5 

No. 1-82)). 

4.6 Tripartite / Conversion Agreement. dated 
as of August 8, 2000, among Chase 
Manhattan Bank and First Union Na- 
tional Bank. and acknowledged by the 
Corporation, pursuant to which First 
Union National B a n k  succeeded Chase 
Manhattan Bank as trustee under the 
Indenture dated as  of September 22, 
1997 (incorporated by reference to the 
Corporation's Registration Stutcment on 
Form S-3 (Reg. No. 333-43890) filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Com- 
mission on August 16, 2000). 

IO. Management contracts and compensa- 
tory plans and agreements. 

The Corporation's 1987 Stock Option 
and Restricted Stock Plan (the 1987 
Plan). as amended to and including 
June 3, 1992, and form of Stock Option 
Agreement and form of Reload Option 
Agreement, both as modified through 
June  3, 1992 (incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 10.2 of the Corporation's 
Form IO-Q for the c p r t e r  ended 
June 30, I992 (SEC File No.  1 - 8 2 ) ) ,  
Form of Restricted Stock letter under 
the I987 Plan (incorporated by ret'er- 
ence to Exhibit IO. I to the Corpora- 
tion's 1990 IO-K ( S E C  File No.  1-82)  ) 

IO .  I 

a n d  the amendment thereto d,ited 
J~iiie 25,  1992 (incorpor'ited b! refer- 
ence to Exhibit 10.2 to the Corpora- 
tion's 1992 Form IO-K (SEC File 
NO. 1-82)). 

10.2. The Corporation's 1989 Directors Stock 
Option Plan (the 1989 Directors Plan), 
'1s amended to and including June 3, 
1992, suspended effective Ko\ember 6, 
1996 (incorporated by reference to Ex- 
hibit 10.3 to the Corporation's 
Form IO-Q for the quarter ended 
June 30, 1992 (SEC File KO. 1-82)). 
Form of Stock Option Agreement 
under the 1989 Directors Plan (incor- 
porated by reference to the Corpora- 
tion's Registration Statement on 
Form S-8 (Reg. No. 33-34363) ) .  

10.3 The Corporation's 1993 Stock Option 
and Restricted Stock Plan (the 1993 
Plan), 21s amended through Decem- 
ber I .  1993, and form of Restricted 
Stock letter under the 1993 P l a n  (in- 
corporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 
to the Corporation's 1993 Form 10-K 
(SEC File No. 1-82) ) .  Amendment to 
I993 Plan elrective May 7. 1997 ( in-  
corporated by reference to Ex- 
hibit IO. I5 io the Corporation's 
Form IO-Q for the quarter ended 
June 30, 1997 (SEC File No. 1-82)).  
.Amended and restated form of Stock 
Option Agreement, amended through 
February 5 ,  I997 (incorporated by ref- 
erence to Exhibit 10.3 of the Corpora- 
tion's 1997 Form IO-K (SEC File 
No. 1-82) ) .  Form of Reload Option 
Agreement, amended through Novem- 
ber 2, 1994, under the 1993 Plan 
(incorporated by reference to Ex- 
hibit 10.3 to the Corporation's 1994 
Form IO-K (SEC File No. 1 - 8 2 ) ) .  

Note: Omitted from filing pursuant to 
the Instruction to I t e m  601 ( b )  
(10) are actual Stock Option Agree- 
ments between the Corpor:ition and 
certain ofiicers, under the 1987 Plan 
and the 1993 Plan. and certain Direc- 
tors. under the 1989 Directors Plan. 
which contain substantially similar pro- 
viiions to Exhibits 10.1. 10.2 itnd 10.3 
above. 

.. . . .  
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I 10.4 

I 
I 

I 
10.5 

10.6 

10.7 

10.8 

10.9 

Description of the Corporation's Incen- 
tive Compensation Plan (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the 
Corporation's 1993 Form 10-K (SEC 
File No. 1-82)). 

Amended and restated Deferred Coni- 
pensation Plan for the Directors of the 
Corporation, dated as of December 3, 
1998, effective January 1, 1999 (incor- 
porated by reference to the Corpora- 
tion's 1998 Form 10-K (SEC File 
NO. 1-82)). 

Modified form of Change-of-Control 
Agreement between the Corporation 
and certain executives, including all of 
the current executive officers to be 
listed in the summary compensation 
table to the 2001 Proxy Statement 
(incorporated by reference to the Cor- 
poration's 1998 Form 10-K (SEC File 
NO. 1-82)). 

Amended and restated form of Sever- 
ance Agreement between the Corpora- 
tion and certain executives, including 
all of the current executive ol'fcers to 
be listed in the summary con1pens:ition 
table to the 2001 Proxy Statement 
(incorporated by refercnce to Ex- 
hibit 10.7 of the Corporation's I997 
Form IO-K (SEC File No. 1-82) ) ,  

The Corporation's Retirement Plan for 
Directors, efTective January I ,  1988. 
terminated for active directors etfective 
December 3 I .  1997 (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit IO.  13 to the Cor- 
poration's 1987 Form 10-K (SEC File 
No. 1-82)). 

The Corporation's Supplemental Retire- 
ment Plan (which amends, restates and 
re-names the provisions of the Corpora- 
tion's Comprehensive Executive Non- 
quulified Retirement and Savings Pliin 
other than the supplemental savings 
provisions of such plan). effective (ex- 
cept as otherwise noted therein) as of 
January I. I997 (incorporated b!. refer- 
ence to Exhibit 10.9 to the Corpora- 
tion's I997 Form 10-ti (SEC File 
No. 1-82) ) .  First Amendment to Plan. 
etyective Jmuary 1. I998 (incorpomted 
by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the 
Corporation'.; 1098 Form IO-K (SEC 
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10.10 

10.1 1 

10.12 

File No. 1 - 8 2 ) ) .  Second Amendment 
to Plan. effsctive January I ,  I999 (in- 
corporated b\. reference to the Corpora- 
tion's Form 10-0 for the quarter ended 
June 30, 1999 (SEC File No. 1-82)). 
Third Amendment to Plan, effective as 
of January 1. 2000 (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Corpo- 
ration's Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended June 30. 2000 (SEC File 
NO. 1-82)). 

The Corporation's Supplemental Sav- 
ings Plan (SSP) (which amends, re- 
states, and replaces the supplemental 
savings provisions of the Corporation's 
Comprehensive Executive Nonqualified 
Retirement and Savings Plan), effective 
(except as otherwise noted therein) as 
of January 1, 1997 (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.10 of the Cor- 
poration's 1997 Form 10-K (SEC File 
No. 1-82)): as amended by the First 
Amendment to such SSP, effective as 
of January 1. 1999 (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.10 of the Cor- 
poration's Form l0-Q for the quarter 
ended September 30, 1999 (SEC File 
No. 1-82)). Second Amendment to 
SSP, etTective its of January I ,  2000 
(incorporated by refercnce to the Cor- 
poration's Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended June 30. 2000 (SEC File 
No. 1-82)) .  

The Corporation's Directors Stock Unit 
Plan efrective January I ,  1997 (incor- 
porated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to 
the Corporation's 1996 Form 10-K 
(SEC File No. 1-82)) as amended and 
restated. effective January I .  1998 (in- 
corporated b!. reference to Ex- 
hibit 10.1 1 of the Corporation's 1997 
Form 10-K (SEC File No. 1-82)). 
First Amendment to Plan, effective as 
of January 1. 2001 (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.11 of the Cor- 
poration's Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended June 30. 2000 (SEC File 
No. 1-82)), 

The Corporation's 1998 Stock Option 
and Restricted Stock Plan (the 1998 
Plan) and forms of Relo:id Option 
Agreement and of Restricted Stock 
.\grcenient iincizr the 1998 PlLtn. etTec- 
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tive March 4, 1998 (incorporated b! 
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Cor- 
poration's Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended June 30, 1998 (SEC File 
No. 1-82)), and amended form of 
Stock Option Agreement. effective 
June 22, 1999 (incorporated by refer- 
ence to the Corporation's Form 10-Q 
for the quarter ended June 30, 1999 
(SEC File No. 1-82)). First Amend- 
ment to the 1998 Plan, effective as of 
May 4, 2000 (incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 10.12 of the Corporation's 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
June 30, 2000 (SEC File No. 1-82)). 

Note: Omitted from filing pursuant to 
the Instruction to Item 601 (b)  
(10) are actual Stock Option Agree- 
ments between the Corporation and 
certain officers under the 1998 Plan. 
nhicli contain substantially similar pro- 
visions to Exhibit IO. 12 above. 

Advisory Services Agreement, dated as 
of May 3, 2000, between the Corpora- 

IO.  I3 

tion and Douglas C. Yearley (incorpo- 
rated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of 
the Corporation's Form l0-Q for the 
quarter ended March 31, 2000 (SEC 
File No. 1-82)). 

12 Statement regarding computation of ratios 
of total debt to total capitalization. 

List of Subsidiaries and Investments 21 

23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. 

2 1  Powers of Attorney executed by certain 
officers and directors who signed this 
Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Note: Shareholders may obtain copies 
of Exhibits by making written request 
to the Secretary of the Corporation and 
paying copying costs of 10 cents per 
page, plus postage. 

( b )  Reports on Form 8-K: 

N o  reports on Form 8-K were filed by the 
Corporation during the quarter endcd Decem- 
ber 31. 2000. 
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Schedule I1 
PHELPS DODGE CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES 

($ in millions) 

Reserve deducted in balance sheet from the 
asset to which applicable: 
Accounts Receivable: 

December 3 1, 2000. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
December 3 1, 1999. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
December 3 I ,  1998. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

December 3 1 ,  2000. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
December 3 I ,  1999. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
December 3 I ,  1998. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

December 31, 2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
December 3 I ,  1999. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Supplies: 

Deferred Tax Asset: 

Balance at 
beginning 
of period 

$ 17.5 
14.9 
13.8 

$ 8.4 
6.7 
8.7 

$165.3 
27.6 

Additions 
Charged to 
costs and 
expenses Other 

0.3 (0.2) 
4.1 (0.6) 
3.5 (0.9) 

1.8 ( 1  .0) 
3.4 0.2 
0.9 (0.2) 

Deductions 

- 

0.9 
1.5 

1.6 
1.9 
2.7 

23.0 91.9 ( A )  - 

- 137.7 ( A )  - 

Balance 
at end 

of period 

17.6 
17.5 
14.9 

7.6 
8.4 
6.7 

280.2 
165.3 

( A )  Deferred t a x  assets recorded in conjunction with the acquisition of Cyprus Amax.  

..__ ,-,.,. . ̂_._._, .. - . .  .... .......... ... 
I 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the 
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

March 9, 2001 

PHELPS DODGE CORPORATION 
(Registrant) 

By: I s /  RAMIRO G. PERU 
Ramiro G. Peru 

Senior Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by 
the follolving persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

Is/ J. STEVEN WHISLER Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer 
J. Steven Whisler and Director 

(Principal Executive Officer) 

I s /  RAMIRO G. PERU Senior Vice President and 
Ramiro G. Peru Chief Financial Officer 

(Principal Financial Of3cer) 

I s /  STANTON K. RIDEOUT Vice President and Controller 
(Principal Accounting Officer) Stanton K. Rideout 

Kobert N. Burt, Archie W. Dunham, William A. Franke, Paul Hazen. Manuel J. Iraola) 
Marie L.  Knowles, Robert D. Krebs, Southwood J. Morcott, Gordon R. Parker, Directors) 

By: I s /  KAMIKO G. P m u  
Ramiro G. Peru 
A ttorney-in-fitct 

March 9, 2001 

March 9. 2001 

March 9, 2001 

March 9, 2001 
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Eleven-Year Financial Summary 2000-1990 
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts) 

2000 (a) 1999 (b)  1998 (c) 1997(d) 

Sales and other operating revenues to unaffiliated customers 
Phelps Dodge Mining Company . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Phelps Dodge Industries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$3,073.7 1,786.6 
1,451.4 1,327.8 -- 

2,173.3 
1.741.0 

1,677.7 
1,385.7 
3.063.4 4,525.1 3,114.4 -- 3.914.3 

Operating expenses 
Cost of products sold (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Depreciation, depletion and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Selling and general administrative expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Exploration and research expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Provision for reclamation costs, environmental costs, asset dispositions 

and other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

3,580.2 2,477.8 
464.2 329.1 
135.1 115.5 
56.8 52.2 

2,38 1.3 
293.3 
102.0 
55.0 

2,744.1 
283.7 
141.8 
87.8 

51.8 455.4 
4,288.1 3,430.0 
-- 
-- 

(190.9) 
2,640.7 

422.7 
(96.4) 

1.9 
8.8 

45.9 
3,303.3 

611.0 
(74.2) 
11.7 
33.4 

237.0 (315.6) 
(217.8) (120.4) 

4.5 0.2 
30.0 9.1 -- 

Operating income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Miscellaneous income and expense, net .  . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  . .  

Interest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Capitalized interest. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Income (loss) before taxes, minority interests, equity in net earnings 
(losses) of affiliated companies, and cumulative effect of accounting 
changes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Provision for taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Minority interests in consolidated subsidiaries (g) . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Equity in net earnings (losses) of affiliated companies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Cumulative effect of accounting changes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting changes . . . . . . . . .  
Cumulative effect of accounting changes . .  . . .  
Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

In  millions (h)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  . .  

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting changes . . 

Net income (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Earnings (loss) per common share - diluted (h, i )  

Average number of common share 

53.7 (426.7) 
(19.2) 165.2 

(7.0) 2.1 
1.5 5.1 

29.0 (254.3) 

$ 29.0 (257.8) 

-- 
(3.5) - -- 

-- -- 

581.9 
( 180.4) 

11.7 
(4.7) 

337.0 
( 134.0) 

(7.9) 
(4.2) 

190.9 
- 

408.5 
- 

190.9 408.5 

3.26 
- 

6.63 
- 

$ 0.37 (4.13) 
- (0.06) 

$ 0.37 (4.19) -~ -- 6.63 

61.6 

3.26 

78.8 61.6 58.5 
~~~ 

(a) Reported amounts include after-tax, non-recurring provisions of $56.4 million or 72 cents per common 
share for the 1999 and 2000 restructuring plans, offset by an income tax refund and related interest of 
$10.1 million or 13 cents per common share and an insurance settlement refund of $3.0 million or 4 cents 
per common share relating to a former Cyprus Amax coal property. 
Reported amounts include after-tax, non-recurring provisions of $222.5 million or $3.61 per common share 
for asset impairments, $17.8 million or 29 cents per common share reflecting provisions for environmental 
costs, $65.7 million or $1.07 per common share for costs associated with a restructuring plan announced on 
June 30, 1999, and $3.5 million or 6 cents per common share for the cumulative effect of an accounting 
change, partially offset by a non-recurring gain of $30.0 million or 49 cents per common share for an 
adjustment of prior year's taxes. Phelps Dodge acquired Cyprus Amax Minerals Company on October 16, 
1999. 
Reported amounts include an after-tax gain of $13 1.1 million, or $2.24 per common sh'are from the 
disposition of Accuride Corporation, an after-tax loss of $26.4 million or 45 cents per co,mmon share from 
the sale of our 44.6 percent interest in a South African mining company and a non-recurring, after-tax 
provision of $5.6 million, or I O  cents per common share for curtailments and indefinite closures primarily 
at Phelps Dodge Mining Company. 
Reported amounts include non-recurring 1997 charges reflecting provisions for environmental costs, an 
early retirement program and asset dispositions of $31.6 million after taxes, or 51 cents per common share. 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 



1996(e) 

2,091.1 
1,695.5 
3,786.6 

2,604.4 
249.5 
125.9 
83.9 

10.0 
3,073.7 

712.9 
(68.0) 

1.9 
40.7 

687.5 

(16.2) 
10.5 

461.8 

(220.0) 

- 
461.8 

6.98 
- 

1995 

2,488.7 
1.696.7 
4,185.4 

2,69 1.4 
223.5 
123.6 
73.2 

(26.8) 
3,084.9 
1,100.5 

(65.1) 
3.1 

37.2 

1,075.7 
(322.7) 
( 12.9) 

6.5 

1994 (f) 

1,820.7 
1,468.5 
3,289.2 

2,375.7 
195.3 
107.1 
53.0 

157.7 
2,888.8 

400.4 

20.7 
11.3 

(57.3) 

1993 

1,320.3 
1,275.6 
2,595.9 

1,921.8 
187.1 
103.7 
56.8 

- 
2,269.4 

326.5 

17.5 
16.4 

(54.5) 

375.1 
(104.7) 

(8.0) 
8.6 

305.9 
(105.9) 

(12.1) 
- 

746.6 
- 

27 1 .O 
- 

187.9 - 
746.6 27 1 .O 187.9 

10.66 
- 

3.82 
- 

2.66 - 
6.98 

66.2 

10.66 

70.0 

3.82 

71.0 

2.66 

70.6 

1992 

1,397.7 
1,181.6 
2,579.3 

1,841.1 
162.3 
105.4 
49.9 

- 
2,158.7 

420.6 
(47.4) 

7.9 
47.1 

428.2 
(1 14.4) 

(12.8) 
0.6 

301.6 
(79.9) 
22 1.7 

4.28 
(1.13) 
3.15 

70.4 

1991 

1,325.3 
1,109.0 
2,434.3 

1,722.2 
138.9 
98.7 
50.6 

- 
2,010.4 

423.9 

8.3 
28.4 

(47.4) 

413.2 
(131.4) 

(12.0) 
3.1 

272.9 - 
272.9 

3.93 

3.93 

69.5 

- 

1,653.6 
133.0 
93.7 
47.4 

1,927.7 
708.0 
(51.2) 

1.3 
18.1 

676.2 
(224.0) 

12.3 
454.9 

(9.6) 

- 
454.9 

6.56 

6.56 

69.3 

(e)  Reported amounts include interest charges of $5.9 million and reclamation reserves of $10 million for the 
court-ordered rescission of a 1986 sale of property in Maspeth, New York, by Phelps Dodge to the United 
States Postal Service. The after-tax effect was $10.7 million, or 16 cents per common share. 

Reported amounts include non-recurring 1994 fourth quarter provisions for environmental costs and asset 
dispositions of $91.7 million after taxes, or $1.29 per common share. 

Prior to 1994, minority interests in the income of consolidated subsidiaries were included in cost of 
products sold. For comparative purposes, prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform with the 
current year presentation. 

In 1992, Phelps Dodge's stock split two-for-one. All per share amounts and the average number of shares 
outstanding have been retroactively revised for all periods presented. 

Based on average number of shares outstanding (diluted). 

(f) 

(g) 

(h)  

(i) 
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Eleven-Year Financial Summary 2000-1990 (Conrinuedj 
(Dollars in millions, evcept per share amounts) 

2000 (a) 1997(d) 1999 (b) 1998(c) 
Business segments ( g )  
Operat ing income (loss): 

Phelps Dodge Mining C o m p a n y .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Phelps Dodge Industries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Corporate  and o t h e r . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$ 243.3 
70.3 

(76.6) 

(30 I .O) 
49.7 

110.3 
353.6 

459.2 
207.8 
(56.0) 
61 1.0 

(64.3) 
(315.6) 

(41.2) 
422.7 $ 237.0 

$6,036.7 
1,452.1 

342.0 
$7,830.8 

$ 157.5 
$ 2.00 

N e t  assets: 
Phelps Dodge Mining C o m p a n y .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Phelps Dodge Industries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Corporate  and  other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

6,345.1 
1.520.9 

3,218.2 
1.608.7 

3,026.8 
1.736.2 

209.6 
5.036.5 

363.0 
8,229.0 

202.2 
4.965.2 

124.3 
2.00 

117.3 
2.00 

122.7 
2.00 

Common dividends declared . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Dividends per common share ( h  
Purchase of own shares ( h )  
Common shares  (7'housund.s) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cost  of shares purchased .  . . . . .  

Capital expenditures and investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net cash provided by operating activities 

At December 31 
N e t  current  assets 
Total  assets . . . . . .  
Long-term d e b t .  . .  

Book value per common 
Common shares  outs tand 
N u m b e r  of cmployces . . 
Stock prices (Common shares) 

Shareholders' cquit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Low ( h )  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . .  . . .  

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Copper 
Coppcr  production ( O w t i  pmlirciiorr - tlroicsancl 
Coppcr sales (Owrr prodircrio,r - ~hoirsancl forisj 

Commcrcial ly  recoverable coppcr  rcscrvcs (Millio 
COMEX copper pr icc( j )  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . .  

732 
35.4 

378.4 
668.3 

6,554 
511.5 

- 
$ -  

$51 1.2 
$422.3 

204.5 
240.4 

764.6 
789.2 

$ 89.7 
$7,830.8 
$1.963.0 
$3,105.0 
$ 39.45 

78.709 
15,500 

275. I 328.9 
5,036.5 

836.4 
2,587.4 

44.66 
57,934 
13,924 

350.0 
4,965.2 

857.1 
2,5 10.4 

42.8 I 
58,634 
15,869 

8,229.0 
2,172.5 
3.276.8 

4 I .66 
78,656 
16,400 

$ 73.00 
$ 36.06 
$ 55.81 

70.63 
41.88 
67.3 I 

7 I .75 
43.88 
50.88 

89.63 
59.88 
62.25 

1.200.3 
1.200.6 

$ 0.84 
24.1 

890. I 874.0 
876.3 
0.75 
14.5 

812.1 
8 12.8 

I .04 
13.7 

884.2 
0.12 
24.4 

( a )  Reported amounts include after-tax. non-recurring provisions of $56.4 million or 7 2  cents per common share for the 1999 and 2000 
restructuring plans, otfset by a n  income tax refund and related interest of $10.1 million or 13 cents per comnion share and an insurance 
settlement refund of $3.0 million or 4 ccnts per common share relating to a former Cyprus Amax coal property. 
Reported amounts include after-tax, non-recurring provisions of $222.5 million or $3.6 I per common share for asset impairments. $17.8 
million or 29 cents per common share reflecting provisions for environmental costs. S65.7 million or $1.07 per common share for costs 
nssocintcd w i t h  ;i restructuring plan announced on June 30, 1999. and $3.5 million or 6 cents per common share for the cumulative 
erect of a n  accounting change. partially offset by a non-recurring gain of $30.0 million or 49 cents per common share for an adjustment 
of prior year's taxes. Phelps Dodge acquired Cyprus Amxi Minerals Company on October 16, 1999. 
Reported amounts include an after-tax gain of $131.1 million. or $2.24 per common share from the disposition of Accuride Corporation. 
an after-tax loss of $26.4 million or 45 cents per common share from the sale of our 44.6 percent interest in a South African mining 
company and a non-recurring. after-tax provision of $5.6 million. or 10 cents per common share for curtailments and indefinite closures 
primarily at Phelps Dodge Mining Company. 
Reported amounts include non-recurring I997 charges reflecting provisions for environmental costs, a n  early retirement program and 
asset dispositions of $31.6 inillion after taxes, or 5 1  cents per common share. 

(h) 

( c )  

(d)  



1996 (e) 1995 1994(f) 1993 1992 1991 1990 

528.7 898.7 335.1 234.2 374.1 316.2 598.5 
227.9 246.2 113.6 135.0 93.0 91.7 156.1 
(43.7) (44.4) (48.3) (42.7) ( 46.5) (44.0) (46.6) 
712.9 1,100.5 400.4 326.5 420.6 423.9 708.0 

2,879.8 2,776.4 2.41 1.9 2,0745 1,874.3 1,675.7 1,522.9 
1,544.7 1,336.4 1,407.7 1,323.0 1,265.0 1.153.6 1,157.8 

39 1.9 533.1 314.2 323.4 301.9 221.9 146.7 
4,816.4 4,645.9 4,133.8 3,720.9 3.441.2 3,05 1.2 2,827.4 

128.6 125.6 119.2 116.1 113.0 104.0 103.7 
1.95 1.80 1.69 1.65 1.61 1.50 1 S O  

4,297 2,761 76 130 - 60 760 
273.2 162.7 3.9 5.6 - 1.9 21.8 
837.5 959.0 542.6 385.0 430.7 48 1 .O 641.9 
560.4 405.2 432.3 39 1 .O 329.4 366.2 294.8 

735.6 950.2 558.2 447.4 449.1 341.7 349.2 
4,8 16.4 4,645.9 4, I 33.8 3,720.9 3,441.2 3,05 1.2 2,827.4 

554.6 613.1 622.3 547.3 373.8 382.0 403.5 
2,755.9 2,677.7 2,187.6 2,022. I 1,972.4 1,859.3 1,682.9 

42.59 39.04 30.95 28.67 28.03 26.7 1 24.43 
64,71 1 68.593 70,672 70J3 1 70,374 69,622 68,882 
16,033 15,343 15,498 14,799 14,567 13,93 1 14.066 

77.63 70.50 65.00 55.63 53.00 39.63 35.8 I 
54.63 5 I .88 47.63 39.13 32.00 26.19 23.06 
67.50 62.25 61.88 48.75 48.50 33.50 28.3 1 

770.4 7 12.7 572.8 547.7 537.0 538.1 560.7 
77 I .6 696.6 560.6 543.9 537.7 553.9 556.7 

I .06 1.35 I .07 0.85 1.03 I .05 1.19 
12.1 12.3 10.6 10.1 10.5 10.8 11.8 

(e)  Reported amounts include interest charges of S5.9 million and reclamation reserves of $10 million for the court-ordered rescission of il 1986 
sale of property in Maspeth. S e w  York, by Phelps Dodge to the United States Postal Service. The after-tax effect was $10.7 million, or 16 
cents per common share. 

( f )  Reported amounts include non-recurring I994 fourth quarter provisions for environmental costs and asset dispositions of $91.7 million after 
taxes, or $1.29 per common share. 

(9) All years have been presented to conform with SFAS No. 131. Prior to 1994, minority interests in the income of consolidated subsidiaries 
were included in cost of products sold. For comparative purposes, prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current 
year presentation. 

(h)  In 1992. the Corporation’s stock split two-for-one. All per share amounts and the average number of shares outstanding have been 
retroactively revised for all periods presented. 

( i)  Based on number of shares outstanding. 

(j) New York Commodity Exchange annual average spot price per pound - cathodes. 



Shareholder Information 

Transfer and Dividend Paying Agent and Registrar 
Melion Investor Services LLC 
Overpeck Centre 
85 Challenger Road 
Ridgefield Park, New Jersey 07660 

Phelps Dodge Shareholder Services 

Internet: wwwmellon-investor.com 

Independent Accountants 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
1850 North Central Avenue, Suite 700 
Phoenix, Arizona 85004-4545 
(602) 364-8000 

(800) 279-1240 

Phelps Dodge Common Shares 
Phelps Dodge common shares are listed on the New York 
Stock Exchange. The ticker symbol i s  PD. 

Form 10-K Annual Report 
The Annual Report on Form 10-K for 2000 is filed with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission. Additional 
copies of this report may be obtained, excluding exhibits, 
in a reasonable time without charge upon written request to: 

Secretary of the Corporation 
2600 North Central Avenue 
Phoenix, Arizona 85004-3014 

Corporate Address 
Phelps Dodge Corporation 
2600 North Central Avenue 
Phoenix, Arizona 85004-301 4 
(602) 234-81 00 

Internet 
w.phelpsdodge.com 

http://wwwmellon-investor.com
http://w.phelpsdodge.com



